
BEFORE THE 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF OHIO 

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 

CASE NO. 15-1830-EL-AIR 

CASE NO. 15-1831-EL-AAM 

CASE NO, 15-1832-EL-ATA 

2015 DISTRIBUTION BASE RATE CASE 

BOOK I - APPLICATION AND SUPPLEMENTAL 

VOLUME 4 OF 14 

This is to certify that the images appearing ar© an 
accurate and complete reproduction ©f a case file 
document deliveriad in the regular course of business. 
Technician. 4 4 i D̂ate Procasaod MQV S 0 2M5^ 



Dayton Power and Light Company 
DP&L Case No. 15-1830-EL-AIR 

Standard Filing Requirements for Rate Increases 

Table of Contents 

RECl=iVED 
NOV 3 0 2015 

DOwJvr.H.,'o DIVISION 
Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 

Book# Vol# OAC 4901-7-01 Reference Schedule Description 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2-3 

AppendixA, Chapterli, (B){l}(a)-{f) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (B)(2}(a)-(c) 
Appendix A, Chapter II, (B)(3}(aHd) 

Appendix A ,Chapter II, (6)(7) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (B)(8) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, {B){9) 

s-l 

s-2 

S-3 

S-4.1 

S-4.2 

Most recent S year capital expenditures budget. 

Most recent 5 year financial forecast and support for the underlying assumptions. 

A proposed notice for newspaper publication. 

An executive summary of applicant utility's corporate process. 

An executive summary of applicant utility's management policies, practices, and 
organization. 

' : , ;• i ? • :r;>'.vv. '• 5: AppendIxA,Chapterll/(C)SuppjementaMnfqrmationPr6vIdeda^ 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

3 

3 

4-8 

9-12 

13 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

14 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(4) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, {C)(5} 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(6) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (0(7) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(8) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(9) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(10) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, (C}(11) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(12) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, (0(13) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(14) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(15) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, {C){16) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C){17) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(18) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, (C)(19) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, {C){20} 

AppendixA, Chapterli, (0(21) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, (C)(22) 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

Supplemental 

The most recent Federal Energy Regulatory Commission's ("FERC") audit report. 

Prospectuses of current stock and/or bond offering ofthe applicant, and/or of parent 
company. 

Annual reports to shareholders ofthe applicant, and/or parent company forthe most 
recent five years and the most recent statistical supplement. 

The most recent SEC Form 10-K, 10-Q, and 8-K of the applicant, and/or parent 
company. 

Working papers supporting the schedules. 

Worksheet showing monthly test year data by FERC account. 

CWIP included in the prior case. 

Copy of latest certificate of valuation from department of taxation. 

Monthly sales forthe test year by rate schedule classification and/or customer 
classes. 

Written summary explaining the forecasting method used by the utility as related to 
test year data. 

Explanation of computation of materials and supplies. 

Depreciation expense related to specific plant accounts. 

Federal income tax information. 

Other rate base items and detailed information. 

Copy of all advertisements in the test year. 

Plant in service data from the last date certain to the date certain in the current case. 

Depreciation study showing depreciation reserves allocated to accounts. 

Depreciation study. 

Depreciation reserve data from the last date certain to the date certain in the current 
case. 

Construction project details for projects that are at least seventy-five percent 
complete. 

Surviving dollars by vintage year of placement (original cost data as of date certain 
for each individual plant account). 

Test year and two most recent calendar years' employee levels by month. 

Page 1 of 4 



Dayton Power and Light Company 
DP&L Case No. 15-1830-EL-AIR 

Standard Filing Requirements for Rate Increases 

Table of Contents 

Bool<# Vol# OAC 4901-7-01 Reference Schedule Description 

^-•.'. >*","> v-;v'-'':-.V-\^;--\^.^-^J-'^ . ' /^^- ' .-U" "•' --•̂ - v-' •;.•.'•',-; Appendix/^'Ch^ptei-il, Section A ) ^ r •;-;•-:'-y-,. 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

1 

AppendixA, Chapter II, Section A(B) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section A(C) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section A(D) 

A-l 

A-2 

A-3 

Overall Financial Summary 

Computation of Gross Revenue Conversion Factor 

Calculation of Mirrored CWIP Revenue Sur-Credit Rider 

- / ; " : -Uv ' / /VO! ; ' ' - . ^ :%; f v " - ^ ' " ; , v ^ ••.--" " / ^ \ \ OAC^901-7\: , . J • ,"v / " ' . " ' ^ i - ' ^ ' , . • . - , 
V-,^ :'':;"••;••;'••-•:-:A-'? i : ;?^ ;"•.,-••":-•-,- ••;^.. ",--'"•"" .V::" • •"''"-"•".AppehdixAiChapterUSectfpnB •-:.•.•-.;•.:.". ,v .'^^ - '̂.. 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

a 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section 8(B)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section 6(B)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(B)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(B)(4) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(B)(5) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(B)(6) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(B)(7} 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(C)(1) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, Section B{C)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(C)(3) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, Section B(C)(4) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(C){5) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(D)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(D)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(D)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(E)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(E)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(F)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(F)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section B(F)(3) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, Section B(G)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section B(G)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section B{G)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section B(l) 

B-1 

B-2 

B-2.1 

B-2.2 

B-2.3 

B-2.4 

B-2.5 

B-3 

B-3.1 

6-3.2 

B-3.3 

B-3.4 

B-4 

B-4.1 

B-4.2 

B-S 

B-5.1 

B-6 

B-6.1 

B-5.2 

B-7 

B-7.1 

B-7.2 

B-9 

Jurisdictional Rate Base Summary 

Plant in Service Summary by Major Property Groupings 

Plant in Service By Accounts & Subaccounts 

Adjustments to Plant in Service 

Gross Additions, Retirements and Transfers 

Lease Property 

Property Excluded from Rate Base 

Reserve for Accumulated Depreciation 

Adjustments to the Reserve for Accumulated Depreciation 

Depreciation Accrual Rates and Jurisdictional Reserve Balances by Accounts 

Depreciation Reserve Accruals, Retirements and Transfers 

Depreciation Reserve and Expense for Lease Property 

Construction Work in Progress ("CWIP") 

CWIP Percent Completed - Time 

CWIP Percent Completed - Dollars 

Allowance for Working Capital 

Miscellaneous Working Capital Items 

Other Rate Base Items Summary 

Adjustments to Other Rate Base Items 

Contributions in Aid of Construction ("CIAC") by Accounts and Subaccounts 

Jurisdictional Allocation Factors 

Jurisdictional Allocation Statistics 

Explanation of Changes in Allocation Procedures 

Mirrored CWIP Allowances 

Page 2 of4 



Dayton Power and Light Company 
DP&L Case No . 15-1830-EL-AIR 

Standard Filing Requirements for Rate Increases 

Table of Contents 

Boole # Vol# OAC 4901-7-01 Reference Schedule Description 

'••- ' \-•'.)--^':''-i'''^--'.{^'Pr/Ul'.i^<y-'y.<: •'•^:-/:r.-:, .;;! v - / - , ;AppendixA,Chapter"fl"S^ionC..\"/-.^--,-N"---;%^^ 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(B)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section C(B)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(B)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(C)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(C)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(D)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section C(D)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(D)(3)(a) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C{D)(3)(b) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(D)(4) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section C(D)(5) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section C(D)(6) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C{D)(7) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(E)[1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(E)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(E)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(E)(3) 

AppendixA, Chapter 11, Section C(E)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section C(E)(3} 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section C(E)(4) 

c-1 

c-2 

C-2.1 

C-3 

C-3.1 through 
C-3.25 

C-4 

C-4.1 

C-5 

C-6 

C-7 

C-8 

C-9 

C-9.1 

C-10.1 

c-10.2 

C-11.1 

C-11.2 

C-11.3 

C-11.4 

C-12 

Jurisdictional Proforma Income Statement 

Adjusted Test Year Operating Income 

Operating Revenues and Expenses by Account-Jurisdictional Allocation 

Summary of Jurisdictional Adjustments to Operating Income 

Jurisdictional Adjustments to Operating Income 

Adjusted Jurisdictional Income Taxes 

Development of Jurisdictional Income Taxes Before Adjustments 

Social and service club dues 

Charitable Contributions 

Customer Service and Informational, Sales and Miscellaneous Advertising Expense or 
Marketing Expense 

Rate Case Expense 

Operation and Maintenance Payroll Cost 

Total Company Payroll Analysis by Employee Classification/Payroll Distribution 

Comparative Balance Sheets for the Most Recent Five Calendar Years 

Comparative Income Statements for the Most Recent Five Calendar Years 

Revenue Statistics - Total Company 

Revenue Statistics - Jurisdictional 

Sales Statistics - Total Company 

Sales Statistics -Jurisdictional 

Analysis of Reserve for Uncollectible Accounts 

Ai)pendlx A, Ctiapter I I Se0on b - ; - : : , ' : -

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section D(A) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section D(B) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section D(C)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section D(C)(2) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section D(C)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section D(D) 

D-1 

D-1.1 

D-2 

D-3 

D-4 

D-5 

Rate of Return Summary 

Parent-Consolidated Common Equity 

Embedded Cost of Short-Term Debt 

Embedded Cost of Long-Term Debt 

Embedded Cost of Preferred Stock 

Comparative Financial Data 

Page 3 of 4 



Dayton Power and Light Company 
DP&L Case No. 15-1830-EL-AIR 

Standard Filing Requirements for Rate Increases 

Table of Contents 

Book# 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

Vol# OAC 4901-7-01 Reference 

-:•: -T-.';;;>;"-• ' i \ , " . - . ' : ?;•;; v'.̂ -.̂  /;{;''• ̂ .-^ '̂̂ -V'-^V-'- '̂̂ i:'; 

2 

3 

4 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(B)(1) 

Appendix A, Chapter 11, Section E(B)(2)(a) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, Section E{B)(2)(b} 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(B)(3) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(B)(4) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(B)(5) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(C)(2)(a) 

AppendixA, Chapterli, Section E(C)(2)(b) 

Appendix A, Chapter II, Section E(D) 

Schedule Description 

':^--y:^::-:tq»£^ii90i7-f^^ " ' '"•••:: 
Aw^dixAi'Chairterll/Sejaion , V : 

E-1 

E-2 

E-2.1 

E-3 

E-3.1 

E-3.2 

E-4 

E-4.1 

E-5 

Clean Copy of Proposed Tariff Schedules 

Current Tariff Schedules 

Redlined Copy of Proposed Tariff Schedules 

Rationale for Tariff Changes 

Customer Charge / Minimum Bill Rationale 

Cost of Service Study 

Class and Schedule Revenue Summary 

Annualized Test Year Revenue at Proposed Rates vs. Most Current Rates 

Typical Bill Comparison 

Page 4 of 4 



THE DAYTON POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

Case No. 15-1830-EL-AIR 

Supplemental Information (C){3) 

Requirement: 

Provide annual reports to shareholders ofthe applicant, and/or parent company, if applicant is wholly-
owned subsidiary, for the most recent five years and the most recent statistical supplement 

Response: 

See attached DP&L's last annual report (2010), its subsequent lOK filings {2011-2014), and its last 

statistical supplement (1999). 
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YesD 
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Indicate by check mark whether each registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 
days. 

DPL Inc. 
The Dayton Power and Light Company 

YesD 
Yes El 

N o m 
NoD 

DPL Inc. is a voluntary filer that has filed all applicable reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months. 

Indicate by check mark whether each registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate website, 
if any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T 
during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was requiredto submit and post 
such files). 

DPL Inc. 
The Dayton Power and Light Company 

Yes EI 
Yesm 

NoD 
NoD 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained 
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of each registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information 
statements incorporated by reference In Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 

DPL Inc. 
The Dayton Power and Light Company 

m 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated 
filer or a smaller reporting company. See definitions of "accelerated filer, large accelerated filer" and "smaller 
reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

DPL Inc. 
The Dayton Power and Light Company 

Large 
accelerated 

filer 
D 
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All of the outstanding common stock of DPL Inc. is indirectly owned by The AES Corporation. All of the common 
stock of The Dayton Power and Light Company is owned by DPL Inc. 

As of December 31,2014, each registrant had the following shares of common stock outstanding: 

Registrant Description Shares Outstanding 

DPL Inc. Common Stock, no par value 1 

The Dayton Power and Light Common Stock, $0.01 par value 41,172,173 
Company 

Documents incorporated by reference: None 

This combined Form 10-K is separately filed by DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company. 
Information contained herein relating to any Individual registrant is filed by such registrant on its own behalf. 
Each registrant makes no representation as to information relating to a registrant other than itself. 

THE REGISTRANTS MEET THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH IN GENERAL INSTRUCTION 1(1 )(a) AND (b) OF 
FORM 10-K AND ARE THEREFORE FILING THIS FORM WITH THE REDUCED DISCLOSURE FORMAT. 
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

The following select abbreviations or acronyms are used in this Form 10-K: 

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition 
AEP Generation 

AER 

AES 

AMI 

AOCI 

ARO 

ASU 

BTU 

CFTC 

CAA 

CAIR 

CCEM 

CO2 

ComEd 

CRES 

CSAPR 

CWA 

Dark spread 

DPL 

DPLE 

DPLER 

DP&L 

Duke Energy 

EBITDA 

EGU 

AEP Generation Resources Inc., a subsidiary of American Electric Power 
Company, Inc. ("AEP"). Columbus Southern Power Company merged into the 
Ohio Power Company, another subsidiary of AEP, effective December 31, 2011. 
The Ohio Power generating assets (including jointly-owned units) were transferred 
into AEP Generation, effective January 1, 2014. 

Alternative Energy Rider allows DP&L to recover costs related to meeting the Ohio 
renewable portfolio standards. 

The AES Corporation, a global power company, the ultimate parent company of 
DPL 

Advanced Metering Infrastructure 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

Asset Retirement Obligation 

Accounting Standards Update 

British Thermal Units 

Commodity Futures Trading Commission 

Clean Air Act 

Clean Air Interstate Rule 

Customer Conservation and Energy Management 

Carbon Dioxide 

Commonwealth Edison 

Competitive Retail Electric Service 

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule 

Clean Water Act 

A common metric used to estimate returns over fuel costs of coal-fired electric 
generating units 

DPL Inc. 

DPL Energy, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL that owns and operates 
peaking generation facilities from which it makes wholesale sales 

DPL Energy Resources, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL which sells 
competitive electric energy and other energy services, including its wholly-owned 
subsidiary MC Squared 

The Dayton Power and Light Company, the principal subsidiary of DPL and a 
public utility which sells electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and 
governmental customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L 
is wholly-owned by DPL 

Affiliates of Duke Energy with which DP&L co-owns electric generating units in 
Ohio (Duke Energy Ohio, Inc.) 

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization 

Electric generating unit 



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.) 

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition 
ERISA 

ESP 

FASB 

FASC 

FASC 805 

FERC 

FGD 

First and Refunding 
Mortgage 

FTR 

GAAP 

GHG 

IFRS 

kV 

kWh 

LIBOR 

Master Trust 

MATS 

MC Squared 

Merger 

Merger agreement 

Merger date 

MRO 

MTM 

MVIC 

MW 

MWh 

NERC 

The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 

The Electric Security Plan is a cost-based plan that a utility may file with the PUCO 
to establish SSO rates pursuant to Ohio law 

Financial Accounting Standards Board 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 805, "Business Combinations" 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 

Flue Gas Desulfurization 

DP&L's First and Refunding Mortgage, dated October 1, 1935, as amended, with 
the Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee 

Financial Transmission Rights 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America 

Greenhouse Gas 

International Financial Reporting Standards 

Kilovolts, 1,000 volts 

Kilowatt hour 

London Inter-Bank Offering Rate 

DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit 
of employees participating in employee benefit plans 

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards 

MC Squared Energy Services, LLC, a retail electricity supplier wholly-owned by 
DPLER 

The merger of DPL and Dolphin Sub, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES) In 
accordance with the terms of the Merger agreement. At the Merger date. Dolphin 
Sub, Inc. was merged into DPL, leaving DPL as the surviving company. As a result 
of the Merger, DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. 

The Agreement and Plan of Merger dated April 19, 2011 among DPL, AES and 
Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES, whereby AES agreed to 
acquire DPL for $30 per share In a cash transaction valued at approximately $3.5 
billion plus the assumption of $1.2 billion of existing debt. Upon closing, DPL 
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. 

November 28, 2011, the date of the closing of the merger of DPL and Dolphin Sub, 
Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES 

Market Rate Option, a market-based plan that a utility may file with PUCO to 
establish SSO rates pursuant to Ohio law 

Mark to Market 

Miami Valley Insurance Company, a wholly-owned insurance subsidiary of DPL 
that provides insurance services to DPL and its subsidiaries and, in some cases, 
insurance services to partner companies relative to jointly-owned facilities operated 
by DP&L 

Megawatt 

Megawatt hour 

North American Electric Reliability Corporation 



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.) 

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition 
Non-bypassable 

NOV 

NOx 

NPDES 

NSR 

NYMEX 

OAQDA 

OCC 

OCI 

Ohio EPA 

OTC 

OVEC 

PJM 

PPM 

PRP 

Predecessor 

PUCO 

ROE 

RPM 

RTO 

SB 221 

SCR 

SEC 

SECA 

SEET 

Service Company 

SFAS 

Charges that are assessed to all customers regardless of whom the customer 
selects as their retail electric generation supplier 

Notice of Violation 

Nitrogen Oxide 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

New Source Review is a preconstruction permitting program regulating new or 
significantly modified sources of air pollution 

New York Mercantile Exchange 

Ohio Air Quality Development Authority 

Ohio Consumers' Counsel 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Ohio Environmental Protection Agency 

Over the counter 

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation, an electric generating company in which DP&L 
holds a 4.9% equity Interest 

PJM Interconnection, LLC, an RTO 

Parts Per Million 

Potentially Responsible Party 

DPL prior to the Merger date 

Public Utilities Commission of Ohio 

Retum on equity 

The Reliability Pricing Model is PJM's capacity construct The purpose of the RPM 
is to enable PJM to obtain sufficient resources to reliably meet the needs of electric 
customers within the PJM footprint. Under the RPM construct, PJM procures 
capacity, through a multi-auction structure, on behalf of the load serving entities to 
satisfy the load obligations. There are three RPM auctions held for each Delivery 
Year (running from June 1 through May 31). The Base Residual Auction is held 
three years in advance of the Delivery Year and there is one Incremental Auction 
held in each of the subsequent three years. DP&L's capacity is located in the "rest 
of" RTO area of PJM. 

Regional Transmission Organization 

Ohio Senate Bill 221, an Ohio electric energy bill that was signed by the Governor 
on May 1, 2008 and went into effect July 31, 2008. This law required all Ohio 
distribution utilities to file either an ESP or MRO to be in effect January 1, 2009. 
The law also contains, among other things, annual targets relating to advanced 
energy portfolio standards, renewable energy, demand reduction and energy 
efficiency standards. 

Selective Catalytic Reduction 

Securities and Exchange Commission 

Seams Elimination Charge Adjustment 

Significantly Excessive Earnings Test 

AES US Services, LLC, the shared services affiliate providing accounting, finance, 
and other support services to AES' U.S. SBU businesses 

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 



GLOSSARY OF TERMS (cont.) 

Abbreviation or Acronym Definition 
SIP 

SO2 

SO3 

SSO 

SSR 

Successor 

TCRR 

TCRR-B 

TCRR-N 

USEPA 

USF 

U.S. SBU 

VRDN 

A State Implementation Plan is a plan for complying with the federal CAA, 
administered bythe USEPA. The SIP consists of narrative, rules, technical 
documentation and agreements that an individual state will use to clean up polluted 
areas. 

Sulfur Dioxide 

Sulfur Trioxide 

Standard Service Offer represents the retail transmission, distribution and 
generation services offered by the utility through regulated rates, authorized by the 
PUCO 

Service Stability Rider 

DPL after the Merger 

Transmission Cost Recovery Rider 

Transmission Cost Recovery Rider - Bypassable 

Transmission Cost Recovery Rider - Nonbypassable 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

The Universal Service Fund (USF) is a statewide program which provides qualified 
low-income customers in Ohio with Income-based bills and energy efficiency 
education programs 

U. S. Strategic Business Unit, AES' reporting unit covering the businesses in the 
United States, including DPL 

Variable Rate Demand Note 
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PARTI 

Item 1 - Business 

This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. On November 28, 2011, DPL became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of AES, a global power company. Throughout this report, the terms "we," "us," "our" and "ours" 
are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates otherwise. 
Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will clearly be noted in the section. 

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

Certain statements contained In this report are "forward-looking statements" within the meaning ofthe Private 
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Matters discussed in this report that relate to events or developments 
that are expected to occur in the future, including management's expectations, strategic objectives, business 
prospects, anticipated economic performance and financial condition and other similar matters constitute forward-
looking statements. Forward-looking statements are based on management's beliefs, assumptions and 
expectations of future economic performance, taking into account the Information currently available to 
management. These statements are not statements of historical fact and are typically identified by terms and 
phrases such as "anticipate," "believe," "Intend," "estimate," "expect," "continue," "should," "could," "may," "plan," 
"project," "predict," "will" and similar expressions. Such fonward-loo king statements are subject to risks and 
uncertainties and investors are cautioned that outcomes and results may vary materially from those projected 
due to various factors beyond our control, including but not limited to: 

abnormal or severe weather and catastrophic weather-related damage; 

unusual maintenance or repair requirements; 

changes in fuel costs and purchased power, coal, environmental emission allowances, natural gas and 
other commodity prices; 

volatility and changes in markets for electricity and other energy-related commodities; 

performance of our suppliers; 

increased competition and deregulation In the electric utility industry; 

increased competition In the retail generation market; 

availability and price of capacity; 

changes in Interest rates; 

state, federal and foreign legislative and regulatory initiatives that affect cost and investment recovery, 
emission levels, rate structures or tax laws; 

changes in environmental laws and regulations to which DPL and its subsidiaries are subject; 

the development and operation of RTOs, Including PJM to which DP&L has given control of its 
transmission functions; 

changes In our purchasing processes, pricing, delays, contractor and supplier performance and 
availability; 

significant delays associated with large construction projects; 

growth in our service territory and changes in demand and demographic patterns; 

changes in accounting rules and the effect of accounting pronouncements issued periodically by 
accounting standard-setting bodies; 

financial market conditions; 

changes in tax laws and the effects of our strategies to reduce tax payments; 

the outcomes of litigation and regulatory investigations, proceedings or inquiries; 

general economic conditions; and 

the risks and other factors discussed in this report and other DPL and DP&L filings with the SEC. 
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Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of the document in which they are made. We disclaim any 
obligation or undertaking to provide any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement to reflect any 
change in our expectations or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which the forward-looking 
statement is based. If we do update one or more fonward-looking statements, no inference should be made that 
we will make additional updates with respect to those or other forward-looking statements. 

COMPANY WEBSITES 

DPL's public internet site is http://www.dpllnc.com. DP&L's public internet site Is http://www.dpandi.com. The 
information on these websites is not incorporated by reference into this report. 

ORGANIZATION 

DPL is a regional energy company incorporated In 1985 under the laws of Ohio. Our executive offices are 
located at 1065 Woodman Drive, Dayton, Ohio 45432 - telephone (937) 224-6000. DPL was acquired by The 
AES Corporation on November 28, 2011 and DPL's stock is owned by an AES subsidiary. 

DP&L is a public utility incorporated In 1911 under the laws of Ohio. Beginning in 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio 
consumers the right to choose the electric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation 
service, however distribution and transmission retail services are still regulated. DP&L has the exclusive right to 
provide such services to its approximately 516,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L 
offers retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers In a 6,000 
square mile area of West Central Ohio and generates electricity at five coal-fired power stations. Beginning in 
2014, DP&L no longer provides 100% of the generation for its SSO customers. Principal industries located in 
DP&L's service territory include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. 
DP&L's sales reflect the general economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns of the area and the market 
prices of electricity and capacity. DP&L sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L 
also sells electricity to DPLER, an affiliate, to satisfy the electric requirements of DPLER's retail customers. 

DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, to residential, commercial, industrial and 
governmental customers. DPLER's operations include those of its wholly-owned subsidiary MC Squared. 
DPLER has approximately 260,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and Illinois. Approximately 
131,000 of DPLER's customers are also electric distribution customers of DP&L. DPLER does not have any 
transmission or generation assets and all of DPLER's electric energy is purchased from DP&L to meet its sales 
obligations. 

DPL's other significant subsidiaries include: DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from 
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, DPL's captive insurance company that provides 
insurance services to DP&L and DPL's other subsidiaries. 

DPL also has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust II, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital 
securities to investors. 

All of DPL's subsidiaries are wholly-owned. DP&L does not have any subsidiaries. 

DP&L's electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state 
regulators while its generation business is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the 
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records 
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates and regulatory 
liabilities when current recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs. 

DPL and Its subsidiaries had 1,182 employees as of December 31, 2014. At that date, 1,130of these employees 
were employed by DP&L. Approximately 61% of the employees of DPL and its subsidiaries are under a 
collective bargaining agreement which expires on October 31, 2017. 

In December 2013, an agreement was signed, effective January 1, 2014, whereby AES U.S. Services, LLC (the 
"Service Company") began providing services Including accounting, legal, human resources, information 
technology and other services of a similar nature on behalf of companies that are part of the AES U.S. Strategic 
Business Unit ("U.S. SBU"), including, among other companies, DPL and DP&L. The Sen/Ice Company 
allocates the costs for these services based on cost drivers designed to result in fair and equitable allocations. 
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This includes ensuring that the regulated businesses sen/ed, including DP&L, are not subsidizing costs incurred 
for the benefit of non-regulated businesses. 

ELECTRIC OPERATIONS AND FUEL SUPPLY 

2014 Summer Generating Capacity 
(in MW) 

Combustion 
Turbines, 

Diesel Units 
Summer Generating Capacity Coal fired and Solar Total 

hPL. " ' . : .1...... _ . ^ ' " S ' ~ - 2.07a ^; , • 4 ^WMB4#^ ;QJ66 • 

DPL's present summer generating capacity, including peaking units. Is 3,066 MW. Of this capacity, 2,078 MW, 
or 68%, is derived from coal-fired steam generating stations and the balance of 988 MW, or 32%, consists of 
combustion turbines, diesel peaking units and solar. 

DP&L's present summer generating capacity, including peaking units. Is 2,510 MW. Of this capacity, 2,078 MW, 
or 83%, is derived from coal-fired steam generating stations and the balance of 432 MW, or 17%, consists of 
combustion turbines, diesel peaking units and solar. 

Our all-time net peak load was 3,270 MW, occurring August 8,2007. 

100% of DP&L's existing steam generating capacity is provided by generating units owned as tenants in 
common with Duke Energy and AEP Generation. As tenants in common, each company owns a specified share 
of each of these units, is entitled to its share of capacity and energy output and has a capital and operating cost 
responsibility proportionate to its ownership share. Additionally, DP&L, Duke Energy and AEP Generation own, 
as tenants in common, 880 circuit miles of 345,000-yolt transmission lines. DP&L has several interconnections 
with other companies for the purchase, sale and interchange of electricity. 

Duke Energy has entered into an agreement to sell its interest in the Killen, Stuart, Conesvllle Unit 4, Miami Fort 
7 and 8 and Zimmer generating stations to various subsidiaries of Dynegy, Inc. This transaction is currently 
waiting on regulatory approval. 

In 2014, we generated 99% of our electric output from coal-fired units and 1% from solar, oil and natural gas-fired 
units. 
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The following table sets forth DP&L's and DPLE's generating stations and, where indicated, those stations which 
DP&L owns as tenants in common: 

Station 
Ownership 

(a) 
Operating 
Company Location 

Approximate Summer 
MW Rating 

DPL 
Portion ^̂^ Total 

Coal Units '̂'̂  _ _ „ _ _ _ __„ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ „ 

Stuart - Units 1 through 4 C DP&L Aberdeen, OH 808 2,308 

" Generation^ ^ C--̂ '̂  " -
129 780 

Miami Fort - Units 7 & 8 Duke 
Energy 

North Bend, OH 368 1,020 

Solar. Coriibustion Turbines 

Yankee Street Gas Turbine W DP&L Centerville, OH 101 101 

MoriurnentDiesels . . ^ .,^ Pf̂ *-, -,5g)lgr-'-PtJ^^.. .-„-.. . ^ ^ , . 1 .̂ 

Sidney Diesels W DP&L Sidney. OH 12 12 

^^^^^^MiM^jflaP^Mi^t^^^isji^^M^^^^^^^gW^e^^^ 
Killen Diesels DP&L Wrightsville, OH 12 18 

ftotpelier Units 1 - 4 ^̂  W . _RP^^. j^^'il^^gij^j.. - .^. -. ,-^^.^ ^^^ 

gMt]l^^^^^i^^l^^¥a;^ireteligMMlE^l^i^i^ 
Total approximate summer generating capacity 3,066 7,029 

(a) W = Wholly-owned C = Commonly-owned 
(b) DP&L portion of commonly-owned generating stations 
(c) Duke Energy has entered into an agreement to sell its interest in the Killen, Stuart, Conesville Unit 4, Miami Fort 7 and 8 and 

Zimmer generating stations to various subsidiaries of Dynegy, Inc. This transaction is currently waiting on regulatory approval. 

In addition to the above, DP&L also owns a 4.9% equity ownership interest in OVEC, an electric generating 
company. OVEC has two electric generating stations located in Cheshire, Ohio and Madison, Indiana with a 
combined generation capacity of 2,109 MW. DP&L's share of this generation capacity is 103 MW. 

On December 30, 2014, after receipt of all necessary regulatory approvals, DP&L sold its 31% ownership interest 
(186 MW) in East Bend Unit 2 to Duke Energy, Kentucky, Inc., which is the operator of the Unit and was the 69% 
owner. Beckjord Unit 6, in which DP&L had a 50% ownership interest, was retired effective October 1, 2014. 

We have substantially all of the total expected coal volume needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales 
requirements for 2015 under contract. The majority of the contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices. Some 
contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some are priced based on market indices. Fuel costs are affected 
by changes in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, the wholesale market 
price of power, certain provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs, counterparty 
performance and credit, scheduled/forced outages and generation station mix. Due to the installation of emission 
control equipment at certain commonly-owned units and barring any changes in the regulatory environment in 
which we operate, we expect to have balanced positions for SOg, NOx and renewable energy credits for 2015. 
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The gross average cost of fuel consumed per kWh was as follows: 

Average cost of Fuel Consumed 
(cents per kWh) 

2014 2013 2012 

'^^^B^^^MM^^m^&O^^i^M^^^mJ?^^ ' 2 43 2 75 

SEASONALITY 

The power generation and delivery business is seasonal and weather patterns have a material effect on 
operating performance. In the region we serve, demand for electricity is generally greater in the summer months 
associated with cooling and in the winter months associated with heating compared to other times of the year. 
Unusually mild summers and winters could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

RATE REGULATION AND GOVERNMENT LEGISLATION 

DP&L's sales to SSO retail customers are subject to rate regulation by the PUCO. In addition, certain of DP&L's 
recoverable costs are considered to be non-bypassable and are therefore assessed to all DP&L retail customers, 
under the regulatory authority of the PUCO, regardless of whom the customer selects to supply its retail electric 
service. DP&L's transmission rates and wholesale electric rates to municipal corporations, rural electric co­
operatives and other distributors of electric energy are subject to regulation by the FERC under the Federal 
Power Act. 

Ohio law establishes the process for determining SSO and non-bypassable rates charged by public utilities. 
Regulation of retail rates encompasses the timing of applications, the effective date of rate increases, the market 
price of power, the cost basis upon which the rates are set and other related matters. Ohio law also established 
the Office of the OCC, which has the authority to represent residential consumers in state and federal judicial and 
administrative rate proceedings. 

Ohio legislation extends the jurisdiction of the PUCO to the records and accounts of certain public utility holding 
company systems, including DPL. The legislation extends the PUCO's supervisory powers to a holding company 
system's general condition and capitalization, among other matters, to the extent that such matters relate to the 
costs associated with the provision of public utility service. Based on existing PUCO and FERC authorization, 
regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded on the balance sheets of both DPL and DP&L. See Note 3 of Notes 
to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 3 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements. 

COMPETITION AND REGULATION 

Ohio Matters 

Ohio Retail Rates 
The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L's delivery of electricity, SSO and other retail electric services. 

Ohio law requires that all Ohio distribution utilities file either an ESP or MRO to establish rates for their SSO. 
According to Ohio law, under the MRO, a periodic competitive bid process will set the retail generation price after 
the utility demonstrates that it can meet certain market criteria and bid requirements. Also, under this option, 
utilities that still own generation in the state are required to phase-in the MRO over a period of not less than five 
years. An ESP may allow for adjustments to the SSO for costs associated with environmental compliance; fuel 
and purchased power; construction of new or investment in specified generating facilities; and the provision of 
standby and default service, operating, maintenance or other costs including taxes. As part of its ESP, a utility is 
permitted to file an infrastructure improvement plan that will specify the initiatives the utility will take to rebuild, 
upgrade or replace its electric distribution system, including cost recovery mechanisms. Both MRO and ESP 
options involve a SEET based on the earnings of comparable companies with similar business and financial 
risks. 
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On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed an ESP with the PUCO to establish SSO rates that were to be in effect starting 
January 2013. An order was issued by the PUCO on September 4, 2013 and a correction to that order was 
issued on September 6, 2013 (ESP Order). 

After several rehearing requests, the ESP Order was revised several times. Collectively, the ESP orders state 
that DP&L's current ESP began January 2014 and extends through May 31, 2017. The PUCO authorized DP&L 
to collect a non-bypassable Service Stability Rider (SSR) equal to $110 million per year from 2014 - 2016. The 
ESP Order also directed DP&L to divest its generation assets no later than January 1, 2017 and established 
DP&L's SEET threshold at a 12% ROE. Beginning in 2014, DP&L Is no longer permitted to supply 100% of the 
generation service for SSO customers. Instead, the PUCO directed DP&L to phase-in the competitive bidding 
structure with 10% of DP&L's SSO load sourced through the competitive bid starting In 2014, 60% in 2015, and 
100% by January 1, 2016. The ESP Order approved DP&L's rate proposal to bifurcate its transmission charges 
into a non-bypassable component, TCRR-N, and a bypassable component, TCRR-B. The ESP order also 
required DP&L to establish a $2.0 million per year shareholder funded economic development fund. 

In accordance with the ESP Order, on December 30, 2013, DP&L filed an application with the PUCO stating its 
plan to transfer or sell its generation assets. Comments and reply comments were filed. DP&L amended its 
application on February 25, 2014 and again on May 23, 2014. Additional comments and reply comments were 
filed. On July 14, 2014, DP&L publicly announced its decision not to sell DP&L's generation assets at this time, 
but to maintain its plans to transfer or sell the assets in accordance with PUCO orders by January 1, 2017. On 
September 17, 2014, the PUCO issued a Finding and Order in which it approved of DP&L's plan to separate Its 
generation assets with minor modifications. Specifically, DP&L's request to defer costs associated with OVEC 
which are not currently being recovered through existing rates was denied, and DP&L was ordered to transfer 
environmental liabilities with the generation assets. 

Ohio law and the PUCO rules contain targets relating to renewable energy, demand reduction and energy 
efficiency standards. If any targets are not met, compliance penalties will apply unless the PUCO makes certain 
findings that would excuse performance. The PUCO has found that DP&L met its renewable targets for 
compliance years 2008 - 2013. PUCO staff recommended that DPLER met its targets for compliance year 2013. 
Both DP&L and DPLER are reported to be in full compliance with all renewable targets. 

On June 13, 2014, Ohio Senate Bill 310 (SB 310) was signed into law, and it became effective September 12, 
2014. The new law changes several aspects to renewable energy and energy efficiency sections of law that 
were created in 2008 referred to as SB 221. The new law freezes the renewable energy requirements at 2014 
levels for 2015 and 2016 and the energy efficiency requirements if a utility modifies its portfolio plan. The law 
also removes the advanced energy requirement and the renewable requirement of meeting half of the 
compliance level through facilities within the state. DP&L did not file an amended portfolio plan, thereby 
extending its current plan through 2016. DP&L recovers the costs of its compliance with Ohio energy efficiency 
and renewable energy standards through two separate riders. 

The ESP Order also provided for the continuation of a fuel and purchased power recovery rider which began 
January 1, 2010. The fuel rider fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of 
each seasonal quarter: March 1, June 1, September 1 and December 1 each year. As part of the PUCO 
approval process, an outside auditor is hired each year to review fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. 
On June 12, 2013, we received a 2012 audit report recommending a pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million of costs. 
In August 2014, the PUCO Issued an order in that case that included the disallowance of an immaterial amount of 
fuel costs. The impact of the order issued was a reversal in the third quarter of a previously established $2.6 
million reserve. The 2013 fuel audit report found only minor disallowances. The Company, the PUCO staff and 
OCC reached a stipulation resolving all issues in the 2013 audit. This Stipulation is pending PUCO approval. 

As a member of PJM, DP&L receives revenues from the RTO related to DP&L's transmission and generation 
assets and incurs costs associated with its load obligations for retail customers. Ohio law includes a provision 
that would allow Ohio electric utilities to seek and obtain a reconcilable rider to recover RTO-related costs and 
credits. DP&L's TCRR and PJM RPM riders were initially approved in November 2009 to recover these costs. 
In accordance with the ESP Order, TCRR-N and TCRR-B began on January 1, 2014. Both the TCRR-B and the 
RPM riders assign costs and revenues from PJM monthly bills to retail ratepayers based on the percentage of 
SSO retail customers' load and sales volumes to total retail load and total retail and wholesale volumes. 
Customer switching to CRES providers decreases DP&L's SSO retail customers' load and sales volumes. 
Therefore, increases in customer switching cause more of the RPM capacity costs and revenues to be excluded 
from the RPM rider calculation. RPM capacity costs and revenues are discussed further under "Regional 
Transmission Organizational Risks" in Item IA - Risk Factors. DP&L files an annual true-up of TCRR-N and 
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both TCRR-B and RPM are trued up on a quarterly basis beginning January 2014 through January 1, 2016, at 
which point they will be eliminated as a result of the SSO load being supplied 100% through the competitive bid 
process. 

For calendar year 2012, DP&L was subject to a SEET threshold in which DP&L was required to apply general 
rules for calculating the earnings and comparing them to a comparable group to determine whether there were 
significantly excessive earnings. Pursuant to an Order issued on February 13, 2014, DP&L's 2012 earnings 
were found to not be excessive. Through the ESP Order, the PUCO established DP&L's ROE SEET threshold at 
12% beginning with 2013. On May 15, 2014, DP&L filed its application to demonstrate that it did not have 
significantly excessive earnings for calendar year 2013. A stipulation was reached with the PUCO staff agreeing 
that DP&L did not exceed the SEET threshold for 2013, which was filed on July 22, 2014. At a hearing held on 
September 9, 2014 and on October 1, 2014, the PUCO issued an order approving the SEET Stipulation. In 
future years, the SEET could have a material effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows. 

Ohio Competitive Considerations and Proceedings 

Since January 2001, DP&L's electric customers have been permitted to choose their retail electric generation 
supplier. DP&L continues to have the exclusive right to provide delivery service in its state-certified territory and 
the obligation to supply and/or procure retail generation service to customers that do not choose an altemative 
supplier. The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L's delivery of electricity, SSO and other retail electric 
services. 

Market prices for power, as well as government aggregation initiatives, have led and may continue to lead to the 
entrance of additional competitors in our service territory. As of December 31, 2014, there were forty-three 
CRES providers registered in DP&L's service territory. DPLER, an affiliated company and one of the forty-three 
registered CRES providers, has been marketing supply services to DP&L customers. During 2014, DPLER 
accounted for approximately 5,649 million kWh of the total 10,014 million kWh supplied by CRES providers within 
DP&L's service territory. Also during 2014,110,536 customers with an annual energy usage of 4,365 million 
kWh were supplied by other CRES providers within DP&L's service territory. The volume supplied by DPLER 
represents approximately 40% of DP&L's total distribution sales volume during 2014. We cannot determine the 
extent to which customer switching to CRES providers will occur in the future and the effect this will have on us. 
Because DPLE was one of the winning bidders in the competitive bid auction, and therefore provides generation 
service to a portion of the SSO load through May 2017, future additional customer switching away from SSO load 
will continue to have a negative financial impact on DPL, but to a lesser degree. Beginning January 1, 2016, 
100% of SSO load will be served through the competitive bid auction. After that date, customer switching will 
have no impact on DP&L's financial condition. 

Several communities in DP&L's service area have passed ordinances allowing the communities to become 
government aggregators for the purpose of offering retail generation service to their residents. To date, a 
number of communities have filed with the PUCO to initiate aggregation programs. If a number of the larger 
communities in DP&L's service area move forward with aggregation in 2015, It could have a material effect on 
our earnings. In 2014, the City of Dayton announced it decided to move fonward with its plans to implement a 
government aggregation program. Depending on the timing of implementation of this program, it could have a 
significant financial impact on DPL. As discussed above, beginning January 1, 2016, customer switching will 
have no effect on DP&L's net income. 

DPLER began providing CRES services to business customers in Ohio who are not in DP&L's service territory In 
2010 and to residential customers in 2012. Additionally, through MC Squared, DPLER services business and 
residential customers in northern Illinois. 

Federal Matters 

Like other electric utilities and energy marketers, DP&L and DPLE may sell or purchase electric products in the 
wholesale market. DP&L and DPLE compete with other generators, power marketers, privately and municipally-
owned electric utilities and rural electric cooperatives when selling electricity. The ability of DP&L and DPLE to 
sell this electricity will depend not only on the performance of our generating units, but also on how DP&L's and 
DPLE's prices, terms and conditions compare to those of other suppliers. 

As part of Ohio's electric deregulation law, all ofthe state's investor-owned utilities were required to join an RTO. 
In October 2004, DP&L successfully Integrated its high-voltage transmission lines into the PJM RTO. The role of 
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the RTO is to administer a competitive wholesale market for electricity and ensure reliability of the transmission 
grid. PJM ensures the reliability of the high-voltage electric power system serving more than 50 million people in 
all or parts of Delaware, Illinois, Indiana, Kentucky, Maryland, Michigan, New Jersey, North Carolina, Ohio, 
Pennsylvania, Tennessee, Virginia, West Virginia and the District of Columbia. PJM coordinates and directs the 
operation of the region's transmission grid, administers the worid's largest competitive wholesale electricity 
market and plans regional transmission expansion improvements to maintain grid reliability and relieve 
congestion. 

The PJM RPM capacity base residua! auction for the 2017/18 period cleared at a price of $120/MW-day for our 
RTO area. The prices for the periods 2016/17, 2015/16 and 2014/15 were $59/MW-day, $136/MW-day and 
$126/MW-day, respectively, based on previous auctions. There are proposals from PJM pending before the 
FERC that would modify capacity markets including near-term modifications with respect to RPM and longer-term 
modifications that would phase-out RPM and replace it with a Capacity Performance ("CP") program. The final 
form of CP program has not been established and the effects on DP&L cannot be predicted. In concept, 
however, the CP program is intended to result in higher capacity prices paid to generators, paired with larger 
penalties for a generator's failure to perform during periods where electricity is in high demand. Future RPM or 
CP auction results will be dependent not only on the overall supply and demand of generation and load, but may 
also be affected by congestion as well as PJM's business rules relating to bidding for demand response and 
energy efficiency resources In the capacity auctions. Increases in customer switching causes more of the 
capacity costs and revenues to be excluded from the DP&L's Ohio RPM rider calculation. We cannot predict the 
outcome of future auctions or customer switching but if the current auction price is not sustained or if higher 
penalties are incurred due to implementation of the CP program and DP&L's generation performance, it could 
have a material adverse effect on our future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

NERC is a FERC-certified electric reliability organization responsible for developing and enforcing mandatory 
reliability standards, including Critical Infrastructure Protection (CIP) reliability standards, across eight reliability 
regions. In December 2012, DP&L undenwent routine, scheduled NERC audits conducted by Reliability First 
Corporation (RFC), which focused on our performance in supporting PJM as our transmission operator, and our 
compliance with the CIP standards. DP&L was found 100% compliant in its performance In support of PJM. In 
the CIP audit, four minor documentation-related Possible Alleged Violations (PAVs) were identified, which were 
settled through a streamlined process, without any financial penalties. In November 2013, DPLE, DPL's 
merchant generation affiliate, undenwent a routine, scheduled NERC audit, during which one minor PAV was 
identified; DPL anticipates that It will be settled through a streamlined process, with no financial penalty. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 

DPL's and DP&L's facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental 
regulations and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include: 

• The federal CAA and state laws and regulations (including SIPs) which require compliance, obtaining 
permits and reporting as to air emissions. 

Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding 
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional 
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause 
or contribute to global climate changes. 

• 

• 

• 

Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantial reductions in 
SO2, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NOx, and other air emissions. DP&L has Installed emission 
control technology and is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions, 

Rules and future rules issued bythe USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and reductions of 
GHGs. 

• Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA associated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits 
the discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except pursuant to appropriate permits, and 

• Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of certain 
waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and 
other coal combustion by-products. 

In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of 
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal 
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course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities unden/vay at our facilities to comply, or to 
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental 
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions 
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $0.8 million for environmental 
matters. We also have a number of environmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies 
because the risk of loss is not probable or a loss cannot be reasonably estimated, which are disclosed in the 
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmental matters quarteriy and may revise 
our estimates. Such revisions In the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. See Note 13, "Contractual Obligations, Commercial 
Commitments and Contingencies - Environmental Matters" in DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and 
Note 12, "Contractual Obligations, Commercial Commitments and Contingencies - Environmental Matters" in 
DP&L's Financial Statements for more information regarding environmental risks, laws and regulations and legal 
proceedings to which we are and may be subject to in the future. 

Capital Expenditures for Environmental Matters 

DP&L's environmental capital expenditures were approximately $3.6 million, $2.0 million and $8.0 million in 
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. DP&L has budgeted $10.7 million in environmental-related capital 
expenditures for 2015. 

LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS 

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for Southern District of Ohio against 
Appalachian Fuels, LLC ("Appalachian") seeking damages Incurred due to Appalachian's failure to supply 
approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly-owned stations under a coal supply agreement, of which 
approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L's share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to meet its needs. 
Appalachian has denied liability, and Is currently In federal bankruptcy proceedings in which DP&L is participating 
as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L has not 
recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit. 

Also see Note 13 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information about certain 
legal matters. 

ELECTRIC SALES AND REVENUES 

The following table sets forth DPL's electric sales and revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 
and 2012, respectively. 

DPL 

Year ended Year ended Year ended 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

DPL Is structured in two operating segments, DP&L and DPLER. See Note 14 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated 
Financial Statements for more information on DPL's segments. 
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The following tables set forth DP&L's and DPLER's electric sales and revenues for the years ended December 
31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

DP&L (a) 

Year ended Year ended Year ended 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 
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DPLER (b) 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2013 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2012 

(a) DP&L sold 5,649 million l<Wh, 5,874 million kWh and 6,201 million kWh of power to DPLER (a subsidiary of DPL) for the years 
ended December31, 2014, 2013and 2012, respectively. 

(b) This chart includes all sales of DPLER, both within and outside of the DP&L service territory. 

Item 1A - Risk Factors 

Investors should consider carefully the following risk factors that could cause our business, operating results and 
financial condition to be materially adversely affected. New risks may emerge at any time, and we cannot predict 
those risks or estimate the extent to which they may affect our business or financial performance. These risk 
factors should be read in conjunction with the other detailed Information concerning DPL set forth in the Notes to 
DPL's audited Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L set forth in the Notes to DP&L's audited Financial 
Statements in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data and In Item 7 - Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations herein. The risks and uncertainties described 
below are not the only ones we face. 

Customers have the opportunity to select alternative electric generation service providers, as permitted 
bv Ohio legislation. 
Customers can elect to buy generation service from a PUCO-certlfled CRES provider offering services to 
customers in DP&L's service territory. DPLER, a wholly-owned subsidiary of DPL, is one of those PUCO-
certified CRES providers. Unaffiliated CRES providers also have been certified to provide energy in DP&L's 
service territory. Customer switching from DP&L to DPLER reduces DPL's revenues since the generation rates 
charged by DPLER are less than the SSO rates charged by DP&L. Increased competition by unaffiliated CRES 
providers in DP&L's service territory for retail generation service could result in the loss of existing customers 
and reduced revenues and increased costs to retain or attract customers. Decreased revenues and increased 
costs due to continued customer switching and customer loss in 2015 could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. As discussed in Item 1, beginning January 1, 2016, 
customer switching will have no effect on DP&L. The following are some of the factors that could result in 
increased switching by customers to PUCO-certified CRES providers in the future: 

• low wholesale price levels have led, and may continue to lead, to existing CRES providers becoming 
more active in our service territory, 

• additional CRES providers entering our territory, and 
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• we may experience increased customer switching through "governmental aggregation," where a 
municipality may contract with a CRES provider to provide generation service to the customers located 
within the municipal boundaries. 

The operation and performance of our facilities are subject to various events and risks that could 
negatively affect our business. 
The operation and performance of our generation, transmission and distribution facilities and equipment is 
subject to various events and risks, such as the potential breakdown or failure of equipment, processes or 
facilities, fuel supply or transportation disruptions, the loss of cost-effective disposal options for solid waste 
generated by our facilities (such as coal ash and gypsum), accidents. Injuries, labor disputes or work stoppages 
by employees, operator error, acts of terrorism or sabotage, construction delays or cost overruns, shortages of or 
delays in obtaining equipment, material and labor, operational restrictions resulting from environmental limitations 
and governmental interventions, performance below expected or required levels, weather-related and other 
natural disruptions, vandalism, events occurring on the systems of tliird parties that interconnect to and affect our 
system and the increased maintenance requirements, costs and risks associated with our aging generation units. 
Our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows could have a material adverse effect due to the 
occurrence or continuation of these events. 

Diminished availability or performance of our transmission and distribution facilities could result in reduced 
customer satisfaction and regulatory inquiries and fines, which could have a material adverse effect on our 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. Operation of our owned and co-owned generating 
stations below expected capacity levels, or unplanned outages at these stations, could cause reduced energy 
output and efficiency levels and likely result in lost revenues and increased expenses that could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In particular, since neariy 42% of 
our base-load generation is derived from co-owned generation stations operated by our co-owners, poor 
operational performance by our co-owners, misalignment of co-owners' interests or lack of control over costs 
(such as fuel costs) incurred at these stations could have an adverse effect on us. In addition, our co-owners 
have either taken steps to sell their co-ownership interest in these co-owned generation stations or have 
expressed an interest in selling such generation facilities. Any sale of these co-owned generation stations by a 
co-owner to a third party could enhance the risk of a misalignment of interests, lack of cost control and other 
operational failures. We have constructed and placed into service FGD facilities at our base-load generating 
stations. If there is significant operational failure of the FGD equipment at the generating stations, we may not be 
able to meet emission requirements at some of our generating stations or it may require us to burn more 
expensive types of coal or procure additional emission allowances. These events could result in a substantial 
increase in our operating costs. Depending on the degree, nature, extent, or willfulness of any failure to comply 
with environmental requirements, including those imposed by any consent decrees, such non-compliance could 
result in the imposition of penalties or the shutting down of the affected generating stations, which could have a 
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Asbestos and other regulated substances are, and may continue to be, present at our facilities. We have been 
named as a defendant in asbestos litigation, which at this time is not material to us. The continued presence of 
asbestos and other regulated substances at these facilities could result in additional litigation being brought 
against us, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows. 

The costs we can recover and the return on capital we are permitted to earn for certain aspects of our 
business are regulated and governed by the laws of Ohio and the rules, policies and procedures of the 
PUCO. 
On May 1, 2008, SB 221, an Ohio electric energy bill, was signed by the Governor of Ohio and became effective 
July 31, 2008. This law, among other things, required all Ohio distribution utilities to file either an ESP or MRO, 
and established a significantly excessive earnings test for Ohio public utilities that compares the utility's earnings 
to the earnings of other companies with similar business and financial risks. The PUCO order in the 2012 ESP 
case changed the Company's rate structure and the ability to recover certain costs which will affect our results of 
operations, cash flows and financial condition. DP&L's ESP and certain filings made by us in connection with 
this plan are further discussed under "Ohio Retail Rates" in Item 1 - Competition and Regulation. 

In Ohio, retail generation rates are no longer subject to cost-based regulation, while the distribution and 
transmission businesses are still regulated. Even though rate regulation is premised on full recovery of prudently 
incurred costs and a reasonable rate of return on invested capital, there can be no assurance that the PUCO will 
agree that all of our costs have been prudently Incurred or are recoverable. There is also no assurance that the 
regulatory process in which rates are determined will always result In rates that will produce a full or timely 
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recovery of our costs and permitted rates of return. Accordingly, the revenue DP&L receives may or may not 
match its expenses at any given time. Therefore, DP&L is subject to prevailing market prices for electricity and 
would not necessarily be able to charge rates that produce timely or full recovery of its expenses. Changes in, or 
reinterprotations of, the laws, rules, policies and procedures that set electric rates, permitted rates of return, 
changes In DP&L's rate structure, regulations regarding ownership of generation assets, transition to a 
competitive bid structure to supply retail generation service to SSO customers, reliability initiatives, fuel and 
purchased power (which account for a substantial portion of our operating costs), customer switching, capital 
expenditures and investments and other costs on a full or timely basis through rates, power market prices, and 
changes to the frequency and timing of rate increases could have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our increased costs due to advanced energy and energy efficiency reguirements may not be fuliv 
recoverable in the future. 
SB 221 contained targets relating to advanced energy, renewable energy, peak demand reduction and energy 
efficiency standards. SB 310 was passed in 2014 that modified the energy efficiency and renewable targets. It 
eliminated the advanced energy targets and the "in state" requirement for renewable energy. Annual targets for 
energy efficiency began In 2009 and require increasing energy reductions each year compared to a baseline 
energy usage, up to 22.3% by 2025. Peak demand reduction targets began in 2009 with increases in required 
percentages each year, up to 7.75% by 2018. The renewable energy standards have increased our power 
supply costs and are expected to continue to increase (and could materially increase) these costs. DP&L is 
entitled to recover costs associated with its alternative energy compliance costs, as well as its energy efficiency 
and demand response programs. DP&L began recovering these costs in 2009. If in the future we are unable to 
timely or fully recover these costs, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. In addition, if we were found not to be in compliance with these standards, monetary 
penalties could apply. These penalties are not permitted to be recovered from customers and significant 
penalties could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
The demand reduction and energy efficiency standards by design result in reduced energy and demand that 
could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

The availability and cost of fuel has experienced and could continue to experience significant volatility 
and we may not be able to hedge the entire exposure of our operations from fuel availability and price 
volatility. 
We purchase coal, natural gas and other fuel from a number of suppliers. The coal market In particular has 
experienced significant price volatility in the last several years. We are now in a global market for coa\ in which 
our domestic price is increasingly affected by International supply disruptions and demand balance. Coal exports 
from the U.S. have Increased significantly at times in recent years. In addition, domestic issues like government-
imposed direct costs and permitting issues that affect mining costs and supply availability, and the variable 
demand of retail customer load and the performance of our generation fleet have an impact on our fuel 
procurement operations. Our approach is to hedge the fuel costs for our anticipated electric sales. However, we 
may not be able to hedge the entire exposure of our operations from fuel price volatility. As of the date of this 
report, DP&L has substantially all of the expected coal volume needed under contract to meet its retail and 
wholesale sales requirements for 2015. Historically, some of our suppliers and buyers of fuel have not performed 
on their contracts and have failed to deliver or accept fuel as specified under their contracts. To the extent our 
suppliers and buyers do not meet their contractual commitments and, as a result of such failure or otherwise, we 
cannot secure adequate fuel or sell excess fuel in a timely or cost-effective manner or we are not hedged against 
price volatility, we could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows. In addition, DP&L is a co-owner of certain generation facilities where it is a non-operating owner. DP&L 
does not procure or have control over the fuel for these facilities, but is responsible for its proportionate share of 
the cost of fuel procured at these facilities. Co-owner operated facilities do not always have realized fuel costs 
that are equal to our co-owners' projections, and we are responsible for our proportionate share of any Increase 
in actual fuel costs. Fuel and purchased power costs represent a large and volatile portion of DP&L's total cost. 
DP&L implemented a fuel and purchased power recovery mechanism beginning on January 1, 2010, which 
subjects our recovery of fuel and purchased power costs to tracking and adjustment on a seasonal quarterfy 
basis for SSO customers but will be totally phased out by January 1, 2016. If in the future we are unable to 
timely or fully recover our fuel and purchased power costs. It could have a material adverse effect on our results 
of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Fluctuations in our sales of coal and excess emission allowances could cause a material adverse effect 
on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows for any particular period. 
DP&L sells coal to other parties from time to time for reasons that include maintaining an appropriate balance 
between projected supply and projected use and as part of a coal price optimization program where coal under 
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contract may be resold and replaced with other coal or power available in the market with a favorable price 
spread, adjusted for any quality differentials. Sales of coal are affected by a range of factors, including price 
volatility among the different coal basins and qualities of coal, variations in power demand and the market price of 
power compared to the cost to produce power. These factors could cause the amount and price of coal we sell 
to fluctuate, which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows for any particular period. 

DP&L may sell its excess emission allowances, including NOx and SO2 emission allowances, from time to time. 
Sales of any excess emission allowances are affected by a range of factors, such as general economic 
conditions, fluctuations In market demand, availability of excess inventory for sale and changes to the regulatory 
environment, including the implementation of CSAPR. These factors could cause the amount and price of 
excess emission allowances DP&L sells to fluctuate, which could have a material adverse effect on DPL's 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows for any particular period. Although there has been overall 
reduced trading activity in the annual NOx and SO2 emission allowance trading markets in recent years, the 
adoption of regulations that regulate emissions or establish or modify emission allowance trading programs could 
affect the emission allowance trading markets and have a material effect on DP&L's emission allowance sales. 

If legislation or regulations at the federal, state or regional levels impose mandatory reductions of 
greenhouse gases on generation facilities, we could be reguired to make large additional capital 
investments and incur substantial costs. 
There is an ongoing concern nationally and internationally among regulators, investors and others concerning 
global climate change and the contribution of emissions of GHGs, including most significantly CO2. This concern 
has led to interest in legislation and action at the international, federal, state and regional levels, including 
regulation of GHG emissions by the USEPA, and litigation seeking to compel the promulgation or enforcement of 
GHG requirements. Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. As a result of current or 
future legislation or regulations at the international, federal, state or regional levels imposing mandatory 
reductions of C02 and other GHGs on generation facilities, we could be required to make large additional capital 
investments and/or incur substantial costs in the form of taxes or emissions allowances. Such legislation and 
regulations could also impair the value of our generation stations or make some of these stations uneconomical 
to maintain or operate and could raise uncertainty about the future viability of fossil fuels, particuiariy coal, as an 
energy source for new and existing generation stations. Although DP&L is permitted under its current ESP to 
seek recovery of costs associated with new climate change or GHG regulations, our inability to fully or timely 
recover such costs could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows. 

We are subject to numerous environmental laws and regulations that reguire capital expenditures, 
increase our cost of operations, may expose us to environmental liabilities or make continued operation 
of certain generating units unprofitable. 
Our operations and facilities (both wholly-owned and co-owned with others) are subject to numerous and 
extensive federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations relating to various matters, including air 
quality (such as reductions in NOx, SO2 and particulate emissions), water quality, wastewater discharge, solid 
waste and hazardous waste. We could also become subject to additional environmental laws and regulations and 
other requirements in the future (such as reductions In mercury and other hazardous air pollutants, SO3 (sulfur 
trioxide), regulation of ash generated from coal-based generating stations and reductions in GHG emissions as 
discussed In more detail in the next risk factor). With respect to our largest generation station, the Stuart 
generating station, we are also subject to continuing compliance requirements related to NOx, SO2 and 
particulate matter emissions under DP&L's consent decree with the Sierra Club. Compliance with these laws, 
regulations and other requirements requires us to expend significant funds and resources and could at some 
point become prohibitively expensive or result in our shutting down (temporarily or permanently) or altering the 
operation of our facilities. Environmental laws and regulations also generally require us to obtain and comply 
with a wide variety of environmental licenses, permits. Inspections and other approvals. If we are not able to 
timely obtain, maintain or comply with all licenses, permits, inspections and approvals required to operate our 
business, then our operations could be prevented, delayed or subject to additional costs. Failure to comply with 
environmental laws, regulations and other requirements may result in the imposition of fines and penalties or 
other sanctions and the imposition of stricter environmental standards and controls and other injunctive measures 
affecting operating assets. In addition, any alleged violation of these laws, regulations and other requirements 
may require us to expend significant resources to defend against any such alleged violations. DP&L owns a non-
controlling interest in several generating stations operated by our co-owners. As a non-controlling owner In these 
generating stations, DP&L is responsible for its pro rata share of expenditures for complying with environmental 
laws, regulations and other requirements, but has limited control over the compliance measures taken by our co-
owners. DP&L's ESP permits it to seek recovery for costs associated with new climate change or carbon 
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regulations. In addition, if we were found not to be in compliance with these environmental laws, regulations or 
requirements, any penalties that would apply or other resulting costs would likely not be recoverable from 
customers. We could be subject to joint and several strict liabilities for any environmental contamination at our 
currently or formeriy owned, leased or operated properties or third-party waste disposal sites. For example, 
contamination has been identified at two waste disposal sites for which we are alleged to have potential liability. 
In addition to potentially significant investigation and remediation costs, any such contamination matters can give 
rise to claims from governmental authorities and other third parties for fines or penalties, natural resource 
damages, personal injury and property damage. 

Our costs and liabilities relating to environmental matters could have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our use of derivative and nonderivative contracts may not fully hedge our generation assets, customer 
supply activities, or other market positions against changes in commodity prices, and our hedging 
procedures may not work as planned. 
We transact in coal, power and other commodities to hedge our positions in these commodities. These trades 
are affected by a range of factors, including variations in power demand, fluctuations in market prices, market 
prices for alternative commodities and optimization opportunities. We have attempted to manage our 
commodities price risk exposure by establishing and enforcing risk limits and risk management policies. Despite 
our efforts, however, these risk limits and management policies may not work as planned and fluctuating prices 
and other events could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. As part of 
our risk management, from time to time, we use a variety of non-derivative and derivative instruments, such as 
swaps, futures and forwards, to manage our market risks. We also use, from time to time, interest rate derivative 
instruments to hedge against interest rate fluctuations related to our debt. In the absence of actively quoted 
market prices and pricing information from external sources, the valuation of some of these derivative 
instruments involves management's judgment or use of estimates. As a result, changes in the underlying 
assumptions or use of alternative valuation methods could affect the reported fair value of some of these 
contracts. We could also recognize financial losses as a result of volatility in the market values of these contracts 
or if a counterparty fails to perform, which could result in a material adverse effect on our results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. 

The Dodd-Frank Act contains significant reguirements related to derivatives that, among other things, 
could reduce the cost effectiveness of entering into derivative transactions. 
In July 2010, The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank Act) was signed 
into law. The Dodd-Frank Act contains significant requirements relating to derivatives, including, among others, a 
requirement that certain transactions be cleared on exchanges that would necessitate the posting of cash 
collateral for these transactions. We are considered an end-user under the Dodd-Frank Act and therefore are 
exempt from most of the collateral and margining requirements. We are required to report our bilateral derivative 
contracts, unless our counterparty is a major swap participant or has elected to report on our behalf. Even 
though we qualify for an exception from these requirements, our counterparties that do not qualify for the 
exception may pass along any increased costs Incurred by them through higher prices and reductions In 
unsecured credit limits or be unable to enter into certain transactions with us. The occurrence of any of these 
events could have an adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our financial results may fluctuate on a seasonal and guarterly basis or as a result of severe weather. 
Weather conditions significantly affect the demand for electric power. In our Ohio service territory, demand for 
electricity is generally greater in the summer months associated with cooling and in the winter months associated 
with heating compared to other times of the year. Unusually mild summers and winters could therefore have an 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, severe or unusual 
weather, such as hurricanes and ice or snow storms, may cause outages and property damage that may require 
us to incur additional costs that may not be Insured or recoverable from customers. While DP&L is permitted to 
seek recovery of storm damage costs, if DP&L is unable to fully recover such costs in a timely manner, it could 
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Costs associated with new transmission projects could have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
Annually, PJM performs a review of the capital additions required to provide reliable electric transmission 
services throughout its territory. PJM traditionally allocated the costs of constructing these facilities to those 
entities that benefited directly from the additions. Over the last several years, however, some of the costs of 
constructing new large transmission facilities have been "socialized" across PJM without a direct relationship 
between the costs assigned to and benefits received by particular PJM members. To date, the additional costs 
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charged to DP&L for new large transmission approved projects have not been material. Over time, as more new 
transmission projects are constructed and if the allocation method is not changed, the annual costs could 
become material. DP&L is recovering the Ohio retail jurisdictional share of these allocated costs from its retail 
customers through the TCRR-N rider. To the extent that any costs in the future are material and we are unable 
to recover them from our customers, it could have a material adverse effect on our results of operation, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

We have no control over the timing or terms of an order bv the PUCO ordering us to separate our 
generation business into a separate legal entity from our distribution and transmission business. 
As required by the 2014 ESP order, DP&L filed an application for authority to transfer or sell its generation assets 
no later than January 1, 2017. There can be no assurance of the terms on which the PUCO would authorize the 
separation of our generation business from our distribution and transmission business. Although the initial PUCO 
order approved our separation plan, several regulatory filings and approvals are required in connection with the 
separation and certain other consents or approvals may be required under other agreements to which we are 
party. 

If we were found not to be in compliance with the mandatory reliability standards, we could be subiect to 
sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties. These would likely not be recoverable from 
customers through regulated rates and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. 
As an owner and operator of a bulk power transmission system, DP&L is subject to mandatory reliability 
standards promulgated by the NERC and enforced by the FERC. The standards are based on the functions that 
need to be performed to ensure the bulk power system operates reliably and is guided by reliability and market 
interface principles. In addition, DP&L is subject to Ohio reliability standards and targets. Compliance with 
reliability standards subjects us to higher operating costs or increased capital expenditures. While we expect to 
recover costs and expenditures from customers through regulated rates, there can be no assurance that the 
PUCO will approve full recovery in a timely manner. If we were found not to be in compliance with the mandatory 
reliability standards, we could be subject to sanctions, including substantial monetary penalties, which likely 
would not be recoverable from customers through regulated rates and could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our inability to obtain financing on reasonable terms, or at all, with creditworthy counterparties could 
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
From time to time we rely on access to the credit and capital markets to fund certain operational and capital 
costs. These capital and credit markets have experienced extreme volatility and disruption and the ability of 
corporations to obtain funds through the issuance of debt or equity has been negatively impacted. Disruptions in 
the credit and capital markets make it harder and more expensive to obtain funding for our business. Access to 
funds under our existing financing arrangements is also dependent on the ability of our counterparties to meet 
their financing commitments. Our inability to obtain financing on reasonable terms, or at all, with creditworthy 
counterparties could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. If our available 
funding is limited or we are forced to fund our operations at a higher cost, these conditions may require us to 
curtail our business activities and increase our cost of funding, both of which could reduce our profitability. DP&L 
has variable rate debt that bears interest based on a prevailing rate that is reset weekly based on a market index 
that can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and other market conditions. We also 
maintain both cash on deposit and investments in cash equivalents, from time to time, that could be adversely 
affected by interest rate fluctuations. In addition, ratings agencies Issue credit ratings on us and our debt that 
affect our borrowing costs under our financial arrangements and affect our potential pool of investors and funding 
sources. Our credit ratings also govern the collateral provisions of certain of our contracts. As a result of the 
Merger and assumption by DPL of merger-related debt and other factors, our credit ratings were downgraded, 
resulting in increased borrowing costs and causing us to post cash collateral with certain of our counterparties. If 
the rating agencies were to downgrade our credit ratings further, our borrowing costs would likely further 
increase, our potential pool of investors and funding resources could be reduced, and we could be required to 
post additional cash collateral under selected contracts. These events would likely reduce our liquidity and 
profitability and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash 
flows. 

Our membership in a regional transmission organization presents risks that could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
On October 1, 2004, in compliance with Ohio law, DP&L turned over control of its transmission functions and fully 
integrated into PJM, a regional transmission organization. The price at which we can sell our generation capacity 
and energy is now dependent on a number of factors, which include the overall supply and demand of generation 
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and load, other state legislation or regulation, transmission congestion and PJM's business rules. While we can 
continue to make bilateral transactions to sell our generation through a willing-buyer and willing-seller 
relationship, any transactions that are not pre-arranged are subject to market conditions at PJM. To the extent 
we sell electricity Into the power markets on a contractual basis, we are not guaranteed any rate of return on our 
capital Investments through mandated rates. The results of the PJM RPM base residual auction are impacted by 
the supply and demand of generation and load and also may be impacted by congestion and PJM rules relating 
to bidding for Demand Response and Energy Efficiency resources and other factors. Auction prices could 
fluctuate substantially over relatively short periods of time and adversely affect our results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. We cannot predict the outcome of future auctions, but low auction prices could have a 
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

The rules governing the various regional power markets may also change from time to time which could affect 
our costs and revenues and have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and 
cash flows. We may be required to expand our transmission system according to decisions made by PJM rather 
than our internal planning process. Various proposals and proceedings before FERC may cause transmission 
rates to change from time to time. In addition, PJM has been developing rules associated with the allocation and 
methodology of assigning costs associated with improved transmission reliability, reduced transmission 
congestion and firm transmission rights that may have a financial effect on us. We also incur fees and costs to 
participate in PJM. 

SB 221 includes a provision that allows electric utilities to seek and obtain recovery of RTO-related charges. 
Therefore, non-market based costs are being recovered from all retail customers through the TCRR-N, and 
market based RTO-related costs associated with serving SSO load are being recovered from SSO customers 
through our TCRR-B. If in the future, however, we are unable to recover all of these costs in a timely manner, 
and since the TCRR-B rider is bypassable when additional customer switching occurs, this could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

As members of PJM, DP&L and DPLE are also subject to certain additional risks including those associated with 
the allocation of losses caused by unreimbursed defaults of other participants in PJM markets among PJM 
members and those associated with complaint cases filed against PJM that may seek refunds of revenues 
previously earned by PJM members including DP&L and DPLE. These amounts could be significant and have a 
material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

if the pending PJM Capacity Performance proposals) before the FERC affecting capacity pricing and 
penalties for lack of performance by generators are approved as filed, we could be subject to substantial 
changes in capacity income and/or penalties. As the owner of generation that is a "capacity resource" within 
PJM, DP&L is subject to mandatory requirements to participate in PJM markets. The existing PJM capacity 
market is in the process of being restructured and the existing RPM capacity market requirements are likely to be 
replaced by a Capacity Performance program that offers the potential for higher capacity prices but paired with 
higher penalties for non-performance during times of high electricity demand. Any such penalties incurred are 
likely not recoverable from customers through regulated rates and could have a material adverse effect on our 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our consolidated results of operations may be negatively affected by overall market, economic and other 
conditions that are bevond our control. 
Economic pressures, as well as changing market conditions and other factors related to physical energy and 
financial trading activities, which include price, credit, liquidity, volatility, capacity, transmission and interest rates, 
can have a significant effect on our operations and the operations of our retail, industrial and commercial 
customers and our suppliers. The direction and relative strength of the economy has been increasingly uncertain 
due to softness in the real estate and mortgage markets, volatility In fuel and other energy costs, difficulties in the 
financial services sector and credit markets, high unemployment and other factors. Many of these factors have 
affected our Ohio service territory. 

Overall lower prices in the retail electricity market have led to increased switching from DP&L to other CRES 
providers, including DPLER, who may be offering retail prices lower than DP&L's SSO price. Also, several 
municipalities in DP&L's service territory have passed ordinances allowing them to become government 
aggregators and some municipalities have contracted with CRES providers to provide generation service to the 
customers located within the municipal boundaries, further contributing to the switching trend. CRES providers 
have also become more active In DP&L's service territory. These factors may reduce our margins and could 
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
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Our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows may be negatively affected by sustained downturns 
or a sluggish economy. Sustained downturns, recessions or a sluggish economy generally affect the markets in 
which we operate and negatively influence our energy operations. A contracting, slow or sluggish economy could 
reduce the demand for energy in areas in which we are doing business. During economic downturns, our 
commercial and industrial customers may see a decrease in demand for their products, which in turn may lead to 
a decrease in the amount of energy they require. In addition, our customers' ability to pay us could also be 
impaired, which could result in an increase in receivables and write-offs of uncollectible accounts. Our suppliers 
could also be affected by the economic downturn resulting in supply delays or unavailability. Reduced demand 
for our electric services, failure by our customers to timely remit full payment owed to us and supply delays or 
unavailability could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

A material change in market interest rates could adversely affect our results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 
DPL and DP&L have variable rate debt that bears interest based on a prevailing rate that is regulariy reset and 
that can be affected by market demand, supply, market interest rates and other market conditions. We also, from 
time to time, maintain both cash on deposit and investments in cash equivalents that could be adversely affected 
by Interest rate fluctuations. Any event which impacts market interest rates could have a material adverse effect 
on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Poor investment performance of our benefit plan assets and other factors impacting benefit plan costs 
could unfavorably affect our liguiditv and results of operations. 
The performance of the capital markets affects the values of the assets that are held in trust to satisfy future 
obligations under our pension and postemployment benefit plans. These assets are subject to market 
fluctuations and will yield uncertain returns, which may fall below our projected return rates. A decline in the 
market value of the pension and postemployment benefit plan assets will increase the funding requirements 
under our pension and postemployment benefit plans if the actual asset returns do not recover these declines in 
value in the foreseeable future. Future pension funding requirements, and the timing of funding payments, may 
also be subject to changes in legislation. The Pension Protection Act, enacted in August 2006, requires 
underfunded pension plans to improve their funding ratios within prescribed intervals based on the level of their 
underfunding. As a result, our required contributions to these plans, at times, have increased and may increase 
in the future. In addition, our pension and postemployment benefit plan liabilities are sensitive to changes in 
interest rates. As interest rates decrease, the discounted liabilities increase benefit expense and funding 
requirements. Further, changes in demographics. Including increased numbers of retirements or changes in life 
expectancy assumptions, may also increase the funding requirements for the obligations related to the pension 
and other postemployment benefit plans. Declines in market values and increased funding requirements could 
have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Our businesses depend on counterparties performing in accordance with their agreements. If they fail to 
perform, we could incur substantial expense, which could adversely affect our liguiditv, cash flows and 
results of operations. 
We enter into transactions with and rely on many counterparties in connection with our business, including for the 
purchase and delivery of inventory, including fuel and equipment components (such as limestone for our FGD 
equipment), for our capital improvements and additions and to provide professional services, such as actuarial 
calculations, payroll processing and various consulting services. If any of these counterparties fails to perform its 
obligations to us or becomes unavailable, our business plans may be materially disrupted, we may be forced to 
discontinue certain operations if a cost-effective alternative Is not readily available or we may be forced to enter 
Into alternative arrangements at then-current market prices that may exceed our contractual prices and cause 
delays. These events could cause our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows to have a material 
adverse effect. 

Accidental improprieties and undetected errors in our internal controls and information reporting could 
result in the disallowance of cost recovery, noncompliant disclosure and reporting or incorrect payment 
processing. 
Our internal controls, accounting policies and practices and internal information systems are designed to enable 
us to capture and process transactions and information in a timely and accurate manner in compliance with 
GAAP in the United States of America, laws and regulations, taxation requirements and federal securities laws 
and regulations in order to, among other things, disclose and report financial and other information in connection 
with the recovery of our costs and with our reporting requirements under federal securities, tax and other laws 
and regulations and to properiy process payments. We have also Implemented corporate governance. Internal 
control and accounting policies and procedures In connection with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Our internal 
controls and policies have been and continue to be closely monitored by management and our Board of 
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Directors. While we believe these controls, policies, practices and systems are adequate to verify data integrity, 
unanticipated and unauthorized actions of employees, temporary lapses in internal controls due to shortfalls in 
oversight or resource constraints could lead to improprieties and undetected errors that could result in the 
disallowance of cost recovery, noncompliant disclosure and reporting or incorrect payment processing. The 
consequences of these events could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial 
condition and cash flows. 

New accounting standards or changes to existing accounting standards could materially affect how we 
report our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
Our Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. The SEC, FASB or other authoritative bodies or governmental entities 
may issue new pronouncements or new interpretations of existing accounting standards that may require us to 
change our accounting policies. These changes are beyond our control, can be difficult to predict and could 
materially affect how we report our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. We could be 
required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, which could adversely affect our financial condition. In 
addition, in preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements, management is required to make estimates and 
assumptions. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. 

The SEC is investigating the potential transition to the use of IFRS promulgated by the International Accounting 
Standards Board for U.S. companies. Adoption of IFRS could result in significant changes to our accounting and 
reporting, such as in the treatment of regulatory assets and liabilities and property. The SEC does not currently 
have a timeline regarding the mandatory adoption of IFRS. We are currently assessing the effect that this 
potential change would have on our Consolidated Financial Statements and we will continue to monitor the 
development of the potential implementation of IFRS. 

We are subiect to extensive laws and local, state and federal regulation, as well as related litigation that 
could affect our operations and costs. 
We are subject to extensive laws and regulation by federal, state and local authorities, such as the PUCO, the 
CFTC, the USEPA, the Ohio EPA, the FERC, the Department of Labor and the Internal Revenue Service, among 
others. Regulations affect almost every aspect of our business, including in the areas of the environment, health 
and safety, cost recovery and rate making, the issuance of securities and incurrence of debt and taxation. New 
laws and regulations, and new interpretations of existing laws and regulations, are ongoing and we generally 
cannot predict the future course of changes in this regulatory environment or the ultimate effect that this changing 
regulatory environment will have on our business. Complying with this regulatory environment requires us to 
expend a significant amount of funds and resources. The failure to comply with this regulatory environment could 
subject us to substantial financial costs and penalties and changes, either forced or voluntary, in the way we 
operate our business. Additional detail about the effect of this regulatory environment on our operations is 
included in the risk factors set forth below. In the normal course of business, we are also subject to various 
lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other matters asserted under this regulatory environment or otherwise, 
which require us to expend significant funds to address, the outcomes of which are uncertain and the adverse 
resolutions of which could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and 
cash flows. 

If we are unable to maintain a gualified and properly motivated workforce, it could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 
One of the challenges we face is to retain a skilled, efficient and cost-effective workforce while recruiting new 
talent to replace losses in knowledge and skills due to resignations, terminations or retirements. This undertaking 
could require us to make additional financial commitments and incur Increased costs, if we are unable to 
successfully attract and retain an appropriately qualified workforce, it could have a material adverse effect on our 
results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. In addition, we have employee compensation plans that 
reward the performance of our employees. We seek to ensure that our compensation plans encourage 
acceptable levels for risk and high performance through pay mix, performance metrics and timing. We also have 
policies and procedures in place to mitigate excessive risk-taking by employees since excessive risk-taking by 
our employees to achieve performance targets could result In events that could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

We are subiect to collective bargaining agreements and other employee workforce factors that could 
affect our businesses. 
Over half of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement that is in effect until October 
31, 2017. While we believe that we maintain a satisfactory relationship with our employees, it is possible that 
labor disruptions affecting some or all of our operations could occur during the period of the collective bargaining 
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agreement or at the expiration of the collective bargaining agreement before a new agreement is negotiated. 
Work stoppages by, or poor relations or ineffective negotiations with, our employees could have a material 
adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Potential security breaches (including cvbersecurity breaches) and terrorism risks could adversely affect 
our businesses. 
We operate in a highly regulated industry that requires the continued operation of sophisticated systems and 
network infrastructure at our generation stations, fuel storage facilities and transmission and distribution facilities. 
We also use various financial, accounting and other systems in our businesses. These systems and facilities are 
vulnerable to unauthorized access due to hacking, viruses, other cybersecurity attacks and other causes. In 
particular, given the importance of energy and the electric grid, there is the possibility that our systems and 
facilities could be targets of terrorism or acts of war. We have implemented measures to help prevent 
unauthorized access to our systems and facilities, including certain measures to comply with mandatory 
regulatory reliability standards. Despite our efforts, if our systems or facilities were to be breached or disabled, 
we may be unable to recover them in a timely way to fulfill critical business functions, including the supply of 
electric services to our customers, and we could experience decreases in revenues and increases in costs that 
could adversely affect our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition. 

In the course of our business, we also store and use customer, employee, and other personal information and 
other confidential and sensitive information. If our third party vendors' systems were to be breached or disabled, 
sensitive and confidential information and other data could be compromised, which could result in negative 
publicity, remediation costs and potential litigation, damages, consent orders, injunctions, fines and other relief. 

To help mitigate against these risks, we maintain insurance coverage against some, but not all, potential losses, 
including coverage for illegal acts against us. However, Insurance may not be adequate to protect us against all 
costs and liabilities associated with these risks. 

DPL is a holding company and parent of DP&L and other subsidiaries. DPL's cash flow is dependent on 
the operating cash flows of DP&L and its other subsidiaries and their ability to pay cash to DPL. 
DPL is a holding company and its investments in Its subsidiaries are its primary assets. A significant portion of 
DPL's business is conducted by its DP&L subsidiary. As such, DPL's cash flow is dependent on the operating 
cash flows of DP&L and its ability to pay cash to DPL. DP&L's governing documents contain certain limitations 
on the ability to declare and pay dividends to DPL while preferred stock is outstanding. Certain of DP&L's debt 
agreements also contain limits with respect to the ability of DP&L to incur debt. In addition, DP&L is regulated by 
the PUCO, which possesses broad oversight powers to ensure that the needs of utility customers are being met. 
While we are not currently aware of any plans to do so, the PUCO could impose additional restrictions on the 
ability of DP&L to distribute, loan or advance cash to DPL pursuant to these broad powers. As part of the 
PUCO's approval of the Merger, DP&L agreed to maintain a capital structure that includes an equity ratio of at 
least 50 percent and not to have a negative retained earnings balance. While we do not expect any of the 
foregoing restrictions to significantly affect DP&L's ability to pay funds to DPL in the future, a significant limitation 
on DP&L's ability to pay dividends or loan or advance funds to DPL would have a material adverse effect on 
DPL's results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

Impairment of goodwill or long-lived assets would negatively affect our consolidated results of 
operations and net worth. 
Goodwill represents the future economic benefits arising from assets acquired in a business combination 
(acquisition) that are not individually identified and separately recognized. Goodwill is not amortized, but is 
evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In evaluating 
the potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows, 
capital expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long-term forecasts, 
macroeconomic projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent 
uncertainties related to these factors and management's judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair 
value of a reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to 
evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience 
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions, operating or regulatory 
environment; increased competitive environment; increase In fuel costs particuiariy when we are unable to pass 
along such costs to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer, particuiariy 
when we are unable to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. 
These types of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could 
substantially affect our results of operations for those periods. See Note 5 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated 
Financial Statements for more Information on the impairment of Goodwill. 
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Long-lived assets are initially recorded at fair value when acquired in a business combination and are amortized 
or depreciated over their estimated useful lives. Long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment only when 
impairment indicators are present whereas goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an annual basis or more 
frequently if potential impairment indicators are present. Othenwise, the recoverablllty assessment of long-lived 
assets is similar to the potential impairment evaluation of goodwill particuiariy as it relates to the identification of 
potential impairment indicators, and making estimates and assumptions to determine fair value, as described 
above. See Note 15 of Notes to DPL's Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of fixed 
assets. See Note 13 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of fixed 
assets. 

Item IB - Unresolved Staff Comments 

None 

Item 2 - Properties 

Information relating to our properties Is contained in Item 1 - Electric Operations and Fuel Supply and Note 4 of 
Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 4 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements. 

Substantially all property and stations of DP&L are subject to the lien of the First and Refunding Mortgage. 

Item 3 - Legal Proceedings 

DPL and DP&L are involved In certain claims, suits and legal proceedings in the normal course of business. DPL 
and DP&L have accrued for litigation and claims where it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the 
amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. DPL and DP&L believe, based upon information they currently 
possess and taking Into account established reserves for estimated liabilities and insurance coverage, that the 
ultimate outcome of these proceedings and actions Is unlikely to have a material adverse effect on their financial 
statements. It is reasonably possible, however, that some matters could be decided unfavorably and could 
require DPL or DP&L to pay damages or make expenditures in amounts that could be material but cannot be 
estimated as of December 31, 2014. 

The following additional information is incorporated by reference into this Item: (i) information about the legal 
proceedings contained in Item 1 - Competition and Regulation of Part 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and 
(ii) information about the legal proceedings contained in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
- Note 13 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 12 of Notes to DP&L's Financial 
Statements of Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Item 4 - Mine Safety Disclosures 

Not applicable. 

PART II 

Item 5 - Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of 
Equity Securities 

All of the outstanding common stock of DPL is owned, and has been owned throughout all of 2014, 2013 and 
2012, indirectly by AES and directly by an AES wholly-owned subsidiary. As a result, our stock is not listed for 
trading on any stock exchange. DP&L's common stock is held solely by DPL and, as a result, is not listed for 
trading on any stock exchange. 

Dividends 

During the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, DPL paid no dividends to AES. During the year ended 
December 31, 2012, DPL declared dividends on Its common stock to its parent of $70.0 million. During the year 
ended December 31, 2013, DPL's Board of Directors amended the prior dividend declaration to be equal to the 
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amount paid, $64.1 million, reversing $5.9 million of the 2012 dividends. DP&L declares and pays dividends on 
its common shares to its parent DPL from time to time as declared by the DP&L board. Dividends on common 
shares in the amount of $159.0 million, $190.0 million and $145.0 million were declared and paid in the years 
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. DP&L declared and paid dividends on preferred 
shares in the amount of $0.9 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

DPL's Amended Articles of Incorporation (the "Articles") contain provisions which state that DPL may not make a 
distribution to its shareholder or make a loan to any of its affiliates (other than its subsidiaries), unless: (a) there 
exists no Event of Default (as defined in the Articles) and no such Event of Default would result from the making 
of the distribution or loan; and either (b)(1) at the time of, and/or as a result of, the distribution or loan, DPL's 
leverage ratio does not exceed 0.67 to 1.00 and DPL's interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.50 to 1.00 or, 
(b)(ii) if such ratios are not within the parameters, DPL's senior long-term debt rating from one of the three major 
credit rating agencies is at least investment grade. Further, the restrictions on the payment of distributions to a 
shareholder and the making of loans to its affiliates (other than subsidiaries) cease to be in effect if the three 
major credit rating agencies confirm that a lowering of DPL's senior long-term debt rating below Investment 
grade by the credit rating agencies would not occur without these restrictions. 

As of December 31, 2014, there was no Event of Default - DPL's Articles generally define an "Event of Default" 
as either (i) a breach of a covenant or obligation under the Articles; (ii) the entering of an order of insolvency or 
bankruptcy by a court and that order remains in effect and unstayed for 180 days; or (iii) DPL, DP&L or one of its 
principal subsidiaries commences a voluntary case under bankruptcy or insolvency laws or consents to the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver or custodian to manage all of the assets of DPL, DP&L or one of its principal 
subsidiaries - but DPL's leverage ratio was at 0.93 to 1.00 and DPL's senior long-term debt rating from all three 
major credit rating agencies was below Investment grade. As a result, as of December 31, 2014, DPL was 
prohibited under its Articles from making a distribution to its shareholder or making a loan to any of its affiliates 
(otherthan its subsidiaries). 

DPL's unsecured revolving credit agreement and DPL's unsecured term loan were refinanced on May 10, 2013. 
The new loan agreements include a provision which restricts ail dividend payments from DPL to AES until after 
the maturity or termination of the respective credit facilities. 

As long as DP&L preferred stock is outstanding, DP&L's Amended Articles of Incorporation contain provisions 
restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such dividend, the 
aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31,1946 exceeds the net income of DP&L 
available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31,1946, plus $1.2 million. This dividend 
restriction has historically not affected DP&L's ability to pay cash dividends and, as of December 31, 2014, 
DP&L's retained earnings of $381.8 million were all available for DP&L common stock dividends payable to 
DPL. 
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Item 6 - Selected Financial Data 

The following table presents our selected consolidated financial data which should be read in conjunction with our 
audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the related Notes thereto and Item 7 - Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. The "Results of Operations" discussion in Item 7 
- Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations addresses significant 
fluctuations in operating data. DPL's common stock is wholly-owned by an indirect subsidiary of AES and 
therefore DPL does not report earnings or dividends on a per-share basis. Other data that management believes 
is important in understanding trends in our business are also included in this table. 

DPL 
Successor (a) 

$ in millions except per share 
amounts or as indicated 

November 
Year Year Year 28,2011 

ended ended ended through 
December December December December 
31,2014 31,2013 31,2012 31,2011 

Predecessor (a) 

January 1, 
2011 Year 

through ended 
November December 
27,2011 31,2010 

Jrr i ind'^^r 's lwe of 
bommoh'stgcb N/A N/A ; - N/A N/A 
Diluted earnings per share of 
common stock **' 

$ V 1 31 $ 2 51 

$ 1.31 $ 2.50 ^̂" _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ , N/A N/A l̂ /A . N/A S l-SI $ , 2.5C 

""*=" "̂̂  " ' A N/A N/A N/A [ 117 6% 48.2% Dividerid payout ratio ̂ ^̂  N/A 

Total electric sales (millions of 
kWh) 18,763 

Results of operations: 

mmm^m ^^^ff^$^^iH^&w^&MMM 

19,561 16,454 1,361 15,021 17,237 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ s ^ ^ m m ^ s m m ^ m ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ m m ^ ^ M ^ 
Goodwill impairment ̂ ^̂  te $ 

Net income / (loss) *̂^ 

Balance sheet date (end of 
)eriod): 

$ (74.6) $ (222.0) $ (1,729.8) $ (6.2) $ 150.5 $ 290.3 

- M i f i ^ ^ i ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ i g ^ 
N/A $ 1,026.6 

^Mif^^m^M^^&M 
Redeemable preferred stock of 
subsidiary $ 18.4 $ 18.4 $ 18.4 $ 18.4 N/A $ 22.9 

30 



Table of Contents 

DP&L 

Year Year Year Year Year 
ended ended ended ended ended 

$ in millions except per share amounts or as December December December December December 
indicated 31,2014 31,2013 31,2012 31,2011 31,2010 

^ o t a l i B i ^ l i ^ f i l l l i e n l W M S 

Results of operations: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ _ . „ 

Fixed-asset irnpairment'^ _ ^ _ - $ (86.0) $ (80.8) $ - $ -

Balance sheet date (end of period): _ ^ 

Lor^-term debt ^̂^ _ _ $ 877.0 $ 876 j $ 332.7 $ 903.0 $ 884.0 

KiMlr igl l i l f r i -^^6^i^^#i ' f f^^ 

(a) "Predecessor" refers to the operations of DPL and its subsidiaries prior to the Merger date. "Successor" refers to the operations of 
DPL and its subsidiaries subsequent to the Merger date. 

(b) DPL incurred merger-related costs of $37.9 million ($24.6 million net of tax) and $15.7 million ($10.2 million net of tax) in the 2011 
Predecessor and Successor periods, respectively, and had a $25.1 million ($16.3 million net of tax) favorable adjustment in the 
period January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 as a result of the approval of the fuel settlement agreement by the PUCO. 

(c) Of the $1.54 declared in the January 1, 2011 through November 27, 2011 period, $0.54 was paid in the November 28, 2011 
through December 31, 2011 period. 

(d) Goodvvrill impairments of $135.8 million, $306.3 million and $1,817.2 million wfere recorded in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
(e) Excludes current maturities of long-term debt. 
(f) For DPL, fixed-asset impairments of $11.5 million ($7.5 million net of tax) and $26.2 million {$17.0 million net of tax) were 

recorded in 2014 and 2013, respectively. For DP&L, fixed-asset impairments of $86.0 million ($55.9 million net of tax) and $80.8 
million ($51.8 million net of tax) were recorded in 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

(g) In 2011, DP&L incurred merger-related costs of $19.4 million ($12.6 million net of tax) and had a $25.1 million ($16.3 million net of 
tax) favorable adjustment as a result of the approval of the fuel settlement agreement by the PUCO. 

Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi t ion and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with DPL's audited Consolidated Financial 
Statements and the related Notes thereto and DP&L's audited Financial Statements and the related Notes 
thereto included in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K. The following 
discussion contains forward-looking statements. Our actual results may differ materially from the results 
suggested by these forward-looking statements. Please see "Forward-Looking Statements" at the beginning of 
this Form 10-K and Item 1A - Risk Factors. For a list of certain abbreviations or acronyms in this discussion, see 
Glossary at the beginning of this Form 10-K. 

BUSINESS OVERVIEW 

DPL is a regional electric energy and utility company. DPL's two reporting segments are the Utility segment, 
comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment, comprised of its DPLER subsidiary and 
DPLER's subsidiary, MC Squared. See Note 14 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements for more 
information relating to these reportable segments. DP&L does not have any reportable segments. 

DP&L is primarily engaged in the generation, transmission and distribution of electricity in West Central Ohio and 
the sale of energy to DPLER in Ohio and Illinois. DPL and DP&L strive to achieve disciplined growth in energy 
margins while limiting volatility in both cash flows and earnings and to achieve stable, long-term grovrth through 
efficient operations and strong customer and regulatory relations. More specifically, DPL's and DP&L's strategy 
is to match energy supply with load or customer demand, maximizing profits while effectively managing exposure 
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to movements in energy and fuel prices and utilizing the transmission and distribution assets that transfer 
electricity at the most efficient cost while maintaining the highest level of customer service and reliability. 

We operate and manage generation assets and are exposed to a number of risks. These risks include, but are 
not limited to, electricity wholesale price risk, PJM capacity price risk, regulatory risk, environmental risk, fuel 
supply and price risk, customer switching risk and the risk associated with electric generating station 
performance. We attempt to manage these risks through various means. For instance, we operate a portfolio of 
wholly-owned and jointly-owned generation assets that is diversified as to coal source, cost structure and 
operating characteristics. We are focused on the operating efficiency of these stations and maintaining their 
availability. 

We operate and manage transmission and distribution assets in a rate-regulated environment. Accordingly, this 
subjects us to regulatory risk in terms of the costs that we may recover and the investment returns that we may 
collect in customer rates. We are focused on delivering electricity and maintaining high standards of customer 
service and reliability in a cost-effective manner. 

Additional information relating to our risks is contained in Item IA - Risk Factors. 

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Consolidated Financial 
Statements and related footnotes included in Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data. 

BUSINESS COMBINATION 

Acquisition by The AES Corporation 
On November 28, 2011, DPL merged with Dolphin Sub, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES pursuant to the 
Merger agreement whereby AES acquired DPL for $30.00 per share in a cash transaction valued at 
approximately $3.5 billion. At closing, DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. 

See Item 1A - Risk Factors for additional risks and information related to the Merger. 

Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued $1.25 billion in long-term Senior Notes on Octobers, 
2011, to partially finance the Merger. Upon the consummation of the Merger, Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. was 
merged into DPL and these notes became long-term debt obligations of DPL. This debt has had and will 
continue to have a material effect on DPL's cash requirements. 

REGULATORY ENVIRONMENT 

DPL, DP&L and our subsidiaries' facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of environmental 
regulations and laws by federal, state and local authorities. As well as imposing continuing compliance 
obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance, 
including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal course of business, we have investigatory and 
remedial activities undenway at these facilities to comply, or to determine compliance, with such regulations. We 
record liabilities for losses that are probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated. 

• Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

There is on-going concern nationally and internationally about global climate change and the contribution 
of emissions of GHGs, including most significantly CO2. This concern has led to regulation and Interest 
In legislation at the federal level, actions at the state level as well as litigation relating to GHG emissions. 
The USEPA began regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011, under 
regulations referred to as the "Tailoring Rule". In June 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the 
USEPA had exceeded its statutory authority in issuing the so-called "Tailoring Rule" under Section 165 of 
the CAA by regulating sources under the PSD program based solely on their GHG emissions, but also 
held that the USEPA could Impose GHG BACT requirements for sources already required to implement 
PSD for certain other pollutants. 

In January 2014, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new EGUs 
under CAA subsection 111 (b), which would require new EGUs to limit the amount of CO2 emitted per 
megawatt-hour. The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to rely upon partial 
implementation of carbon capture and storage or other expensive CO2 emission control technology to 
meet the standard. In addition, new natural gas-fired EGUs must meet a standard of no greater than 
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1,000 pounds of CO2 per megawatt hour (if the rule is finalized in its current form). The rule is expected 
to be finalized in mid-2015. 

The USEPA issued proposed rules establishing GHG performance standards for existing power plants 
under CAA Section 111 (d) on June 2, 2014. Under the proposed rule, states would be judged against 
state-specific carbon dioxide emissions targets beginning in 2020, with expected total U.S. power section 
emissions reduction of 30% from 2005 levels by 2030. The proposed rule requires states to SIPs to meet 
the standards set forth in the rule by June 30, 2016, with the possibility of one or two-year extensions 
under certain circumstances. The proposed rule was subject to a public comment process and the 
USEPA is expected to finalize It by July 2015. Among other things, the Company could be required to 
make efficiency Improvements to existing facilities. 

Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L's share of CO2 emissions at 
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. If we are required to 
implement control of CO2 and other GHGs at generation facilities, the cost to DPL and DP&L of such 
controls could be material. 

• NOx and SO2 Emissions - CSAPR 

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-Siate Air Pollution Rule 
The USEPA promulgated CAIR on March 10, 2005, which required allowance surrender for SO2 and NO^ 
emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of Columbia. CAIR 
contemplated two implementation phases. The first phase began in 2009 and 2010 for NOx and SO2, 
respectively. A second phase with additional allowance surrender obligations for both air emissions was 
scheduled to begin In 2015. To implement the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were 
to establish emission-allowance-based "cap-and-trade" programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in 
federal court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an 
opinion striking down much of CAIR and remanding It to the USEPA. 

In an attempt to conform to the Court's decision, the USEPA issued CSAPR on July 6, 2011, but 
subsequent litigation resulted in CSAPR being vacated in 2012 and CAIR being reinstated pending the 
promulgation of a replacement rule. On June 24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the 
D.C. Circuit Court's decision to vacate CSAPR and on April 29, 2014, the U.S Supreme Court reversed 
the 2012 decision and remanded the case back to the D.C. Circuit Court. CSAPR was reinstated on 
October 23, 2014. The USEPA established new effective dates for compliance with the reduced 
emissions levels, beginning in 2015 with additional reductions in 2017. At this time, it is not possible to 
predict what Impacts this action may have on our consolidated financial condition, results of operations or 
cash flows, but it is not expected to be material. 

• Climate Change Legislation and Regulation 

On June 25, 2013, the President of the United States directed the USEPA to issue a new proposed rule 
establishing New Source Performance Standards for CO2 emissions for newly constructed fossil-fueled 
EGUs larger than 25 MW by September 2013, and to issue a final rule in a timely fashion after 
considering all public comments. The USEPA issued such new proposed rule in September 2013. The 
proposed rule anticipates that newly constructed fossil-fueled power plants generally would need to rely 
upon partial implementation of carbon capture and storage technology or other pollution control 
technology to meet the standard. 

In his June 25, 2013, announcement, the President, as anticipated, also directed the USEPA to issue 
new standards, regulations, or guidelines, as appropriate, that address CO2 emissions from existing 
power plants. The USEPA Issued proposed rules establishing GHG performance standards for existing 
power plants under CAA Section 111 (d) on June 2, 2014. Under the proposed rule, states would be 
judged against state-specific carbon dioxide emissions targets beginning in 2020, with expected total 
U.S. power section emissions reduction of 30% from 2005 levels by 2030. The proposed rule requires 
states to submit SIPs to meet the standards set forth inthe rule by June 30, 2016, with the possibility of 
one or two-year extensions under certain circumstances. The proposed rule was subject to a public 
comment process and the USEPA is expected to finalize it by July 2015. Among other things, the 
Company could be required to make efficiency improvements to existing facilities. 

It is impossible to estimate the impact and compliance costs associated with any future USEPA GHG 
regulations applicable to new, modified or existing EGUs until such regulations are finalized; however, 
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the impact, including the compliance costs, could be material to our consolidated financial condition or 
results of operations. 

• SB 221 Requirements 

SB 221 and the implementation rules contained targets relating to advanced energy portfolio standards, 
renewable energy, demand reduction and energy efficiency standards. SB 310 which was passed in 
2014 modified those standards slightly. The renewable energy portfolio, energy efficiency and demand 
reduction standards began in 2009 with increased percentage requirements each year thereafter. The 
annual targets for energy efficiency and peak demand reductions began in 2009 with annual increases. 
Energy efficiency programs are to save 22.3% by 2025 and peak demand reductions are expected to 
reach 7.75% by 2018 compared to a baseline energy usage. If any targets are not met, compliance 
penalties will apply, unless the PUCO makes certain findings that would excuse performance. 

SB 221 also contains provisions for determining whether an electric utility has significantly excessive 
earnings. The PUCO issued general rules for calculating the earnings and comparing them to a 
comparable group to determine whether there were significantly excessive earnings. DP&L was first 
subject to the SEET in 2013 based on 2012 earnings results, which did not have a material impact. 
Likewise, DP&L was found not to have excessive earnings in calendar year 2013. Through the ESP 
Order the PUCO established DP&L's ROE SEET threshold at 12%. In future years, the SEET could 
have a material effect on our results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. 

SB 221 also required that all Ohio distribution utilities file either an ESP or MRO. Under the MRO, a 
periodic competitive bid process will set the retail generation price after the utility demonstrates that it can 
meet certain market criteria and bid requirements. Also, under this option, utilities that still own 
generation in the state are required to phase-in the MRO over a period of not less than five years. An 
ESP may allow for adjustments to the SSO for costs associated with environmental compliance; fuel and 
purchased power; construction of new or investment in specified generating facilities; and the provision of 
standby and default service, operating, maintenance, or other costs including taxes. As part of its ESP, a 
utility is permitted to file an infrastructure Improvement plan that will specify the initiatives the utility will 
take to rebuild, upgrade, or replace Its electric distribution system, including cost recovery mechanisms. 
Both the MRO and ESP options involve a SEET based on the earnings of comparable companies with 
similar business and financial risks. 

On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed an ESP with the PUCO which was to be effective January 1, 2013. The 
plan was refiled to correct certain costs on December 12, 2012. The refiled plan requested approval of a 
non-bypassable charge that was designed to recover $137.5 million per year for five years from all 
customers. The ESP proposed a three-year, five-month transition to market, whereby a wholesale 
competitive bidding structure would be phased in to supply generation service to customers located in 
DP&L's service territory that have not chosen an alternative generation supplier. An evidentiary hearing 
on this case was held March 18, 2013 through April 3, 2013. An order was issued by the PUCO on 
September 4, 2013, and a correction to that order was issued on September 6, 2013 (ESP Order). 

The ESP Order stated that DP&L's next ESP begins January 2014 and extends through May 31, 2017. 
The PUCO authorized DP&L to collect a non-bypassable Service Stability Rider (SSR) equal to $110 
million per year for 2014 - 2016, with an opportunity to extend the charge through May 2017 If certain 
conditions were met. The ESP Order also directs DP&L to divest its generation assets no later than 
January 1, 2017 and sets DP&L's SEET threshold at a 12% ROE. Beginning in 2014, DP&L was no 
longer permitted to supply 100% of the generation service to its SSO customers. Instead, the PUCO 
directed DP&L to phase-In the competitive bidding structure with 10% of DP&L's SSO load sourced 
through the competitive bid starting In 2014, 60% in 2015, and 100% beginning January 1, 2016. The 
ESP Order approved DP&L's rate proposal to bifurcate Its transmission charges Into a non-bypassable 
component, TCRR-N, and a bypassable component, TCRR-B. The ESP order also required DP&L to 
establish a $2.0 million per year shareholder funded economic development fund. 

Applications for rehearing were filed several times throughout 2013 and 2014 and a final order on 
rehearing was issued on July 23, 2014. Several parties including DP&L appealed the orders in this case 
to the Ohio Supreme court. 
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• Legal separation of DP&L's generating facilities 

In accordance with the ESP Order, on December 30, 2013, DP&L filed an application with the PUCO 
stating its plan to transfer or sell its generation assets on or before January 1, 2017. Comments and 
reply comments were filed. DP&L amended its application on February 25, 2014 and again on May 23, 
2014. Additional comments and reply comments were filed. On July 14, 2014, DP&L announced its 
decision to retain DP&L's generation assets. On September 17, 2014, the PUCO ordered that DP&L's 
application as amended and updated was approved. DP&L continues to look at multiple options to 
effectuate the separation including the transfer to an unregulated affiliate or through a sale process. 

COMPETITION AND PJM PRICING 

• RPM Capacity Auction Price 

The PJM RPM capacity base residual auction for the 2017/18 period cleared at a price of $120/MW-day 
for our RTO area. The per megawatt-day prices forthe periods 2016/17, 2015/16, and 2014/15 were 
$59/MW-day, $136/MW-day, and $126/MW-day, respectively, based on previous auctions. Future RPM 
auction results will be dependent not only on the overall supply and demand of generation and load, but 
may also be impacted by congestion as well as PJM's business rules relating to bidding for demand 
response and energy efficiency resources in the RPM capacity auctions. The SSO retail costs and 
revenues are included In the RPM rider. Therefore increases in customer switching cause more of the 
RPM capacity costs and revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation. We cannot predict the 
outcome of future auctions or customer switching but based on actual results attained in 2014, we 
estimate that a hypothetical increase or decrease of $10/MW-day In the capacity auction price would 
affect net Income by approximately $6.4 million and $5.1 million for DPL and DP&L, respectively. These 
estimates do not, however, take into consideration the other factors that may affect the impact of capacity 
revenues and costs on net income such as the levels of customer switching, our generation capacity, the 
levels of wholesale revenues and our retail customer load. These estimates are discussed further within 
Commodity Pricing Risk under the Market Risk section of this Management Discussion & Analysis. 

• Ohio Competitive Considerations and Proceedings 

Since January 2001, DP&L's electric customers have been permitted to choose their retail electric 
generation supplier. DP&L continues to have the exclusive right to provide delivery service in Its state 
certified territory and the obligation to procure and provide SSO to customers that do not choose an 
alternative supplier. The PUCO maintains jurisdiction over DP&L's delivery of electricity, SSO and other 
retail electric services. 

Lower market prices for power have resulted in increased levels of competition to provide retail 
generation sen/ices. This in turn has led to CRES providers, including DPLER, having approximately 
71% of 2014 total electric sales in DP&L's service territory. DPLER, an affiliated company and one of 
the registered CRES providers, has been marketing generation services to DP&L customers. 
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The following table provides a summary of the number of electric customers and volumes provided by all 
CRES providers in our service territory during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012; 

Year ended Year ended Year ended 
December 31, 2014 December 31,2013 December 31, 2012 

Sales Sales Sales 
(in (in (in 

Electric millions Electric millions Electric millions 
Customers of kWh) Customers of kWh) Customers of kWh) 

Supplied by non-affiliated CRES 
providers 110 536 4 365 87 951 3 471 79 936 1981 

H ^ ^ » ^ ^ § p r o v i d e r s r "̂̂  1 . ^ : ^ > ^ - "->- ^ -^^^ .X--
i n f P l ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ B i f V " - ^^ , ..^241.772. . JO.OIjt-.rJ^2j18^5it^r%-eC9T345fe^153.608., 8,182 

_)ist^rbiatop^ggm:e^^les by ^ ^ - ^ 
^ M f t ^ f f l M f e » i ^ o ^ ? a ) 515r622. •.-vt14f006 . ^53K926 l -V \ f3 r87#^^113,266 .^ . 13.999 

(a) The kWh sales include all distribution sales, including those whose power is supplied by DPLER and non-affiliated CRES 
providers. 

The volumes supplied by DPLER represent approximately 40%, 42% and 44% of DP&L's total 
distribution volumes during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. We 
currently cannot determine the extent to which customer switching to CRES providers will occur in the 
future and the effect this will have on our operations, but any additional switching could have a significant 
adverse effect on our future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows. For the year ended 
December 31, 2014, approximately 71 % of DP&L's load was supplied by CRES providers with DPLER 
supplying 56% of the switched load. 

Several communities in DP&L's sen/ice area have passed ordinances allowing the communities to 
become government aggregators for the purpose of offering retail generation service to their residents. 
To date, a number of communities have filed with the PUCO to initiate aggregation programs. If a 
number of the larger communities move forward with aggregation in DP&L's sen/ice area, it could have a 
material effect on our earnings. As discussed in Item 1, beginning January 1, 2016, customer switching 
will have no effect on DP&L's financial condition. See Item I A - Risk Factors for more information. 

FUEL AND RELATED COSTS 

• Fuel and Commodity Prices 

The coal market is a global market in which domestic prices are affected by international supply 
disruptions and demand balance. In addition, domestic issues like government-imposed direct costs and 
permitting issues are affecting mining costs and supply availability. Our approach is to hedge the fuel 
costs for our anticipated electric sales. We have substantially all of the total expected coal volume 
needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales requirements for 2015 under contract. The majority of the 
contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices. Some contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some 
are priced based on market indices. Fuel costs are affected by changes in volume and price and are 
driven by a number of variables including weather, the wholesale market price of power, certain 
provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs, counterparty performance and credit, 
scheduled/forced outages and generation station mix. Due to the installation of emission controls 
equipment at certain commonly-owned units and barring any changes in the regulatory environment in 
which we operate, we expect to have balanced positions for SOg, NOx and renewable energy credits for 
2015. If our suppliers do not meet their contractual commitments or we are not hedged against price 
volatility and we are unable to recover costs through the fuel and purchased power recovery rider, our 
results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be materially affected. 

Beginning January 2010, fuel price changes, including coal requirements and purchased power costs, 
associated with SSO load was reflected in the implementation of the fuel and purchased power recovery 
rider, subject to PUCO review. This fuel rider is in the process of being phased out as the SSO will be 
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100% sourced through the competitive bid process by 2016. In August 2014, the PUCO issued an order 
in a case relating to review of DP&L's fuel cost recovery mechanism for the calendar year 2012. The 
order included the disallowance of an immaterial amount of fuel costs. The impact of the order being 
issued was a reversal in the third quarter of 2014 of a previously established $2.6 million reserve. The 
audit report for calendar year 2013 had immaterial findings. 

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW 

The results of operations for both DPL and DP&L are separately discussed in more detail in the following pages. 

The following table summarizes the significant components of DPL's Results of Operations for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012: 

Years ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

c^3S^^^3 : 
^^MlM î̂ MMMS -̂'̂ îm^M'̂ ^&^̂ ^M^mmî  

Cost of revenues: 

592.6 389.0^ 342.1 

Total cost of revenues 898.3 762.8 709.1 

-̂̂  .^^??^-^.8gi^^^i^^MBBs^BgS§^-' 

Operating expense^^ 

Deored^ionand amo ''.39-Q ^ ^JS^ 'S ... 125.4 

. ^!^jjy'"''I!££L^'?.tQi T?^:.^.-.,.-,,^ 3^®-^ 1,817.2 

Other (3-9) 2.5 0.2 
m m i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ s m ^ m m m ^ m m ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ m m m m m m 

m^M^^^^ssm^mmmmm^^^Mmmm^^mm^ss^msmm 
wmmm^m^^^^^SS^MmmMmmmmmmmm^m^^Mm^s^SS^^s^ 
W r o i i W ^ ^ | g i ^ W t f o n ^ . Q f debt 

Other expense, net 

_ 026 6) (124.0) (122.9) 

( 1 1 1 (2.9) (2.3) 

(5^ 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This fonnat is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - DPL Inc. 

DPL's results of operations include the results of its subsidiaries, including the consolidated results of its principal 
subsidiary DP&L. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. A 
separate specific discussion of the results of operations for DP&L is presented elsewhere in this report. 

Income Statement Highl ights - DPL 

Years ended December 3 1 , 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Revenues: 

Wholesale 198.0 229.7 104.5 

D F W l t ^ r i e j . _ _ . __ . ^ 1 3 . 7 7 9 92.2 
RTO capacity revenues ^ 109.2 28.7 74.5 

f i ^ O i g J I ^ i f e i - - ^ ^ . r .. ^10.8.^- 10.6 , " 1 1 0 
(^) f n a\ t-7 o\ (50) 

:4 
Mark-to-market gains / (losses) '̂ ^ (0.9) {7,2} (5.( 

Cost of revenues: _ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ 
^ i S ^ ^ ^ H S . . - ^ ^ ^ M ,._., . _ 305.4X , : .36B0t 358 6 

Losses / (gains) from sale of coal (1.3) Q-?^ 11.8 
^ 0 B M M ^ ^ s t ^ s M ( Q a \ r S y . - . -. . . ^ ' " " 0 . 4 - . . . " \ (85) 

Net fuel cost 304.5 366.7 361.9 

Rurj0fitsicliR.Qjgp|r 
yer ^ ..^28.2 243^___ Purehased power ^^?:? ^ i ^ 181-7 

RTO capacity charges 107.8 34.1 68.1 

Net purchased power 592.6 389.0 342.1 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S i e £ ^ _ J l " I _ _I .1.2 Z±^ 95^1;̂  

Sttitattrofj^^gaes^^, .,.. ~ ~ _ \ _ B Q B J ' " ^ ' ' 7 6 2 ^ " ' ^ " ' 7 9 ^ ^ 

^f^jtlMi^l^^j^^Sue"-:.-... .7 'Z^^"^^ . "~v-.-̂ 4̂.9ŷ  >J"rT~g5^r^ .„ ; 52Ŝ  

(a) These amounts represent the amortization of asset balances related to retail power contracts that were previously accounted for 
as derivatives, but in accordance with ASC 815 are no longer derivatives. The fair value of these contracts is to be amortized to 
earnings over the remaining temn of the associated agreements. 

(b) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same infomiation that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 

DPL - Revenues 
Retail customers, especially residential and commercial customers, consume more electricity on warmer and 
colder days. Therefore, our retail sales volume Is affected by the number of heating and cooling degree days 
occurring during a year. Cooling degree days typically have a more significant effect than heating degree days 
since some residential customers do not use electricity to heat their homes. 
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Degree days 

Years ended December 31, 
Number of days 2014 2013 2012 

Cooling degree days ^̂^ 977 1,062 1,264 

(a) Heating and cooling degree days are a measure of the relative heating or cooling required for a home or business. The heating 
degrees in a day are calculated as the difference of the average actual daily temperature below 65 degrees Fahrenheit. For 
example, if the average temperature on March 20th was 40 degrees Fahrenheit, the heating degrees for that day would be the 25 
degree difference between 65 degrees and 40 degrees. In a similar manner, cooling degrees in a day are the difference of the 
average actual daily temperature in excess of 65 degrees Fahrenheit. 

Since we plan to utilize our internal generating capacity to supply the needs of our retail customers within the 
DP&L service territory first, increases in on-system retail demand may decrease the volume of Internal 
generation available to be sold in the wholesale market and vice versa. The wholesale market covers a multi-
state area and settles on an hourly basis throughout the year. Factors affecting our wholesale sales volume each 
hour of the year include: wholesale market prices; our retail demand; retail demand elsewhere throughout the 
entire wholesale market area; our stations' and other utility stations' availability to sell into the wholesale market; 
and weather conditions across the multi-state region. Our plan is to make wholesale sales when market prices 
allow for the economic operation of our generation facilities not being utilized to meet our retail demand or when 
margin opportunities exist between the wholesale sales and power purchase prices. 

The following table provides a summary of changes in revenues from prior periods: 

$ in millions 2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012 

Retail ^ _ _ „ 

Volume (56.7) . (33-3) 

^ ( ^ f t ^ e t P ^ s l ^ M | | i ^ ^ B i # i # g ^ s ^ ^ ^ 

Total retail change 66.8 (94.0) 

Wholesale 

Volume _ _ _ „ _ _ „ _ „ _ _ ^ , , (10.4) 133.7 r.-^s 

RTO capacity and other _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ __ ^ 

other _ ^ _ _ - _ _ . . „ „ _ _ . 

Other 0 ^ (0.4) 

^^m^^^M^m^^iSm^SM&s^^mmm^§^^^m^mmmmmMmMMms) 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Revenues increased $126.1 million, or 8%, to $1,763.0 million from 
$1,636.9 million In the same period of the prior year. This increase was primarily the result of higher average 
retail rates, increased RTO capacity revenues; offset by lower average wholesale rates and lower retail and 
wholesale volume. 

• Retail revenues increased $66.8 million primarily due to a 9.5% increase in average retail rates which 
resulted from the PUCO approved service stability rider and recovery of various regulatory riders for 
market based costs. DP&L sales volume decreased 7.4% from prior year; however, this was partially 
offset by increased sales procured by DPLER and MC Squared outside our service territory, or off-
system sales, which resulted in an overall 3.9% decrease in total DPL sales volume. The aforementioned 
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impacts resulted in a favorable $123.3 million retail price variance and an unfavorable $56.7 million retail 
volume variance. 

• Wholesale revenues decreased $31.7 million due to a 9.7% decrease in average wholesale prices and 
4.5% reduction in wholesale volume due to increased outages In 2014, which resulted in an unfavorable 
wholesale price variance of $21.3 million and an unfavorable wholesale sales volume variance of $10.4 
million. 

• RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L's transmission 
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the 
RPM construct, increased $84.5 million compared to 2013. This increase was primarily a result of an 
$80.5 million increase in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction and an increase of $4.0 million 
in RTO transmission and congestion revenues. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Revenues decreased $31.5 million, or 2%, to $1,636.9 million from 
$1,668.4 million In the same period of the prior year. This decrease was primarily the result of decreased retail 
and wholesale average rates, decreased RTO capacity and other revenues, offset by increased retail and 
wholesale volume. 

• Retail revenues decreased $94.0 million primarily due to decreased prices driven by customer switching 
from competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. The DP&L 
sales volume decreased 13% from the prior year; however, the effect of sales procured by DPLER and 
MC Squared outside our service territory, or off-system sales, offset volume decreases resulting in an 
overall 1% increase In total DPL sales volume. The rates offered to the off-system customers are lower 
than the rates in our service territory causing an overall 8% decrease In average rates. There was a 16% 
decrease in cooling degree days to 1,062 from 1,264 in 2012, as well as a 17% increase In the number of 
heating degree days to 5,542 days from 4,752 days In 2012, therefore weather had a minimal impact. 
The above resulted in an unfavorable $70.0 million retail price variance and an unfavorable $33.3 million 
retail sales volume variance. 

Wholesale revenues increased $125.2 million primarily as a result of a 128% increase in wholesale sales 
volume due to customer switching, which makes more of our generation available for wholesale sales, 
including a 16% increase in total net generation by our power plants, offset slightly by a 3.6% decrease in 
average wholesale prices. This resulted in a favorable $133.7 million wholesale sales volume variance 
partially offset by an unfavorable wholesale price variance of $8.5 million. 

RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L's transmission 
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the 
RPM construct, decreased $60.1 million. This decrease in RTO capacity and other revenues was the 
result of a $45.8 million decrease in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction, and a $12.8 million 
decrease in RTO transmission and congestion revenues due to a 2012 settlement related to PJM SECA 
revenues. 

DPL - Cost of Revenues 
During the year ended December 31, 2014: 

• 

• 

• 

Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, decreased $62.2 million, or 
17%, primarily due to a 13% decrease in Internal generation as a result of increased outages combined 
with lower average fuel prices. 

Net purchased power Increased $203.6 million, or 52%, compared to 2013. This was driven by an 
increase in RTO capacity and other costs of $116.0 million which were incurred as a member of PJM, 
including costs associated with DP&L's load obligations for retail customers. RTO capacity prices are 
set by an annual auction. This Increase also includes the net impact of the deferral and recovery of 
DP&L's transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. In addition, purchase power volume 
increased 21% as a result of Increased outages at our generating stations during 2014 and average 
purchased power prices increased 11 %. We purchase power to satisfy retail sales volume when 
generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when market prices are 
below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities. 

Amortization of intangibles decreased due to certain customer contract intangibles recognized at the 
merger date becoming fully amortized. 
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During the year ended December 31, 2013: 

• Net fuel costs Increased $4.8 million, or 1%, compared to 2012, primarily due to increased fuel costs and 
decreased mark-to-market gains partially offset by decreased losses from the sale of coal. There was a 
16% increase in the volume of generation at our stations and no fuel related mark-to-market gains or 
losses in 2013 compared to $8.5 million of gains in 2012. Partially offsetting these increases were $0.7 
million in realized losses from the sale of coal in 2013, compared to $11.8 million of realized losses from 
the same period in 2012. 

• Net purchased power Increased $46.9 million, or 14%, compared to the same period in 2012 due largely 
to increased purchased power costs of $62.2 million, $48.3 million due to increased volume and $13.8 
million due to higher average market prices for purchased power. We purchase power to satisfy retail 
sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when 
market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities. Partially offsetting 
these increases were decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $23.6 million which were incurred as 
a member of PJM, including costs associated with DP&L's load obligations for retail customers. RTO 
capacity prices are set by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net impact of the deferral 
and recovery of DP&L's transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. 

• Amortization of intangibles decreased in 2013 compared to 2012 primarily due to the full amortization of 
the ESP during 2012. 

DPL - Operation and Maintenance 

$ In millions 2014 vs. 2013 

Pp" ip .^ ' ! i .Y^ ' ' ^M 9P_^!'^'^'Qn^ _ (4.7) 

Deferred compensation liability , ^ , „ . ^ _ _ _ ^ , _ _ „ , (1.5) 
§erW0iflMEi^P^^iW^8i^ntBiin\^xM 
Maintenance of overhead t̂ ^̂  5.2 

other, net _ ^ (1.5) 

(a) There is a corresponding increase / (decrease) in Revenues associated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $8.4 million, or 2%, 
compared to the same period in 2013. This variance was primarily the result of: 

• decreased expenses for the low-income payment program which are funded by the USF revenue rate 
rider; 

• decreased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail 
business as a result of decreased sales volume; 

• decreased health insurance due to cost decreases as well as a reduction in the disability reserve as a 
result of the 2014 actuarial study; and 

• decreased deferred compensation costs. 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

• 

• 

increased maintenance expenses at our generating facilities; 

Increased expenses related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines; and 

increased expenses relating to alternative energy and energy efficiency programs. 
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$in millions ^̂  2013 vs. 2012 
jSeJj i iMj i ig f^O' f t^^ l^ i i l t jM^fe ia^ 9;9) 
Low income payment program ^̂^ „___^ (38) 
Pens'ion. k . ' .. \ . \ . ^ , - , : ^ ^ ^ •^^.. - (1.4) 
Competitive retail operations ^ 13 3 
FFaTthslnsuTan'^r^^v' . . . , ^ -T~Z .^wr4-^^-^^-— -^.-^ Ẑ . 30 
Other, net ^ ^ ^ • - - . „ • , ^^-^^ 
i M l l ^ p i i f l i j i l ^ W r i i j M ^ T ^ ^ g i ^ ^ ^^9:7) 

(a) There is a corresponding increase in Revenues associated with this program resulting in no impact to Net income. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $9.7 million, or 2%, 
compared to the same period in 2012. This variance was primarily the result of: 

• decreased expenses for generating facilities largely due to outages related to maintenance activities in 
the first and second quarters of 2012 at jointly owned production units relative to the same periods in 
2013; 

• decreased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance to low-income 
retail customers; and 

• lower pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a higher discount 
rate. 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

• increased marketing, customer maintenance and labor costs associated with the competitive retail 
business as a result of increased sales volume and number of customers; and 

• increased health insurance due to cost increases as well as more employees going on to long-term 
disability as compared to the same period in 2013. 

DPL - Depreciation and Amortization 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $6.9 million, or 
5%, compared to 2013. The increase primarily reflects additional investments in fixed assets. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $7.5 million, or 
6%, compared to 2012. The increase primarily reflects additional investments in fixed assets. 

DPL - General Taxes 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, General taxes increased $10.8 million, or 13%, compared to 2013. 
The increase was primarily due to an adjustment to the 2013 estimated property tax liability to adjust estimates to 
actual payments that were made in 2014, higher property tax accruals for 2014 compared to 2013 and a 
favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts appeal in 2013. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, General taxes increased $1.4 million, or 2%, compared to 2012. 
This increase was primarily due to higher property tax accruals in 2013 compared to 2012 partially offset by a 
favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax appeal in 2013. 

DPL - Goodwill impairment 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DPL recorded an impairment of goodwill of $135.8 million. See Note 
5 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL recorded an impairment of goodwill of $306.3 million. See Note 
5 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

DPL - Interest Expense 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Interest expense increased $2.6 million, or 2%, compared to 2013 
due primarily to reduced amortization of debt premium (which offsets Interest expense) partially offset by 
decreased interest rates on DP&L's senior secured bonds. 
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During the year ended December 31, 2013, Interest expense decreased $1.1 million, or 1%, compared to 2012 
due primarily to decreased interest due to reductions in debt and decreased interest rates on DP&L's senior 
secured bonds partially offset by reduced amortization of debt premium (which offsets interest expense). 

DPL - Income Tax Expense 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Income tax expense decreased $4.3 million compared to 2013 
primarily due to lower pre-tax income (excluding the effect of the goodwill impairment), a 2014 deferred tax 
adjustment related to the expiration of the statutes of limitation on the 2010 tax year and a decrease in the tax 
benefits of Internal Revenue Code Section 199 in 2014. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Income tax expense decreased $25.4 million compared to 2012 
primarily due to lower pre-tax income (excluding the effect of the goodwill impairment), a 2013 deferred tax 
adjustment related to the expiration of the statutes of limitation on the 2007, 2008 and 2009 tax years, an 
increase In the tax benefits of Internal Revenue Code Section 199 in 2013 and a 2012 adjustment to state 
deferred taxes. 

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS BY SEGMENT - DPL Inc. 

DPL's two segments are the Utility segment, comprised of Its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail 
segment, comprised of its competitive retail electric service subsidiaries. These segments are discussed further 
below: 

Utilitv Segment 
The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L's electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which 
generate and distribute electricity to residential, commercial. Industrial and governmental customers. DP&L 
generates electricity at five coal-fired power stations and distributes electricity to more than 516,000 retail 
customers who are located in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. Beginning in 2014, DP&L was 
required to procure 10% of the power for SSO customers through a competitive bid process, with the percentage 
increasing each year, reaching 100% by January 1, 2016. Further, in December 2013, DP&L filed a plan with the 
PUCO to ^e\l or transfer its generation assets by January 1, 2017. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER and any 
excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market. DP&L's transmission and distribution businesses 
are subject to rate regulation by federal and state regulators while rates for its generation business are deemed 
competitive under Ohio law. 

Competitive Retail Segment 
The Competitive Retail segment is comprised of DPLER's competitive retail electric service business and 
includes Its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared. DPLER sells retail electric energy under contract to 
residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers who have selected DPLER or MC Squared as 
their alternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail segment sells electricity to approximately 260,000 
customers currently located throughout Ohio and Illinois. MC Squared, a Chicago-based retail electricity 
supplier, serves approximately 108,000 customers in Northern Illinois and is a subsidiary of DPLER. The 
Competitive Retail segment's electric energy used to meet Its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L. 
Intercompany sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on the market prices for wholesale power. The price 
approximates market prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer's contract. The Competitive 
Retail segment has no transmission or generation assets. The operations of the Competitive Retail segment are 
not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by federal or state regulators. 

Other 
Included within Other are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for separate disclosure as 
reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs including interest expense on DPL's debt. 

Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. See Note 14 of Notes to DPL's 
Consolidated Financial Statements for further discussion of DPL's reportable segments. 
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The following table presents DPL's gross margin by business segment: 

$ in millions 
Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

Otiiity.. 
Competitive Retail 
Other. ' : ^ 

JL •̂ ,f Z 7^IKM^P^^90iai^^$^: '^ ;^^^#-^^867;4\ 
41.8 51.9 68.6 

Adjustments and Eliminations 
irotaiiopi?^Jic^ted^l • 

sm- (3-6) (3.4) 

--.$^̂  r^^^^^^^M^Mm^0MM^iS^B^.S: 
The financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Utility segment are identical in all material 
respects and for all periods presented to those of DP&L which are included in this Form 10-K. We do not believe 
that additional discussions of the financial condition and results of operations of the Utility segment would 
enhance an understanding of this business since these discussions are already Included under the DP&L 
discussions below. 

Income Statement Highlights - Competitive Retail Segment 

Years ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Revenues: 

^^^"IWMJ M ^ g ^ ^ l g i j ^ ^ ^ : M M l i i t ^ i i i # i i ^ ^ l i ^ ^ 
RTO and other _ „ „ _ _ _ 0.5 (7.2) (3.6) 

Cost of revenues: _ 

B i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M : ^ B i l S i i ; l i ^ W ^ ^ J ^ ^ ^ t e a g ^ i ^ i i a i § 9 ;68i6. 

1 ^ ^ f S i i r T a i W M s g ^ « ^ i h § t # ^ ^ g ^ ^ ^ 0^ 24 7 
Otherexpense 3.3 31 30 

'27 7 

Income tax expense 2.0 42 
40 9 
181 
2 2 8 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to mal̂ e 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 

Competitive Retail Segment - Revenue 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the segment's retail revenue increased $14.3 million or 3%, 
compared to 2013. The increase was primarily due to higher average retail rates for off-system sales and 
Increased off-system sales volume, partially offset by lower on-system sales volume due to customer switching to 
unaffiliated third-party CRES providers. RTO and other revenues increased primarily due to the derivative-
related amortization in 2013. The Competitive Retail segment sold approximately 9,717 million kWh of power to 
260,000 customers In 2014 compared to approximately 9,733 million kWh of power to 308,000 customers during 
the same period of the prior year. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the segment's retail revenues Increased $22.1 million, or 4%, 
compared to 2013. The increase was primarily due to an $84.8 million positive volume variance primarily due to 
sales growth outside of DP&L's service territory in both Ohio and Illinois. The increased volume was partially 
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offset by a $62.7 million negative price variance as increased competition in the competitive retail electric service 
business in the state of Ohio has resulted in decreased retail prices. The Competitive Retail segment sold 
approximately 9,733 million kWh of power to approximately 308,000 customers compared to approximately 8,315 
million kWh of power to approximately 198,000 customers during the same period of the prior year. 

Competitive Retail Segment - Purchased Power 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the segment's purchased power costs increased $32.1 million, or 
7%, due to higher prices, partially offset by a slight volume decline. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Competitive Retail segment purchased power Increased $35.2 
million, or 7%, compared to 2013 primarily due to increased purchased power volume required to satisfy an 
increase in customer base as described in the revenue section above. 

Competitive Retail Segment - Operation and Maintenance 
DPLER's operation and maintenance expenses include employee-related expenses, marketing, accounting, 
information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. 

The $4.7 million, or 12%, decrease in operation and maintenance expense in 2014 compared to 2013 is reflective 
of decreased marketing and customer maintenance costs associated with the decreased number of customers. 

The $13.3 million, or 54%, increase in operation and maintenance expense in 2013 compared to 2012 Is 
reflective of increased marketing and customer maintenance costs associated with the increased sales volume 
and number of customers. 

45 



Table of Contents 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - Utility Segment (DP&L) 

Income Statement Highlights - DP&L 

$ in millions 
Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

Revenues: ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ 

Wholesale 666.0 671 3 483.7 

RTO capacityjevenues 
77.6* , 74 5 88;5l 
90.5 24 0 

^^i1gi:l*^tolBKr[c|>ga|^s7 (losses) iosL^ 
63^ 

Total revenues 

Cost of revenues: 
Cost of fuel: _^_ _ 
pEui .Z." t ' r "^ . 

Losses / (gams) from sale of coal 

1,668.3 1,551 5 1,531.8 

315.8 361.8 ?351.&; 

(M) 0.7 11.8 

Mark-to-nnarket (gains) / b̂ ^̂  ____^ 0.4 - (8.4) 
••t3air#|r^.^ale''bf%Mnission''allowances. •-•" ^_ 

Purchased power: _„__„„_„ - ^ _ _ __ 

RTO charges 150.4 109.8 98.8 

^^^^mmmmM¥m^^v^:¥ii0^^-:^m^^Q^^ 
Mark-to-market (gains)/losses 1.6 1.3 (5.0) 

^"^'TSjSSfi'i^SiSia 
est ^ ^vM^BW^0W< '̂̂ M!^^^^^ '̂iBî  

77ysi&0^mm!m0^MmmmM^&70:: 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 
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DP&L - Revenues 
The following table provides a summary of changes in DP&L's Revenues from prior periods: 

2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012 

Retail „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ 

Volume ' _ (55.7) (118.5) 

Total retail change 52.2 (116.4) 

WHSMale^^" V ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ .^ __ 1 : ^ 
Rate _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _, _ _ _ _ 6 ^ (64.^) 

fflSie^; : i r " J / - - ^ "~ ' - " (11.9)_r / 252;^ 
Total wholesale change (5.3) 187.6 

RTO capacity and other revenues 69.6 (53.4) 

Unrealized MTM 0.3 1.9 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, revenues Increased $116.8 million, or 8%, to $1,668.3 million from 
$1,551.5 million in the prior year. This increase was primarily the result of higher average retail rates and 
increased RTO capacity revenues; partially offset by lower retail and wholesale volume. 

• Retail revenues increased $52.2 million due to a 15% increase in average retail rates which resulted from 
the PUCO approved service stability rider and recovery of various regulatory riders for market based 
costs. Retail volume decreased 7% overall due to a 26% increase in the percentage of volume in the 
DP&L service territory being supplied by third-party CRES providers. DP&L continues to provide 
distribution services to these customers but the volumes are not recorded. Heating degree days 
increased by 408, or 7%, while cooling degree days decreased 85, or 8%, compared to 2013. During 
2014, 31 % of DP&L's distribution sales were supplied by third-party CRES providers. As we only have 
distribution revenue on these sales, the weather impact is less than the weather impact on SSO sales. 
The above resulted in a favorable $108.4 million retail price variance partially offset by an unfavorable 
$55.7 million retail sales volume variance. 

• Wholesale revenues decreased $5.3 million as a result of an $11.9 million decrease in wholesale sales 
volume, partially offset by a favorable $6.6 million price variance. Although customer switching in the 
DP&L service territory resulted in increased generation available to sell in the wholesale market, there 
was a 13% decrease in net generation available from DP&L's co-owned and operated generation plants 
due to higher outages which resulted in an overall decrease in wholesale sales volume. 

• RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L's transmission 
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the 
RPM construct, increased $69.6 million. This Increase was primarily the result of a $66.5 million 
increase in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction and an increase of $3.1 million In RTO 
transmission and congestion revenues. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Revenues increased $19.7 million, or 1 %, to $1,551.5 million from 
$1,531.8 million in the prior year. This increase was primarily the result of higher wholesale sales volumes. The 
revenue components for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to 2012 are further discussed below. 

• Retail revenues decreased $116.4 million primarily due to a 13% decrease in retail sales volumes 
compared to the prior year which was a result of customer switching due to Increased levels of 
competition to provide transmission and generation services in our service territory. There was a 16% 
decrease in cooling degree days to 1,062 days from 1,264 days in 2012, as well as a 17% increase in the 
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number of heating degree days to 5,542 days from 4,752 days in 2012, therefore weather had a minimal 
impact. Although DP&L had a number of customers that switched their retail electric service from DP&L 
to CRES providers, DP&L continued to provide distribution services to those customers within its service 
territory. Average retail rates decreased slightly overall. The remaining distribution services provided by 
DP&L were billed at a lower average rate resulting in a slight reduction of total average retail rates. The 
above resulted in an unfavorable $118.5 million retail sales volume variance and an unfavorable $7.3 
million retail price variance, partially offset by a $7.0 million shared savings accrual related to DP&L 
energy efficiency programs. 

• Wholesale revenues increased $187.6 million as a result of an increase in wholesale sales volume which 
was largely a result of customer switching discussed in the immediately preceding paragraph. Customer 
switching in the DP&L service territory has resulted in increased generation available to sell in the 
wholesale market. Also contributing was a 17% increase in net generation available from DP&L's co-
owned and operated generation plants. These increases were partially offset by a 9% decrease in 
average wholesale rates. These resulted in a favorable $252.1 million wholesale volume variance offset 
by a $64.5 million unfavorable wholesale price variance. 

• RTO capacity and other revenues, consisting primarily of compensation for use of DP&L's transmission 
assets, regulation services, reactive supply and operating reserves, and capacity payments under the 
RPM construct, decreased $53.4 million. This decrease in RTO capacity and other revenues was 
primarily the result of a $39.4 million decrease in revenues realized from the PJM capacity auction, and a 
$12.8 million decrease in RTO transmission and congestion revenues due to a 2012 settlement related to 
PJM SECA revenues. 

DP&L - Cost of Revenues 
During the year ended December 31, 2014: 

• Net fuel costs decreased $47.6 million, or 13%, due to a 13% decrease in internal generation due to 
increased outages combined with lower average fuel prices, partially offset by costs associated with the 
eariy termination of a fuel contract. 

• Net purchased power increased $200.5 million, or 53%, compared to the same period in 2013, This was 
driven by increased RTO capacity and other costs of $113.4 million which were incurred as a member of 
PJM, including costs associated with DP&L's load obligations for retail customers. RTO capacity prices 
are set by an annual auction. This increase also includes the net impact of the deferral and recovery of 
DP&L's transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. In addition, purchased power volume 
increased 21% as a result of increased outages at our generating stations during 2014 and average 
purchased power prices increased 12%. We purchase power to satisfy retail sales volume when 
generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned outages or when market prices are 
below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013: 

• Net fuel costs, which include coal, gas, oil and emission allowance costs, increased $7.6 million, or 2%, 
compared to 2012, primarily due to increased fuel costs and decreased mark-to-market gains on coal 
contracts partially offset by decreased losses from the sale of coal. During the year ended December 31, 
2013, there was a 17% increase in the volume of generation at our stations and no fuel related mark-to-
market gains or losses compared to $8.4 million of gains in 2012. Partially offsetting these increases 
were $0.7 million in realized losses from the sale of coal, compared to $11.8 million of realized losses 
from the same period in 2012. 

Net purchased power increased $72.4 million, or 23%, compared to the same period in 2012 due largely 
to increased purchased power costs of $85.3 million, $74.0 million due to increased volume and an 
increase of $11.9 million due to higher average market prices for purchased power. Purchased power 
volume increased due to power purchased to supply increased ofif-system sales. We purchase power to 
satisfy retail sales volume when generating facilities are not available due to planned and unplanned 
outages or when market prices are below the marginal costs associated with our generating facilities. 
Partially offsetting these increases were decreased RTO capacity and other charges of $19.2 million 
which were incurred as a member of PJM, including costs associated with DP&L's load obligations for 
retail customers. RTO capacity prices are set by an annual auction. This decrease also includes the net 
impact of the deferral and recovery of DP&L's transmission, capacity and other PJM-related charges. 
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DP&L - Operation and Maintenance 

$ in millions 2014 vs. 2013 

j foVi i iB^f t^a^enyprogfafe/^^-

^ ^ ^ * l ^ . *"^_^''^"'^^^^^ disability 
ilOJ) 

(4 7) 
jgjeMiQhMg-' _CL5) 
Deferred compensatjon 11̂^̂^̂  _„XU§) 

Maintenyice of overhead transmission and distributî ^^^ ^^___^ _^____ 5.2 
a l t ^ j jE j j t jMe le je j ig^^ fe j i ^v^ 
Other, net (3.6) 
!roralgoptratjeri^ahcWEiinten,anoelexpense _ _ . _ _ _ . _ _ $ iiii 

(a) There is a corresponding increase / (decrease) in Revenues associated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income. 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $8.9 million, or 2%, 
compared to 2013. This variance was primarily the result of: 

• decreased expenses for the low-income payment program which is funded by the USF revenue rate 
rider; 

• decreased health insurance due to cost decreases as well as a reduction in the disability reserve as a 
result of the 2014 actuarial study; 

• lower pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a higher discount 
rate; and 

• decreased deferred compensation costs. 

These decreases were partially offset by: 

• increased maintenance expenses at our generating facilities; 

• increased expenses related to the maintenance of overhead transmission and distribution lines; and 

• Increased expenses relating to alternative energy and energy efficiency programs. 

$ in millions 2013 vs. 2012 

LowHnconie paymentjxogram ^̂^ (3.8) 

Health InsiJranee 3.0 

Total operation and maintenance expense $ (23.8) 

(a) There is a corresponding increase in Revenues associated with these programs resulting in no impact to Net income. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Operation and maintenance expense decreased $23.8 million, or 
6%, compared to 2012. This variance was primarily the result of: 

• decreased expenses for generating facilities largely due to outages related to maintenance activities in 
the first and second quarters of 2012 at jointly owned production units relative to the same periods in 
2013; 

• decreased expense associated with the USF revenue rate rider, which provides assistance for low-
income retail customers; and 

• lower pension expenses primarily related to changes in plan assumptions, specifically a higher discount 
rate. 
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These decreases were partially offset by: 

• increased health insurance due to cost increases as well as more employees going on long-term 
disability as compared to the same period in 2013. 

DP&L - Depreciation and Amortization 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Depreciation and amortization expense increased $4.6 million, or 
3%, compared to 2013. The increase primarily reflects additional investments in fixed assets. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $1.1 million, or 
1%, compared to 2012. The decrease primarily reflects the full-year effect of a reduction of approximately $1.8 
million related to a decrease in plant values as a result of impairment in the value of certain electric generating 
stations in the third quarter of 2012, partially offset by investments in plant and equipment. 

DP&L - General Taxes 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, General taxes increased $11.3 million, or 15%, compared to 2013. 
The Increase was primarily due to an adjustment to the 2013 estimated property tax liability to adjust estimates to 
actual payments that were made in 2014, higher property tax accruals for 2014 compared to 2013 and a 
favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax appeal in 2013. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, General taxes increased $2.0 million, or 3%, compared to 2012. 
This increase was primarily the result of higher property tax accruals in 2013 compared to 2012 partially offset by 
a favorable determination of $1.6 million from the Ohio gross receipts tax appeal in 2013. 

DP&L - Fixed-asset Impairment and gain on asset sale 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DP&L recorded a gain of $4.5 million on the sale of its interest in the 
East Bend generating station. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L had a fixed-asset impairment of $86.0 million related to the 
Conesville and East Bend generating stations. 

DP&L - Interest Expense 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, interest expense decreased $3.3 million or 9% compared to 2013 
due to a reduction in outstanding debt and lower interest rates on DP&L's senior secured bonds. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, interest expense decreased $1.9 million or 5% compared to 2012 
due to a reduction in outstanding debt and lower interest rates on DP&L's senior secured bonds. 

DP&L - Income Tax Expense 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Income tax expense Increased $21.1 million compared to 2013 
primarily due to increases in pre-tax income, a 2014 deferred tax adjustment related to the expiration of the 
statutes of limitation on the 2010 tax year and a decrease In the tax benefits of Internal Revenue Code Section 
199 in 2014. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Income tax expense decreased $36.5 million compared to 2012 
primarily due to decreases in pre-tax income, a 2013 deferred tax adjustment related to the expiration of the 
statutes of limitation on the 2007, 2008 and 2009 tax years and an increase in the tax benefits of Internal 
Revenue Code Section 199 in 2013 and a 2012 adjustment to state deferred taxes. 
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FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

DPL's financial condition, liquidity and capital requirements Include the consolidated results of its principal 
subsidiary DP&L. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 
The following table provides a summary of the cash flows for DPL and DP&L: 

DPL Years ended December 31, 
$ In millions 2014 2013 2012 

Net cash frorn investing activities (112.6) (123.9) (199.2) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 53 2 192 1 173 5 

l^^^^feii i&teife^^d:Qi^ricl i^ ,.." . fA. .SJ^-^^fe,$rJ''-^ 1̂ 532-..$ - 1921 

DP&L Years ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Net cash fronTin vesting agivities (108.5) _ _ . i l l j - ^ ) t197.5) 

The significant items that have impacted the cash flows for DPL and DP&L are discussed in greater detail below: 

DPL - Net Cash provided bv Operating Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of Net 
loss adjusted for the noncash impacts of depreciation and amortization, the impairment of goodwill and fixed-
assets, deferred income taxes, and a charge for the eariy redemption of debt. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of Net 
loss adjusted for the noncash impacts of depreciation and amortization, the impairment of goodwill and fixed-
assets and deferred income taxes. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, Net cash provided by operating activities was primarily a result of Net 
income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as well as a noncash charge for the impairment of 
goodwill. 

DP&L - Net Cash provided bv Operating Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014 the significant components of DP&L's Net cash provided by operating 
activities were primarily the result of Net income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013 the significant components of DP&L's Net cash provided by operating 
activities were primarily a result of Net income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as well as a 
noncash charge related to the impairment of certain generation facilities. 
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During the year ended December 31, 2012, the significant components of DP&L's Net cash provided by 
operating activities were primarily a result of Net income adjusted for noncash depreciation and amortization, as 
well as a noncash charge related to the impairment of certain generation facilities. 

DPL - Net Cash used for Investing Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DPL's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of property. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures. 

During the year ended December 31,2012, DPL's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures. 

DP&L - Net Cash used for Investing Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DP&L's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures, partially offset by proceeds from the sale of property. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures. In addition, DP&L received $14.2 million In insurance proceeds during the year, $6.6 
million of which were from DPL's MVIC subsidiary. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L's cash used for investing activities was primarily related to 
capital expenditures. 

DPL - Net Cash used for Financing Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DPL's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to the 
redemption of $335.0 million of debt and associated redemption premiums, partially offset by a $200.0 million 
issuance of new debt. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DPL's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to the 
payment at maturity of $470.0 million of DP&L's senior secured bonds, eariy redemption of $475.1 million of debt 
and debt issuance costs, partially offset by the issuance of $445.0 million of new senior secured bonds, the 
issuance of $200.0 million of new debt. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DPL's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to 
common stock and payments to former warrant holders. 

DP&L - Net Cash used for Financing Activities 
During the year ended December 31, 2014, DP&L's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to 
$159.0 million in dividends. 

During the year ended December 31, 2013, DP&L's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to 
$190.0 million in dividends and the Issuance of $445.0 million of senior secured bonds, the proceeds of which 
were used to redeem DP&L's senior secured bonds at maturity. 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, DP&L's Net cash used for financing activities primarily relates to 
$145.0 million in dividends. 

Liguiditv 
We expect our existing sources of liquidity to remain sufficient to meet our anticipated operating needs. Our 
business is capital intensive, requiring significant resources to fund operating expenses, construction 
expenditures, scheduled debt maturities and carrying costs, potential margin requirements related to energy 
hedges, taxes and dividend payments. For 2015 and subsequent years, we expect to satisfy these requirements 
with a combination of cash from operations and funds from debt financing as our Internal liquidity needs and 
market conditions warrant. We also expect that the borrowing capacity under bank credit facilities will continue to 
be available to manage working capital requirements during those periods. 
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At the filing date of this annual report on Form 10-K, DPL and DP&L have access to the following revolving credit 
facilities: 

Amounts 
available as of 
December 31, 

$ in millions Type Maturity Commitment 2014 

DPL's revolving credit facility was established in May 2013. This facility expires in May 2018; however, if DPL 
has not refinanced its senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then this credit facility 
shall expire in July 2016. This facility has nine participating banks with no bank having more than 20% of the 
total commitment. DPL's revolving credit facility has a $100.0 million letter of credit sublimit and a feature which 
provides DPL the ability to increase the size of the facility by an additional $50.0 million. As of December 31, 
2014, there was one letter of credit issued in the amount of $2.3 million with the remaining $97.7 million available 
to DPL. 

DP&L's revolving credit facility, established In May 2013, expires in May 2018 and has nine participating banks, 
with no bank having more than 22.5% of the total commitment. This revolving credit facility has a $100.0 million 
letter of credit sublimit and DP&L also has the option to increase the potential borrowing amount under this 
facility by $100.0 million. At December 31, 2014, there were two letters of credit in the aggregate amount of $0.7 
million outstanding, with the remaining $299.3 million available to DP&L. 

Cash and cash equivalents for DPL and DP&L amounted to $17.0 million and $5.4 million, respectively, at 
December 31, 2014. At that date, neither DPL nor DP&L had short-term Investments. 

Capital Reguirements 

Construction Additions 

Actual Projected 
$ in millions 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

^i^^^^^^te^i^^»^iaMB^^i^^Wi^^Sii t^ i i^^^g^^fei i i j iMa^^i^ 

Planned construction additions for 2015 relate primarily to new investments in and upgrades to DP&L's electric 
generating station equipment and transmission and distribution system. Capital projects are subject to continuing 
review and are revised in light of changes in financial and economic conditions, load forecasts, legislative and 
regulatory developments and changing environmental standards, among other factors. As discussed previously, 
DP&L must separate its generation assets by January 1, 2017. Accordingly, estimated capital expenditures 
related to the generation assets of $44.0 million are not included in DP&L's estimated spending for 2017 in the 
table above. Those estimated costs are Included in the DPL amounts. 

DPL, primarily through Its subsidiary DP&L, is projecting to spend an estimated $440.0 million in capital projects 
for the period 2015 through 2017. DP&L is subject to the mandatory reliability standards of NERC and Reliability 
First Corporation (RFC), one of the eight NERC regions, of which DP&L is a member. NERC has recently 
changed the definition of the Bulk Electric System (BES) to include 100 kV and above facilities, thus expanding 
the facilities to which the reliability standards apply. DP&L's 138 kV facilities were previously not subject to these 
reliability standards. Accordingly, DP&L anticipates spending approximately $60.0 million within the next five 
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years to reinforce its 138 kV system to comply with these new NERC standards. Our ability to complete capital 
projects and the reliability of future sen/ice will be affected by our financial condition, the availability of internal 
funds and the reasonable cost of external funds. We expect to finance our construction additions with a 
combination of cash on hand, short-term financing, long-term debt and cash flows from operations. 

Debt Covenants 
The DPL revolving credit facility and the DPL term loan agreement that were put in place in May 2013 have two 
financial covenants. The first is a Total Debt to EBITDA ratio that will be calculated, at the end of each fiscal 
quarter, by dividing total debt at the end of the current quarter by consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal 
quarters. The ratio is not to exceed 8.50 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarters ending June 30, 2013 through December 
31, 2014; it then steps down to not exceed 8.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarters ending March 31, 2015 through 
December 31, 2016; and it then steps down not to exceed 7.50 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending March 31, 
2017 through March 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2014, the tinancial covenant was met with a ratio of 5.77 to 
1.00. 

The second financial covenant is an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio. The ratio is calculated, at the end of each 
fiscal quarter, by dividing consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest 
charges for the same period. The ratio is not to be less than 2.00 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 
2013 through December 31, 2014; it then steps up to not to be less than 2.10 to 1.00 for the fiscal quarter ending 
March 31, 2015 through December 31, 2016; and It then steps up to not to be less than 2.25 to 1.00 for the fiscal 
quarter ending March 31, 2017 through March 31, 2018. As of December 31, 2014, the financial covenant was 
met with a ratio of 3.08 to 1.00. 

Both DPL's unsecured revolving credit agreement and unsecured term loan restrict dividend payments from DPL 
to AES and adjust the cost of borrowing under the facilities under certain rating scenarios. 

DP&L's revolving credit facility that was put in place in May 2013 has two financial covenants. The first requires 
the Total Debt to Total Capitalization ratio to not exceed 0.65 to 1.00. As of December 31, 2014, this covenant 
was met with a ratio of 0.45 to 1.00. The above ratio is calculated as the sum of DP&L's current and long-term 
portion of debt, including its guarantee obligations, divided bythe total of DP&L's shareholder's equity and total 
debt including guarantee obligations. The second covenant, the EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio, is calculated 
at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the 
consolidated interest charges for the same period. DP&L's EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio cannot be less than 
2.50 to 1.00. As of December 31, 2014, this covenant was met with a ratio of 10.12 to 1.00. 

Debt Ratings 
During 2014, Moody's downgraded DPL and DP&L's credit and debt ratings. Standard & Poor's and Fitch's 
ratings did not change. 

The following table outlines the debt ratings and outlook for DPL and DP&L, along with the effective dates of 
each rating. 

DPL DP&L Outlook Effective 

St&biefc^ '^ t ..^September 
^ ' ^- 2014:? 

• ^ ^ ^ 'Vfc 

. . a ^ =s, ̂ ^ ^ -fv i - ^ ^ 

Moody's Investors Service Inc Ba3 Baa2 Stable September 
2014 
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Credit Ratings 
The following table outlines the credit ratings (Issuer/corporate rating) and outlook for each company, along with 
the effective dates of each rating and outlook for DPL and DP&L. 

DPL DP&L Outlook Effective 

September 
2014 

5t£fnda3ti|&aEc^S£FinanciakSen/ices=kLC<^4!-^ r„ $ B B ^ : S ^ C V - ^ ' ^ B B H ^ ^ ^ < 
• f t stable April 2014 

On September 19, 2014, Moody's downgraded DPL's senior unsecured debt rating from Ba2 Stable to Ba3 
Stable, and DP&L's senior unsecured credit rating from Baa2 Stable to Baa3 Stable. Moody's also downgraded 
DP&L's senior secured debt rating from Baal Stable to Baa2 Stable. 

If the rating agencies were to reduce our debt or credit ratings further, our borrowing costs may increase, our 
potential pool of Investors and funding resources may be reduced, and we may be required to post additional 
collateral under selected contracts. These events may have an adverse effect on our results of operations, 
financial condition and cash flows. In addition, any such reduction in our debt or credit ratings may adversely 
affect the trading price of our outstanding debt securities. Non-investment grade companies, such as DPL, may 
experience higher costs to issue new securities. DP&L is still considered investment grade by one of the three 
rating agencies above. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 

DPL - Guarantees 
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DPLE 
and DPLER, and Its wholly-owned subsidiary MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third 
parties. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness otherwise 
attributed to these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to 
accomplish these subsidiaries' intended commercial purposes. During the year ended December 31, 2014, DPL 
did not incur any losses related to the guarantees of these obligations and we believe it Is unlikely that DPL 
would be required to perform or incur any losses in the future associated with any of the above guarantees. 

At December 31, 2014, DPL had $20.5 million of guarantees to third parties for future financial or performance 
assurance under such agreements, on behalf of DPLER, DPLE and MC Squared. The guarantee arrangements 
entered into by DPL with these third parties cover present and future obligations of DPLER, DPLE and MC 
Squared to such beneficiaries and are terminable at any time by DPL upon written notice to the beneficiaries. 
The carrying amount of obligations for commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and recorded in our 
Consolidated Balance Sheets was $1.6 million at December 31, 2014 and $0.2 million at December 31, 2013. 

DP&L owns a 4.9% equity ownership Interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost 
method of accounting under GAAP. At December 31, 2014, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of 
4.9%, or $74.4 million, of a $1,517.9 million debt obligation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities 
with maturities between 2015 and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on 
its debt payments. As of December 31, 2014, we have no knowledge of such a default. 
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Commercial Commitments and Contractual Obligations 
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of 
our operations. At December 31, 2014, these include; 

Payments due in: 
Less than 2 - 3 4 - 5 More than 

$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years 
DPL: 

Interest payments 847.7 107.8 196.0 175.0 368.9 

operating [eases 0.6 0.4 0.2 - „ _ ^ 
B^M^^- , r'-' - ' '̂486.2^--^ ^2^1i^Mi^^iSa^M:69^fe^ 
Limestone contracts'^^ 18.3 6.1 1̂ 2.2 -
i^<?tel^^^E,andibther contractual -̂  .. ^ ..̂  .^ '̂-̂  '^' ~ 
i b M » ¥ ^ - " 72-4- -^^''-39-'2^..>- ^17^3.. 159 -_ 

Total contractual obligations $ 3,868.6 $ 455.8 $ 1,096.4 $ 576.6 $ 1,739.8 

Payments due in: 
Less than 2 - 3 4 - 5 More than 

$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years 
DP&L: 

Interest payments 336.5 24.2 ^ ^ 40.0 31.7 240.6 

06 04 0 2 ^_ ^____ _ 
H^'%-^-:'• '.. '^ ,486J2^-#^,1^--^556_^-^. >/1gr2^,^s-^ 69 4 

Limestone contracts '̂ ^ 18 3 61 12 2 

(?>u^aseM^^ iandM^ ""̂  % ' ^^^^ - '"*-">:rr-'*^* ^_*r Jf" S"^ i 
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Total contractual obligations $ 2,071.8 $ 352.2 $ 730.4 $ 173.3 $ 815.9 

(a) Total at DP&L operated units. 

Long-term debt: 
DPL's Long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 consists of DPL's unsecured notes and unsecured term loan, 
along with DP&L's first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds and the Wright-Patterson Air Force 
Base (WPAFB) note. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude unamortized debt 
discounts, premiums and fair value adjustments. 
DP&L's Long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 consists of its first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt pollution 
control bonds and the WPAFB note. These long-term debt amounts include current maturities but exclude 
unamortized debt discounts. 

See Note 6 of the Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 5 of the Notes to DP&L's 
Financial Statements. 

Interest pavments: 
Interest payments are associated with the long-term debt described above. The interest payments relating to 
variable-rate debt are projected using the interest rate prevailing at December 31, 2014. 
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Pension and postretirement pavments: 
As of December 31, 2014, DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, had estimated future benefit payments as 
outlined in Note 8 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 7 of Notes to DP&L's Financial 
Statements. These estimated future benefit payments are projected through 2024. 

Coal contracts: 
DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal 
requirements forthe generating stations it operates. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustment and 
have features that limit price escalation in any given year. 

Limestone contracts: 
DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone 
used in the operation of FGD equipment at its generating facilities. 

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations: 
As of December 31, 2014, DPL and DP&L had various other contractual obligations including non-cancelable 
contracts to purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates. 

Reserve for uncertain tax positions: 
Due to the uncertainty regarding the timing of future cash outflows associated with our unrecognized tax benefits 
of $3.0 million at December 31, 2014, we are unable to make a reliable estimate of the periods of cash settlement 
with the respective tax authorities and have not included such amounts in the contractual obligations table above. 

MARKET RISK 

We are subject to certain market risks Including, but not limited to, changes in commodity prices for electricity, 
coal, environmental emission allowances, and changes in capacity prices and fluctuations in interest rates. We 
use various market risk-sensitive instruments, including derivative contracts, primarily to limit our exposure to 
fluctuations in commodity pricing. Our Commodity Risk Management Committee (CRMC), comprised of 
members of senior management, is responsible for establishing risk management policies and the monitoring and 
reporting of risk exposures related to our DP&L operated generation units. The CRMC meets on a regular basis 
with the objective of identifying, assessing and quantifying material risk issues and developing strategies to 
manage these risks. 

Commoditv Pricing Risk 
Commodity pricing risk exposure includes the impacts of weather, market demand, increased competition and 
other economic conditions. To manage the volatility relating to these exposures at our DP&L operated 
generation stations, we use a variety of non-derivative and derivative instruments including forward contracts and 
futures contracts. These instruments are used principally for economic hedging purposes and none are held for 
trading purposes. Derivatives that fall within the scope of derivative accounting under GAAP must be recorded at 
their fair value and marked to market. MTM gains and losses on derivative instruments that qualify for cash flow 
hedge accounting are deferred In AOCI until the forecasted transactions occur. We adjust the derivative 
instruments that do not qualify for cash flow hedging to fair value on a monthly basis and where applicable, we 
recognize a corresponding regulatory asset for above-market costs or a regulatory liability for below-market costs 
in accordance with regulatory accounting under G/VAP. 

The coal market has increasingly been influenced by both international and domestic supply and consumption, 
making the price of coal more volatile than in the past, and while we have substantially all of the total expected 
coal volume needed to meet our retail and wholesale sales requirements for 2015 under contract, sales 
requirements may change, particuiariy for retail load. The majority of the contracted coal is purchased at fixed 
prices. Some contracts provide for periodic adjustments and some are priced based on market indices. Fuel 
costs are affected by changes in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, the 
wholesale market price of power, certain provisions in coal contracts related to government imposed costs, 
counterparty performance and credit, scheduled outages and electric generation station mix. To the extent we 
are not able to hedge against price volatility or recover increases through our fuel and purchased power recovery 
rider that began in January 2010, our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows could be materially 
affected. 

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank Act), signed into law 
in July 2010, contains significant requirements relating to derivatives, including, among others, a requirement that 
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certain transactions be cleared on exchanges that would necessitate the posting of cash collateral for these 
transactions. We are considered an end-user under the Dodd-Frank Act and therefore are exempt from most of 
the collateral and margining requirements. We are required to report our bilateral derivative contracts, unless our 
counterparty is a major swap participant or has elected to report on our behalf. Even though we qualify for an 
exception from these requirements, our counterparties that do not qualify for the exception may pass along any 
increased costs incurred by them through higher prices and reductions in unsecured credit limits or be unable to 
enter into certain transactions with us. 

For purposes of potential risk analysis, we use a sensitivity analysis to quantify potential impacts of market rate 
changes on the statements of results of operations. The sensitivity analysis represents hypothetical changes in 
market values that may or may not occur in the future. 

Commoditv derivatives 
To minimize the risk of fluctuations in the market price of commodities, such as coal, power, and heating oil, we 
may enter into commodity forward and futures contracts to effectively hedge the cost/revenues of the commodity. 
Maturity dates of the contracts are scheduled to coincide with market purchases/sales of the commodity. Cash 
proceeds or payments between us and the counterparty at maturity of the contracts are recognized as an 
adjustment to the cost of the commodity purchased or sold. We generally do not enter into forward contracts 
beyond thirty-six months. As of December 31, 2014, there are no coal derivatives. 

A 10% increase or decrease in the market price of our heating oil forwards at December 31, 2014 would not have 
a significant effect on Net income. 

The following table provides infomiation regarding the volume and average market price of our power fonAfard 
derivative contracts at December 31, 2014 and the effect to Net income if the market price were to Increase or 
decrease by 10%: 

Weighted 
Contract Average Increase / 
Volume Market decrease in 

(in millions Price Net income 
Power Forwardj of MWh) per MWh (in millions) 

2016-NetptJt^ase/(Sale) position _ ("'•^L.^ - . ^ 9 - 3 1 , ^ (3-1) 

Wholesale revenues 
Energy in excess of the needs of existing retail customers is sold in the wholesale market when we can identify 
opportunities with positive margins (DP&L's electric revenues in the wholesale market include sales to DPLER). 

Approximately 17% of DPL's and 45% of DP&L's electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2014 were 
from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market. 

Approximately 16% of DPL's and 45% of DP&L's electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2013 were 
from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market. 

Approximately 11% of DPL's and 36% of DP&L's electric revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012 were 
from sales of excess energy and capacity in the wholesale market. 
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The table below provides the effect on annual Net income (net of an estimated income tax at 35%) as of 
December 31, 2014 of a hypothetical increase or decrease of 10% in the price per megawatt hour of wholesale 
power (DP&L's electric revenues in the wholesale market are reduced for sales to DPLER), including the impact 
of a corresponding 10% change In the portion of purchased power used as part of the sale (note the share of the 
internal generation used to meet the DPLER wholesale sale would not be affected by the 10% change in 
wholesale prices): 

$ in millions DPL ^ DP&L 

jffiiMi^PliliiiWiilMfe,-V" , . . : ' • " %^3 .̂...̂  -:,.Moî $,. .. - .",79 
RPM Capacity revenues and costs 
As a member of PJM, DP&L receives revenues from the RTO related to its transmission and generation assets 
and incurs costs associated with its load obligations for retail customers. PJM, which has a delivery year that 
runs from June 1 to May 31, has conducted auctions for capacity through the 2017/18 delivery year. The clearing 
prices for capacity during the PJM delivery periods from 2013/14 through 2017/18 are as follows: 

($/MW-ciay) PJM Delivery Year 
^ 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 

Our computed average capacity prices by calendar year are reflected In the table below: 

Calendar Year 
($/MW-day) 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Future RPM auction results are dependent on a number of factors, which include the overall supply and demand 
of generation and load, other state legislation or regulation, transmission congestion, and PJM's RPM business 
rules. The volatility in the RPM capacity auction pricing has had and will continue to have a significant Impact on 
DPL's capacity revenues and costs. Although DP&L currently has an approved RPM rider in place to recover or 
repay any excess capacity costs or revenues, the RPM rider only applies to customers supplied under our SSO. 
Customer switching reduces the number of customers supplied under our SSO, causing more of the RPM 
capacity costs and revenues to be excluded from the RPM rider calculation. 

The table below provides estimates of the effect on annual Net income (net of an estimated income tax of 35%) 
as of December 31,2014 of a hypothetical increase or decrease of $10/MW-day In the RPM auction price. The 
table shows the impact resulting from capacity revenue changes. We did not include the impact of a change in 
the RPM capacity costs since these costs will either be recovered through the RPM rider for SSO retail 
customers or recovered through the development of our overall energy pricing for customers who do not fall 
under the SSO. These estimates include the impact of the RPM rider and are based on the levels of customer 
switching experienced through December 31, 2014. Asof December 31, 2014, approximately 29% of DP&L's 
RPM capacity revenues and costs were recoverable from SSO retail customers through the RPM rider. 

$ in ' ' ^ i l l i o ^ s ^ ^ ^ ^ DPL DP&L 

Capacity revenues and costs are also impacted by, among other factors, the levels of customer switching, our 
generation capacity, the levels of wholesale revenues and our retail customer load. In determining the capacity 
price sensitivity above, we did not consider the impact that may arise from the variability of these other factors. 

There are proposals from PJM pending before the FERC that would modify capacity markets including near-term 
modifications with respect to RPM and longer-term modifications that would phase-out RPM and replace it with a 
Capacity Performance ("CP") program. The final form of CP program has not been established and the effects 
on DP&L cannot be predicted. In concept, however, the CP program is intended to result in higher capacity 
prices paid to generators, paired with larger penalties for a generator's failure to perform during periods where 
electricity is in high demand. Future RPM or CP auction results will be dependent not only on the overall supply 
and demand of generation and load, but may also be affected by congestion as well as PJM's business rules 
relating to bidding for demand response and energy efficiency resources in the capacity auctions. 
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Fuel and purchased power costs 
DPL's and DP&L's fuel (including coal, gas, oil and emission allowances) and purchased power costs as a 
percentage of total operating costs in the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were 42%, 45% and 
39%, respectively. We have a significant portion of projected 2015 fuel needs under contract. The majority of 
our contracted coal is purchased at fixed prices although some contracts provide for periodic pricing adjustments. 
We may purchase SO2 allowances for 2015; however, the exact consumption of SO2 allowances will depend on 
market prices for power, availability of our generation units and the actual sulfur content of the coal burned. We 
may purchase some NOx allowances for 2015 depending on NOx emissions. Fuel costs are affected by changes 
in volume and price and are driven by a number of variables including weather, reliability of coal deliveries, 
scheduled outages and electric generation station mix. 

Purchased power costs depend, in part, upon the timing and extent of planned and unplanned outages of our 
generating capacity as well as requirement to supply an increasing percentage of SSO load through the 
competitive bid auction. We will purchase power on a discretionary basis when wholesale market conditions 
provide opportunities to obtain power at a cost below our internal generation costs. 

Beginning January 1, 2010, DP&L was allowed to recover Its fuel and purchased power costs associated with 
supplying SSO load as part of the fuel rider approved by the PUCO. Since there has been an increase in 
customer switching, SSO customers currently represent approximately 29% of DP&L's total fuel costs. 
Beginning January 1, 2016, the fuel rider will no longer exist since SSO will at that time be supplied by 100% 
competitive bid. 

The table below provides the effect on annual Net income (net of an estimated income tax at 35%) as of 
December 31, 2014, of a hypothetical increase or decrease of 10% In the prices of fuel and purchased power, 
adjusted for the approximate 29% recovery: 

$ in millions DPL DP&L 

Interest Rate Risk 
As a result of our normal Investing and borrowing activities, our financial results are exposed to fluctuations in 
interest rates, which we manage through our regular financing activities. We maintain both cash on deposit and 
investments in cash equivalents that may be affected by adverse interest rate fluctuations. DPL and DP&L have 
both fixed-rate and variable rate long-term debt. DPL's variable-rate debt consists of a $160 million unsecured 
term loan with a syndicated bank group. The term loan interest rate fluctuates with changes in an underlying 
interest rate index, typically LIBOR. DP&L's variable-rate debt is comprised of $100.0 million of publicly held 
pollution control bonds. The variable-rate bonds bear interest based on a prevailing rate that is reset weekly 
based on a comparable market Index. Market indexes can be affected by market demand, supply, market 
Interest rates and other economic conditions. See Note 6 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements 
and Note 5 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements. 

We partially hedged against interest rate fluctuations by entering into interest rate swap agreements to limit the 
interest rate exposure on the underiying financing. These interest rate swap agreements had mandatory 
settlement dates of September 30, 2013 and were being used to limit our exposure to changes in interest rates 
and the effect this could have on our future borrowing costs. On September 16, 2013 and immediately after the 
sale of DP&L's new $445 million of First Mortgage Bonds, DP&L settled all of the above mentioned swap 
agreements at a total net settiement of $0. As of December 31, 2014, we do not have any interest rate hedging 
agreements still in place. 

The carrying value of DPL's debt was $2,159.7 million at December 31, 2014, consisting of DPL's unsecured 
notes, unsecured term loan, Capital Trust II securities along with DP&L's first mortgage bonds, tax-exempt 
pollution control bonds and the WPAFB note. All of DPL's debt was adjusted to fair value at the Merger date 
according to FASC 805. The fair value of this debt at December 31, 2014 was $2,204.8 million, based on current 
market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar issues with similar terms and remaining 
maturities. The following table provides information about DPL's debt obligations that are sensitive to Interest 
rate changes: 
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Principal Pavments and Interest Rate Detail bv Contractual Maturity Date 

Principal Fair value 
amount at at 
December December 

DPL 
$ in millions 
Long-term debt 

2015 
Years ending December 31, 
2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter 

31, 
2014 

31, 
2014 

a a l M ^ I ^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ € S B M $ # s ^ i M g M ^ ^ ^ W C i 3 ^ ' ^ 

Thecarrying value of DP&L's debt was $877.1 million at December 31, 2014, consisting of its first mortgage 
bonds, tax-exempt pollution control bonds and the WPAFB note. The fair value of this debt at December 31, 
2014 was $882.5 million, based on current market prices or discounted cash flows using current rates for similar 
issues with similar terms and remaining maturities. The following table provides information about DP&L's debt 
obligations that are sensitive to interest rate changes. The DP&L debt was not revalued using push-down 
accounting as a result of the Merger. 

Principal Pavments and Interest Rate Detail bv Contractual Maturity Date 

DP&L 
$ in millions 

Years ending December 31, 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Principal Fair value 
amount at at 
December December 

31, 31, 
Thereafter 2014 2014 

Long-term debt 

^^^^^«^^B^^^^ iii^^B»^i33^^i^M§yii^8ig 

^^^^i^i^^i^^^^lM^^-a 

Long-term Debt Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis 
Our estimate of market risk exposure is presented for our fixed-rate and variable-rate debt at December 31, 2014 
and 2013 for which an Immediate adverse market movement causes a potential material effect on our financial 
condition, results of operations, or the fair value of the debt. We believe that the adverse market movement 
represents the hypothetical loss to future earnings and does not represent the maximum possible loss nor any 
expected actual loss, even under adverse conditions, because actual adverse fluctuations would likely differ. As 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, we did not hold any market risk sensitive instruments which were entered into 
for trading purposes. 
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Carrying value and fair value of debt with one percent interest rate risk 

DPL 

$ in millions 

Carrying 
value at 

December 
31,2014 

(a) 

Fair value 
at 

December 
31,2014 

One 
Percent 
Interest 

Rate 
Risk 

Carrying 
value at 

December 
31,2013 

(a) 

Fair value 
at 

December 
31,2013 

One 
Percent 
Interest 

Rate 
Risk 

Long-term debt 

(a) Carrying value includes unamortized debt discounts and premiums. 

DP&L 

$ in millions 

Carrying 
value at 

December 
31,2014 

(a) 

Fair value 
at 

December 
31,2014 

One 
Percent 
Interest 

Rate 
Risk 

Carrying 
value at 

December 
31,2013 

(a) 

Fair value 
at 

December 
31,2013 

One 
Percent 
Interest 

Rate 
Risk 

Long-term debt 

(a) Carrying value includes unamortized debt discounts and premiums. 

DPL's debt is comprised of both fixed-rate debt and variable-rate debt. In regard to fixed rate debt, the interest 
rate risk with respect to DPL's long-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a decrease of one 
percentage point in interest rates has on the fair value of DPL's $1,944.8 million of fixed-rate debt and not on 
DPL's financial condition or results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the interest rate risk with respect to 
DPL's long-term debt represents the potential impact an increase of one percentage point in the interest rate has 
on DPL's results of operations related to the fair value of DPL's $260.0 million variable-rate long-term debt 
outstanding as of December 31, 2014. 

DP&L's interest rate risk with respect to DP&L's long-term debt primarily relates to the potential impact a 
decrease In interest rates of one percentage point has on the fair value of DP&L's $782.5 million of fixed-rate 
debt and not on DP&L's financial condition or DP&L's results of operations. On the variable-rate debt, the 
interest rate risk with respect to DP&L's long-term debt represents the potential impact an Increase of one 
percentage point in the interest rate has on DP&L's results of operations related to the fair value of DP&L's 
$100.0 million variable-rate long-term debt outstanding as of December 31, 2014. 

Eouitv Price Risk 
As of December 31, 2014, approximately 18% of the defined benefit pension plan assets were comprised of 
investments in equity securities and 82% related to investments in fixed income securities, cash and cash 
equivalents, and alternative investments. The equity securities are carried at their market value of approximately 
$65.4 million at December 31, 2014. A hypothetical 10% decrease In prices quoted by stock exchanges would 
result in a $6.5 million reduction In fair value as of December 31, 2014 and approximately a $0.3 million increase 
to the 2015 pension expense. 
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Credit Risk 
Credit risk is the risk of an obligor's failure to meet the terms of any investment contract, loan agreement or 
otherwise perform as agreed. Credit risk arises from all activities in which success depends on issuer, borrower 
or counterparty performance, whether reflected on or off the balance sheet. We limit our credit risk by assessing 
the creditworthiness of potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continue to 
evaluate their creditworthiness after transactions have been originated. We use the three leading corporate 
credit rating agencies and other current market-based qualitative and quantitative data to assess the financial 
strength of counterparties on an ongoing basis. We may require various forms of credit assurance from 
counterparties in order to mitigate credit risk. 

Goodwill impairments 
During the first quarter of 2014, we performed an interim impairment test on the $135.8 million in goodwill at our 
DPLER reporting unit. The DPLER reporting unit was identified as being "at risk" during the fourth quarter of 
2013. The impairment indicators arose based on market information available regarding actual and proposed 
sales of competitive retail marketers, which indicated a significant decline in valuations during the first quarter of 
2014. 

In Step 1 of the interim impairment test, the fair value of the reporting unit was determined to be less than its 
carrying amount under both the market approach and the income approach using a discounted cash flow 
valuation model. The significant assumptions included commodity price curves, estimated electricity to be 
demanded by its customers, changes In its customer base through attrition and expansion, discount rates, the 
assumed tax structure and the level of working capital required to run the business. 

During the second quarter of 2014, we finalized the work to determine the implied fair value for the DPLER 
reporting unit. There were no further adjustments to the full impairment of $135.8 million recognized In the first 
quarter. 

In the fourth quarter of 2013, DPL completed its annual October 1 goodwill impairment tests and recognized 
goodwill Impairment expense of $306.3 million. The Company identified both the DP&L and DPLER reporting 
units as "at risk." A reporting unit is considered "at risk" when Its fair value is not higher than its carrying amount 
by more than 10%. The Company monitors its reporting units at risk of step 1 failure on an ongoing basis. Since 
2012, the DP&L reporting unit had been considered at risk subsequent to its goodwill impairments of $1,817.2 
million recognized In 2012 and $306.3 million recognized in 2013. At December 31, 2014, goodwill at the DP&L 
reporting Is not considered at risk. It Is possible that we may incur goodwill impairment at the DP&L reporting 
unit in future periods if adverse changes In its business or operating environment occur. As of December 31, 
2014, the DP&L reporting unit had goodwill of $317.0 million and the DPLER reporting unit had no goodwill. 

See Note 5 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on the impairment of 
Goodwill. 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L's Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with 
GAAP. In connection with the preparation of these financial statements, our management is required to make 
assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses 
and the related disclosure of contingent liabilities. These assumptions, estimates and judgments are based on 
our historical experience and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable at the time. However, because 
future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, the determination of estimates requires the 
exercise of judgment. Our critical accounting estimates are those which require assumptions to be made about 
matters that are highly uncertain. 

Different estimates could have a material effect on our financial results. Judgments and uncertainties affecting 
the application of these policies and estimates may result in materially different amounts being reported under 
different conditions or circumstances. Historically, however, recorded estimates have not differed materially from 
actual results. Significant items subject to such judgments include: the carrying value of property, plant and 
equipment; the valuation of goodwill; unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of 
insurance and claims liabilities; the valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory 
assets and liabilities; reserves recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of 
AROs; and assets and liabilities related to employee benefits. 
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Impairments 
In accordance with the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for goodwill, goodwill is not amortized, but 
is evaluated for impairment at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In 
evaluating the potential impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating 
cash flows, capital expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts, 
macroeconomic projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent 
uncertainties related to these factors and management's judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair 
value of a reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to 
evaluate the potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience 
situations, including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions; operating or regulatory 
environment; increased competitive environment; increase in fuel costs particularly when we are unable to pass 
its effect to customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particuiariy when we 
are unable to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These 
types of events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially 
affect our results of operations for those periods. See Note 5 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial 
Statements discussing the impairment of goodwill at DPL in 2014,2013 and 2012. 

In accordance with the provisions of G/\AP relating to the accounting for impairments, long-lived assets to be 
held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. When required, impairment losses on assets to be held and used are recognized based 
on the fair value of the asset. We determine the fair value of these assets based upon estimates of future cash 
flows, market value of similar assets, if available, or independent appraisals, if required. In analyzing the fair 
value and recoverabilify using future cash flows, we make projections based on a number of assumptions and 
estimates of growth rates, future economic conditions, assignment of discount rates and estimates of terminal 
values. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the long-lived asset Is not recoverable from its 
undiscounted cash flows. The measurement of impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount 
and fair value of the asset. See Note 15 of Notes to Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 
13 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements discussing the impairment of long-lived assets in 2014 and 2013. 

Revenue Recognition (including Unbilled Revenue) 
We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the 
products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price Is fixed or determinable, and collection 
is reasonably assured. The determination of the energy sales to customers Is based on the reading of their 
meters, which occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize revenues using an accrual 
method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed, but where electricity has been consumed. 
This Is termed "unbilled revenues" and is a widely recognized and accepted practice for utilities. At the end of 
each month, unbilled revenues are determined bythe estimation of unbilled energy provided to customers since 
the date of the last meter reading, projected line losses, the assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer 
classes and the average rate per customer class. Given our estimation method and the fact that customers are 
billed monthly, we believe It is unlikely that materially different results will occur in future periods when these 
amounts are subsequently billed. 

Income Taxes 
Judgment and the use of estimates are required in developing the provision for income taxes and reporting of 
tax-related assets and liabilities. The interpretation of tax laws involves uncertainty, since taxing authorities may 
interpret them differently. Ultimate resolution of income tax matters may result in favorable or unfavorable 
impacts to Net income and cash flows and adjustments to tax-related assets and liabilities could be material. We 
have adopted the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. Taking into 
consideration the uncertainty and judgment Involved in the determination and filing of income taxes, these G/VAP 
provisions establish standards for recognition and measurement in financial statements of positions taken, or 
expected to be taken, by an entity on Its income tax returns. Positions taken by an entity on its income tax 
returns that are recognized in the financial statements must satisfy a more-likejy-than-not recognition threshold, 
assuming that the position will be examined by taxing authorities with full knowledge of all relevant information. 

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities represent future effects on income taxes for temporary differences 
between the bases of assets and liabilities for financial reporting and tax purposes. We evaluate quarteriy the 
probability of realizing deferred tax assets by reviewing a forecast of future taxable income and the availability of 
tax planning strategies that can be implemented, if necessary, to realize deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve 
forecasted taxable income or successfully implement tax planning strategies may affect the realization of 
deferred tax assets. 
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
Application of the provisions of GAAP relating to regulatory accounting requires us to reflect the effect of rate 
regulation in DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and DP&L's Financial Statements. For regulated 
businesses subject to federal or state cost-of-service rate regulation, regulatory practices that assign costs to 
accounting periods may differ from accounting methods generally applied by nonregulated companies. When it 
is probable that regulators will permit the recovery of current costs through future rates charged to customers, we 
defer these costs as Regulatory assets that otherwise would be expensed by nonregulated companies. Likewise, 
we recognize Regulatory liabilities when it Is probable that regulators will require customer refunds through future 
rates and when revenue is collected from customers for expenses that are not yet incurred. Regulatory assets 
are amortized into expense and Regulatory liabilities are amortized Into income over the recovery period 
authorized by the regulator. 

We evaluate our Regulatory assets to determine whether or not they are probable of recovery through future 
rates and make various assumptions in our analyses. The expectations of future recovery are generally based 
on orders issued by regulatory commissions or historical experience, as well as discussions with applicable 
regulatory authorities. If recovery of a regulatory asset is determined to be less than probable, it will be written off 
in the period the assessment is made. We currently believe the recovery of our Regulatory assets is probable. 
See Note 3 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 3 of Notes to DP&L's Financial 
Statements. 

AROs 
In accordance with the provisions of GAAP relating fo the accounting for AROs, legal obligations associated with 
the retirement of long-lived assets are required to be recognized at their fair value at the time those obligations 
are incurred. Upon initial recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived 
asset and allocated to expense over the useful life of the asset. These GAAP provisions also require that 
components of previously recorded depreciation related to the cost of removal of assets upon future retirement, 
Whether legal AROs or not, must be removed from a company's accumulated depreciation reserve and be 
reclassified as a regulatory liability. We make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities and expenses as they relate to AROs. These assumptions and estimates are based 
on historical experience and assumptions that we believe to be reasonable at the time. 

Insurance and Claims Costs 
In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL, 
provides insurance coverage solely to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned 
facilities we operate, for workers' compensation, general liability, and property damage on an ongoing 
basis. MVIC maintains an active run-off policy for directors' and officers' liability and fiduciary through their 
expiration in 2017 and may or may not be renewed at that time. Insurance and Claims Costs on DPL's 
Consolidated Balance Sheets include estimated liabilities for insurance and claims costs of approximately $6.4 
million and $6.7 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Furthermore, DP&L is responsible for 
claim costs below certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance coverage noted above. In addition, 
DP&L has estimated liabilities for medical, life and disability claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of 
third-party providers. DPL and DP&L had recorded these additional insurance and claims liabilities of 
approximately $15.6 million and $18.8 million for 2014 and 2013, respectively, within Other current liabilities and 
Other deferred credits on the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for MVIC at DPL and the estimated 
liabilities for workers' compensation, medical, life and disability claims at DP&L are actuarially determined using 
certain assumptions. There is uncertainty associated with the loss estimates and actual results may differ from 
the estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on experience and changed circumstances is reflected 
in the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated. 

Pension and Postretirement Benefits 
We account for and disclose pension and postemployment benefits In accordance with the provisions of GAAP 
relating to the accounting for pension and other postemployment plans. These GAAP provisions require the use 
of assumptions, such as the discount rate for liabilities and long-term rate of return on assets, in determining the 
obligations, annual cost, and funding requirements of the plans. 

For 2015, we are decreasing our long-term rate of asset return assumption to 6.50% from 6.75% for pension plan 
assets. In addition, we are decreasing our long-term rate of asset return assumption to 4.50% from 6.00% for 
other postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return represent our long-term assumptions based on 
our current portfolio mixes and will impact the expense determination starting in 2015. Also, for 2015, we have 
decreased our assumed discount rate to 4.02% from 4.86% for pension and to 3.71% from 4.58% for 
postemployment benefits expense to reflect current duration-based yield cun/e discount rates. 
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A one percent change in the rate of return assumption for pension would result in an increase or decrease to the 
2015 pension expense of approximately $3.5 million. A 25 basis point increase in the discount rate for pension 
would result in a decrease of approximately $0.5 million to 2015 pension expense. A 25 basis point decrease in 
the discount rate for pension would result in an increase of approximately $0.8 million to 2015 pension expense. 

In future periods, differences in the actual return on pension and other post-employment benefit plan assets and 
assumed return, or changes in the discount rate, will affect the timing of contributions, if any to the plans. We 
provide postemployment health care benefits to employees who retired prior to 1987. A one percentage point 
change in the assumed health care cost trend rate would affect postemployment benefit costs by less than $1.0 
million. 

Contingent and Other Obligations 
During the conduct of our business, we are subject to a number of federal and state laws and regulations, as well 
as other factors and conditions that potentially subject us to environmental, litigation, insurance and other risks. 
We periodically evaluate our exposure to such risks and record estimated liabilities for those matters where a 
loss is considered probable and reasonably estimable in accordance with GAAP. In recording such estimated 
liabilities, we may make assumptions, estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities and expenses as they relate to contingent and other obligations. These assumptions and estimates are 
based on historical experience and assumptions and may be subject to change. We, however, believe such 
estimates and assumptions are reasonable. 

LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS 

A discussion of LEGAL AND OTHER MATTERS Is described in Note 13 of Notes to DPL's Consolidated 
Financial Statements and Note 12 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements. A discussion of environmental 
matters and competition and regulation matters affecting both DPL and DP&L is described in Item 1 -
Environmental Considerations and Item 1 - Competition and Regulation. Such discussions are incorporated by 
reference in this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and 
made a part hereof. 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements 
A discussion of recently issued accounting pronouncements is described In Note 1 of Notes to DPL's 
Consolidated Financial Statements and Note 1 of Notes to DP&L's Financial Statements and such discussion is 
incorporated by reference In this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations and made a part hereof. 

Item 7A - Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk 

The information required by this item of Form 10-K is set forth in the Market Risk section under Item 7 -
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations. 

Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

This report includes the combined filing of DPL and DP&L. Throughout this report, the terms "we," "us," "our" 
and "ours" are used to refer to both DPL and DP&L, respectively and altogether, unless the context indicates 
otherwise. Discussions or areas of this report that apply only to DPL or DP&L will cleariy be noted in the section. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors of DPL Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of DPL Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 
2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income/(Ioss), cash flows, and 
Shareholder's equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits also 
included the tinancial statement schedule "Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts" for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of 
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and 
schedule based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an 
audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits Included consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate In the 
Circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
Statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairiy, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of DPL Inc. at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the consolidated results of their operations 
and their cash flows for each of the three years inthe period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when 
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects 
the information set forth therein. 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
February 25, 2015 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
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DPL INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

^ ^ M j ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t e f M N "^M-i^^&m^^&MWMW^B^^^^&^M^^^^MM^M^s^ 

Cost of revenues: 
>m&^S&MiMl^^^^M^^^W^^^^m0M^^-¥^mM^: 

Purchased power 592.6 389.0 342.1 

mmm^m0B^mm^iMesm^ 
Total cost of revenues 898.3 762.8 799.1 

M&mMMSS^^S^^^^^&£^^^SMMMi&^& 

iK i lS^g l i^^ lS^M^^fe^SSMGM 
Depreciation and amortizatior^ 139.8 132.9 125.4 

W^^^iMM^^^m^i^^^^S^^MM&M9i5\ 
Goodwill impairment _ „ _ „ _ „ 135.8 306.3 " -̂817.2 

other iM) 2.5 0.2 

Interest expense "^ (126.6) (124.0) (122.^' 

^ i i^ iMM^^^i i i [ i i i ^ f f i§KS¥^Si^»agMg^t t^^^^gi i^^#»a^^^^ 
Other deductions ilSL (2-9) (2.3) 

^ ? i l ^ t i ^ M M P i ^ ^ g i a t e a f S ^ - a i i i ^ ^ « ^ i 5 ^ ^ ^ « ^ i » i l ^ ^ 

J g M ^ ^ l ^ ^ ^ f i i ^ g g g ^ ^ g K g ^ ^ ^ ^ i g M ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ s ^ ; . 

(16821) 

477 
Net loss ^ 7 4 ^ $ (222.0) $ (1,729.8) 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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$ in millions 

DPL INC. 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 

Year ended December 31, 
2014 2013 2012 

Na^s-v Js , (74.6^ . ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ ^ M M ^ ^ M v M ^ 

Available-for-sale securities activity 

|J^&®^ra^^lu^of;ayai,lable-for-sale^securities, net 
Mw| i®^^^^^f i t4 /?Ve;{pense) of $o'2f $0 6 and 
^^$(^)teife^-^respe.ctive- period (0.3) J12) 05 

Reclassification to earnings, net of Income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $(0.2), $(0.7) and $0.0 for each respective 
P '̂JPJ-.... , „ . - . . ^ ^ _ __. 0.2 1.4 (0.1) 

Derivative activity 

l^&U'^aly^nnetjDf income tax^ 
- T " 

i^^C^o^el^aii^ ' '-^i%.^i 

it^(?!MLi&Si^^97. il5) 
Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $(9.5), $(2.3) and $0.4 for each respective 
period period 16.9 3.4 (0.5) 

Pension and postretirement activity 

"*et^dfijnC^)Tieia)c«.benefit/, ^ , 
i*and^f*0 for each'̂ respecti\fev^ 

1 i 

Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $0.0, $0.3 and $0.0 for each respective 
period 

. (14 9) J l . ! r , ^ y ">L9 _̂_ (19) 

" -^s-r ^.V 
03 

.̂K ^t>.^^..#:^-r^., 3 1 ^ ^ , ^ ^ . 
'•^'l^V^ 

1 

(19) ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ a ^ i ^ l h ^ ^ p ^ t r e t i r ^ a i f e ^ ? ' ^ ^ % ^ 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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DPL INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

1 ' ( 7 ^ ] i i i j ^ 8 ^ 2 ^ f t ^ ; ? c : t i ^ 2 9 i 8 ) 
Cash flows from operating activities _ _ _ 
Hli^lS^ .." , _ S 

Adjustments to reconcile Net loss to Net cash from 
operating actiyities _________ , . ^ , - _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ 

Amortization of intangibles _ 
Bl I i l^Wi^feiSoRMJKmarket 'MJe adiustments' 

1.2 7.1 

Deferred Income taxes 

^ _ 95.1 

17.7 24.0 (4.2) 
^ M ^ E ^ ^ ^ ^ W i ^ e r n p t j p n of debt 

Goodwill in^airment 
3O^^M^^^^0^^m^&?iW^^^-M-p^^' 

135.8 306.3 1,817.2 
.-^-^'{MMMMm^&s^^mMMMT^m^:-^ 

(3 9) 25 0.2 

revenue^. - mM. ChangQsjri certain assets and liabilities. 

Inventories (24.9) 
7^4 

27.4 
13;:C 
15.6 

cbŝ  ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ & § § S B M ' ^ M i S & ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ i ^ ^ S M M M ^ ^ ^ ^ S M M - ; M ^ •>̂; 
(7.1) (14) 7.2 

wmm^mm^^^^^^^^m^mmmm 
Atxounts payable 32.1 (5.8) H M mmm̂mmm-
Accrued interest payable 

' ^ •^^^^^^^^^^^^mi i i t i lKI 
(1.3) (3:3) 1.5 

^g^iiag^g:^) 
Pension, retiree and other benefits 19.1 1.8 28.5 

^^m&^^^B&^^^^-^mm^^M î̂ ^^^^^^^^^^mwmm 
Insurance and claims costs 

f^SW 
(02) Ha iM w^^M&t̂ ^s^^^^&^^^^mMmM^ 

Net cash from operating activities 244.1 302.8 291.5 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
"^Mmm^MS^W^^smmM^ii iBM^^^^^^^^WmM^^ 

10.7 0.8 1.1 

I mM^̂ ^̂ mm^̂ ^̂ ^̂ m^m^mMmm-:: 
credits JMl _(M) iM f j^yj5^^„°l [ fr f ^ ^ ^ j ^ _ _ __„____^ _w~^ 

Other investing actiyities, net 

" i ^^^^S i t i ^ tes^^ 
_ _ _ ^ 1.3 ^ (1.2) a3_ 
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DPL INC. 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

$ in millions 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2013 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2012 

Cash flows from financing activities: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ™ , _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ . _ „ _ _ _ 

Retirement of debt (335.0) 

^fei^usHiMiaii^li<^i@lmiiGt^(«^ 
Issuance of long-term debt 

( 9 4 5 ^ (0.1) 

200.0 645.0 

Repayment of borrowings from revolving credit 
facilities 

^9020.! mWm^-^ 
(190.0) 

iipMaiJBMll^i^ii^li^iifegi^lfeM^rM^i^^^^ 
(50.0) 

' J^ i Lt-•'•":."--^-;. --

0.3 
Contributions of additional paid-in capital from 
parent J! - __________ ___ 

! ^ g i ^ ^ l f o t n i i ^ t a M l t l < S { S ^ ^ ^ i g ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 
Net cash from financing activities 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

(167.7) (317.8) (73.7) 

mmm^^^^^^^m^^m^SMMMM^^^ 
Balance at beginning of period 53^ 192.1 173.5 

^^^^^^i^^i^l i rwi»^iKi^i^^^i^^i^^^^^i^;^^P^ai l l i^M 
Supplemental cash flow information 

i n ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ ^ i M ^ S a i ^ ^ ^ g i ^ ^ g ^ ^ » ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ B g » ^ ^ l i a 6 ^ 9 r 
*n^9nî J.^J^^--(!'®!': '̂l'̂ „®^J/.P5'̂ ' ^̂ .̂  $ 0.7 $ (5.2) $ 47.6 

i i « i ^ i F i ^ i i ^ i P w ^ i i ^ t i i t i ^ » i i : r ^ , ^^^ .%i^ - i : - [̂ -.i 

Accruals for capital expenditures 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

$ 16.3 $ 14.7 $ 16.7 
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DPL INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

$ in millions 
December 31, 

2014 
December 31 

2013 

ASSETS 

Current assets: 

^^^m^^^xmM^^mm&mmi&^^^^^^^mmimwi^^WM^^&mmm^mms^^ 
Restricted cash 16.6 13.5 

;i![^)^hi^^S^i^^^iM^lWj|li^l^^:^^ Ŵ BM̂ 9MMî ^̂ :M̂ ŴŴ [ 
Inventories (Note 2) 100.2 82.7 

l̂ j|̂ ^^ ĵlî î î̂ ^^^Kî r^^^^^#rp^^^ m^m^mm^Bmmî ^mm^mmmm^̂ .̂ ^m: 
Regulatory assets, current (Note 3) 44.2 20.8 

Total current assets 498.7 479.2 

Property, plant and equipment: 

^igifa^ii^lil^iimR^^^ifi^lW^l^ 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (318.4) (206.7) 

Construction work in process _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ ^ 76.7 63.9 

Other non-current assets: 

Goodwill (Note 5) , . . , . . . . - ? ' ! 1:9, ^52.8 

Other deferred assets 39.6 52.8 

^^^^^M^M^WmM^^ff^^^^M^^ ^^l^jlfei^iilct^l 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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DPL INC. 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

$ in millions 
December 31, 

2014 
December 31, 

2013 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 

fi^^^&^ii&^^i^^^m^MmM^^^fMMm^^imx^^M^B^^ 
Accounts payable 109.2 78.2 

r-t'jV, y^:-. "-'H-S.: •'^-i^.^^j-;.- Ĝzm W:m8S^4^ 
Accrued interest 

^BDsl^mei5|se<5ari#dei^itsJl;;5t^^ Wi^i'^S^M^^'^ 4^0^^^W^&^MA 
27.2 

.^m^W^n^^mi^^h 
28.5 

%^^ ,̂:y-iM. 
Regulatory IjabiHties, current (Note 3) 

ltlM^^SMIiPIJmStc!istgL~ '̂" ^ 
44 
S\4 6 7 

Other cLjrrentliajjilities ___ 48 7 64 2 
333.0 291 1 

Non-current liabilities: 

Deferred taxes (Note 7) 587.3 ,564-3 

Unamortized investment tax credit 

Total non-current liabilities 3,078.2 3,172.5 

Common shareholder's equity: 

Common stock: ^ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ ^ 
NM^nl^WtMMiglMhti#ssugditel@te 

at December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Total common shareholder's equity 148.2 239.5 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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DPL INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Common Stock ^̂> 

$ in millions (except Outstanding 
Shares) 

Outstanding 
Shares Amount 

Accumulated 
Other Other Retained 
Paid-in Comprehensive Earnings/ 
Capital Income/(Loss) (Deficit) Total 

Year ended December 31, 2012 

^^M^^^^&iX^MMi^^SMM^^^^^MM^^^^^&^SMi^^&>SMi(M^^!Mi MMM:. 

Total comprehensive income 
(loss) (3.5) (1,729.8) (1,733.3) 

l:Sii?i^G^^teftj^fe^M^JJWlfe ;?̂ 76̂ b)̂ MS: --feMo) 
other (0-6) 

% '̂., J-(^,^.J^-.],W;^. W&M^m^M^S^iSM^^B^&^&^&S^SXe^' 
Joei 

i^^2Mi 

Year ended December 31, 2013 

OtherJ^ ^^^ 0.3 „ _ _ _ 5,9 

Year ended December 31 2014 

other 

^ 5 J" j . t-

_ * _ _ . s : ^ (1L1) ^ 
04 

- V. K $r"^ ^ ^ - ^ S . o 2.237 4 - $ 

(74 6) i^U) 
04 

7 5 1$.. W2,096 7) $_„ ;, f48 2 

(a) 1,500 shares authorized 

(b) $5.9 million of dividends declared in 2012 were reversed in 2013. 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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D P L I n c . 

N o t e s t o C o n s o l i d a t e d F i n a n c i a l S t a t e m e n t s 
F o r t h e y e a r s e n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 0 1 4 , 2 0 1 3 a n d 2 0 1 2 

NOTE 1 - OVERVIEW AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Description of Business 
DPL is a diversified regional energy company organized in 1985 under the laws of Ohio. DPL's two reportable 
segments are the Utility segment, comprised of its DP&L subsidiary, and the Competitive Retail segment, 
comprised of its DPLER subsidiary. See Note 14 for more information relating to these reportable segments. 
The terms "we," "us," "our" and "ours" are used to refer to DPL and its subsidiaries. 

On November 28, 2011, DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
AES. Following the merger of DPL and Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc., DPL became an indirectly wholly-owned 
subsidiary of AES. 

DP&L is a public utility incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. Beginning in 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio 
consumers the right to choose the electric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation 
service, however distribution and transmission retail service are still regulated. DP&L has the exclusive right to 
provide such service to its approximately 516,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L 
procures and provides retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial. Industrial and governmental 
Customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio and generates electricity at five coal-ftred power 
stations. Beginning in 2014, DP&L no longer supplies 100% of the generation for SSO customers and by 
January 2016, SSO will be 100% competitively bid. Principal Industries located in DP&L's service territory 
include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. DP&L's sales reflect the 
general economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns of the area and the market price of electricity. DP&L 
sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER, an 
affiliate, to satisfy the electric requirements of its retail customers. 

In accordance with the ESP Order, on December 30, 2013, DP&L filed an application with the PUCO stating its 
plan to transfer or sell its generation assets. Comments and reply comments were filed. DP&L amended its 
application on February 25, 2014 and again on May 23, 2014. Additional comments and reply comments were 
filed. On July 14, 2014, DP&L announced Its decision to retain DP&L's generation assets. On September 17, 
2014 the PUCO ordered that DP&L's application as amended and updated was approved. DP&L Is required to 
sell or transfer its generation assets by January 1, 2017 and continues to look at multiple options to effectuate the 
separation including transfer into a new unregulated affiliate of DPL or through a sale. 

DPLER sells competitive retail electric service, under contract, to residential, commercial and industrial 
customers. DPLER's operations include those of its wholly-owned subsidiary MC Squared. DPLER has 
approximately 260,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and Illinois. Approximately 131,000 of 
DPLER's customers are also electric distribution customers of DP&L. DPLER does not own any transmission or 
generation assets, and purchases all of its electric energy from DP&L to meet its sales obligations. DPLER's 
sales reflect the general economic conditions and seasonal weather patterns of the area. 

DPL's other significant subsidiaries include DPLE, which owns and operates peaking generating facilities from 
which it makes wholesale sales of electricity and MVIC, our captive insurance company that provides insurance 
services to us and our other subsidiaries. AH of DPL's subsidiaries are wholly-owned. 

DPL also has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust II, formed for the purpose of issuing trust capital 
securities to investors. 

DP&L's electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state 
regulators while its generation business Is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the 
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records 
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory 
iiabiJities when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs. 

DPL and its subsidiaries employed 1,182 people as of December 31, 2014, of which 1,130 were employed by 
DP&L. Approximately 61% of all DPL employees are under a collective bargaining agreement which expires on 
October 31, 2017. 
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Financial Statement Presentation 
We prepare Consolidated Financial Statements for DPL. DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements include the 
accounts of DPL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries except for DPL Capital Trust Ii which is not consolidated, 
consistent with the provisions of GAAP. DP&L's undivided ownership interests in certain coal-fired generating 
stations are included in the financial statements at amortized cost, which was adjusted to fair value at the Merger 
date. Operating revenues and expenses are included on a pro rata basis in the corresponding lines in the 
Consolidated Statement of Operations. See Note 4 for more information. 

Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period 
presentation. 

All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation. 

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and 
the revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant 
items subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment; the 
valuation of goodwill; unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and 
claims liabilities; the valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; regulatory assets and 
liabilities; reserves recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; assets 
and liabilities related to employee benefits; goodwill; and intangibles. 

Valuation of Goodwill 
FASC 350, "Intangibles - Goodwill and Other", requires that goodwill be tested for impairment at the reporting 
unit level at least annually or more frequently if impairment indicators are present. In evaluating the potential 
impairment of goodwill, we make estimates and assumptions about revenue, operating cash flows, capital 
expenditures, growth rates and discount rates based on our budgets and long term forecasts, macroeconomic 
projections, and current market expectations of returns on similar assets. There are inherent uncertainties 
related to these factors and management's judgment in applying these factors. Generally, the fair value of a 
reporting unit is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation model. We could be required to evaluate the 
potential impairment of goodwill outside of the required annual assessment process if we experience situations, 
including but not limited to: deterioration in general economic conditions; operating or regulatory environment; 
increased competitive environment; Increase in fuel costs particuiariy when we are unable to pass its effect to 
customers; negative or declining cash flows; loss of a key contract or customer particularly when we are unable 
to replace it on equally favorable terms; or adverse actions or assessments by a regulator. These types of 
events and the resulting analyses could result in goodwill impairment expense, which could substantially affect 
our results of operations for those periods. See Note 5 for information regarding the impairments of goodwill in 
2014, 2013 and 2012. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenues are recognized from retail and wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission and distribution 
delivery services. We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an 
arrangement exists, the products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or 
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Energy sales to customers are based on the reading of their 
meters that occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize the revenues on our statements 
of operations using an accrual method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed, but where 
electricity has been consumed. This is termed "unbilled revenues" and is a widely recognized and accepted 
practice for utilities. At the end of each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of unbilled 
energy provided to customers since the date of the last meter reading, estimated line losses, the assignment of 
unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the average rate per customer class. 

All of the power produced at the generation stations is sold to an RTO and we In turn purchase it back from the 
RTO to supply our customers. The power sales and purchases within DP&L's service territory are reported on a 
net hourly basis as revenues or purchased power on our Statements of Operations. We record expenses when 
purchased electricity is received and when expenses are incurred, with the exception of the ineffective portion of 
certain power purchase contracts that are derivatives and qualify for hedge accounting. We also have certain 
derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting, and their unrealized gains or losses are recorded 
prior to the receipt of electricity. 
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Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
We establish provisions for uncollectible accounts by using both historical average loss percentages to project 
future losses and by establishing specific provisions for known credit issues. Amounts are written off when 
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted. 

Sale of Receivables 
DPLER and its subsidiary MC Squared sell receivables from their customers. These sales are at face value for 
cash at the billed amounts for their customers' use of energy. Total receivables sold during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 were $125.6 million and $96.1 million, respectively. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held stations as an asset in property, plant and 
equipment. New property, plant and equipment additions are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and 
distribution property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for 
funds used during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to 
finance regulated construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest. 
Capitalization of AFUDC and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators. 
AFUDC and capitalized interest was $1.5 million, $1.5 million and $4.0 million in the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and 
interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized 
interest. 

For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less 
any salvage value Is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization. 

Property is evaluated for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that Its carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. 

Repairs and Maintenance 
Costs associated with maintenance activities, primarily power station outages, are recognized at the time the 
work is performed. These costs, which include labor, materials and supplies, and outside services required to 
maintain equipment and facilities, are capitalized or expensed based on defined units of property. 

Depreciation - Changes in Estimates 
Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method, which allocates the cost of property over its 
estimated useful life. For DPL's generation, transmission and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation Is 
applied monthly on an average composite basis using group rates. 

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverablllty of long-lived assets at certain generating 
stations. See Note 15 for more information. Gradual decreases in power prices as well as lower estimates of 
future capacity prices in conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill 
impairment test were collectively determined to be an impairment indicator. 

For DPL's generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average 
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 5.3% In 2014, 5.8% in 2013 and 4.8% in 2012. 
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The following is a summary of DPL's Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation 
rates at December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

December 31, 

$ in millions 2014 
Composite 

Rate 2013 
Composite 

Rate 

Regulated: 

Distribution 

li^Mi^^^^^gg 
1,011.7 5.4% 970.1 5.6% 

^m î̂ ^^^m^&^mmm^m^MmmmM-
Non-depreciable 61.6 N/A 60.8 N/A 

^iWa^l^ifi l^^i^i^ i>^S:%^^6^^^Jfe#g^^J%^^^^:^M^ 

Unregulated: ______ 
ffi^M^i»^^igfiK#?r-^I^M^;R%i^^^:^l^354W^^^^ • 

other 21.3 8.1% 
J : ^ 0 8 

157 
W ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M X ^ & M ^ ^ : S ^ M ^ ^ M f m S M ^ m i ^ M ^ $ ^ 0 ^ 

6 2% 
8 9% 

^19.7 'N/A 

K M i i M M T O ^ l i396^-_ l - 1.3762 _ 

efiuipmenMn^-, .- * ^ ^ ^ ^ - ^ - , - / ^ , .^ ' . 
^ _' „ r: _ „ $ .. '2?759.3C::^ ^5.3%-^- / $ A ^"->2^77 0 „ - 5 8% 

AROs 
We recognize AROs in accordance with GAAP which requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of 
long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time those obligations are incurred. Upon initial 
recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the 
useful life of the related asset. Our legal obligations associated with the retirement of our long-lived assets 
consists primarily of river intake and discharge structures, coal unloading facilities, loading docks, ice breakers 
and ash disposal facilities. Our generation AROs are recorded within Other deferred credits on the consolidated 
balance sheets. 

Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures of this type requires significant judgment. Management 
routinely updates these estimates as additional information becomes available. 

Changes in the Liability for Generation AROs 

$ In millions 

Calendar 2013 

Settlements (03^ 

Calendar 2014 

^^^^^^M&^^fiMi^:M^^M&^MM^^^mS^^^^^m^^M^^M^t:MmQ' 
Accretion expense 0.9 

^m^^MMMi^m^s^^^^&^^mMm^^M^^$iSmm§mMG\ 
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 26.9 

Asset Removal Costs 
We continue to record costs of removal for our regulated transmission and distribution assets through our 
depreciation rates and recover those amounts in rates charged to our customers. There are no known legal 
AROs associated with these assets. We have recorded $119.3 million and $115.0 million in estimated costs of 
removal at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as regulatory liabilities for our transmission and 
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distribution property. These amounts represent the excess of the cumulative removal costs recorded through 
depreciation rates versus the cumulative removal costs actually incurred. See Note 3 for additional information. 

Changes in the Liability for Transmission and Distribution Asset Removal Costs 

$ In millions _ _ _ _ 

i B j ^ l i t i i i i i ^ e r 3 1 , 2 0 1 2 " . / i T _. _ _ ^ 1 _ _ _$ ~ _ . i i 2 n i 

Calendar 2013 _ ^ _ ^ 

Settleirienrs _ ~ ~^ \ (191) 
gai^g^^^^a0bei>31>2Ot3 ' - -\. ŷ . . - ' / > " . . ^-.. . "̂̂  -- . - - - ^ .. 1150 
Calendar 2014 
iMi. t i0nsjT\.-^ 1 . - . ^ „ _ ^ , ^..•^^ . _. • . ., _ i 9 g : 
Settlements _ „ _ „ _ ^, .̂ , (15.3) 

Regulatory Accounting 
As a regulated utility, we apply the provisions of FASC 980 "Regulated Operations," which gives recognition to 
the ratemaking and accounting practices of the PUCO and the FERC. Regulatory assets generally represent 
incurred costs that have been deferred because such costs are probable of future recovery in customer rates. 
Regulatory assets can also represent performance incentives permitted by the regulator. Regulatory assets have 
been Included as allowable costs for ratemaking purposes, as authorized by the PUCO or established regulatory 
practices. Regulatory liabilities generally represent obligations to make refunds or future rate reductions to 
customers for previous over collections or the deferral of revenues collected for costs that DPL expects to incur in 
the future. 

The deferral of costs (as regulatory assets) is appropriate only when the future recovery of such costs is 
probable. In assessing probability, we consider such factors as specific orders from the PUCO or FERC, 
regulatory precedent and the current regulatory environment. To the extent recovery of costs is no longer 
deemed probable, related regulatory assets would be required to be expensed in current period earnings. Our 
regulatory assets and liabilities have been created pursuant to a specific order of the PUCO or FERC or 
established regulatory practices, such as other utilities under the jurisdiction of the PUCO or FERC being granted 
recovery of similar costs. It is probable, but not certain, that these regulatory assets will be recoverable, subject 
to PUCO or FERC approval. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on 
the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 3 for more information about Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. 

Inventories 
Inventories are carried at average cost and include coal, limestone, oil and gas used for electric generation, and 
materials and supplies used for utility operations. 

intangibles 
Intangibles include emission allowances, renewable energy credits, customer relationships, customer contracts 
and trademark/trade name. Emission allowances are carried on afirst-in, first-out (FIFO) basis for purchased 
emission allowances. Net gains or losses on the sale of excess emission allowances, representing the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the cost of emission allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs 
and are reflected in Operating income when realized. 

Customer relationships recognized as part of the purchase accounting are amortized over nine to fifteen years 
and customer contracts are amortized over the average length of the contracts. Emission allowances are 
amortized as they are used in our operations on a FIFO basis. Renewable energy credits are amortized as they 
are used or retired. Trademark/trade name have an Indefinite life and accordingly are not amortized. See Note 5 
for additional Information. 

Income Taxes 
Income taxes are accounted in accordance with FASC 740, "Income Taxes", which requires an asset and liability 
approach for financial accounting and reporting of income taxes with tax effects of differences, based on currently 
enacted income tax rates, between the financial reporting and tax basis of accounting reported as deferred tax 
assets or liabilities in the balance sheets. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets unless it 
is more likely than not that the asset will be realized. 
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Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce federal income taxes payable, are deferred for financial 
reporting purposes and are amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they relate. For rate-
regulated operations, additional deferred income taxes and offsetting regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded 
to recognize that income taxes will be recoverable or refundable through future revenues. 

DPL and its subsidiaries file U.S. federal income tax returns as part of the consolidated U.S. income tax return 
filed by AES. The consolidated tax liability is allocated to each subsidiary based on the separate return method 
which is specified in our tax allocation agreement and which provides a consistent, systematic and rational 
approach. See Note 7 for additional information. 

Financial Instruments 
We classify our investments In debt and equity financial instruments of publicly traded entitles into different 
categories: held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and 
unrealized gains and losses on those securities, net of deferred income taxes, are presented as a separate 
component of shareholders' equity. Other than temporary declines in value are recognized currently in earnings. 
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. The cost basis for public equity 
security and fixed maturity investments Is average cost and amortized cost, respectively. 

Accounting for Taxes Coiiected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities 
DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. DP&L's excise taxes 
and certain other taxes are accounted for on a net basis and recorded as a reduction in revenues in the 
accompanying Statements of Operations. The amounts forthe years ended December31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012, were $50.8 million, $50.5 million and $50.5 million, respectively. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All highly liquid short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash includes cash which is restricted as to withdrawal or usage. The nature of the restrictions include 
restrictions imposed by agreements related to deposits held as collateral. 

Financial Derivatives 
All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets and are measured at fair value. 
Changes in the fair value are recorded in earnings unless the derivative is designated as a cash flow hedge of a 
forecasted transaction or it qualifies forthe normal purchases and sales exception. 

We use fonward contracts to reduce our exposure to changes in energy and commodity prices and as a hedge 
against the risk of changes In cash flows associated with expected electricity purchases. These purchases are 
used to hedge our full load requirements. We also hold fonward sales contracts that hedge against the risk of 
changes in cash flows associated with power sales during periods of projected generation facility availability. We 
use cash fiow hedge accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is deemed to be highly effective, 
which results in changes in fair value being recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income, a 
component of shareholder's equity. We have elected not to offset net derivative positions in the financial 
statements. Accordingly, we do not offset such derivative positions against the fair value of amounts recognized 
for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return cash collateral under master netting agreements. 
See Note 10 for additional information. 

Insurance and Claims Costs 
In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL, 
provides insurance coverage solely to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned 
facilities we operate, for workers' compensation, general liability, and property damage on an ongoing 
basis. MVIC maintains an active run-off policy for directors' and officers' liability and fiduciary through their 
expiration in 2017 and may or may not be renewed at that time. DP&L is responsible for claim costs below 
certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance coverage noted above. In addition, DP&L has estimated 
liabilities for medical, life, and disability reserves for claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party 
providers. We record these additional insurance and claims costs of approximately $15.6 million and $18.8 
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within Other current liabilities and Other deferred credits on 
the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for workers' compensation, medical, life and disability costs at 
DP&L are actuarially determined using certain assumptions. There is uncertainty associated with these loss 
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estimates and actual results may differ from the estimates. Modification of these loss estimates based on 
experience and changed circumstances Is reflected in the period in which the estimate is re-evaluated. 

Pension and Postretirement Benefits 
We account for and disclose pension and postemployment benefits in accordance with the provisions of GAAP 
relating to the accounting for pension and other postemployment plans. These GAAP provisions require the use 
of assumptions, such as the discount rate for liabilities and long-term rate of return on assets, in determining the 
obligations, annual cost, and funding requirements of the plans. 

Related Party Transactions 
In December 2013, an agreement was signed, effective January 1, 2014, whereby the Service Company began 
providing services including accounting, legal, human resources, information technology and other corporate 
services on behalf of companies that are part of the U.S. SBU, including, among other companies, DPL and 
DP&L. The Service Company allocates the costs for these services based on cost drivers designed to result in 
fair and equitable allocations. This Includes ensuring that the regulated utilities sen/ed, including DP&L, are not 
subsidizing costs incurred for the benefit of non-regulated businesses. 

The following table provides a summary of these transactions: 

For the year ended 
December 31, 

$ in millions 2014 2013 
Transactions with the Service Company _ 

Charges to the Service Company $ 0.1 $ 

At December 31, At December 31, 
Transactions with the Seryice Company: 2014 2013 

DPL Capital Trust 11 
DPL has a wholly-owned business trust, DPL Capital Trust II (the Trust), formed for the purpose of issuing trust 
capital securities to third-party investors. Effective in 2003, DPL deconsolidated the Trust upon adoption of the 
accounting standards related to variable interest entities and currently treats the Trust as a nonconsolidated 
subsidiary. The Trust holds mandatorily redeemable trust capital securities. The investment in the Trust, which 
amounts to $0.3 million and $0.4 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, is included in Other 
deferred assets within Other noncurrent assets. DPL also has a note payable to the Trust amounting to $14.9 
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively that was established upon the Trust's deconsolidation in 
2003. See Note 6 for additional information. 

In addition to the obligations under the note payable mentioned above, DPL also agreed to a security obligation 
which represents a full and unconditional guarantee of payments to the capital security holders of the Trust. 

Becentlv Adopted Accounting Standards 

Discontinued Operations 
The FASB recently issued ASU 2014-08 "Presentation of Financial Statements" (Topic 205) and "Property, Plant, 
and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of 
an Entity" effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2014. ASU 2014-08 updates the 
definition of discontinued operations by limiting discontinued operations reporting to disposals of components of 
an entity that represent strategic shifts that have (or will have) a major effect on an entity's operations and 
financial results. In addition, an entity is required to expand disclosures for discontinued operations by providing 
more information about the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of discontinued operations both on the face 
of the financial statements and in the Notes. For the disposal of an Individually significant component of an entity 
that does not qualify for discontinued operations reporting, an entity is required to disclose the pretax profit or 
loss of the component in the Notes. Our early adoption of ASU No. 2014-008 in the third quarter of 2014 did not 
have any impact on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards 

Going Concern 
The FASB recently issued ASU 2014-15 "Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-
40: Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern)" effective for annual and 
interim periods ending after December 15, 2016. ASU 2014-15 requires management to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered in aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to 
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are Issued. There are 
required disclosures if substantial doubt is identified including documentation of: principal conditions or events 
that raised substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (before consideration of 
management's plans), management's evaluation of the significance of those conditions or events In relation to 
the entity's ability to meet its obligations, and management's plans that alleviated substantial doubt about the 
entity's ability to continue as a going concern. This ASU is not expected to have any impact on our overall results 
of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
The FASB recently Issued ASU 2014-09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606) effective for 
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2016; with retrospective application. The core principle 
of the ASU Is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. Because the guidance in this update is principles-based. It can be applied to all 
contracts with customers regardless of industry-specific or transaction-specific fact patterns. Additionally, the 
guidance requires Improved disclosures fo help users of financial statements better understand the nature, 
amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. We have not yet determined the extent, if any, to 
which our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows may be affected by the implementation of 
this ASU. 

NOTE 2 - SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

$ in millions 
Accounts receivable, net 

December 31, 
2014 2013 

W & ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ S ^ S ^ ^ ^ M ^ M ^ 0 & B l ^ m ^ 
ivables "'Q'̂ -^ 

4.0 

Customer receivables 102.7 

Other^ ^ _ ^ _ _ _.,4-0 , , . 8.2 

Total accounts receivable, net $ 200.9 $ 203.3 

Inventories 

Plant materials and supplies 33.5 38.2 

^^^^^^^^^i^^^^^^i^ i^^B^^^^ 
Total inventories, at average cost $ 100.2 $ 82.7 
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Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 

The amounts reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) by component during the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Details about 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 
Income / (Loss) 
Components 
$ in millions 

Affected line item in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

Gains and losses on Available-for-sale seciirities activity (Note 9): 
Fif^^^i?^Mvi^SfiMiiMml^(aeailctl^s^ 

Total before income taxes 0.4 2.1 mi 
m ^ S S § W ^ ̂ ^^M^Miiiii^iM^t^^K^E^^Miio^)M>^;??-MM:# im 

Net of income taxes 0.2 1.4 (0-1: 

Gains and losses on cash flow hedges (Note 10): _ ^ ^ 

Revenue 28.4 2.2 

^^^^^^^^^H^^^^^^^B^^^^as^^^^iifi^fti^^M^ mM. 
Total before income taxes 26.4 5.7 

Net of income taxes 16.9 3.4 

Amortization of detined benefit perision items (Note 8): 

iia 
iosi 

Net of income taxes 0.3 

^Mii^i^imW^^t^^Mfii^Miiielff i^^^pg^^^l^^^W^^^^MM 
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The changes in the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

$ in millions 

Gains / 
(losses) on 

available-for-
sale securities 

Gains / 
(losses) on 
cash flow 
hedges 

Change In 
unfunded 
pension 

obligation Total 
iBM i^^ t§ r iS i ^^^^ t ^Wi i ^ i ^ ^^^^^ t i i i ^ ^ i JM l^$^^M-^ ( ^^^ 

4 9 23 4 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income / (loss) 1.4 3.4 0.3 5.1 

I et4cyrrerrtpet;^d^tiiej^comprehensive. 
ncome 02?^l^^v " ' 2 3 1 52 28 5 

©the^^mprjshlnsfvejloss before>^ 
c e ^ l ^ M ^ t i o n ^ ^ z l ^ . _ 
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income / (loss) 

06 

_ 3(0 .3 )^ . 

0.2 

._^-206 ^ 

-' (19=0) , 

169 

3 4 

(14.9) _ 

24 6 

_(34.2) 

17 1 

(14-9) i171} 

^^n^EjMii^l iWii l^i^^i^^i^^ge^^^^i l^l ;^ 

NOTE 3 - REGULATORY MATTERS 

In accordance with FASC 980, we have recognized total regulatory assets of $211.7 million and $180.5 million as 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and total regulatory liabilities of $128.5 million and $121.1 million as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on 
the term in which recovery Is expected. See Note 1 for accounting policies regarding Regulatory Assets and 
Liabilities. 
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The following table presents DPL's Regulatory assets and liabilities: 

December 31, 

$ in millions 
Type of 

Recovery '̂ ^ 
Amortization 

Through 2014 2013 
Regulatory assets, current: 
ISy i fc '^Bf lMe0ste I "~ . , . . -^2015 
Fuel and purcfiased power recovery costs 

NE^^^^JjPlSipmeotcosts. '^^ ' i r_ _̂  
Energy efficiency program 

B 2015 16.3 ^ 6.3 

;^^B - r t -^ 4-:g^.^o.i5^ ^ i ••7:7 

B 2015 1.8 

Other rriiscellaneous 
y^^A- y'l^r.'^ois 2.6 

B 2015 1.7 42 

Regulatory assets, non-current 
fettliplonllgelifits * , 

Deferred recoverable income taxes 

44.2 $ 20 8 

A ^s-'Z - •• 0MMSM0^fW^^^^'MM0:'y:7^'^'.-
^ /VC Ongoing __43J _ 3 2 . 4 

CCEM smart grid and advanced metering 
infrastructure costs D Undetermined 6.6 6.6 

: ^ ^ 

9'̂ /̂ g'-̂  ̂  ^^ ̂ '-*_̂ '̂ .̂ î'-'-Q- '•?,̂ -?P '̂9 '̂  D Undetermined 3.0 

:3.-i; 
3.0 

Other rnlscellaneous D Undetermined 2.2 
m M ^ 

1.0 
J;^,?;:-;^^:--T: immfk 

Regulatory Iiabi 1 ities, current 

Hf^^iftSfMlits''' " _ 
Other miscellaneous 

\M^M^^^^^^^^^^ îM^^S^M^^mS^S^^^^^^B^S&^^M0(MMi:-& !̂-̂ . 

Total regulatory liabilities, non-current 124.1 $ 121.1 

A - Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return. 
B - Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return. 
C - Balance has an offsetting liability resulting In no effect on rate base. 
D - Recovery not yet determined, but is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings. 

Regulatorv Assets 

Deferred storm costs represent costs incurred to repair the damage to DP&L's distribution equipment by major 
storms in 2008, 2011 and 2012. Such costs are included in "Regulatory Assets, non-current" on the 
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and in "Regulatory Assets, current" as of 
December 31, 2014. DP&L filed an application with the PUCO in 2012 to recover these costs. On April 14,2014, 
DP&L reached an agreement In principle whereby DP&L would recover storm costs of $22.3 million from all 
customers on a non-bypassable basis. As a result, using the best estimate of the amount that Is probable of 
recovery, DP&L reduced the regulatory asset balance to $22.3 million. In accordance with FASC 980 "Regulated 
Operations", the reduction was recognized as a current period expense, which Is included in Operation and 
maintenance and the corresponding adjustment to carrying costs which is included in interest expense on the 
accompanying Statements of Operations. In accordance with the agreement reached with the PUCO staff, a 
Stipulation was filed and a final order was issued on December 17, 2014 that approved the Stipulation covering 
this agreement in principle. Recovery will begin In January 2015 therefore this asset was reclassified to current. 
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Fuel and purchased power recoverv costs represent prudently incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative, 
emission and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the 
operation of the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider 
fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. As part of 
the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor reviews fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. An audit of 
2012 fuel costs occurred in 2013, and on June 12, 2013 we received a report from the auditor recommending a 
pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million. A reserve of $2.6 million was recorded against the regulatory asset. In 
August 2014, the PUCO issued an order, which overruled the auditor recommendation and instead included the 
disallowance of an immaterial amount of fuel costs. The impact of the order was a reversal in the third quarter of 
2014 of the vast majority of the previously established $2.6 million reserve and a corresponding reduction to fuel 
expense. The 2013 audit was completed with no material disallowance of fuel expenses. The costs recovered 
through the fuel rider decrease each year as more SSO supply is provided through the competitive bid. The fuel 
rider will be completely phased out beginning January 1,2016, 

Economic development costs represent costs incurred to promote economic development within the State of 
Ohio. These costs are being recovered through an Economic Development Rider that is subject to a bi-annual 
true-up process for any over/under recovery of costs. 

Epergy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various customer programs 
addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an Energy Efficiency Rider (EER) that 
began July 1, 2009 and that is subject to an annual true-up for any over/under recovery of costs. 

Transmission costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary service and other PJM-related charges 
that have been Incurred as a member of PJM. On an annual basis, retail rates are adjusted to true-up costs with 
recovery In rates. 

Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 "Compensation - Retirement Benefits" costs of our regulated 
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a plan's 
overfunded status or a liability for a plan's underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of OCI, the 
changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not recognized as a component of net 
periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion that would otherwise be charged as 
a loss to OCI. 

Deferred recoverable Income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of 
flow-through items as the result of tax benefits previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow-
through benefit given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently 
existing temporary differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse In 
subsequent periods, these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time. 

Ujamortized loss on reacouired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior 
periods. These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and 
PUCO rules. 

C_CEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution 
system upgrades and implementation of AMI. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw Its case 
pertaining to the Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal in an order issued on 
January 5, 2011. The PUCO also indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities' Smart Grid 
and AMI programs and to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that 
DP&L will, when appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to 
recover these deferred costs in a future regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCO precedent, we believe 
these costs are probable of future recovery in rates. 

Betail settlement system costs represent costs to Implement a retail settlement system that reconciles the energy 
a CRES supplier delivers to its customers with what its customers actually use. Based on case precedent in 
other utilities* cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding. 

Consumer education campaicn represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric 
deregulation. DP&L will be seeking recovery of these costs as part of our next distribution rate case filing at the 
PUCO. The timing of such a filing has not yet been determined. 
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Regulatorv Liabilities 

Transmission Costs see "Regulatory Assets - Transmission costs" above. 

Estimated costs of removal - regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for 
costs that are expected to be incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from 
service when the property is retired. 

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 "Compensation - Retirement Benefits" gains related 
to our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We 
recognize an asset for a plan's overfunded status or a liability for a plan's underfunded status, and recognize, as 
a component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not 
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion 
that would othenwise be reflected as a gain to OCI. 

NOTE 4 - OWNERSHIP OF COAL-FIRED FACILITIES 

DP&L and certain other Ohio utilities have undivided ownership interests in five coal-fired electric generating 
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating units, are 
allocated to the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses. Investments in fuel inventory, 
plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance with their 
respective ownership interests. As of December 31, 2014, DP&L had $25.0 million of construction work in 
process at such facilities. DP&L's share of the operating cost of such facilities is included within the 
corresponding line in the Statements of Operations, and DP&L's share of the investment in the facilities is 
included within Total net property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheets. Each joint owner provides their 
own financing for their share of the operations and capital expenditures of the jointly-owned station. 

DP&L's undivided ownership interest In such facilities at December 31, 2014, is as follows: 

DP&L Share DPL Carrying Value 

SCR and 
FGD 

Gross Construction Equipment 
Summer Plant Accumulated Work in Installed 

Production In Service Depreciation Process 
Ownership Capacity ($ in ($ in ($ in 

(%) (MW) millions) millions) millions) 

and in 
Service 

(Yes/No) 
Jointly-owned production units 

:2SSSEii3^S'^t"a;:: 

Killen-Unit 2 67.0 402 308 19 Yes 
^^m^^mmmm^iS^&m^g^^^gS^^^^S^^^^^^^mMmmmmQ(: 

guart-Unite Ithroug^ 35.0 808 219 .,.^,,, 1§„, ^^ .X^^ 

Transmission (at varying 
; ' '^ j^- '?^^ff j- „ 42 6 :_ 

Beckjord Unit 6 was retired effective October 1, 2014 and DP&L's sale of its interest in East Bend closed on 
December 30, 2014. 

NOTE 5 - GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Impairment of Goodwill 
In connection with the acquisition of DPL by AES, DPL allocated the purchase price to goodwill for two reporting 
units, the DP&L reporting unit, which includes DP&L and other entities, and DPLER. Of the total goodwill, 
approximately $2.4 billion was allocated to the DP&L reporting unit and the remainder was allocated to DPLER. 
Goodwill represents the value assigned at the Merger date, as adjusted for subsequent changes in the purchase 
price allocation, less recognized Impairments. 
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During the first quarter of 2014, we performed an interim impairment test on the $135.8 million in goodwill at our 
DPLER reporting unit. The DPLER reporting unit was identified as being "at risk" during the fourth quarter of 
2013. The Impairment indicators arose based on market information available regarding actual and proposed 
sales of competitive retail marketers, which indicated a significant decline in valuations during the first quarter of 
2014. In Step 1 of the interim impairment test, the fair value of the reporting unit was determined to be less than 
its carrying amount under both the market approach and the income approach using a discounted cash flow 
valuation model. The significant assumptions included commodity price cun/es, estimated electricity to be 
demanded by its customers, changes in its customer base through attrition and expansion, discount rates, the 
assumed tax structure and the level of working capital required to run the business. During the second quarter of 
2014, we finalized the work to determine the implied fair value for the DPLER reporting unit. There were no 
further adjustments to the full impairment of $135.8 million recognized in the first quarter. 

As of October 1, 2013, DPL performed its annual goodwill impairment test and recognized a goodwill Impairment 
at Its DP&L reporting unit of $306.3 million. In performing the annual goodwill Impairment test as of October 1, 
2013, Step 1 of the test failed as the fair value of the reporting unit no longer exceeded its carrying amount due 
primarily to lower estimates of capacity prices In future years as well as lower dark spreads contributing to lower 
overall operating margins for the business. The fair value of the reporting unit was determined under the income 
approach using a discounted cash flow valuation model. The significant assumptions included within the 
discounted cash flow valuation model were capacity price curves, amount of the non-bypassable charge, 
commodity price curves, dispatching, valuation of regulatory assets and liabilities, discount rates and deferred 
income taxes. In Step 2, goodwill was determined to have an implied fair value of $317.0 million after the 
hypothetical purchase price allocation under the accounting guidance for business combinations. 

DPL recognized a goodwill impairment expense of $1.817.2 million in 2012 at the DP&L reporting unit. During 
2012, North American natural gas prices fell significantly compared to the previous year, which exerted 
downward pressure on wholesale power prices in the Ohio power market. These falling power prices compressed 
wholesale margins at DP&L and led to increased customer switching from DP&L to other CRES providers, 
including DPLER, who were offering retail prices lower than DP&L's standard service offer. In addition, several 
municipalities in DP&L's service territory passed ordinances allowing them to become government aggregators 
and contracted with CRES providers to provide generation service to the customers located within the municipal 
boundaries, further contributing to the switching trend. CRES providers also became more active in DP&L's 
service territory. These developments reduced DP&L's forecasted profitability, operating cash flows and 
liquidity. As a result, in September 2012, management lowered Its previous forecasts of profitability and operating 
cash flows. Collectively, these events were considered an interim goodwill impairment indicator at the DP&L 
reporting unit. There were no interim impairment indicators identified for the goodwill at DPLER in 2012. 

The goodwill associated with the Merger is not deductible for tax purposes. Accordingly, there is no cash or 
financial statement tax benefit related to the impairment. The Company's effective tax rates were impacted by 
the pretax impairment, however. The Company's effective tax rates were (31.8%), (11.2%) and (2.8%) for the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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The following table summarizes the changes in Goodwill: 

$ in millions 

Balance at December 31 , 2012 

DP&L 
Reporting Unit 

DPLER 
Reporting Unit Total 

fa^Sil^l^i-^:^^M^^ia^^sK8.--^:i^^p^l^-^^^ 
Accumulated Impairment losses (1.817.2) (1.817.2) 

i i i^ lMii^G^j^^^PMgiM^gfe^Pi^%^^j i$^^^i6^^l l^^^i^i^$l iM^ 

^ G i i W ? i l l i ^ B ^ a u n r i g i ^ i M i i § ^ ^ i ! t ^ $ M ^ ^ P i ^ ^ j ^ ^ 

Balance at December 31 , 2013 

^̂ S^̂ mmimmmm^̂ mfmm 9W^M^^M^i^^M?^^^^^MB^m'&^2i&7^^-
Accumulated impairment losses (2,123.5) (2,123.5) 

^^eiWiiM^i»g^!^^l2QilMMi^MSg^i^ 

Balance at December31,2014 _ _ _ _ _ „ _ , 

Accumulated impairment losses (2,123.5) (135.8) (2,259.3) 
»w^iPMi^^i^^g^B^Mi»ai^^^g^^fe^^^g^«-«3jiQ^ 

The following tables summarize the balances comprising intangible assets as of December 31 , 2014: 

$ in millions December 3 1 , 2014 December 31 , 2013 

Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net 
Balance Amort izat ion Balance Balance Amortization Balance 

Subject to Amort izat ion 

^^^^^^^^^^^SiM^Mi^M^s^^^^^^^^^^MasiSiia 
Customer Relationships ^^ Relationships'^^ 31.8 (6.9) 24.9 31 8 _ _ (4.6) 27. 

66.5 
Not subiect to Amort izat ion 

(35.2) 31.3 67.2 (30.5) 

2_ 
3̂  

35.5 

Total Intangibles $ 72.6 $ (35.2) $ 37.4 $ 73.3 $ (30.5) $ 41.6 

(a) Represents above market contracts that DPLER has with third-party customers existing as of the Merger date. 
(b) Represents relationships DPLER has with third-party customers as of the Merger date, where DPLER has regular contact with the 

customer, and the customer has the ability to make direct contact with DPLER. 
(c) Consists of various intangible assets including renewable energy credits, emission allowances, and other intangibles, none of 

which are individually significant. 
(d) Trademark/Trade name represents the value assigned to the trade names of DPLER and MC Squared. 
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The following table summarizes, by category, intangible assets acquired during the period ended December 31, 
2014: 

$ in mfllions Amount 

Subject to 
Amortization/ 

Indefinite-lived 

Weighted 
Average 

Amortization 
Period Amortization 
(years) Method 

The following table summarizes the amortization expense, broken down by intangible asset category for 2015 
through 2019: 

Estimated amortization expense 
Years ending December 31, 

$ in millions 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 

Renewable Energy Certificates 4.2 3.5 -__^ i _ ^ 

NOTE 6 - DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term debt 

$ in millions _ ^ _ ^ December 31,2014 December 31, 2013 

i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M i ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ i i t t § ^ ^ M i i ^ ^ B ^ t t i W § 8 ^ ^ t t a f e M ̂45.o; 

Pollution control series due in September 2036 - 4 8% 100 0 
^ ^ P S ' r i & o i ^ B e ' ^ O J O ' v a n a b l ^ r a t e s - ^ i ^ ^ 

100 0 

100 0 
U.S. Government note due in February 2061 4 2% 18.1 18.3 

j r ^ ^ ^ ^ i3J) 
Total long-term debt at subsidiary 874.7 874.6 

Senior unsecured bonds due in October 2021 - 7 25% 780 0 

430.0 

780 0 

(a) - range of interest rates for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively 
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Current portion - long-term debt 
$ in millions December 31,2014 December 31, 2013 

5anl?^ermt!c5rfee in^dOlay*2018f-̂ variable rates 2 41 %* - 2 42% :; ~ -H 
2̂Q.b, ?$. 100 

U S Goverriment note due in February 2061 - 4 2% 

bapifaMl&em!gatipi^tr?'r ' f ^ ,, ^ . . ^Z l . . . . ,. ' 

0.1 
< -̂̂ i.-tr- i ^ i r e 

01 

01 

Total current portion - long-term debt 20.1 $ 10.2 

(a) - range of interest rates for the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively 

At December 31, 2014, maturities of long-term debt are summarized as follows: 

Due within the twelve months ending December 31, 
$ In millions 

^ ' " • • ' - ' • • - • • • - - • ' ' • • s m A M^^SlSi iW^^^ i l iM§l i?M^Mt^t l ! i3^^^ t fW 
2016 615 1 
W ^ - v . ^ - ^ . 401 
2018 60 1 

200 1 
Thereafter 1,227 7 

^m ^ 12.1,63 2 
Unamortized discounts and premiums net 
iligtalJI^mMebt 

(3 5) 
• » * , • ? 

c ^ ; ^ ^ \ • ' * • 1 . .^ : ^ z • - * j - i S i ^ - . -«s -2,159 7 

Premiums or discounts recognized at the Merger date are amortized over the life of the debt using the effective 
interest method. 

On December 4, 2008, the OAQDA Issued $100.0 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued 
corresponding first mortgage bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on 
each series of the bonds when due is backed by a standby letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 
This letter of credit facility, which expires in June 2018, is irrevocable and has no subjective acceleration clauses. 
Fees associated with this letter of credit facility were not material during the years ended December 31, 2014, 
2013 and 2012. 

On May 10, 2013, DP&L entered Into a $300.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated 
bank group. This $300.0 million facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018, a $100.0 million letter of 
credit sublimit and a feature which provides DP&L the ability to Increase the size of the facility by an additional 
$100.0 million. At December 31, 2014, there were two letters of credit In the amount of $0.7 million outstanding, 
with the remaining $299.3 million available to DP&L. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were not 
material during the years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013. 

DP&L's unsecured revolving credit agreement and DP&L's amended standby letters of credit have two financial 
covenants, the first being Total Debt to Total Capitalization and the second being EBITDA to Interest Expense. 
The EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio is calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by dividing EBITDA for the 
four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same period. 

On March 1, 2011, DP&L completed the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets 
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base (WPAFB). DP&L financed 
the acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that Is payable monthly over 50 
years and bears interest at 4.2% per annum. 

On September 19, 2013, DP&L closed a $445.0 million issuance of senior secured first mortgage bonds. These 
new bonds mature on September 15, 2016, and are secured by DP&L's First & Refunding Mortgage. 
Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the First and Refunding 
Mortgage. 
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On May 10, 2013, DPL entered Into a $200.0 million unsecured term loan agreement. This term loan has a five 
year term expiring on May 10, 2018; however, if DPL has not either: (a) prepaid the full $200.0 million term loan 
balance; or (b) refinanced Its senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then the maturity 
of this DPL term loan shall be July 15, 2016. This term loan amortizes at 5% of the original balance per quarter 
from September 2014 to maturity. As of December 31, 2014 there was $160 million outstanding on this Term 
Loan. Fees associated with this new term loan were not material during the years ended December 31, 2014 or 
2013. 

On May 10, 2013, DPL entered Into a $100.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility. This facility has a $100.0 
million letter of credit sublimit and a feature which provides DPL the ability to increase the size of the facility by an 
additional $50.0 million. This facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018; however, if DPL has not 
refinanced its senior unsecured bonds due October 2016 before July 15, 2016, then the maturity of this DPL 
credit facility shall be July 15, 2016. As of December 31, 2014 there was one letter of credit issued In the amount 
of $2.3 million, with the remaining $97.7 million available to DPL. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility 
were not materia! during the years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013. 

DPL's unsecured revolving credit agreement and unsecured term loan have two financial covenants. The first 
financial covenant, a Total Debt to EBITDA ratio. Is calculated at the end of each fiscal quarter by dividing total 
debt at the end of the current quarter by consolidated EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters. The second 
financial covenant is an EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio that is calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by 
dividing EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for the same period. 

DPL's unsecured revolving credit agreement and unsecured term loan restrict dividend payments from DPL to 
AES and adjust the cost of borrowing under the facilities under certain credit rating scenarios. 

In connection with the closing of the Merger, DPL assumed $1,250.0 million of debt that Dolphin Subsidiary II, 
Inc., a subsidiary of AES, issued on October 3, 2011 to partially finance the Merger. The $1,250.0 million was 
issued in two tranches. The first tranche was $450.0 million of five year senior unsecured notes issued with a 
6.50% coupon maturing on October 15, 2016. The second tranche was $800.0 million of ten year senior 
unsecured notes issued with a 7.25% coupon maturing on October 15, 2021. In December 2013, DPL 
executed an Open Market Repurchase Program and successfully bought back $20 million of the first tranche of 
five year senior unsecured notes issued with a 6.50% coupon and $20 million of the second tranche of ten year 
senior unsecured notes issued with a 7.25% coupon. Subsequent to repurchasing these bonds DPL immediately 
retired them. 

On September 6, 2014, DPL announced its intent to purchase a maximum of $280.0 million of aggregate 
principal of the Senior Unsecured bonds maturing October 2016 through a tender offer. On October 6, 2014, 
DPL increased the maximum amount of the tender to $300.0 million and on October 20th the tender expired. 
DPL settled the $300.0 million on October 6th through (a) net proceeds from a $200.0 million Senior Unsecured 
note Issuance (maturing October 2019 and priced at 6.75%); (b) a draw on the DPL revolving line of credit and 
(c) cash on hand. 

In October 2014, DPL repaid $5.0 million of the note due to Capital Trust II, which used the funds to repurchase 
securities in the open market at a slight premium. Subsequent to repurchasing these securities Capital Trust II 
Immediately retired them. 
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NOTE 7 - INCOME TAXES 

DPL's components of income tax expense were as follows: 

$ in millions __ 
Computation of tax expense 

Years ended December 31, 
2014 2013 2012 

S^iiiij^^^aMSgiii^gi^iig^^iji^lSWi^^ 
Increases (decreases) in tax resulting from: 
I State'iricaiie^^(e^et''Of feaeraLtffeU " . 4.2 h7 35 

Depreciation of AFUDC - Equity 
I ln\^iment'^ta^credit-a.m.ortize"d." . 

Section 199-domestic production deduction 

(M) 
. . ^ ' 

(1.1) 

-^JHl 
„_r:.(Q5)_ 

-124) 
J0.3) 

Mt 

Non-dedtfctibJe'mer^irrelated.^compensatiorf. 
Non-deducttbie goodwill impairment 
MilEMi^itflM^^^^BW^^etreS:^^gt= 

(2J) 

06 
47.5 107.2 636.0 
mm siiasM]^ mm. 

Other, net (b) 0.7 (0.1) 1.2 

Components of tax expense 
!i#M^^^^^^IMftiiiMfe^^^^^^8l^^^-l M^& 

0 9 07 
0.8" -2 5 

1 2 
49 8 

m^ Ml -^-•^""i^ r ISi, 
: ? 18^ 

State and local - deferred 06 1 7 
| a i i i i ^ i f i i ^ ^^^> -v r -i > i " - • - - > , 17.2' -19 8 . - . 

^(49) 
28 

(21) 

ft^iijS ^M^^^M^^ •.$-r-^^^^j&t8.0^"j-$.^ ..^^--.^,22^3 -$. . X. 477 

94 



Table of Contents 

Components of Deferred Tax Assets and Liabil i t ies 

$ in millions 

Net non-current Assets / (Liabil i t ies) 

December 3 1 , 
2014 2013 

Income taxes recoverable _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ _ ^ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ (14.8) (11.4) 

Irivestment tax credit _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 1.5 1.0 
B S o m ^ ^ i ^ M M ^ i i ^ M ^ l f i t s ^ ^ t e ^ ^ l i ^ i ^ ^ ^ l i g g i g S i f ^ ^ Q-m^^--

Intengibles (7.0) (2.0) 

other '̂'̂  _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ ^ (2 5) 0 8 

a^rsiMWWiMliiigbiiities. J . . $ ! r < » - .:£^J587.3y 4 . (564 3) _ 

l i i i g i ^ i ^ ^ R f e i a b m t l g s ) ' ^ 
Other 

a i ^ W i i i l ^ t ^ i l i a b i l i t i e s ) . , 
$ 1 1 $ (2 6) 

' ^ ^ -p-^i^ 1.t $ 

(a) The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied to pre-tax earnings. 
(b) Includes expense of $0.4 million, $0.0 million and benefits of $1.2 million in the years ended December31,2014 2013, and 2012, 

respectively, of income tax related to adjustments from prior years. 
(c) The Other non-current liabilities caption includes deferred tax assets of $27.1 million in 2014 and $20.7 million in 2013 related to 

state and local tax net operating loss carryforwards, net of related valuation allowances of $21.9 million in 2014 and $16.6 million 
in 2013. These net operating loss carryforwards expire from 2014 to 2027. 

(d) Amounts are included within Other prepayments ^id current assets and Other current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheets of DPL. 

The following table presents the tax expense / (benefit) related to pensions, postemployment benefits, cash flow 
hedges and financial instruments that were credited to Accumulated other comprehensive loss. 

Years ended December 3 1 , 
in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Account ing for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
We apply the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in Income taxes. A reconciliation of 
the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows: 

$ in millions 
^^^^^m^imii^mmmm^mmi^^mm^^^^^^^^smmwmm&M 

Calendar 2013 _ _ . „ _ _ _ 

^5Pl'^J^L?A^^.'J.^°^.k'!^!.^,?J'°I'^^ (6.9) 

Balance at December 31 , 2013 

Calendar 2014 

8.8 

(8.6) Lapse of Statute of Limitations 

Of the December 31 , 2014 balance of unrecognized tax benefits, $0.9 million is due to uncertainty in the timing of 
deductibility. 

We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income tax expense. The amounts 
accrued as well as the expense / (benefit) recorded were not material for the years ended December 31 , 2014, 
2013 and 2012. 
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Following is a summary of the tax years open to examination by major tax jurisdiction: 
U.S. Federal - 2010 and forward 
State and Local - 2010 and forward 

t^one of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly Increase or decrease within the next twelve 
months other than those subject to expiring statutes of limitations. 

The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second 
quarter of 2010. The results of the examination were approved by the Joint Committee on Taxation on January 
18, 2013. As a result of the examination, DPL received a refund of $19.9 million and recorded a $1.2 million 
reduction to income tax expense. 

NOTE 8 - PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

DP&L sponsors a traditional defined benefit pension plan for most of the employees of DPL and its subsidiaries. 
For collective bargaining employees, the defined benefits are based on a specific dollar amount per year of 
sen/Ice. For all other employees (management employees), the traditional defined benefit pension plan is based 
primarily on compensation and years of service. As of December 31, 2010, this traditional pension plan was 
closed to new management employees. A participant Is 100% vested In all amounts credited to his or her 
account upon the completion of five vesting years, as defined in The Dayton Power and Light Company 
Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's employment is terminated, other 
than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his or her account, the account 
shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. In December 2013, an agreement was signed, effective January 
1, 2014, whereby the Service Company began providing services including accounting, legal, human resources. 
Information technology and other corporate services on behalf of companies that are part of the U.S. SBU, 
including among other companies, DPL and DP&L. Employees that transferred from DP&L to the Service 
Company maintain their previous eligibility to participate In the DP&L pension plan. 

Almost all management employees beginning employment on or after January 1, 2011 participate In a cash 
balance pension plan. Similar to the traditional pension plan for management employees, the cash balance 
benefits are based on compensation and years of service. A participant shall become 100% vested in all 
amounts credited to his or her account upon the completion of three vesting years, as defined In The Dayton 
Power and Light Company Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's 
employment Is terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his 
or her account, the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Vested benefits in the cash balance 
plan are fully portable upon termination of employment. 

In addition, we have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERF) for certain retired key executives. The 
SERP has an immaterial unfunded liability related to agreements for retirement benefits of certain terminated and 
retired key executives. We also include our net liability to our partners related to our share of their pension costs 
within Pension, retiree and other benefits on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and. In addition, make voluntary contributions from 
time to time. There were no contributions during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

Qualified employees who retired prior to 1987 and their dependents are eligible for health care and life insurance 
benefits until their death, while qualified employees who retired after 1987 are eligible for life insurance benefits 
and partially subsidized health care. The partially subsidized health care is at the election of the employee, who 
pays the majority of the cost, and Is available oniy from their retirement until they are covered by Medicare. We 
have funded a portion of the union-eligible benefits using a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust. 

We recognize an asset for a plan's overfunded status and a liability for a plan's underfunded status and 
recognize, as a component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that 
are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. For the transmission and distribution areas of 
our electric business, these amounts are recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities which represent the 
regulated portion that would otherwise be charged or credited to AOCI. We have historically recorded these 
costs on the accrual basis and this is how these costs have been historically recovered through customer rates. 
This factor, combined with the historical precedents from the PUCO and FERC, make these costs probable of 
future rate recovery. 
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The following tables set forth the changes in our pension and postemployment benefit plans' obligations and 
assets recorded on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The amounts presented in the 
following tables for pension include the collective bargaining plan formula, traditional management plan formula 
and cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate. The amounts presented for postemployment 
include both health and life insurance benefits. 
$ In milHpns Pension 

Year ended Year ended 
December 31,2014 December 31, 2013 

Change in benefit obligation 

Service cost 5.9 

io^ iSK^sl^ 
Plan amendnrients 
i i lMttiglitl l l^lOS^^^ ^̂  „, 

17.5 
1-2 

15.6 
6.8 

67.3 ^(265) 
Benefits paid _ . . . . , (24.2) (21.4) 

Change in plan assets _^ 

Actual return on^plan assets 46.4 8.7 

Benefjtspaid _ (24,2) (21.4) 

}m^mm^^^^wim^mm^^^m^^^mu^mtM^^SMM(^4). 

$ in millions Postretirement 

Year ended Year ended 
December 31,2014 December 31, 2013 

Change in benefit obligation 
^gniOMi^in^M«^agd^^iitir:i^ia^Ms« 
Service cost 0.2 0.2 

Actuarial (gain)/loss^ 0.2 (2.2) 

Benefit obligation at end of period 19.6 19J^ 

Contributions to plan assets 0.9 1.0 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 3.3 3.7 
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$ in millions Pension Postretirement 

Amounts recognized in the Balance sheets 

December 31, December 31, 
2014 2013 2014 2013 

Non-current liabilities ^̂^ (71.7) ^ ^ ' ' ^ l ,. ^15.8) (15.5) 

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets 
and Regulatory Liabilities, pre-tax 
Components: 

_ $ 14._1 $_ _ .88__$ 0,4 $ 
103.4 63_0 ' (5.0) 

05 
(6 0) 

$ ^ 117.5 ,^$ 71 8 ?$ iia-? (5 5) 

Recorded as: 

^^^^^^^^K^M^KiS^^^^^^^^^^^^^SiaM^il^HBffiiEil^ 
Regulatory liability iiS)^ (5^_ 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, 
Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities, 
pre-tax $ 117.5 $ 71.8 $ (4.6) $ (5.5) 

The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $431.0 million and $359.8 million at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The net periodic benefit cost (Income) of the pension and postemployment benefit plans were: 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost - Pension 

$ in millions 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2014 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2013 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2012 
mrn̂ m^̂ r̂nmmmmmmB^mmmmî mmmmmmmmî ^mmwsmm^ 
Interest cost 17.5 15.6 17.3 

Amortization of unrecognized: Amortization otunrecc?ĝ ^̂ ^̂  

Prior service cost 1.5 1.5 
mm& :̂ 

^ 1.5 1.5 1.5 
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost - Postret irement 

$ in millions 

Year ended 
December 3 1 , 

2014 

Year ended 
December 31, 

2013 

Year ended 
December 31 , 

2012 

Interest cost 
m̂ 0.8 0 8 0 9 

jj^^i^ellBQJ&n^'a^ssets-^ (0.2). A.J2.̂ SiQA)l. _(03) 
Amortization of unrecognized 

Net periodic benefit cost 
(0.6) - - ( 0 - 5 ) ^ ioei 

$ 0.2 $ 0.4 $ 0.1 

(a) For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA) 
is used. GAAP requires that the difference between actual plan asset retums and estimated plan asset returns be amortized into 
the MRVA equally over a period not to exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the difference between 
actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of expected 
return on pension plan assets was approximately $361.0 million in 2014, $351.2 million in 2013, and $346.0 million in 2012. 

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obl igat ion Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabil i t ies 

Pension 

$ in millions 

Year ended 
December 3 1 , 

2014 

Year ended 
December 31 , 

2013 

Year ended 
December 3 1 

2012 

nmĉ m^mm^̂ mm^m^mmmŜ ^̂ ^̂ m^̂ ^mmmmmmMmm^̂ mm 
Prior service cost 
Reversal of amortization item-

6.8 

H M ) . nm^ 150) 
Prior service cost (15) (15)^ (15) 

1ioryfA.sselfanjf^^ T.^^^.^^^^, ^ . .̂  ^ . ^ 
•.? .-. "-..^S- ^ t ^ ^ 4 5 : - 7 f ^ $ ^ - ^ . ^ „ ( 1 8 4 ^ 1 (10) 
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Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities (cont) 

Postretirement 

Year ended Year ended Year ended 
December 31, December 31, December 31, 

$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Reversal of arriortization Item _ ^ ^__ _ _ 
b N J M ^ i t r i a a i n ?'̂ '" " ^ " ^ . : ^ . > . ^ " ^ . ^ -̂  ^ ^ ' . _ "^ ^ 0 5 ^ ^ 07 

Total recognized In Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets and 
Regulatory Liabilities $ I X $ (1.5) $ 1.7 

les-/'^ ^-_$ . ^̂ -̂ ^ J^2^-$: ^ . ( 1 1 ) $ 

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from AOCI, Regulatory assets and Regulatory liabilities into net 
periodic benefit costs during 2015 are: 
$ in millions Pension Postretirement 
w&m^^^m^^m^m^^^^m^^zmmmM^w^m^MMmmiMm^r,^ ^. , ,(0 5) 
Prior service cost $ 2.0 $ 

Our expected return on plan asset assumptions, used to determine benefit obligations, are based on historical 
long-term rates of return on investments, which use the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with 
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as inflation and interest 
rates, as well as asset diversification and portfolio rebalancing, are evaluated when long-term capital market 
assumptions are determined. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to verify reasonableness and 
appropriateness. 

For 2015, we are decreasing our expected long-term rate of return assumption to 6.50% from 6.75% for pension 
plan assets. In addition, we are decreasing our long-term rate of return assumption from to 4.50% from 6.00% 
for other postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return represent our long-term assumptions based 
on our current portfolio mixes. Also, for 2015, we have decreased our assumed discount rate to 4.02% from 
4.86% for pension and to 3.71% from 4.58% for postemployment benefits expense to reflect current duration-
based yield curve discount rates. A one percent change in the rate of return assumption for pension would result 
in an increase or decrease to the 2015 pension expense of approximately $3.5 million. A 25 basis point increase 
in the discount rate for pension would result in a decrease of approximately $0.5 million to 2015 pension 
expense. A 25 basis point decrease In the discount rate for pension would result in an increase of approximately 
$0.8 million to 2015 pension expense. 

In determining the discount rate to use for valuing liabilities, we used a market yield curve on high-quality fixed 
income Investments as of December 31, 2014. We project the expected benefit payments under the plan based 
on participant data and based on certain assumptions concerning mortality, retirement rates, termination rates, 
etc. The expected benefit payments for each year are then discounted back to the measurement date using the 
appropriate spot rate for each half-year from the yield curve, thereby obtaining a present value of all expected 
future benefit payments using the yield curve. Finally, an equivalent single discount rate is determined which 
produces a present value equal to the present value determined using the full yield curve. 
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The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at December 31, 2014,2013 and 2012 
were: 
Benefit Obligation Assumptions Pension Postretirement 

__ 2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 
3i&Ea)Mijilf6SBfiqirti^^^ 
Rate of connpensation increases 3.94% 3.94% 3.94% N/A N/A N/A 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (income) for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were: 

Net Periodic Benefit 
Cost / (Income) Assumptions Pension Postretirement 

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 
m^M^ri0^%^^^ :̂§^m^"^ ';^^^^5^^^?ili6l^^^iiMiftlM^^iliiit^^^ 
Expected rate of return 
on plan assets 6.75% 6.75% ,7-00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 
^ilt^(W[iiM[omincpe^el^a^^ 

The assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 
Health Care Cost Assumptions Expense Benefit Obligation 

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 
Pre-age 65 _ „ _ _ 

iMiST^K^^^8iit i^jriyiB8^B^j^#jSJ6lo^^ 

Current health care cost trend rate 6.75% 7.50% 8.00% 6.97% 6.75% 7.50% 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ B i 8 P B l P K g B S S ^ ^ ^ S l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i S ^ ^ ^ 2 i ^ l ^ ^ i i ^ Q 2 ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ 

The assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 
one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the net 
periodic postemployment benefit cost and the accumulated postemployment benefit obligation: 

Effect of change in health care cost trend rate 
One-percent One-percent 

$ In millions increase decrease 

Benefit obligation $ 1.0 $ (0.9) 

Benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows: 
Estimated future benefit payments and Medicare Part D reimbursements 
$ In niillions due within the following years: ^ Pension Postretirement 

2016 ^ .̂,._ _ $ 25.2 $ 1.8 

2018 _^ J _ , _ ^ ^ ^ . 2 6 ^ $ 1.6 

2020-2024 $ 137.0 $ 6.1 

We expect to make contributions of $0.4 million to our SERP in 2015 to cover benefit payments. We also expect 
to contribute $1.9 million to our other postemployment benefit plans in 2015 to cover benefit payments. We do 
not expect to make any contributions to our pension plan during 2015. 
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The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Act) contained new requirements for our single employer defined benefit 
pension plan. In addition to establishing a 100% funding target for plan years beginning after December 31, 
2008, the Act also limits some benefits if the funded status of pension plans drops below certain thresholds. 
Among other restrictions under the Act, if the funded status of a plan falls below a predetermined ratio of 80%, 
lump-sum payments to new retirees are limited to 50% of amounts that othenwise would have been paid and new 
benefit improvements may not go into effect. Forthe 2014 plan year, the funded status of our defined benefit 
pension plan as calculated under the requirements of the Act was 113.86% and Is estimated to be 113.86% until 
the 2015 status is certified in September 2015 for the 2015 plan year. The Worker, Retiree, and Employer 
Recovery Act of 2008 (WRERA), which was signed into law on December 23, 2008, grants plan sponsors certain 
relief from funding requirements and benefit restrictions of the Act. 

Plan Assets 
Plan assets are Invested using a total return Investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, debt 
securities and other investments are used to preserve asset values, diversify risk and achieve our target 
Investment return benchmark. Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on careful consideration of 
plan liabilities, the plan's funded status and our financial condition. Investment performance and asset allocation 
are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis. 

Plan assets are managed in a balanced portfolio comprised of two major components: an equity portion and a 
fixed income portion. The expected role of plan equity investments is to maximize the long-term real growth of 
plan assets, while the role of fixed income investments Is to generate current income, provide for more stable 
periodic returns and provide some protection against a prolonged decline in the market value of plan equity 
investments. 

Long-term strategic asset allocation guidelines are determined by management and take into account the Plan's 
long-term objectives as well as its short-term constraints. The target allocations for plan assets are 2 - 41% for 
equity securities, 60 - 82% for fixed income securities and 8 - 1 6 % for other investments. Equity securities 
include U.S. and international equity, while fixed income securities include long-duration and high-yield bond 
funds and emerging market debt funds. Other investments Include hedge funds that follow several different 
strategies. 

Most of our Plan assets are measured using quoted, observable prices which are considered Level One inputs in 
the Fair Value Hierarchy. The Core property collective fund and the Common collective fund are measured using 
Level Two inputs that are quoted prices for identical assets in markets that are less active. 

The following table summarizes the Company's target pension plan allocation for 2014: 
Target 

_______________ ^ _ Allocation 

Debt Securities _ 69%_ __ 

other 6% 
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31 , 2014 by asset category are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31,2014 

Asset Category 
$ i n millions 

Market Value 
at December 

31,2014 

Equity securi t ies '̂ ^ 
J M W i ^ ^ ^ g u i t v ••• ^ _ 
Larpe^pemi t i 

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
markets for 

identical 
assets 
(Level 1) 

Signif icant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

^ . _ _ $ .10,6._J. 
22.2 
^8.2_V^ 

2.8 

._io.-6._$: 

^ 2 ^ 

2.8 

Signif icant 
un observable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

- $. 

:^-#g^^M%^i i ic ia^g^^MiMa^i§|g i^^ 
Total equity securities 65.4 65.4 

D^bt securit ies 
; •» , • ; 

(b) 

High yield bond 6.5 6.5 

Total debt securities 255.2 255.2 

^ s h a n d cash eauivatents '̂̂ -̂  ^ _ _ ^̂ ^ ^̂  .^..-^...^, ^- . .••- ^ 

o ther investments '̂̂ ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ 
^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ [ i i O M f u n d i ^ ^ ^ : # y a g ^ # ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ M ^ g ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ l 3 l ^ M i ^ 
CorniTion c d fund 23.2 - 23.2 

(a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of 
foreign companies including those in developing countries. 

(b) This category includes investments in inves^ent-grade fixed-income instruments that are designed to mirror the tenn of the 
pension assets and generally have a tenor between 10 and 30 years. 

(c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value. 
id) This category represents a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different 

hedge strategies. 
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31, 2013 

Asset Category 
$ in millions 

Market Value 
at December 

31,2013 

Equity securities *̂ ^ 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical 
assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

yiX-Ei!?3?E,SSSW 

'SfhW/lMM /afe "^^ 
Large cap equity 

10 5 / $ , . - ' - . / to 5.-$; ! _ _ . 
20 8 20 8 
203^ r,20.3 

Emerging markets equity 32 32 
Itiina^^iiffil ^10.5" 10 5 , , „ 
Total equity secunties 

Debt securities?^ 

65.3 65.3 

High yield bond ^ 6.9 6.9 -^ ^ _ _ j ^ 
l^WiPiliiKKl^li^fe#^^;»^i^5^^^^2^^i^i^ 
Total debt securities 236.8 236.8 

Cash and cash equivalents ^̂^ 

" " ^ ^ 3 5 " ^ - ^ - ^ JS' ?235. 
Common collective fund 22 6 - 22 6 

461^K-..4 ^.V--^^^.-s^? ^" ' 346-1 ; 

(a) This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of 
foreign companies including those in developing countries. 

(b) This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments that are designed to mirror the term of the 
pension assets and generally have a tenor between 10 and 30 years. 

(c) This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value. 
(d) This category represents a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different 

hedge strategies. 
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The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2014 by asset category are as 
follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Postemployment Benefit Plan Assets at December 31,2014 

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
Market Value markets for Significant Significant 
at December identical observable unobservable 

31,2014 assets inputs inputs 
Asset Category 
$ in millions 

(Level 1) _ (Le_vel_2)_ 
_3.'2:_$_ L . ^ • 2 \ j _ , _ : - $, 

(Level 3) 
H i W i i S ^ t ' B o n d Fund ^ . - $ 

(a) This caXe r̂̂  '\nc\u6Bs mvesXmer\ts in U.S. govemment obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. 

The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as 
follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Postemployment Benefit Plan Assets at December 31, 2013 

Asset Category 
$ in millions 

Market Value 
at December 

31,2013 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 
identical 
assets 
(Level 1) 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 
(Level 2) 

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs 
(Level 3) 

(a) This category includes Investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. 

NOTE 9 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The fair values of our financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on 
valuation models only when no other method is available to us. The fair value of our financial Instruments 
represents estimates of possible value that may or may not be realized in the future. The table below presents 
the fair value and cost of our non-derivative Instruments at December 31, 2014 and 2013. See Note 10 for the 
fair values of our derivative Instruments. 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 
$ in millions Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 
Assets 

Eouitv securities 2.7 3.7 3.3 4.4 

HedgeFunds 0.8 0.8 , . „ 0-9 0.9 

Total assets $ 8.7 $ 9.7 $ 10.3 $ 11.5 

Debt 
Unrealized gains or losses are not recognized in the financial statements as debt is presented at the carrying 
value, net of unamortized premium or discount in the financial statements. The debt amounts include the current 
portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities that range from 2016 to 2061. 

Master Trust Assets 
DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating In 
ennployee benefit plans. These assets are primarily comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued 
using the net asset value per unit. These investments are recorded at fair value within Other deferred assets on 
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the balance sheets and classified as available for sale. Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI until 
the securities are sold. 

DPL had $0.8 million ($0.5 million aftertax) in unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master 
Trust assets in AOCI at December 31,2014 and $0.9 million ($0.6 million after tax) in unrealized gains and 
immaterial unrealized losses in AOCI at December 31, 2013. 

Various Investments were sold during the past twelve months to facilitate the distribution of benefits. During the 
past twelve months, $0.4 million ($0.2 million after tax) of unrealized gains were reversed Into earnings. Over the 
next twelve months, $0.4 million ($0.2 million after tax) of unrealized gains are expected to be reversed to 
earnings. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
Fair value Is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an 
exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability In an orderiy transaction between 
market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of 
obsen/able inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These Inputs are 
then categorized as: 

• Level 1 (quoted prices In active markets for identical assets or liabilities); 

• Level 2 (observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in 
markets that are not active); 

• Level 3 (unobservable Inputs). 

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with 
counterparty risk. We include our own credit risk and our counterparty's credit risk In our calculation of fair value 
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency. 

We did not have any transfers of the fair values of our financial Instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the 
fair value hierarchy during the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2014 measured on a recurring basis and the respective 
category within the fair value hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows: 

Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

$ in millions 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2014(a) 

Based on 
Quoted 
Prices 

in 
Active 

Markets 

Other 
observable 

inputs 
Unobservable 

inputs 
Assets 

Master trust assets 
SMon^^ i t g ^ i i i ^ i iM^^ i lP i t f m^ 

Equity securities 3.7 3.7 

HedgeFunds 0.8 - 0.8 

WMmM(i:M&^M&:^^ 
Total Master trust assets 

Derivative assets 

9.7 8.9 0.8 

P ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M f e ^ ^ ^ M ^ a ^ M ^ ^ i i M ^ 
Total derivative assets 14.9 13.7 1.2 

^ ^ j i ^ ^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ ^ # i ? S 

Liabilities 
^ l W ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ i M I P ^ $ i i l ^ M O i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i % ^ ^ ^ : ^ ^ ^ 

Heating oil futures 
^NIm^pa§lgtu. im^#^^^fesaT 

0.4 0.4 
^i^M^^i^!#lP^^^W^^Mii)i:M^^^^Mi^^iy^liSR 

Fonward power contracts 
^ 

11.1 11.1 
m^^m^^mmmmm^sm^m^^^mm^m^mm^^mmmm^mmmim 

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 measured on a recurring basis and the respective 
category within the fair value hierarchy for DPL was determined as follows: 

Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value 

$ in millions 
Assets 

Master trust assets 
N y p ^ i f i a r k i t ^ u n t l s " ^ ^. ~ ' -

Equity securities 
i f l ^ B t i ^ u r i t l e s < - , r ^ 
Hedge Funds 

l i « ^ i i ^ . < y:--: % - ~ 
Total Master trust assets 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2013(a) 

.,$„ ....- 0 3 , 
44 
55 
09 
0 4' 

11.5 

Level 1 

Based on 
Quoted Prices 

in 
Active Markets 

-$ 0 3 
44 

- 55 

0.4 
10.6 

Level 2 

Other 
observable 

inputs 

$ - . ^ " -
-

09 
u 

0.9 

Level 3 

Unobservable 
inputs 

$ -
-
-

-
-

Derivatlye assets _ ^ _ _ _ _ „ „ _ ^ 

Heating oil futures _ 0.2 ^ 0.2 - -

Total derivative assets 13.8 a2_ 13.4 0.2 

Liabilities 

Total deriyative liabilities 10.6 - .^^.IQ:^ ^ " 

Lonn-torm Hpht 2334 fi - ? ri1 fi 1 18.5 Long-term debt 2,316.1 

Total liabilities $ 2,345.2 $ $ 2,326.7 $ 18.5 

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 

Our financial Instruments are valued using the market approach in the following categories: 
• Level 1 inputs are used for derivative contracts such as heating oil futures and for money market 

accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is determined by reference to quoted 
market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions. 

• Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as forward power contracts and fon/vard NYMEX-quality 
coal contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for 
similar contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are 
in the Master Trust, which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which 
use observable inputs to populate a pricing model. 

• Level 3 inputs such as financial transmission rights are considered a Level 3 input because the monthly 
auctions are considered inactive. Our Level 3 inputs are immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole 
and as such no further disclosures are presented. 

Our debt is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted 
market prices in inactive markets. Ttiese fair value inputs are considered Level 2 In the fair value hierarchy. The 
WPAFB note Is not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value. These fair value inputs are 
considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs. Additional Level 3 disclosures 
were not presented since debt Is not recorded at fair value. 
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Approximately 97% of the Inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices. 

Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements 
We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected 
cash outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the 
approximate future disposal cost as determined by market information, historical information or other 
management estimates. These Inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under 
the fair value hierarchy. In 2014, AROs for asbestos, landfills, and river structures decreased by $1.5 million 
($1.0 million after tax) primarily due to the sale of a generation plant. The ARO for ash ponds was increased by 
$2.4 million ($1.6 million after tax) due to new rules issued by the USEPA In December 2014 that will be effective 
In June 2015. The December 2014 Increase of the AROs for ash ponds was limited to the ponds located at 
plants which are no longer in operation. Additional ash pond AROs will be recorded in the first quarter of 2015 for 
the ponds located at plants which remain in operation. There were no additions to our AROs during the year 
ended December 31, 2013. 

When evaluating impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets, we measure fair value using the applicable fair 
value measurement guidance. Impairment expense is measured by comparing the fair value at the evaluation 
date to the carrying amount. The following table summarizes major categories of assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the period and their level within the fair value hierarchy: 

$ in millions 

Assets 
Long-lived assets held and used '̂ ^ 

Carrying 
Amount 

Year ended December 31, 2014 
Fair Value 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Gross 
Loss 

Goodwill/^^ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

$ In millions 

Assets 
Long-lived assets held and used '̂ ^ 

Year ended December 31, 2013 
Carrying 
Amount Level 1 

Fair Value 
Level 2 Level 3 

Gross 
Loss 

Goodwill ̂ "̂  
| [ ^ l ^ i l ^ ^ ^ u l ^ l M ^ i M j ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ 2 ^ ^ P ^ ^ ^ i S M ^ ^ : # i ^ i ^ ^ ^ i ^ Q ^ ^ 

(a) See Note 15 for further information 
(b) See Note 5 for further information 

The following table summarizes the significant unobsen/able Inputs used In the Level 3 measurement of long-
lived assets during the year ended December 31, 2014: 

$ in millions 
Long-lived assets held and used: 

Fair 
Value Valuation Technique Unobservable input 

Range (Weighted 
Average) 

Annual pretax 
operating margin 3% to 34% (15%) 

NOTE 1 0 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

in the normal course of business, DPL enters into various financial Instruments, Including derivative financial 
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes in market prices for commodities and 
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Interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these 
risks are governed by our risk management policies for fonward and futures contracts. Our net positions are 
continually assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions 
are required. The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have 
adequate resources to meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our 
risk management processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market. 
All of our derivative instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges 
or not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, which we refer to as mark to market. 

At December 31, 2014, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments: 

Net 
Purchases/ 

Accounting Purchases Sales (Sales) 
Commodity Treatment Unit (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) 

^F^iSH^^E2SSSfiSMif f i i iW^^®M^i^SS^^ 
Heating Oil Futures ^ Mark to Market Gallons 378.0 378.0 

Cash Flow 
Forward Power Contracts Hedge MWh J75Xi (?>^^'^-^} (2,816.0) 

At December 31, 2013, DPL had the following outstanding derivative instruments: 

Net 
Purchases/ 

Accounting Purchases Sales (Sales) 
^ _ _ Commodity Treatment Unit (in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) 

' ^Bs^ . ^> . l sJ f . ..J^^T,"..'^"........ .... ^."Tl^arigtaMatkir^.... MOVJI.- ••"?," _^...r7X ..... , . 7 71 
Heating Oil Futures Markto Market Gallons 1428 0 ___ 1428 0 

= o n ^ d r R ^ ^ m c & S ' _ ^ " ^ ^ ' ""^'^r^ ^ % ' ^ y ^ e % ^ ^ ^ l j m m - ' ^ . , r^^ . ^ 1404^'. / ^ (4?7057) -̂ - (4.565 3) 

Fonward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 3,177.8 (2.883.1) 294.7 

Cash Flow Hedges 
As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and 
hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
The fair values of cash flow hedges determined by current public market prices will continue to fluctuate with 
changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized 
in AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged 
transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probable of not occurring. The ineffective 
portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized In earnings in the current period. All risk components were taken 
into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges. 

We enter into fonward power contracts to manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of 
electricity and our sale of retail power to third parties through our subsidiary DPLER. We do not hedge all 
commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts from AOCI Into earnings in 
those periods In which the contracts settle. 

We also entered into interest rate derivative contracts to manage interest rate exposure related to anticipated 
borrowings of fixed-rate debt. These interest rate derivative contracts were settled in the third quarter of 2013. 
We do not hedge all interest rate exposure. We reclassify gains and losses on interest rate derivative hedges out 
of AOCI and into earnings in those periods in which hedged interest payments occur. 
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The following table provides information for DPL concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash flow 
hedges: 

Year ended December Year ended December Year ended December 
31,2014 31,2013 31.2012 

$ in millions (net of tax) Power 

Interest 
Rate 

Hedges 

Interest Interest 
Rate Rate 

Power Hedges Power Hedges 
:̂  ^ 

i <&^^@c iy^ - y " - ^ , $ ^ 1.4 ^$,fc:>-/%^2r#^̂ (3-o)M^̂ >->,.:o5^$ "̂ os $r 
|§@S^MUjaS#i/riyatiN5er ^ ^ "4^ V V, . ; " 5fr/^:#dlXC ' 

(QJ) 

| M a w f t ^ » ) ^ 4 c i a t e d : ^ i t h 
lurpMM^I^dgrofrl!:MaM!t^ns 0MI ^-. lQWg"f^18^7." . _(2J)_ 1 1 

Net gains reclassified to earnings: 
m^m^^^^S^M^m^^M^^f^mmm^^SM^^i^^^^^M^ ::-,0:2' 

Revenues 18.3 2.1 

iittiijy^^Si^^ai^^ii^^^i^ 
(OZ). 

Ending accumulated derivative gain 
/ (loss) in AOCI $ 0.2 $ 18.3 $ 1.4 $ 19.2 $ (3.0) $_ 0.5 

Net gains / (losses) associated with 
the ineffective portion of the hedging 
transaction 

A. „ZSIZIiZIIZIZEiSZElii--^_8_ii_ $ 0 2 

i ^a^ f i ed 
:t\̂ lve V ' 

t ^ 

' ..^/ %i-..^.%.-?i«;- .^ $-'' -̂ -":3 5.-$< ..x.i€'9i\^^'^-?'^^^€ f 

(a) The actual amounts that vt/e reclassify from AOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market 
price changes. 

Mark to Market Accounting 
Certain derivative contracts are entered Into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do 
not qualify for hedge accounting or the normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC 815. Accordingly, 
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the consolidated 
statements of results of operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as 
"MTM accounting." Contracts we enter Into as part of our risk management program may be settled financially, 
by physical delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures and certain 
forward power contracts. 

Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts, 
as provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as norma! purchases or normal sales 
under GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the consolidated statements of 
results of operations on an accrual basis. 
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Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery in future rates should 
be deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that Is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred 
as a regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and 
are related to the retail portion of DP&L's load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased 
power recovery rider approved bythe PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers' 
portion of the heating oil futures are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the contracts settle, if these 
unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our rates, they will be 
reclassified into earnings in the period such determination is made. 

The following tables show the amount and classification within the consolidated statements of results of 
operations or balance sheets of the gains and losses on DPL's derivatives not designated as hedging 
instruments for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012: 

$ in millions 

Year ended December 31,2014 

Heating Oil FTRs Power Natural Gas Total 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments __^ _ „ ^ 

Realized gain/(loss) (0.1) 0J^ , . ^___^_ (3 ,6 ) ^^^_^0^ (0.1) (3.1) 
mil 

Recorded on Balance Sheet: 
w^^^^m^^^mmS3Mmmmw^^^^m^mm^^^^^^mmm0m^^ 

Fuel (0-6) 
( 5 ^ 
(0-6) 

Mmm^^m^m^^MMmm^^mm^mmm^^^^^^^^^jmSS^^kM^ 

Year ended December 31,2013 

$ in millions Heating Oil FTRs Power Total 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

Realized gain . _ _ _ „ 0-"' I-?.. 1.1 2.4 

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss) 

Purchased Power 1.5 1.7 3.2 ^mmm^m^ss^^^^^^^mmmm^mm 
O&M 
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Year ended December 31, 2012 

$ in millions 
NYMEX 

Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total 
periyatives riot designated as hedging instruments 

gilSSgig^izlcMiiMi^jl^itt$l^--^i^ 
Realized gain / (loss (29.5) 1.9 0.5 (5.0) (32.1 
mm^̂ Sm^̂ ^mmM^̂ î ^m^M^̂ ^̂ M^̂ ^̂ mM^̂ ^MimMMm^A^ 
Recorded on Balance Sheet: 
fm^mmm^̂ m^m ŝ̂ ^̂ sŝ emm^mî mŝ ^mmmm E^MSEMM. 
Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.0 

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / (loss) 

(0.6) 0.4 

î ^M^̂ ^mmmm^m^me<m 
" 4.7 Purchased Power 0.3 4.4 

BMtt#i^^-x-5;:i^ (20 2 ) ^ M ^ a i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ S f g l ^ C T M ; ^ # a : ,̂ .̂ 9̂̂ 5) 
O&M 

:#S^Qt'al•^^^..^•^#^• . .^ iSir. 
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DPL's derivative Instruments at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013. 

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments 
December 31,2014 

Gross Amounts Not 
Offset in the 

Consolidated Balance 
Sheets 

$ in millions 

Gross Fair 
Value as Financial 

presented in Instruments 
the with Same 

Consolidated Counterparty 
Hedging Balance in Offsetting 

Designation Sheets (a) Position 
Cash 

Collateral 
Assets 

Net 
Amount 

Short-term derivative positions (presented in Other current assets) 

Forward power contracts MTM 5.5 (3.4) 2.1 

Total assets $ 14.9 $ (6.6) $ - $ 8.3 

Liabilities 
Short-term derivative positions (presented in Other current liabilities) 

Forward power contracts MTM 7.5 (3.4) (4.1) 

M ^ ^ ^ ^ t e ^ ^ ^ i i ^ ^ ^ i i § ^ ( u i ^ ^ ^ i m ^ ^ ^ l M ^ g i ^ t e M ^ # s # » # ^ 
Heating oil futures MTM 0.4 (M) 

^ i M i m M ^ ^ ^ i ^ P ^ l S B # ^ ^ t ^ i M i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ < K P M ^ I » 

Long-term derivatiye positions ^̂  !^,t?rj^. *-'̂ *̂ .'L'*Ĵ ®l.. „ ^̂  _ ^ ^̂^̂  

Forward power contracts MTM 0.9 (0.9) 

^^OTalflialMliti@^^Ma^jf^iS"^^#^-.^5',:v^^T^'-y^^\iSp^^ 

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 

As of December 31, 2014, the above table includes Fonward power contracts in a short-term asset position of 
$11.1 million. This table does not Include a short-term asset position of $0.1 million of Fonward power contracts 
that had been, but no longer need to be, accounted for as derivatives at fair value that are to be amortized to 
earnings over the remaining term of the associated fonward contract. 
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Fair Values of Derivative Instruments 
December 31,2013 

Gross Amounts Not Offset 
in the Consolidated 

Balance Sheets 

Hedging 
Designation 

Gross Fair 
Value as 

presented in 
the 

Consolidated 
Balance 

Sheets (a) 

Financial 
Instruments 
with Same 

Counterparty 
in Offsetting 

Position 
Cash 

Collateral $ in nnillions Designation Sheets (a) Position Collateral Net Amount 
Assets 
Short-term derivative positions (presented in Other current assets) ^ 
»i i ia^^^ in^^Ml ; ; -€^^^^^ iMMi§^^a^^ i81#^l : (^^ 
Fonward power contracts ^ ™ , .,.,. . _,._ 4.9 ('^•2),. „ ^ 0.7 

Heating oil futures MTM 0.2 - (0.2) 

Fonward power contracts MTM 5.0 (0.3) - 4.7 

Liabilities 
Sĥ ort-term deriyative positî ^̂  

Forward power contracts MTM 6.6 (4.2) (2.3) 0.1 

I M ^ i i l ^ i i ^ i ^ ^ S i l l » a a ^ ^ ^ g M i i ^ ^ 
(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 

As of December 31, 2013, this table includes Fonward power contracts In a short-term asset position of $5.4 
million and a long-term asset position of $8.0 million. This table does not include a short-term asset position of 
$0.9 million or a long'term asset position of $0.1 million of Fon/vard power contracts that had been, but no longer 
need to be, accounted for as derivatives at fair value that are to be amortized to earnings over the remaining term 
of the associated forward contract. 

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions 
that require our debt to maintain an Investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. Since our debt 
has fallen below investment grade, we are in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative 
instruments could request immediate payment or demand Immediate and ongoing full overnight col lateralization 
of the MTM loss. Since our debt has fallen below Investment grade, some of our counterparties to the derivative 
instruments have requested collateralization of the MTM loss. 

The aggregate fair value of DPL's derivative instruments that are in a MTM loss position at December 31, 2014 is 
$12.2 million. This amount is offset by $4.9 million of collateral posted directly with third parties and in a broker 
margin account which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This liability position is further offset by 
the asset position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $6.6 million. Since our debt is below 
investment grade, we could have to post collateral for the remaining $0.7 million. 
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NOTE 11 - REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK 

DP&L has $100 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, of which 228,508 were outstanding as of 
December 31, 2014. DP&L also has $25 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, none of which 
was outstanding as of December 31, 2014. The table below details the preferred shares outstanding at 
December 31, 2014: 

December 31, 2014 and Carrying Value ^̂^ 
2013 ($ In millions) 

Preferred Redemption 
Stock price Shares December December 

^___ Rate ($ pershare) Outstanding 31, 2014 31, 2013 

DP&L Series B _ ^ ^ _ _ _ _ _ ^ 3.75% $ 103.00 69,398 5.6 _ _ _ _ 5.6 
lv)Mi^et i l l i^ t^ ig.#^- i^^ 

Total 228,508 $ 18.4 $ 18.4 

(a) Carrying value is fair value at the Merger date plus cumulative accrued dividends, of which there were none at December 31, 
2014. 

The DP&L preferred stock may be redeemed at DP&L's option as determined by its Board of Directors at the 
per-share redemption prices Indicated above, plus cumulative accrued dividends, of which there were none as of 
December 31, 2014. In addition, DP&L's Amended Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit 
preferred stockholders to elect members of the Board of Directors in the event that cumulative dividends on the 
preferred stock are In arrears in an aggregate amount equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Since 
this potential redemption-triggering event is not solely within the control of DP&L, the preferred stock is presented 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as "Redeemable Preferred Stock" In a manner consistent with temporary 
equity. 

As long as any DP&L preferred stock Is outstanding, DP&L's Amended Articles of Incorporation also contain 
provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such 
dividend, the aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31,1946 exceeds the net 
Income of DP&L available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31,1946, plus $1.2 
million. This dividend restriction has historically not affected DP&L's ability to pay cash dividends and, as of 
December 31, 2014, DP&L's retained earnings of $381.8 million were all available for common stock dividends 
payable to DPL. We do not expect this restriction to have an effect on the payment of cash dividends In the 
future. DPL records dividends on preferred stock of DP&L within Interest expense on the Statements of 
Operations. 

NOTE 12 - COMItflON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Effective on the Merger date, DPL adopted Amended Articles of Incorporation providing for 1,500 authorized 
common shares, of which one share is outstanding at December 31, 2014. 

As of December 31,2014, there was no Event of Default - DPL's Articles generally define an "Event of Default" 
as either (i) a breach of a covenant or obligation under the Articles; (ii) the entering of an order of insolvency or 
bankruptcy by a court and that order remains in effect and unstayed for 180 days; or (iii) DPL, DP&L or one of its 
principal subsidiaries commences a voluntary case under bankruptcy or Insolvency laws or consents to the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver or custodian to manage all of the assets of DPL, DP&L or one of its principal 
subsidiaries - but DPL's leverage ratio was at 0.93 to 1.00 and DPL's senior long-term debt rating from all three 
major credit rating agencies was below investment grade. As a result, as of December 31, 2014, DPL was 
prohibited under its Articles from making a distribution to its shareholder or making a loan to any ol its affiliates 
(otherthan its subsidiaries). 
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NOTE13 - CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS, COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

DPL - Guarantees 
In the normal course of business, DPL enters into various agreements with Its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DPLE 
and DPLER and Its wholly-owned subsidiary, MC Squared, providing financial or performance assurance to third 
parties. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness othenwise 
attributed to these subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the extension of sufficient credit to 
accomplish these subsidiaries' Intended commercial purposes. 

At December 31, 2014, DPL had $20.5 million of guarantees to third parties for future financial or performance 
assurance under such agreements. Including $2.0 million of guarantees on behalf of DPLER, $18.3 million of 
guarantees on behalf of DPLE and $0.2 million of guarantees on behalf of MC Squared. The guarantee 
arrangements entered Into by DPL with these third parties cover present and future obligations of DPLER, DPLE 
and MC Squared to such beneficiaries and are terminable at any time by DPL upon written notice to the 
beneficiaries. The carrying amount of obligations for commercial transactions covered by these guarantees and 
recorded In our Consolidated Balance Sheets was $1.6 million and $0.2 million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively. 

To date, DPL has not incurred any losses related to the guarantees of DPLER's, DPLE's and MC Squared's 
obligations and we believe it is remote that DPL would be required to perform or incur any losses In the future 
associated with any of the above guarantees of DPLER's, DPLE's and MC Squared's obligations. 

Equity Ownership Interest 
DP&L has a 4.9% equity ownership Interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost 
method of accounting under GAAP. As of December 31,2014, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of 
4.9%, or $74.4 million, of a $1,517.9 million debt obligation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities 
with maturities between 2015 and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on 
Its debt payments. At December 31, 2014, we have no knowledge of such a default. 

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of 
our operations. At December 31, 2014, these include: 

Payments due in: 
Less than 2 - 3 4 - 5 More than 

$ in millions Total 1 year years years 5 years 
DPL: 

.f?^<--: - - . ^-^:-.-'486^2CV.:,-^>255l6^:^^ I 161^^.„r--• -^69 4 

Limestone contracts ^̂^ 18 3 6 1 12 2 

(a) Total at DP&L operated units. 

Coal contracts: 
DPL, through Its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered Into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal 
requirements for the generating stations it operates. As of December 31, 2014, 57% of our future committed coal 
obligations are with a single supplier. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustment and have features 
that limit price escalation in any given year. 

Limestone contracts: 
DPL, through its principal subsidiary DP&L, has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone 
used In the operation of FGD equipment at its generating facilities. 

Purchase orders and other contractual obligations: 
As of December 31, 2014, DPL had various other contractual obligations Including non-cancelable contracts to 
purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates. 
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Contingencies 
In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other 
matters asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided In our Consolidated Financial 
Statements, as prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. 
However, there can be no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various 
legal proceedings, claims, tax examinations, and other matters, including the matters discussed below, and to 
comply with applicable laws and regulations, will not exceed the amounts reflected In our Consolidated Financial 
Statements. As such, costs, if any, that may be incurred in excess of those amounts provided as of December 
31, 2014, cannot be reasonably determined. 

Environmental Matters 
DPL's and DP&L's facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental 
regulations and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include: 

• The federal CAA and state laws and regulations (Including SIPs) which require compliance, obtaining 
permits and reporting as to air emissions, 

• Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding 
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional 
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause 
or contribute to global climate changes, 

• Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantial reductions in 
SO2, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NOx, and other air emissions. DP&L has installed emission 
control technology and Is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions, 

• Rules and future rules Issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and reductions of 
GHGs, 

• Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA associated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits 
the discharge of pollutants Into waters of the United States except pursuant to appropriate permits, and 

• Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of certain 
waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and 
other coal combustion by-products. 

In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of 
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines. Injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal 
course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at our facilities to comply, or to 
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental 
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions 
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $0.8 million for environmental 
matters. We also have a number of environmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies 
because the risk of loss is not probable or a loss cannot be reasonably estimated, which are disclosed in the 
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmental matters quarteriy and may revise 
our estimates. Such revisions In the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

We have several pending environmental matters associated with our coal-fired generation units. Some of these 
matters could have material adverse Impacts on the operation of the power stations. 

Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality 

Clean Air Act Compliance 
In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA 
sets limits on how much of a pollutant can be In the ambient air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows 
individual states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the CAA, but states are not allowed to 
have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our 
operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the CAA. 

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-State Air Pollution Rule 
The USEPA promulgated CAIR on March 10, 2005, which required allowance surrender for SO2 and NOx 
emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of Columbia. To Implement 
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the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to establish emisslon-allowance-based "cap-and-
trade" programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States 
Court of Appeals forthe D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking down much of CAIR and remanding it to the 
USEPA. 

On July 7, 2011, the USEPA proposed CSAPR to replace CAIR. CSAPR required significant reductions in SO2 
and NOx emissions from covered sources, such as power stations in 28 eastern states including Ohio. On 
August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C. Circuit Court vacated CSAPR, ruling that the USEPA 
overstepped Its regulatory authority by requiring states to make reductions beyond the levels required In the CAA 
and failed to provide states an Initial opportunity to adopt their own measures for achieving federal compliance. 
As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR continued to serve as the governing program. On June 
24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the D.C. Circuit Court's decision to vacate CSAPR, and on 
April 29, 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court reversed the 2012 decision bythe D.C. Circuit Court, reinstating CSAPR, 
and remanded the case back to the D.C. Circuit Court for further proceedings consistent with the U. S. Supreme 
Court decision. On June 26, 2014, the U.S. Department of Justice, on behalf of the USEPA, filed a motion with 
the D.C. Circuit Court to lift the stay, and CSAPR was reinstated on October 23, 2014. The USEPA established 
new effective dates for compliance with the reduced emissions levels, beginning in 2015 with additional 
reductions In 2017. Oral arguments to address the remaining litigation regarding CSAPR are schedule for March 
2015. At this time, it is not possible to predict with precision what impacts CSAPR may have on our consolidated 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, but we do not expect to have material capital costs to 
comply with CSAPR. 

Mercurv and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants 
On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards 
for coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury 
and a number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS, on 
December 16, 2011, and the rule was published inthe Federal Register on February 16, 2012. Our affected 
EGUs must come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16, 2015. All of our operating EGUs are 
expected to be able to achieve compliance through control technologies that are currently In place. 

On January 31, 2013, the USEPA finalized a rule regulating emissions of toxic air pollutants from new and 
existing industrial, commercial and institutional boilers and process heaters at major and area source facilities. 
This regulation affects seven auxiliary boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L's generation facilities. The 
regulation contains emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. DP&L expects to be in 
compliance with this rule and the costs are not currently expected to be material to DP&L's operations. 

National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standard (NAAQS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations included counties and 
partial counties In which DP&L operates and/or owns generating facilities. On December 31, 2012, the USEPA 
re-designated Adams County, where the Stuart and Killen generating stations are located, to attainment status. 
On December 14, 2012, the USEPA tightened the PM 2.5 standard to 12.0 micrograms per cubic meter, and on 
December 18, 2014, Issued a pre-publication version of the final attainment designations. No counties containing 
DP&L operated generating facilities were designated as non-attainment, however, several co-owned units are 
located in non-attainment counties. Attainment In those counties will be required by the end of 2021. We cannot 
predict the effect the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L's financial condition or results of 
operations. 

The USEPA published the national ground level ozone standard on March 12, 2008, lowering the 8-hour level 
from 0.08 ppm to 0.075 ppm, which was upheld by the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in July 2013. No DP&L 
operations are currently located in non-attainment areas. On December 17, 2014, the USEPA published a 
proposed rule lowering the 8-hour ozone standard from 0.075 to a value between 0.065 and 0.070 ppm. The 
USEPA intends to finalize the rule regarding the ozone NAAQS by October 2015, with initial designations to be 
Issued in October 2017. In addition, in December 2013, eight northeastern states petitioned the USEPA to add 
nine upwind states, including Ohio, to the Ozone Transport Region, a group of states required to impose 
enhanced restrictions on ozone emissions. If the petition Is granted, our facilities could be subject to such 
enhanced requirements. We cannot predict the effect the revisions of the ozone standard will have on DP&L's 
financial condition or results of operations. 

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for nitrogen dioxide. This 
change may affect certain emission sources in heavy traffic areas like the 1-75 corridor between Cincinnati and 
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Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L cannot determine 
the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations. 

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented Its revisions to its primary NAAQS for SO2 replacing the 
previous 24-hour standard and annual standard with a one-hour standard. Initial non-attainment designations 
were made July 25, 2013, and Pierce Township In Clermont County, location of DP&L's co-owned unit Beckjord 
Unit 6, was the only area with DP&L operations designated as non-attainment. Beckjord Unit 6 was retired 
effective October 1, 2014. Non-attainment areas will be required to meet the 2010 standard by October 2018. 
On April 17, 2014, the USEPA proposed a data requirements rule for air agencies to ascertain attainment 
characterization more extensively across the country by additional modeling and/or monitoring requirements of 
areas with sources that exceed specified thresholds of SO2 emissions. The rule, if finalized, could require the 
installation of monitors at one or more of DP&L's coal-fired power plants and result in additional non-attainment 
designations that could impact our operations. DP&L is unable to determine the effect of the proposed rule on its 
operations. 

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA Issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should 
determine the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final 
rules were published July 6, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the 
state should be subject to BART. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be affected by BART. We 
cannot determine the extent of the impact until Ohio determines how BART will be implemented. 

Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
The USEPA began regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources In January 2011 under regulations 
referred to as the "Tailoring Rule." The regulations are implemented pursuant to two CAA programs: the Title V 
Operating Permit program and the program requiring a permit if undergoing certain new construction or major 
modifications, the Prevention of Significant Deterioration, or PSD, program. Obligations relating to Title V permits 
include recordkeeping and monitoring requirements. Sources subject to PSD can be required to implement Best 
Available Control Technology, or BACT. In June 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled that the USEPA had 
exceeded its statutory authority in issuing the Tailoring Rule under Section 165 of the CAA by regulating sources 
under the PSD program based solely on their GHG emissions. However, the U.S. Supreme Court also held that 
the USEPA could Impose GHG BACT requirements for sources already required to implement PSD for certain 
other pollutants. Therefore, if future modifications to DP&L's sources require PSD review for other pollutants, it 
may also trigger GHG BACT requirements. The USEPA has issued guidance on what BACT entails for the 
control of GHG and individual states are now required to determine what controls are required for facilities within 
their jurisdiction on a case-by-case basis. The ultimate impact of the BACT requirements applicable to us on our 
operations cannot be determined at this time as DP&L will not be required to implement BACT until DP&L 
constructs a new major source or makes a major modification of an existing major source. However, the cost of 
compliance could be material. 

In January 2014, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new EGUs under 
CAA subsection 111 (b), which would require new EGUs to limit the amount of COg emitted per megawatt-hour. 
The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to rely upon partial Implementation of carbon 
capture and storage or other expensive CO2 emission control technology to meet the standard. In addition, new 
natural gas-fired EGUs must meet a standard of no greater than 1,000 pounds of CO2 per megawatt hour (if the 
rule is finalized in its current form). The rule is expected to be finalized this summer. 

The USEPA issued proposed rules establishing GHG performance standards for existing power plants under 
CAA Section 111 (d) on June 2, 2014. Under the proposed rule, called the Clean Power Plan, states would be 
judged against state-specific carbon dioxide emissions targets beginning in 2020, with expected total U.S. power 
section emissions reduction of 30% from 2005 levels by 2030. For Ohio specifically, the Clean Power Plan 
proposes an Interim goal for 2020-2029 and a proposed 2030 final goal of 1,452 pounds of CO2 per megawatt 
hour and 1,338 pounds of CO2 per megawatt hour, respectively, a reduction of approximately 28% from 2012 
levels. The proposed rule requires states to submit SIPs to meet the standards set forth in the rule by June 30, 
2016, with the possibility of one- or two-year extensions under certain circumstances. The proposed rule 
requires states to submit SIPs to meet the standards set forth inthe rule by June 30, 2016, with the possibility of 
one or two-year extensions under certain circumstances. The proposed rule requires states to submit SIPs to 
meet the standards set forth in the rule by June 30, 2016, with the possibility of one- or two-year extensions 
under certain circumstances. The proposed rule was subject to a public comment process and the USEPA is 
expected to finalize it by the summer of 2015. Among other things, we could be required to make efficiency 
improvements to existing facilities. The USEPA also issued proposed carbon pollution standards for modified 
and reconstructed power plants on June 2, 2014, which are also expected to be finalized by the summer of 2015. 
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Various states and certain regulated entities have filed lawsuits challenging the Clean Power Plan. However, it is 
too soon to determine what the rule, and the corresponding SIPs affecting our operations, will require once they 
are finalized, whether they will survive judicial and other challenges, and if so, whether and when the rule and the 
corresponding SIP would materially Impact our business, operations or financial condition. 

Approximately 99% of the energy we produce Is generated by coal. DP&L's share of CO2 emissions at 
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or 
regulation implemented at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L's operations and costs, which 
could adversely affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty 
associated with such legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial effect that such 
legislation or regulation may have on DP&L. 

Litigation. Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality 

Litigation involving Co-Owned Stations 
As a result of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for 
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the Stuart generating station are subject to certain 
specified emission targets related to NOx, SO2 and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes 
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was 
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during malfunctions. Continued 
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L's results of 
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future. 

Notices of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units 
In June 2000, the USEPA Issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Stuart generating station (co-owned by DP&L, 
Duke Energy and AEP Generation) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent 
with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest. 
The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio 
SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking Injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each 
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter. 

In December 2007, the Ohio EPA issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by 
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous 
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no 
further actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA. 

On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding 
of Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio SIP and permits for the station in 
areas including SO2, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV with similar allegations was 
Issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, the USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer for excess emissions. In 
addition, Zimmer received an NOV from the USEPA dated December 16, 2014 alleging violations In opacity on 
two dates in 2014. DP&L Is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the eventual 
resolution of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with respect to 
these matters. DP&L Is unable to predict the outcome of these matters. 

In January 2015, DP&L received NOVs from the USEPA alleging violations In opacity at the Stuart and Killen 
generating stations In 2014. DP&L is beginning the process of discussions with the USEPA on these NOVs. 
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters. 

Notices of Violation Involving Whollv-Owned Stations 
On November 18, 2009, the USEPA issued an NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the 
Hutchlngs Station relating to capital projects performed In 2001 involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not 
believe that the two projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. As a result of the 
cessation of operations of the six coal-fired units at the Hutchlngs Station, DP&L believes that the USEPA is 
unlikely to pursue the NSR complaint. 

Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality. Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds 

Clean Water Ac t - Regulation of Water Intake 
On May 19, 2014, the USEPA finalized new regulations pursuant to the CWA governing existing facilities that 
have cooling water intake structures. The rules require an assessment of impingement and/or entrainment of 
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organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. Although we do not yet know the full Impact the final rules will 
have on our operations, the final rules may require material changes to the intake structure at Stuart Station to 
reduce impingement with the possibility of additional site specific requirements for reducing entrainment. We do 
not believe the final rules will have a material Impact on operations at any of the other DP&L-operated facilities. 

Clean Water Ac t - Regulation of Water Discharge 
In December 2006, DP&L submitted a renewal application for the Stuart generating station NPDES permit that 
was due to expire on June 30, 2007. The Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on 
November 12,2008. In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to the November 12, 2008 revised permit 
due to questions regarding the basis for the alternate thermal limitation. At DP&L's request, a public hearing was 
held on March 23, 2011, where DP&L presented its position on the Issue and provided written comments. In a 
letter to the Ohio EPA dated September 28, 2011, the USEPA reaffirmed Its objection to the revised permit as 
previously drafted by the Ohio EPA. This reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA did not re-draft the permit 
to address the USEPA's objection, then the authority for issuing the permit would pass to the USEPA. The Ohio 
EPA issued another draft permit in December 2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012. 

The draft permit required DP&L, over the 54 months following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined 
actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a level unachievable by the station under its current 
design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the cooling water system. DP&L submitted 
comments to the draft permit. In November 2012, the Ohio EPA issued another draft which included a 
compliance schedule for performing a study to justify an alternate thermal limitation and to which DP&L 
submitted comments. In December 2012, the USEPA formally withdrew their objection to the permit. On 
January 7, 2013, the Ohio EPA issued a final permit. On February 1, 2013, DP&L appealed various aspects of 
the final permit to the Environmental Review Appeals Commission. A hearing before the Commission is 
scheduled for March 2015. Depending on the outcome of the appeal process, the effects on DP&L's operations 
could be material. 

In September 2009, the USEPA announced that It would be revising technology-based regulations governing 
water discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information 
via an Industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. The proposed 
rule was released on June 7, 2013. Under a consent decree, the USEPA Is required to issue a final rule by 
September 2015. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on its operations. 

A final NPDES permit for Killen Station was Issued on September 4, 2014. We do not expect the new permit to 
have a material impact on Kitlen's operations. 

In January 2014, DP&L submitted an application for the renewal of the Hutchings Station NPDES permit which 
expired in July 2014. A final permit was Issued on September 19, 2014 with an effective date of November 1, 
2014. We do not expect the new permit to have a materia! Impact on Hutchings' operations. 

Regulation of Waste Disposal 
In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP 
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and 
other parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility 
Study (RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter 
inviting it to enter into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with 
respect to that notice or PRP status. On August 16, 2006, an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on 
Consent ("ASAOC") was executed and became effective among a group of PRPs, not including DP&L, and the 
USEPA. On August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order requiring that access to DP&L's 
service center building site, which is across the street from the landfill site, be given to the USEPA and the 
existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site's contamination as well as to assess whether 
certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater to the landfill 
site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of monitoring wells occurred in late 
2009 and early 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-
Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint In the United States District Court for the Southern 
District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that DP&L and the other defendants 
contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and seeking reimbursement of the PRP 
group's costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site. On February 10, 2011, the Court 
dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used by DP&L at its service center 
contributed to the landfill site's contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss claims alleging financial 
responsibiiity for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that were allegedly directly 
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delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present DP&L employees, was 
conducted in 2012. On February 8, 2013, the Court granted DP&L's motion for summary judgment on statute of 
limitations grounds with respect to claims seeking a contribution toward the costs that are expected to be incurred 
bythe PRP group in performing an RI/FS under the August 15, 2006 ASAOC. That summary judgment ruling 
was appealed on March 4, 2013, and on July 14, 2014, a three-judge panel of the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 
6*̂  Circuit affirmed the lower Court's ruling and subsequently denied a request by the plaintiffs for rehearing. On 
November 14, 2014, the PRP group appealed the decision to the U.S. Supreme Court, but the writ of certiorari 
was denied by the Court on January 20, 2015. On January 14, 2015, the PRP group served DP&L and other 
defendants a request for production of documents related to any survey regarding waste management or waste 
disposal. Information responsive to this request was provided on February 17, 2015. In addition, on January 16, 
2015, the USEPA issued a Special Notice Letter and Section 104(e) Information Request to DP&L and other 
defendants, requesting historical information related to waste management practices. DP&L is in the process of 
developing its response to the request which is due by March 20, 2015. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome 
of this action by the plaintiffs and USEPA. Additionally, the Court's 2013 ruling and the Court of Appeals' 
affirmation of that ruling in 2014 does not address future litigation that may arise with respect to actual 
remediation costs. While DP&L Is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to 
contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect on Its operations. 

In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP 
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does 
not demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the 
outcome of this matter, if DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material 
adverse effect on its operations. 

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is 
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the eariy stages and the USEPA Is seeking information from potentially 
affected parties on how It should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. A proposed rule is 
expected in mld-2015, with a final rule expected in 2016. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the impact this 
initiative will have on its operations. 

Regulation of Ash Ponds 
In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond 
facilities across the country, including those at Killen and Stuart Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected 
similar information for the Hutchings Station. 

In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an Inspection of the Hutchings Station ash ponds. In June 2011, the 
USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchlngs Station ash 
ponds. DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L's proposed 
plan or the effect on operations that might arise under a different plan. 

In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen Station ash ponds. In May 2012, we received a 
draft report on the inspection. DP&L submitted comments on the draft report in June 2012. On March 14, 2013, 
DP&L received the final report on the inspection of the Killen Station ash pond Inspection from the USEPA which 
included recommended actions. DP&L has submitted a response with its actions to the USEPA. DP&L is 
unable to predict the outcome this Inspection will have on its operations. 

There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion residuals (OCR) under the Resource 
Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking 
comments on two options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including 
regulating the material as a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. 
The USEPA released its final rule on December 19, 2014, designating coal combustion residuals that are not 
beneficially reused as non-hazardous solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. The rule becomes effective six 
months after publication of the rule in the Federal Register, expected in February 2015, and applies new detailed 
management practices to new and existing landfills and surface impoundments, including lateral expansions of 
such units. DP&L Is currently reviewing the rule and assessing the impact on our operations. Our business, 
financial condition or operations could be materially and adversely affected by this regulation. 

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units 
On September 9, 2011, DP&L received an NOV from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned Stuart generating 
station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted bythe USEPA and Ohio EPA in 2009. The 
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notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the CWA NPDES permit program 
and the station's storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with the actions 
it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA's findings and ensure that further violations will 
not occur. Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that the notice will 
not result in any material effect on DP&L's results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

Legal and Other Matters 

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit in the United States District Court for Southern District of Ohio against 
Appalachian Fuels, LLC ("Appalachian") seeking damages Incurred due to Appalachian's failure to supply 
approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly-owned stations under a coal supply agreement, of which 
approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L's share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to meet Its needs. 
Appalachian has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptcy proceedings in which DP&L is participating 
as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this matter. DP&L has not 
recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit. 

in connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PJM, in 2006, the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain 
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31, 
2006, subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but 
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an initial decision was issued In 
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L's 
and other utilities' position that SECA obligations should be paid by parties that used the transmission system 
during the timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number 
of bilateral settlement agreements with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by 
the final decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolved SECA 
claims against BP Energy Company ("BP") and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation (and 
its subsidiaries). On October 1, 2012, DP&L received the $14.6 million (including interest income of $1.8 million) 
from BP and recorded the settlement in the third quarter; at December 31, 2012, there is no remaining balance in 
other deferred credits related to SECA. 

NOTE 14 - BUSINESS SEGMENTS 

DPL operates through two segments consisting of the operations of two of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, DP&L 
(Utility segment) and DPLER (Competitive Retail segment which includes DPLER's wholly-owned subsidiary, MC 
Squared). This is how we view our business and make decisions on how to allocate resources and evaluate 
performance. 

The Utility segment is comprised of DP&L's electric generation, transmission and distribution businesses which 
generate and deliver electricity to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers. DP&L 
generates electricity at five coal-fired electric generating stations and distributes electricity to more than 516,000 
retail customers who are located In a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio. DP&L also sells electricity to 
DPLER and any excess energy and capacity is sold into the wholesale market. DP&L's transmission and 
distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state regulators while Its generation business 
Is deemed competitive under Ohio law. 

The Competitive Retail segment Is DPLER's competitive retail electric service businesses which sell retail electric 
energy under contract to residential, commercial. Industrial and governmental customers who have selected 
DPLER or its subsidiary MC Squared as their alternative electric supplier. The Competitive Retail segment sells 
electricity to approximately 260,000 customers currently located throughout Ohio and in Illinois. The Competitive 
Retail segment's electric energy used to meet Its sales obligations was purchased from DP&L. Intercompany 
sales from DP&L to DPLER are based on fixed-price contracts for each customer; the price approximates market 
prices for wholesale power at the inception of each customer's contract. DP&L started selling power to MC 
Squared during June 2012 and became their sole source of power in September 2012 under the same terms as 
above. The operations of the Competitive Retail segment are not subject to cost-of-service rate regulation by 
federal or state regulators. 

Included within the "Other" column are other businesses that do not meet the GAAP requirements for disclosure 
as reportable segments as well as certain corporate costs which include interest expense on DPL's debt. 
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Management evaluates segment performance based on gross margin. The accounting policies of the reportable 
segments are the same as those described in Note 1 - Oven/lew and Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies. Intersegment sales and profits are eliminated in consolidation. 

The following fables present financial Information for each of DPL's reportable business segments: 

$ In millions 

Adjustments 
Competitive and DPL 

Utility Retail Other Eliminations Consolidated 

Year ended December 31,2014 ^ 

Intersegment revenues 487.1 - 5.5 (492.6) ^ 

Purchased power 582.4 491.8 7.5 (489.1) 592.6 

Goodwill impairment (Note5) $ _" $ ~ $ ""^^-^ ^ "_ ^ "^^^-^ 

Luterest expense $ 33.9 $ 0.5 $ 92.9 $ (0.7) $ 126.6 

Net income / (loss) $ 115.0 $ 3.2 $ (192.8)$ - $ (74.6) 

^ ^ ^ i l i i i ^ i l ^ i l M i r ^ M ^ W ^ » J 3 ^ i i i i M ^ ^ l ^ ^ l ^ ^ i ^ $- - -, - -$ 118.1 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to Investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 
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$ in millions 

Adjustments 
Competi t ive and DPL 

Util i ty Retail Other El iminat ions Consol idated 

Year ended December 31,2013 _ _ „ 

Intersegnierit revenues 453.3 4.0 (457.3) -_ 
f j g i { a i n i ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ a p : ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ l t ; j ^ f i ^ 5 5 l i ^ ^ t e W i ^ ^ 

Purchased power 381.9 459.7 1.1 (453-7) 389.0 

^^^^^^SSM^m&^m^S^mS^^^^^^^^MS^^M&l^imm^. 

Goodwill impaimient (Note 5) _ $ - $ - $ 3 0 6 . 3 $ _. ' $ . 3Q6.3 
i ^ ^ ^ i ^ l O ¥ r ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ g » % v : ^ 6 : @ l $ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i l ^ ^ 5 M § l ^ 
Interestexpense $ 37.2 $ 0.5 $ 86.9 $ (Off. $ 124.0 

Net Income/(loss) $ 83.6 $ 6.6 $ (312.2) $ - $ (222.0) 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same information that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 
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$ in millions 

Year ended December 31, 2012 

Utility 
Competitive 

Retail Other 

Adjustments 
and DPL 

Eliminations Consolidated 

^Mia^F^iS«fi«P!iMRtW^l^l»^^iMimgi^^^»gl!^ 
Intersegment reyenues 393.4 ,-^1™, 3.4 (396.8) 

M^^MMML 

W^M^^i^KS^^^^^^^^Mim^^S^^^X^m^^^^^SS^^M^i S)̂ v"36î 9̂  
Purchased power 309.5 ^ .424.5 1.5 (393.4) 342.1 

W i t 

gi^tii^^ffimfizli»^^iji^^PiRii5^ 

Goodwill impalrrnent (Note 5) $ - $ - $ 1,817.2 $ - $ 1,817.2 

Interestexpense $^ ̂  39.1^ $ J . 6 $ _83.9 $^ (0.7) $ 1^2-9 

Net Income / (loss) $ 91.2 $ 22.8 $ (1,725.4)$ (118.4)$ (1,729.8) 

(a) For purposes of discussing operating results, we present and discuss gross margins. This format is useful to investors because it 
allows analysis and comparability of operating trends and includes the same infomiation that is used by management to make 
decisions regarding our financial performance. 

NOTE 15 - FIXED-ASSET IMPAIRMENT 

During the first quarter of 2014, DP&L tested the recoverablllty of long-lived assets at East Bend, a 186 MW coal-
fired plant in Kentucky jointly-owned by DP&L. Indications during that quarter that the fair value of the asset 
group was less than its carrying amount were determined to be impairment Indicators given how narrowly these 
long-lived assets had passed the recoverabilify test during the fourth quarter of 2013. DP&L performed a long-
lived asset Impairment test and determined that the carrying amount of the asset group was not recoverable. The 
East Bend asset group was determined to have a fair value of $2.7 million using the market approach. As a 
result, we recognized an asset impairment expense of $11.5 million. East Bend is reported in the Utility segment, 
however, this impairment is shown within Other in Business Segments (Note 14) due to acquisition adjustments 
at DPL which were not pushed down to the utility segment.. In May 2014, an agreement was signed for the sale 
of DP&L's interest In the generating assets at East Bend. This transaction closed on December 30, 2014. 

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverablllty of the long-lived assets at Conesville, a 
129 MW coal-fired station in Ohio jointly-owned by DP&L. Gradual decreases In power prices as well as lower 
estimates of future capacity prices In conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit failing step 1 of the annual goodwill 
Impairment test were determined to be an impairment indicator for long-lived assets. The Company performed a 
long-lived asset impairment test and determined that the carrying amount of the asset group was not recoverable. 
The long-lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each individual station of 
DP&L. This determination was based on the assessment of the stations' ability to generate independent cash 
flows. The Conesville asset group was determined to have zero fair value using discounted cash flows under the 
Income approach. As a result, the Company recognized an asset impairment expense of $26.2 million. 
Conesville is reported In the Utility segment. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Board of Directors of The Dayton Power and Light Company 

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of The Dayton Power and Light Company (DP&L) as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of operations, comprehensive Income, cash flows, and 
shareholder's equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. Our audit also included 
the financial statement schedule "Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts" for each of the three years in 
the period ended December 31, 2014. These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the 
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule 
based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board 
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an 
audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal 
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairiy, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Dp&L at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of 
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. Also, In our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairiy in all material respects the information set forth therein. 

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP 
February 25, 2015 
Indianapolis, Indiana 
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$ in millions 

liigs^eimess 

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

Year ended December 31, 
2014 2013 2012 

^^^ - - ^ ... \ , . $r>^ ^ .;:^^li^^ij^M^5^^&^ai^^:fe^-^^f 3 ^ ^ 

Cost of revenues: _ , _ „ _ ^ 

Purchased power ^ _ ^ _ _ _ 5^2.4 381.9 309.5 

' ^ i i ^ i . i ^ ^ i i i ^ M d Gir^i^^nisaWmm':M^^f'0/^ «67.4 

Operating expenses: 
r,^S:iS-^-5^*--^^^'^^5^P^i^^ 
n^0ifetiijnmhd|mkiff^fi#i^^ -^i^^^^li lMg^^liM^^tan-!{^?l^^^2^^ ^85:9' 

Depreciation and amortization 
P"GelW taxes!" ' ^ r . „ " 

Fixed asset innpairrpent 

144.8 140 2 141 3 
87v7 76 4 74 4 

86 0 80 8 
; O t l « f .'•'.̂ .. h . (3.5) 2 5 02 

Total operating expenses 582 2 667 2 682 6 

Other income / (expense), net _ 

rii84;8 

Interestexpense (33 . ^ ^ (39.1) (37.2) 

Total other expense, net (34.1) iSLZl (38.5) 

i^^li^§|s Xlos^i|[roijnfop^ratiphs^beforejpcome^ ^ 
\^154.7-" 102 2 

te^#a^^iS^#M^g^l^^:i#:#^^^i^i^ 

146 3 

;.55:t 

J^Mv^^^^^MIM^^^^M^&iM^WM^^tMf 

W^^^^^^^M^^M§M0^M^MM^i^^i&0^&MB^^^^^^mm^ ^Q:9A 

s ^ ^ ^ j ^ ^ M ^ ^ K g g j g ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ g a ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ a a 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

^Year ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

teiSgb^iiR^^i^ia»#giii^^ M ^ 

Available-for-sale securities activity: 
——^T ' - r ^ 

Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $(0.2), $(0.7) and $0.0 for each respective 
period 02 1 4 (01 

s^JotafieS^ng^inJaijivalue^of availab e-for-sale-
^grseeiirities _ r^-, _.̂ , ^ ^ __ _ _ (0.^) 

^ 
(0 2) 04 

Derivative activity• 
^ ;f^aiflSt4ffiraS\%rfaiDValue'^Tiet of incohie tax"- -5:.-̂ ^ ^ ^ h _̂ , 

• ^ M i ) W ^ P ^ ^ ' ( 0 ^ ^ ) a n d W f o t ^ t c h ^ J ^ i ^ ^ a V ^ - r ^ -^ 

Reclassification of earnings, net of income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $(11.5), $(2.5) and $0.5 for each 
respective period 15.4 

1.0 

2.6 

:(30) 

(3.4) 
W l M l i l ^ ^ l i i ^ Q g W l e r l v ^ i ^ i ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ g ^ ^ M i W l ^ ^ mm 
tension and postretirement activity 

Net loss for the period, net of income tax benefit / 
(expense) of $6.9, $(1.9) and $0.8 for each respective 
period 

Total change in unfunded pension and postretirement 
obligation (12.1) 8.6 

m^^m^^^^^^^^^^^m^^^mmms^^mm^^^^^^mmM 

08 

2.0 

« > 

""^"w^mmrism^^mm^M^m^^^^^m^^^^^mmm 87.2 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

Year ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Adjustments to reconcile Net income (loss) to Net 
cash from operating activities 

^ U : M ' J 2 . 

^^W^^^BMj^ifai^icJhiMM^i^ai^^iMfeM :14/1,.3: 
Deferred income taxes 7.5 (16.8) 3.6 

^^^liix^mssgtslmpairiTight^^'^x:^^^^^^ 80 >8) 
Loss / (Gain) on asset disposal (3.5) 2.5 

Changes in certain assets and liabilities: _ 

_ja2^ 

Mm 
il^^:J^^3#^^^l-il^f^MCS^^^?^^^-;"^;-:r 

Inventories 
^̂ ^mm^̂ ^̂ BXWi&mm^M'Sî ^ 

(24.6) 27.2 14.2 
mmr:!mm- .0.1 

•i:^'2yr:-."'Stt^>:5s 

(6.9) (1-8) 5.2 

^ii^^MsWi^tW^IPfe:^?^;: ̂ l̂!K4:Ŵ{̂(i>5) 
Accounts payable ^ „ _ _ _ _ _ 32.4 (5.9) iJM) mm 
Accrued imerest payaN^ 0.1 (3.4) 5.2 

19.1 1.8 Pension, retiree and other benefits .,.,.,_ __._ __ . .̂ 28.5 

Other (17.8) 4.4 16.3 
^^m^^^^^^^m^mmMms^m^^^m^^^^^mmmm^mMSme. 

Capital expenditures 
m^̂ îir̂ ^̂ m^̂ ^̂ &ammM^MmM 

1195:5) 
r - i - f c i t ••ri;---'.-^ •• -:' ^:f2i9j 

-(Mi 
» i ^ i » i ^ ^ ^ r t ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ t f ^ ^ i 8 W t f ; M 0̂;2> 

Insurance proceeds 
M^l^^inMctiftitieg^netite^.^^?:^t:s 

0.9 14.2 

j g M t ^ M ^ M a S ^ ^ l ^ ^ l ^ .^:3: 
Net ca^h from investing activities (108.5) (114.5) (197.5) 
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued) 

Year ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

Cash flows from financing actiyities 
ll§i^fiaiWK^^M^t^l«Ei^Biii»li§^^ 

Dividends paid on preferred stock . _JP;Q) ,., (0.9) (0.9) 
H g i ^ ^ ^ » ! ^ « r r ^ e i ^ l l ^ g g g ^ ^ ^ g ) f i a ^ i M ^ 

Issuance of long-term debt - J45.0 ^ 
l t ^ E l f l i : i i a i f i i f f i i B ^ t i ^ i i ^ P M : ^ l » f e ^ ^ 

Borrowings from related party 1 5 j -̂  
B i i ^ i ^ f t ^ l ^ ^ ^ i o S t e J i m i t l a t e f e j M a r f ^ • ^ ^ M ' i ^ i . - - - - . . ; I - •-• '• 

Net cash from financing activities (160.7) (226.4) (146.0) 

Cash and cash equivalents: 

Balance at beginning of period 22.9 28.5 32.2 

Supplemental cashflow information: . _ ,„ - ~ _ 

Income taxes (refunded) / paid, net $ 0.7 $ (20.3) $ 61.9 
Non-cash financing and investing activities: ^.„ _ . ^ ^ 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
BALANCE SHEETS 

$ in millions 
December 31, 

2014 
December 31, 

2013 

ASSETS 

Current assets 
^^ i i i f i i i t i i ^ lB^qu iva lents 

Restricted cash 
Av'- ,Sr4 $ 22.9 

16.7 130 
li^iSM^^^N^JbieJi^net (Note 2) 
Inventories (Note 2) 

152.7' 147.5 
99.0 81 7 

'Maxes^aptSI|g:aple to^eu bs^guent years 75.4 
assets, current (Note 3) 44.2 

.6„8,5_ 
2"o.8 

:s%ndrcur/ent assets 41^v ^ :̂32.5: 
Total current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
kl^ropeiw^plalMna^uipment 

434.5 386.9 

_5,12p^ r^5;i05:3^ 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

• •h^ ' ^ ' . - }mi - i< 'S^ l0^ : i ^ - : ^^^%-S^^ ' - ^ -—• ' — " ' - — • : - — ' ' — ' 

Construction work in process 

(2,495.7) (2,448.1) 

75.4 60.9 
g S l % ^ ^ i ^ l ^ i M M i g i B m e h t g p M f ^ l ? ^ i i ^ # ^ g ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

Other non-current assets: 

7.8 8.3 
'^^^§k^^}^':^^.^fi^l¥^i^WM^W&^^'^I^^ 

Total other non-current assets 203.8 
40.1 

208.1 

^^^s^^^^^^^i i^^m^^^MM^^^^^:?&iM^W'^^^M^^^^^^i^mt$. 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 
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$ in millions 

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
BALANCE SHEETS 

December 31, December 31, 
2014 2013 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Current liabilities: 

l^£i!iHtiMj»ligg^^liai>lli^ 
Accounts payable 104.8 

yy^ued i^^^ 
Accrued interest 

L?C^stoffiffs^efiCfrtlv,de~PQsits 

fi& ^ ' ^P^^^ ' ^ / ^ - ' - r . . : - : . ' ' 

73.9 
!^i-o 

9.8 9.6 

^ ^msmm •33.:t 
Regulatory liabilities, current (Note 3) _ 4.4 

Total current liabilities 281.0 
^̂ ;5!9.7: 
257.5 

876.9; 
Deferred taxes (Note 6) 650.0 632.3 

ilM16t5: 
121.1 !lf£H'5J9'!yJJ!'-^i*J^'.^.?i"?""f^'![^^^^^^^^ 124.1 

Unamortized Investment tax credit 22.4 
p -̂::̂ 51V6: 

24.9 

Total non-current liabilities 1,891.4 1,828.7 

i ^ ^ i l ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ I I ; ( » § # v t e l g ^ l ^ i ^ ^ 

^tlrtigtfg^ii^^Wii^^ilPI^^^^^Mi£2{p;;0^ 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

135 



Table of Contents 

THE DAYTON POWER AND UGHT COMPANY 

STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY 

Common Stock ""̂  

$ in millions (except Outstanding 
Shares) 

Outstanding 
Shares Amount 

Accumulated 
Ottier 

Other Paid-in Comprehensive 
Capital income/(Loss) 

Retained 
Earnings Total 

^liiM^^^iD^^SS^iiSM: S f t i ^ ^ S s ^$^il.^l;;^l)i^^#l^§tMi^^-^^^ 

Year ended December 31, 2012 

|r6^ij;6pmpra^n^i^^nc^m^^^^ ' 

Common stock dividends 

'^x^^^^^^m^^^m^Mmm'^mBM 
(145.0) (145.0) 

xMMi^MSMMmM 
(o-i: Other 0.1 (02) 

^inBi^^KKi^iM^/^l#Wj^i0^^^^^^^^^^^l5:#^ 

Year ended December 31,2013 _ _ _ „ „ , _ , _ - . _ 

(190.0) (190.0) Common stock dividends 

B^H^M^^^^^gJi^limCTsg • ? ^ ^ ^ i ^ t e i a ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t i ^ i M K P » : & ) 
Other 0.2 0.2 

E n c l i f ^ ^ i i ^ ^ ^ B ^ ^ ^ f e P ^ ^ ^ ^ M ^ J I ^ ^ i i i l ^ i ^ ^ g i ^ ^ i s ^ ^ ^ M 

Year ended December 31, 2014 
I f 

ttogs, 

Common stock dividends (159.0) (159.0) 

^ j i ^ i ^ ^ j ^ i i ^ ^ ^ s y i r ^ ^^^p^;f^^fgfiif^^^^^iiiiif^^^^ 
other (0-1) 

(a) $0.01 par value, 50,000,000 shares authorized. 

See Notes to Financial Statements. 

(0.1) 

iX^^A: 
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T h e D a y t o n P o w e r a n d L i g h t C o m p a n y 

N o t e s t o F i n a n c i a l S t a t e m e n t s 
Fo r t h e y e a r s e n d e d D e c e m b e r 3 1 , 2 0 1 4 , 2 0 1 3 a n d 2 0 1 2 

NOTE 1 - OVERVIEW AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Description of Business 
DP&L Is a public utility Incorporated in 1911 under the laws of Ohio. Beginning In 2001, Ohio law gave Ohio 
consumers the right to choose the electric generation supplier from whom they purchase retail generation 
service, however distribution and transmission retail sen/Ice are still regulated. DP&L has the exclusive right to 
provide such service to its more than 516,000 customers located in West Central Ohio. Additionally, DP&L 
procures and provides retail SSO electric service to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental 
customers in a 6,000 square mile area of West Central Ohio and generates electricity at five coal-fired power 
stations. Beginning in 2014, DP&L no longer supplies 100% of the generation for SSO customers and by 
January 2016, SSO will be 100% competitively bid. Principal industries located in DP&L's service territory 
include automotive, food processing, paper, plastic, manufacturing and defense. DP&L's sales reflect the 
general economic conditions, seasonal weather patterns of the area and the market price of electricity. DP&L 
sells any excess energy and capacity into the wholesale market. DP&L also sells electricity to DPLER, an 
affiliate, to satisfy the electric requirements of its retail customers. 

In accordance with the ESP Order, on December 30, 2013, DP&L filed an application with the PUCO stating its 
plan to transfer or sell Its generation assets. Comments and reply comments were filed. DP&L amended Its 
application on February 25, 2014 and again on May 23,2014. Additional comments and reply comments were 
filed. On July 14, 2014, DP&L announced its decision to retain DP&L's generation assets. On September 17, 
2014 the PUCO ordered that DP&L's application as amended and updated was approved. DP&L Is required to 
sell or transfer its generation assets by January 1, 2017 and continues to look at multiple options to effectuate the 
separation including transfer into a new unregulated affiliate of DPL or through a sale. 

On November 28, 2011, DP&L's parent company DPL was acquired by AES in the Merger and DPL became a 
wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. Following the Merger of DPL and Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc., DPL became an 
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of AES. 

DP&L's electric transmission and distribution businesses are subject to rate regulation by federal and state 
regulators while its generation business Is deemed competitive under Ohio law. Accordingly, DP&L applies the 
accounting standards for regulated operations to its electric transmission and distribution businesses and records 
regulatory assets when incurred costs are expected to be recovered in future customer rates, and regulatory 
liabilities when current cost recoveries in customer rates relate to expected future costs. 

DP&L employed 1,130 people as of December 31, 2014. Approximately 64% of all employees are under a 
collective bargaining agreement which expires on October 31, 2017. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
DP&L does not have any subsidiaries. DP&L has undivided ownership Interests in five electric generating 
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. These undivided Interests In jointly-owned facilities are accounted 
for on a pro rata basis in DP&L's Financial Statements. 

Certain immaterial amounts from prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period 
presentation. 

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgments 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and 
the revenues and expenses of the periods reported. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant 
items subject to such estimates and judgments include: the carrying value of Property, plant and equipment; 
unbilled revenues; the valuation of derivative instruments; the valuation of insurance and claims liabilities; the 
valuation of allowances for receivables and deferred income taxes; Regulatory assets and liabilities; reserves 
recorded for income tax exposures; litigation; contingencies; the valuation of AROs; and assets and liabilities 
related to employee benefits. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenues are recognized from retail and wholesale electricity sales and electricity transmission and distribution 
delivery services. We consider revenue realized, or realizable, and earned when persuasive evidence of an 
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arrangement exists, the products or services have been provided to the customer, the sales price is fixed or 
determinable, and collection is reasonably assured. Energy sales to customers are based on the reading of their 
meters that occurs on a systematic basis throughout the month. We recognize the revenues on our statements 
of results of operations using an accrual method for retail and other energy sales that have not yet been billed, 
but where electricity has been consumed. This is termed "unbilled revenues" and is a widely recognized and 
accepted practice for utilities. At the end of each month, unbilled revenues are determined by the estimation of 
unbilled energy provided to customers since the date of the last meter reading, estimated line losses, the 
assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the average rate per customer class. 

All of the power produced at the generation stations is sold to an RTO and we in turn purchase It back from the 
RTO to supply our customers. The power sales and purchases within DP&L's service territory are reported on a 
net houriy basis as revenues or purchased power on our statements of results of operations. We record 
expenses when purchased electricity is received and when expenses are incurred, with the exception of the 
ineffective portion of certain power purchase contracts that are derivatives and qualify for hedge accounting. We 
also have certain derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting, and their unrealized gains or 
losses are recorded prior to the receipt of electricity. 

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
We establish provisions for uncollectible accounts by using both historical average loss percentages to project 
future losses and by establishing specific provisions for known credit issues. Amounts are written off when 
reasonable collections efforts have been exhausted. 

Property, Plant and Equipment 
We record our ownership share of our undivided interest in jointly-held stations as an asset in property, plant and 
equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. For regulated transmission and distribution 
property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and an allowance for funds used 
during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represents the cost of borrowed funds and equity used to finance 
regulated construction projects. For non-regulated property, cost also includes capitalized interest. 
Capitalization of AFUDC and interest ceases at either project completion or at the date specified by regulators. 
AFUDC and capitalized interest was $1.5 million, $1.5 million, and $4.0 million for the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

For unregulated generation property, cost includes direct labor and material, allocable overhead expenses and 
Interest capitalized during construction using the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for capitalized 
Interest. 

For substantially all depreciable property, when a unit of property is retired, the original cost of that property less 
any salvage value Is charged to Accumulated depreciation and amortization. 

Property is evaluated for Impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that Its carrying amount 
may not be recoverable. 

Repairs and Maintenance 
Costs associated with maintenance activities, primarily station outages, are recognized at the time the work is 
performed. These costs, which include labor, materials and supplies, and outside sen/ices required to maintain 
equipment and facilities, are capitalized or expensed based on defined units of property. 

Depreciation - Changes in Estimates 
Depreciation expense is calculated using the straight-line method, which allocates the cost of property over its 
estimated useful life. For DP&L's generation, transmission and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is 
applied monthly on an average composite basis using group rates. 

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverabillty of long-lived assets at certain generating 
stations. See Note 13 for more information. Gradual decreases in power prices as well as lower estimates of 
future capacity prices in conjunction with the DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill 
impairment test were collectively determined to be an impairment indicator. 

In the third quarter of 2012, a series of events led DP&L management to conclude that there was Impairment In 
the value of certain generating stations. See Note 13 for more information. 
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For DP&L's generation, transmission, and distribution assets, straight-line depreciation is applied on an average 
annual composite basis using group rates that approximated 2.8% in 2014, 4.4% in 2013 and 4.2% in 2012. 

The following is a summary of DP&L's Property, plant and equipment with corresponding composite depreciation 
rates at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013: 

December 31, 
Composite Composite 

$ in millions 2014 Rate 2013 Rate 

Regulated: ^ _ 

Si 
pistribution "''568.0 3.5% 1'528.2 3.5% 

Non-depreciable 61.6 N/A 60.8 N/A 

Unregulated: _ _________ 

Non-depreciable 14.9 N/A 14.8 N/A 

2,972.6 g"-^ . _ _ s^3,016 9 . . . 

Bff£^^^^HMP^dM|UIPinen^,ln|* <̂  v̂  ,̂.;^ ^ t - / ^ v ' - * / l * ? . ^ 

AROs 
We recognize AROs In accordance with GAAP which requires legal obligations associated with the retirement of 
long-lived assets to be recognized at their fair value at the time those obligations are incurred. Upon initial 
recognition of a legal liability, costs are capitalized as part of the related long-lived asset and depreciated over the 
useful life of the related asset. Our legal obligations associated with the retirement of our long-lived assets 
consisted primarily of river intake and discharge structures, coal unloading facilities, loading docks, ice breakers 
and ash disposal facilities. Our generation AROs are recorded within other deferred credits on the balance 
sheets. 

Estimating the amount and timing of future expenditures of this type requires significant judgment. Management 
routinely updates these estimates as additional information becomes available. 
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Changes in the Liability for Generation AROs 

$ in millions 

BMial̂ î tiae^n1Beĵ î (l)d2l̂ ^ 

Calendar 2013 _ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ _ ^ _ ^ 

Settlements ^ ^ „ _ _ _ _ „ _ _ _ _ „ , . , _ _̂  (0.3) 

Calendar 2014 
Additions-'!•..,.#-. _̂  .. / '.-. ' ^ 36 
Accretion expense _ __̂  ^ _ _ _ ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ „ _ _ _,.____ __ _ U 
^ettilment'sTi_, J .._^__„I „ „_ .̂ __I .x " „ , (l 7) 
Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 22.9 

Asset Removal Costs 
We continue to record cost of removal for our regulated transmission and distribution assets through our 
depreciation rates and recover those amounts in rates charged to our customers. There are no known legal 
AROs associated with these assets. We have recorded $119.3 million and $115.0 million in estimated costs of 
removal at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, as regulatory liabilities for our transmission and 
distribution property. These amounts represent the excess of the cumulative removal costs recorded through 
depreciation rates versus the cumulative removal costs actually incurred. See Note 3 for additional information. 

Changes in the Liability for Transmission and Distribution Asset Removal Costs 

$ in millioris ^ ^ ^___,_______ 

iBaiii^ii^^mt^Mig^Pi^%Piffi^^iP^p^ 

Calendar 2013 _ _ _ 

Settlements _ _ _ „ _ ^ _ „ ^ (19.1) 

Calendar2014 ^ ^ _ ^ 

Settlements __^ (15 3) 
M ^ M ^ ^ ^ ^ j m ^ ^ O n A " . ^ ' ^ . . " ^ . - , ••̂ " •••^^". , £ - .^"'^^...^S ^ -X 119 3^ 

Regulatory Accounting 
As a regulated utility, we apply the provisions of FASC 980 "Regulated Operations," which gives recognition to 
the ratemaking and accounting practices of the PUCO and the FERC. Regulatory assets generally represent 
incurred costs that have been deferred because such costs are probable of future recovery in customer rates. 
Regulatory assets can also represent performance incentives permitted by the regulator. Regulatory assets have 
been included as allowable costs for ratemaking purposes, as authorized by the PUCO or established regulatory 
practices. Regulatory liabilities generally represent obligations to make refunds or future rate reductions to 
customers for previous over collections or the deferral of revenues collected for costs that DPL expects to incur in 
the future. 

The deferral of costs (as regulatory assets) is appropriate only when the future recovery of such costs is 
probable. In assessing probability, we consider such factors as specific orders from the PUCO or FERC, 
regulatory precedent and the current regulatory environment. To the extent recovery of costs is no longer 
deemed probable, related regulatory assets would be required to be expensed in current period earnings. Our 
regulatory assets and liabilities have been created pursuant to a specific order of the PUCO or FERC or 
established regulatory practices, such as other utilities under the jurisdiction of the PUCO or FERC being granted 
recovery of similar costs. It is probable, but not certain, that these regulatory assets will be recoverable, subject 
to PUCO or FERC approval. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or non-current based on 
the term in which recovery is expected. See Note 3 for more information about Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. 
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Inventories 
inventories are carried at average cost and include coal, limestone, ol! and gas used for electric generation, and 
materials and supplies used for utility operations. 

Intangibles 
Intangibles consist of emission allowances and renewable energy credits. Emission allowances are carried on a 
first-In, first out (FIFO) basis for purchased emission allowances. Net gains or losses on the sale of excess 
emission allowances, representing the difference between the sales proceeds and the cost of emission 
allowances, are recorded as a component of our fuel costs and are reflected In Operating income when realized. 
Part of the gains on emission allowances are used to reduce the overall fuel rider charged to our SSO retail 
customers. Emission allowances are amortized as they are used in our operations. Renewable energy credits 
are amortized as they are used or retired. 

Income Taxes 
Income taxes are accounted in accordance with FASC 740 which requires an asset and liability approach for 
financial accounting and reporting of Income taxes with tax effects of differences, based on currently enacted 
Income tax rates, between the financial reporting and tax basis of accounting reported as deferred tax assets or 
liabilities in the balance sheets. Valuation allowances are provided against deferred tax assets unless it Is more 
likely than not that the asset will be realized. 

Investment tax credits, which have been used to reduce federal Income taxes payable, are deferred for financial 
reporting purposes and are amortized over the useful lives of the property to which they relate. For rate-
regulated operations, additional deferred income taxes and offsetting regulatory assets or liabilities are recorded 
to recognize that income taxes will be recoverable or refundable through future revenues. 

DPL and its subsidiaries file U.S. federal Income tax returns as part of the consolidated U.S. income tax return 
filed by AES. The consolidated tax liability is allocated to each subsidiary based on the separate return method 
which is specified in our tax allocation agreement and which provides a consistent, systematic and rational 
approach. See Note 6 for additional information. 

Financial Instruments 
We classify our investments in debt and equity financial Instruments of publicly traded entities into different 
categories: available-for-sale and held-to-maturity. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value and 
unrealized gains and losses on those securities, net of deferred income taxes, are presented as a separate 
component of shareholders' equity. Other-than-temporary declines in value are recognized currently in earnings. 
Financial instruments classified as held-to-maturity are carried at amortized cost. The cost basis for public equity 
security and fixed maturity investments is average cost and amortized cost, respectively. 

Accounting for Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities 
DP&L collects certain excise taxes levied by state or local governments from its customers. DP&L's excise taxes 
are accounted for on a net basis and recorded as a reduction in revenues in the accompanying Statements of 
Operations in accordance with AES policy. The amounts for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 
2012 were $50.8 million, $50.5 million and $50.5 million, respectively. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. All highly liquid short-term 
investments with original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents. 

Restricted Cash 
Restricted cash includes cash which is restricted as to withdrawal or usage. The nature of the restrictions include 
restrictions imposed by agreements related to deposits held as collateral. 

Financial Derivatives 
All derivatives are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the balance sheets and are measured at fair value. 
Changes in the fair value are recorded in earnings unless they are designated as a cash flow hedge of a 
forecasted transaction or qualify for the normal purchases and sales exception. 

We use fonA^ard contracts to reduce our exposure to changes in energy and commodity prices and as a hedge 
against the risk of changes In cash flows associated with expected electricity purchases. These purchases are 
used to hedge our full load requirements. We also hold forward sales contracts that hedge against the risk of 
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changes in cash flows associated with power sales during periods of projected generation facility availability. We 
use cash flow hedge accounting when the hedge or a portion of the hedge is deemed to be highly effective, 
which results in changes In fair value being recorded within accumulated other comprehensive income, a 
component of shareholder's equity. We have elected not to offset net derivative positions in the financial 
statements. Accordingly, we do not offset such derivative positions against the fair value of amounts recognized 
for the right to reclaim cash collateral or the obligation to return cash collateral under master netting agreements. 
See Note 9 for additional information. 

Insurance and Claims Costs 
In addition to insurance obtained from third-party providers, MVIC, a wholly-owned captive subsidiary of DPL, 
provides insurance coverage solely to us, our subsidiaries and, in some cases, our partners in commonly-owned 
facilities we operate, for workers' compensation, general liability, and property damage on an ongoing 
basis. MVIC maintains an active run-off policy for directors' and officers' liability and fiduciary through their 
expiration In 2017 and may or may not be renewed at that time. DP&L Is responsible for claim costs below 
certain coverage thresholds of MVIC for the insurance coverage noted above. In addition, DP&L has estimated 
liabilities for medical, life, and disability reserves for claims costs below certain coverage thresholds of third-party 
providers. We record these additional insurance and claims costs of approximately $15.6 million and $18.8 
million at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within Other current liabilities and Other deferred credits on 
the balance sheets. The estimated liabilities for MVIC at DPL and the estimated liabilities for workers' 
compensation, medical, life and disability costs at DP&L are actuarially determined using certain assumptions. 
There is uncertainty associated with these loss estimates and actual results may differ from the estimates. 
Modification of these loss estimates based on experience and changed circumstances is reflected in the period in 
which the estimate is re-evaluated. 

Pension and Postretirement Benefits 
We account for and disclose pension and postemployment benefits in accordance with the provisions of GAAP 
relating to the accounting for pension and other postemployment plans. These GAAP provisions require the use 
of assumptions, such as the discount rate for liabilities and long-term rate of return on assets, in determining the 
obligations, annual cost, and funding requirements of the plans. 

Related Party Transactions 
In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into transactions with other subsidiaries of DPL. All material 
Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in DPL's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In December 2013, an agreement was signed, effective January 1, 2014, whereby the Service Company began 
providing services including accounting, legal, human resources. Information technology and other corporate 
services on behalf of companies that are part of the U.S. SBU, including, among other companies, DPL and 
DP&L. The Service Company allocates the costs for these services based on cost drivers designed to result in 
fair and equitable allocations. This Includes ensuring that the regulated utilities served, including DP&L, are not 
subsidizing costs incurred for the benefit of non-regulated businesses. 
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The following table provides a summary of these transactions: 

Years ended December 31 , 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 

p P & L revenues: _ ^ __ _̂ ____ 

.^P,f-l"_^p^r?-°'i^. *y* în^5"-̂ r̂ ^ „,_„____ 
I ^ B t t l P ® " M ^ n c % e r S ? i c e s ^ ^ - x ' ^ ^ ^ - r i - - ^ ^ =,̂ ^ - ~ ^ ^ ^ - F ^ ' 

Expense recoveries for services 
provided to DPLER '̂'̂  $ 2.2 $ 5.2 $ 4.0 

DP&L Customer security deposits: ^ ^_ 

Transactions with the Ser / i^ _^________^_^_____^_^__^__^ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Charges to the Service Company $ 0.1 $ - $ 

At December At December 3 1 , 
Tj-ansactlons witii the S^^ Company: 31,2014 2013 

2 6 ) 

^^rstrir 

(a) DP&L sells power to DPLER and MC Squared to satisfy the electric requirements of their retail customers. The revenue dollars 
associated with sales to DPLER and MC Squared are recorded as wholesale revenues in DP&L's Financial Statements. DP&L 
started selling physical power to MC Squared during June 2012 and became their sole source of power in September 2012. 

(b) MVIC, a wholly-owned captive insurance subsidiary of DPL, provides insurance coverage to DP&L and other DPL subsidiaries for 
workers' compensation, general liability, property damages and directors' and officers' liability. These amounts represent 
insurance premiums paid by DP&L to MVIC. 

(c) In the normal course of business DP&L incurs and records expenses on behalf of DPLER. Such expenses include but are not 
limited to employee-related expenses, accounting, information technology, payroll, legal and other administration expenses. DP&L 
subsequently charges these expenses to DPLER at DP&L's cost and credits the expense in which they were initially recorded. 

(d) DP&L requires credit assurance from the CRES providers serving customers in its service territory because DP&L is the default 
energy provider should the CRES provider fail to fulfill its obligations to provide electricity. Due to DPL's credit downgrade, DP&L 
required cash collateral from DPLER. 

Recently Adopted Account ing Standards 

Discont inued Operations 
The FASB recently issued ASU 2014-08 "Presentation of Financial Statements" (Topic 205) and "Property, Plant, 
and Equipment (Topic 360): Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of 
an Entity" effective for annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2014. ASU 2014-08 updates the 
definition of discontinued operations by limiting discontinued operations reporting to disposals of components of 
an entity that represent strategic shifts that have (or will have) a major effect on an entity's operations and 
financial results. In addition, an entity is required to expand disclosures for discontinued operations by providing 
more information about the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of discontinued operations both on the face 
of the financial statements and In the Notes. For the disposal of an individually significant component of an entity 
that does not qualify for discontinued operations reporting, an entity Is required to disclose the pretax profit or 
loss of the component In the Notes. Our early adoption of ASU No. 2014-008 in the third quarter of 2014 did not 
have any impact on our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

Recently Issued Account ing Standards 

Going Concern 
The FASB recently Issued ASU 2014-15 "Presentation of Financial Statements - Going Concern (Subtopic 205-
40: Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity's Ability to Continue as a Going Concern)" effective for annual and 
interim periods ending after December 15, 2016. ASU 2014-15 requires management to evaluate whether there 
are conditions or events, considered In aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the entity's ability to 
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are issued. There are 
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required disclosures if substantial doubt is identified including documentation of: principal conditions or events 
that raised substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern (before consideration of 
management's plans), management's evaluation of the significance of those conditions or events in relation to 
the entity's ability to meet its obligations, and management's plans that alleviated substantial doubt about the 
entity's ability to continue as a going concern. This ASU Is not expected to have any impact on our overall results 
of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
The FASB recently Issued ASU 2014-09 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" (Topic 606) effective for 
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2016; with retrospective application. The core principle 
of the ASU is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to 
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. Because the guidance in this update is principles-based, it can be applied to all 
contracts with customers regardless of Industry-specific or transaction-specific fact patterns. Additionally, the 
guidance requires improved disclosures to help users of financial statements better understand the nature, 
amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue that is recognized. We have not yet determined the extent, if any, to 
which our overall results of operations, financial position or cash flows may be affected by the implementation of 
this ASU. 

NOTE 2 - SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

$ in millions 
December 31, 

2014 2013 
Accounts receivable, net 

Customer receivables 68.7 58.2 

Other 21.7 27.2 
i ^K i ^^ l iG^» i lb i l l ^»^S fe^^^ -g^^ : ^ t ^ 

Total accounts receivable, net $ 152.7 $ 147.5 

Inventories 
^^^^^^m^fmS-i?Mo^^?fiM0M^&^mm^m^m^^mmM 

Plant materials and supplies 32.3 37.0 

Total inventories, at average cost 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

$ 99.0 $ 81.7 
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The amounts reclassified out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) by component during the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 

Details about 
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive 
Income I (Loss) 
Components 
$ In millions 

Affected line item in the Statements of 
Operations Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

Gains and losses on Available-for-sale securities activity (Note 8): 

Big^^^^^^^Ml̂ 5S&mM(didtMiM)@ îM^ 
04 2.1 (0.1) Total before Income taxes 

Net of Income taxes 0.2 1.4 ioii 
Gains and losses on cash flow hedges (Note 9): 

Revenue 28.4 2.2 0.3 

Total before income taxes 
^liBm^msmMMi^^^s^^^mMmm^ 

26.9 5.1 

i^^^^^^^s^m^msm^SsmM^^^Smmm^mi^^^^m^MBM^m^. 
(3.8) 

Net of income taxes 

Amortization of defined benefit pension items (Note 7): 

15.4 2.6 iMl 

^ ^ . • . . - . .^ . . " ' !^^J !^ '^^[^ - (1 .9 ) (14) 
2.7 

l i^i^^^tiM^^MK^Mi^l^it-i i l i iMJiM IM 
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The changes in the components of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) during the years ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013 are as follows: 

$in millions 

Gains / 
(losses) on 

available-for-
sale securities 

SgiS^eliiti^^lli21)l3; 

Gains / 
(losses) on 
cash flow 
hedges 

Change In 
unfunded 
pension 

obligation Total 
' - $^: t >^^-;'^1"Qf--$.^l r ^'^^ .2,'6.,.$ C42 3) $ i 387) 

S^^^Sfreh^hsiY^inc^me^/ (loss)!before^ 
reelaglifiMoiiljC. /* - -
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other 
comprehensive income / (loss) 

7i emt^-- ro 

1 4 26 

I .#MSri:eSl$ier^d otKer comprehensive 
)n|SQtn.6MQgs)fe . 3 . _ ^ ... -•-

-4 8 

38 

42 

78 

' (0 2);A-'^v 3 6 86 120 

&lll^B>icelSberjt l^20t3. TT" , ̂  -0 8:l^.'.-^^.^.,_ 6 2 _(3azL (267) 

NOTE 3 - REGULATORY MATTERS 

In accordance with FASC 980, we have recognized total regulatory assets of $211.7 million and $180.5 million as 
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively and total regulatory liabilities of $128.5 million and $121.1 million 
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Regulatory assets and liabilities are classified as current or 
non-current based on the term in which recovery Is expected. See Note 1 for accounting policies regarding 
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. 
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The following table presents DP&L's Regulatory assets and liabilities: 

December 31, 

Type of Amortization 
$inrnHlions Recovery ^̂^ ^̂  Through 2014 2013 

Deferred storm costs _ ^ _ _ A ^ _ .^.^S}^.- $ ^ ^^-^ $ 

Economic development costs B ^ 1 ^ , . ?-V 7.7 

Transmission costs ^ _ B 2015 ^ ___ 2.6 

Total regulatory assets, current $ 44.2 $^ 20.8 

Regulatory assets, non-current: „ _ _ . „ . „ _ _ _ _ _ ^ „ _ _ -̂ _-__ 

Deferred recoverable Income taxes /VC Ongoing _ _ _ _ _ 43.1 32.4 

CCEM smart grid and advanced metering 
Infrastructure costs D Undetermined 6 6 6 6 

iBei^MftiPiK^@feiTO^Gstsm^#i^^ ~^ . _ 3.1 . 3J 
Corisunrier education campaign D Undetermined 3 0 3 0 

sm^^^m^^m^^gM^m^^mmm^^smso^s .:''~':'̂ '̂ . .:: -~ /: 256. 
Other miscellaneous ^ D Undetermined 2.2 1.0 

Regulatory liabilities, current: _______ _ ^ _„____„_ 

Other miscellaneous 1.5 

'^m^^mM^i^^&r^M^KMm^^M^^^^mww^^XMi^t^^Si:^ 
Regulatory liabilities, non-current: _ ____-. „__,__„„__-____ 

Postretirement benefits 4.8 5.6 
^i^rTiisetell^ecftj^^fe^i^-;^-'^i:^v§y^g^:J:^^g^ 

Total regulatory liabilities, non-current $̂  124.1 $ 121.1 

A - Recovery of incurred costs without a rate of return. 
B - Recovery of incurred costs plus rate of return. 
C - Balance has an offsetting liability resulting in no effect on rate base. 
D - Recovery not yet determined, but Is probable of occurring in future rate proceedings. 

Regulatory Assets 

Deferred storm costs represent costs incurred to repair the damage cause to DP&L's distribution equipment by 
major storms in 2008, 2011 and 2012. Such costs are included In Regulatory Assets, non-current on the 
accompanying Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2013 and in Regulatory Assets, current as of December 31, 
2014. DP&L filed an application with the PUCO in 2012 to recover these costs. On April 14, 2014, DP&L reached 
an agreement in principle with the PUCO staff whereby DP&L would recover storm costs of $22.3 million from all 
customers on a non-bypassable basis. As a result, using the best estimate of the amount that is probable of 
recovery, DP&L reduced the regulatory asset balance to $22.3 million. In accordance with FASC 980 "Regulated 
Operations", the reduction was recognized as a current period expense, which is included In Operation and 
maintenance and the corresponding adjustment to carrying costs which is Included in interest expense on the 
accompanying Statements of Operations. In accordance with the agreement reached with the PUCO staff, a 
stipulation was filed and a final order was Issued on December 17, 2014 that approved the Stipulation. Recovery 
will begin in January 2015 therefore this asset was reclassified to current. 
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Fuel and purchased power recoverv costs represent prudently Incurred fuel, purchased power, derivative, 
emission and other related costs which will be recovered from or returned to customers in the future through the 
operation of the fuel and purchased power recovery rider. The fuel and purchased power recovery rider 
fluctuates based on actual costs and recoveries and Is modified at the start of each seasonal quarter. As part of 
the PUCO approval process, an outside auditor reviews fuel costs and the fuel procurement process. An audit of 
2012 fuel costs occurred in 2013, and on June 12,2013 we received a report from the auditor recommending a 
pre-tax disallowance of $5.3 million. A reserve of $2.6 million was recorded against the regulatory asset. In 
August 2014, the PUCO Issued an order, which overruled the auditor recommendation and instead included the 
disallowance of an immaterial amount of fuel costs. The impact of the order was a reversal in the third quarter of 
2014 of the vast majority of the previously established $2.6 million reserve and a corresponding reduction to fuel 
expense. The 2013 audit was completed with no material disallowance of fuel expenses. The costs recovered 
through the fuel rider decrease each year as more SSO supply is provided through the competitive bid. The fuel 
rider will be completely phased out beginning January 1, 2016. 

Economic development costs represent costs incurred to promote economic development within the State of 
Ohio. These costs are being recovered through an Economic Development Rider that is subject to a bi-annual 
true-up process for any over/under recovery of costs. 

Energy efficiency program costs represent costs incurred to develop and implement various customer programs 
addressing energy efficiency. These costs are being recovered through an Energy Efficiency Rider (EER) that 
began July 1, 2009 and that Is subject to an annual true-up for any over/under recovery of costs. 

Transmission costs represent the costs related to transmission, ancillary service and other PJM-related charges 
that have been incurred as a member of PJM. On an annual basis, retail rates are adjusted to true-up costs with 
recovery in rates. 

Pension benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 "Compensation - Retirement Benefits" costs of our regulated 
operations that for ratemaking purposes are deferred for future recovery. We recognize an asset for a plan's 
overfunded status or a liability for a plan's underfunded status, and recognize, as a component of OCI, the 
changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not recognized as a component of net 
periodic benefit cost. This regulatory asset represents the regulated portion that would otherwise be charged as 
a loss to OCI. 

Deferred recoverable income taxes represent deferred income tax assets recognized from the normalization of 
flow-through items as the result of tax benefits previously provided to customers. This is the cumulative flow-
through benefit given to regulated customers that will be collected from them in future years. Since currently 
existing temporary differences between the financial statements and the related tax basis of assets will reverse In 
subsequent periods, these deferred recoverable income taxes will decrease over time. 

Unamortized loss on reacouired debt represents losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior 
periods. These costs are being amortized over the lives of the original issues in accordance with FERC and 
PUCO rules. 

CCEM smart grid and AMI costs represent costs incurred as a result of studying and developing distribution 
system upgrades and implementation of AMI. On October 19, 2010, DP&L elected to withdraw its case 
pertaining to the Smart Grid and AMI programs. The PUCO accepted the withdrawal In an order issued on 
January 5, 2011. The PUCO also indicated that it expects DP&L to continue to monitor other utilities' Smart Grid 
and AMI programs and to explore the potential benefits of investing in Smart Grid and AMI programs and that 
DP&L will, when appropriate, file new Smart Grid and/or AMI business cases in the future. We plan to file to 
recover these deferred costs in a future regulatory rate proceeding. Based on past PUCO precedent, we believe 
these costs are probable of future recovery in rates. 

Retail settlement svstem costs represent costs to implement a retail settlement system that reconciles the energy 
a CRES supplier delivers to its customers with what its customers actually use. Based on case precedent in 
other utilities' cases, the costs are recoverable through a future DP&L rate proceeding. 

Consumer education campaign represents costs for consumer education advertising regarding electric 
deregulation. DP&L will be seeking recovery of these costs as part of our next distribution rate case filing at the 
PUCO. The timing of such a filing has not yet been determined. 
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Regulatory Liabilities 

Transmission Costs see "Regulatory Assets - Transmission costs" above. 

Estimated costs of removal - regulated property reflect an estimate of amounts collected in customer rates for 
costs that are expected to be Incurred in the future to remove existing transmission and distribution property from 
service when the property is retired. 

Postretirement benefits represent the qualifying FASC 715 "Compensation - Retirement Benefits" gains related 
to our regulated operations that, for ratemaking purposes, are probable of being reflected in future rates. We 
recognize an asset for a plan's overfunded status or a liability for a plan's underfunded status, and recognize, as 
a component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that are not 
recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. This regulatory liability represents the regulated portion 
that would othenwise be reflected as a gain to OCI. 

NOTE 4 - OWNERSHIP OF COAL-FIRED FACILITIES 

DP&L and certain other Ohio utilities have undivided ownership interests in five coal-fired electric generating 
facilities and numerous transmission facilities. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating units, are 
allocated to the owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel inventory, 
plant materials and operating supplies, and capital additions are allocated to the owners in accordance with their 
respective ownership interests. As of December 31, 2014, DP&L had $25.0 million of construction work in 
process at such facilities. DP&L's share of the operating cost of such facilities is included within the 
corresponding line in the Statements of Operations and DP&L's share of the Investment in the facilities is 
included within Total net property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheets. Each joint owner provides their 
own financing for their share of the operations and capital expenditures of the jointly-owned station. 

DP&L's undivided ownership interest In such facilities at December 31, 2014, Is as follows: 
DP&L Share DP&L Carrying Value 

Gross Construction 
Summer Plant Accumulated Work In 

Production In Service Depreciation Process 
Ownership Capacity ($ In ($ in ($ in 

% (MW) millions) millions) millions) 

SCR and 
FGD 

Equipment 
Installed 
and in 

Service 
(Yes/No) 

Jointly-owned production units ^ ^ 

Killen-Unit 2 67.0 402 624 314 2 Yes 

iiiBii^Wl^MiE^^^^S^^^^6M^^M3^^^M0fifj^^Mii^M^gl^ 
Stuart - Units 1 through 4 35.0 808 756 323 14 Yes 
^^^^^^^^^^mmBmimB^m&mm^mm^^^^^^mm^m^ism^msi 

Transmission (at varying 
percenteges) _ _̂̂ __ 98 62 

Beckjord Unit 6 was retired effective October 1,2014 and DP&L sold Its interest in East Bend on December 30, 
2014. 

As part of the provisional DPL purchase accounting adjustments related to the Merger, four stations (Beckjord, 
Conesville, East Bend and Hutchings) had future expected cash flows that, when discounted, produced a fair 
market value different than DP&L's carrying value. Since DP&L did not apply push down accounting, this 
valuation did not affect the carrying value of these stations' valuation at DP&L. In the fourth quarter of 2013, 
DP&L performed an impairment review of its stations and recorded impairment expense of $86.0 million related 
to two of Its stations, Conesville and East Bend. In addition, in the third quarter of 2012, DP&L recorded 
impairment expense of $80.8 million on its Conesville and Hutchings stations. See Note 13 for more Information 
on these impairments. 
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NOTE 5 - DEBT OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term debt is as follows: 
Long-term debt 
$ in millions December 31,2014 December 31,2013 

R i i M ( 5 r ^ S @ i d i i l M F i S e ^ r f i t 5 i a ^ I ^ ^ 
Pollution control series due in January 2028 - 4.7% 35.3 

^45M 
35.3 

Pollution control series due in September 2036 - 4.8% 100.0 100.0 
StiiiMl^WoBM^pnejSdye ini^^ 2040 -^variable'rates-' ^ ' 
0 | i i»yMMfec i^ ( fe f f%^Q:26%.(a) ' . ._'^.l _..^. 
U.S. Government note due in February 2061 - 4.2% 

400.0 100.0 
18.1 18.2 

iCapjBlft^^fojbligations . 
Unamortized debt discount 

iail^Mlfefiebt^^; 
(0-5) iOTl 

± 877.0Z4 o . 876 9 

jfe^^frangfeTofSM^^f'^^^itbitth^^ 

Current po r t ion - long- term debt 
$ in millions December 31,2014 December 31, 2013 

S l S ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ d g l B ^ t t a n / 2 0 6 1 ? ^ ' 4 2% 

Capital lease obligations 
o.1r>$ 01 

0.1 

l?/;i\;^^Ki^MksS]S^i''^K#i^^3ii^s^^~i^"r>?^^ ^(^^^TH^^ff i t^K^f t |^^ l :^^^mQhthsanS^ ĝ v̂  

At December 3 1 , 2014, maturities of long-term debt are summarized as follows: 
Due within the twelve months ending December 3 1 , 
$ in millions 
^ 0 1 ^ : - ^ y ^ - - - K ... -^ - , ^ . - . ' 
2016 

Ai o.i; 
445.1 

MM^^^^JBMfS^lRS^¥-^^:^^^f ĝ ^̂  ^M ̂  
2018 0.1 

Thereafter 432.1 

Unamortized discount (0.5) 

On December 4, 2008, the OAQDA issued $100.0 million of collateralized, variable rate Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series A and B due November 1, 2040. In turn, DP&L borrowed these funds from the OAQDA and issued 
corresponding first mortgage bonds to support repayment of the funds. The payment of principal and interest on 
each series of the bonds when due is backed by two standby letters of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
N.A. DP&L amended these standby letters of credit on May 3 1 , 2013 and extended the stated maturities to June 
2018. These facilities are irrevocable and have no subjective acceleration clauses. Fees associated with this 
letter of credit facility were not material during the years ended December 3 1 , 2014, 2013 or 2012. 

On May 10, 2013, DP&L entered into a $300.0 million unsecured revolving credit agreement with a syndicated 
bank group. This new $300.0 million facility has a five year term expiring on May 10, 2018, a $100.0 million letter 
of credit sublimit and a feature which provides DP&L the ability to Increase the size of the facility by an additional 
$100.0 million. At December 3 1 , 2014, there were two letters of credit in the amount of $0.7 million outstanding, 
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with the remaining $299.3 million available to DP&L. Fees associated with this revolving credit facility were not 
material during the years ended December 31, 2014 or 2013. 

DP&L's unsecured revolving credit agreements and standby letters of credit have two financial covenants, the 
first measures Total Debt to Total Capitalization, the ratio is calculated, at the end of each fiscal quarter, by 
dividing total debt at the end of the quarter by total capitalization at the end of the quarter. The second financial 
covenant measures EBITDA to Interest Expense. EBITDA to Interest Expense ratio is calculated, at the end of 
each fiscal quarter, by dividing EBITDA for the four prior fiscal quarters by the consolidated interest charges for 
the same period. 

On March 31, 2014, DP&L borrowed $15.0 million from DPL at an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.0%. This note 
was due on or before April 30, 2014 and was repaid on April 30, 2014. 

On March 1, 2011, DP&L completed the purchase of $18.7 million of electric transmission and distribution assets 
from the federal government that are located at the Wright-Patterson Air Force Base (WPAFB). DP&L financed 
the acquisition of these assets with a note payable to the federal government that is payable monthly over 50 
years and bears interest at 4.2% per annum. 

On September 19, 2013, DP&L closed a $445.0 million issuance of senior secured first mortgage bonds. These 
new bonds mature on September 15, 2016, and are secured by DP&L's First & Refunding Mortgage. 

Substantially all property, plant and equipment of DP&L is subject to the lien of the First and Refunding 
Mortgage. 

NOTE 6 - INCOME TAXES 

DP&L's components of income tax expense were as follows: 

$ In millions 
Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 
Computat ion^ tax expense _ 

Increases (decreases) In tax resulting from: 

^m^^mmimM^ Wi^^^MBM ^^SMMB^^flm:̂ 0ME'̂ mQi) 
Depreciation of AFUDC - Equity 

^ l n f e ^ T i ^ S ^ K ^ ^ M i l l z e d I I ^ 3 ^ : ^ y ^ l f ^ : ^ ' ^ 
(2.7) (2.5) 3.0 

i : M ^ i i ^ E ^ i i i i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ # g ^ 
Section 199 - domestic production deduction 

iS^^^^iyiM^liSli^^^lD^^ffih ^ i W ^ i S S i ^ S ^ 
(M) iill 

Accrual (settlement) for open tax years (6^) (ML 
% l ^ \ : ' V . :- :*i'"«;;^-:;i5s*^: ^MS^U^^^KwUSlttMm^^ 

Total tax expense 

Components of Tax Expense 

39.7 $ 18.6 $ 55.1 

WiM^mMSM^^^^^^^M^^^^^^^X. 52.1 
State and Local - current 0.5 (oi: 10 

M^MfB^-t^mMmwi^^iMMBMim^M^^^^^^i^.. 53.1 

^ii^ifi^f:^^pa^gtgii^Miia4^ .4.7 
State and local - deferred 1.0 0.5 p^mm^s^m^m^m^^^mm S2JX 

rmm 
w^^^m^^^^^^s^^mBmMi c-j^-.^'i''^j^.<few.O.-i1 %' 
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December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 
Net rion-current Assets / (Liabilities) _ _ „ „ _ „ ._ „__^ 

Income taxes recoverable (14.8) (11.4) 
^ J R e i j l a t g M i i g t i l ^ a % i ^ » M l f e v ; - ^ l ^ ^ ^ 
Investment tax credit _ 8.6 8.8 

Other ^ _ _ _ ^ , (12.2) ^ (6.8) 
%lgSSfSitgtt iHtiei^^gi^^l?'#^^^tf: i^ 

Net cu rrent Assets /(Liabi 1 ities) '̂'̂  ______^_ 

Net current assets/(liabilities) $ a5_ $ (5.0) 

(a) The statutory tax rate of 35% was applied to pre-tax earnings. 
(b) Includesexpenseof $0.7 million, $1.1 million and benefit of $7.6 million in the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, 

respectively, of income tax related to adjustments from prior years. 
(c) Amounts are included within Other prepayments and current assets and Other current liabilities on the Balance Sheets of DP&L. 

The following table presents the tax (benefit) / expense related to pensions, postemployment benefits, cash flow 
hedges and financial instruments that were credited to Accumulated other comprehensive loss. 

Years ended December 31, 
$ In millions 2014 2013 2012 

i i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ r ^ f i i f i ^ ^ # l ^ i ; # ^ » M i f f i g l ^ ^ l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ 

Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes 
We apply the provisions of GAAP relating to the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. A reconciliation of 
the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits for DP&L is as follows: 
$ in millions 

Calendar 2013 

Lapse of ^tatute of Limitations (6.9) 

Balance at December 31, 2013 8.8 

Calendar 2014 

Lapse of Statute of Limitations (8.6) 

Of the December 31, 2014 balance of unrecognized tax benefits, $0.9 million is due to uncertainty in the timing of 
deductibility. 

We recognize interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in Income tax expense. The amounts 
accrued and expense (benefit) recorded were not material for each period presented. 

Following is a summary of the tax years open to examination by major tax jurisdiction: 
U.S. Federal-2010 and fonward 
State and Local - 2010 and fonvard 

None of the unrecognized tax benefits are expected to significantly increase or decrease within the next twelve 
months other than those subject to expiring statutes of limitations. 
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The Internal Revenue Service began an examination of our 2008 Federal income tax return during the second 
quarter of 2010. The results of the examination were approved by the Joint Committee on Taxation on January 
18, 2013. As a result of the examination, DPL received a refund of $19.9 million and recorded a $1.2 million 
reduction to income tax expense. 

NOTE 7 - PENSION AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS 

DP&L sponsors a traditional defined benefit pension plan for most of the employees of DPL and Its subsidiaries. 
For collective bargaining employees, the defined benefits are based on a specific dollar amount per year of 
service. For all other employees (management employees), the traditional defined benefit pension plan Is based 
primarily on compensation and years of service. As of December 31, 2010, this traditional pension plan was 
closed to new management employees. A participant is 100% vested in all amounts credited to his or her 
account upon the completion of five vesting years, as defined In The Dayton Power and Light Company 
Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's employment is terminated, other 
than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his or her account, the account 
shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. In December 2013, an agreement was signed, effective January 
1, 2014, whereby the Service Company began providing services including accounting, legal, human resources, 
information technology and other corporate services on behalf of companies that are part of the U.S. SBU, 
including among other companies, DPL and DP&L. Employees that transferred from DP&L to the Service 
Company maintain their previous eligibility to participate in the DP&L pension plan. 

Almost all management employees beginning employment on or after January 1, 2011 participate In a cash 
balance pension plan. Similar to the traditional pension plan for management employees, the cash balance 
benefits are based on compensation and years of service. A participant shall become 10(}% vested In all 
amounts credited to his or her account upon the completion of three vesting years, as defined in The Dayton 
Power and Light Company Retirement Income Plan, or the participant's death or disability. If a participant's 
employment is terminated, other than by death or disability, prior to such participant becoming 100% vested in his 
or her account, the account shall be forfeited as of the date of termination. Vested benefits in the cash balance 
plan are fully portable upon termination of employment. 

In addition, we have a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) for certain retired key executives as well 
as an immaterial unfunded liability related to agreements for retirement benefits of certain terminated and retired 
key executives. We also Include our net liability to our partners related to our share of their pension costs within 
the Pension, retiree and other benefits on our Balance Sheets. 

We generally fund pension plan benefits as accrued in accordance with the minimum funding requirements of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) and. In addition, make voluntary contributions from 
time to time. There were no contributions during the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

Qualified employees who retired prior to 1987 and their dependents are eligible for health care and life insurance 
benefits until their death, while qualified employees who retired after 1987 are eligible for life insurance benefits 
and partially subsidized health care. The partially subsidized health care is at the election of the employee, who 
pays the majority of the cost, and is available only from their retirement until they are covered by Medicare. We 
have funded a portion of the union-eligible benefits using a Voluntary Employee Beneficiary Association Trust. 

We recognize an asset for a plan's overfunded status and a liability for a plan's underfunded status and 
recognize, as a component of OCI, the changes in the funded status of the plan that arise during the year that 
are not recognized as a component of net periodic benefit cost. For the transmission and distribution areas of 
our electric business, these amounts are recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities which represent the 
regulated portion that would othen/vise be charged or credited to AOCI. We have historically recorded these 
costs on the accrual basis and this is how these costs have been historically recovered through customer rates. 
This factor, combined with the historical precedents from the PUCO and FERC, make these costs probable of 
future rate recovery. 
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The following tables set forth the changes in our pension and postemployment benefit plans' obligations and 
assets recorded on the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. The amounts presented In the 
following tables for pension Include the collective bargaining plan formula, traditional management plan formula 
and cash balance plan formula and the SERP in the aggregate. The amounts presented for postemployment 
Include both health and life insurance benefits. 
$ in millions Pension 

Years ended December 31, 
2014 2013 

Change in benefit obligation , _ _ „ _ 

Service cost __ __ 5.9 7.2 

Plan amendments _^ ______ „ ^ ^ „ „___ : 

Benefits paid _^ ^ „ , „ _ _ (24.2) J (21.4) 
fenMfe§feilWiI6i^t^liiOpin^'j^^'^^ 

Change in plan assets ___„, .„_____-_^,„ _,. 
FJitiiali^^&iMi^^feM^il^bhlhgWj^rit^^ 
Actual return on plan assets 46.4 8.7 

MoFJWiii^l^^^fsgKl'M-i^^M-^ 
Benefits paid ^ ___^ (24.2) (21.4) 

$ in millions Postretirement 
Years ended December 31, 
2014 2013 

Change in benefit obligation 

Sen/icecost _̂  0.2 ^ ^ 9 : ^ 

Actuarial (gain)/loss _ _ _ __ .._.„,.,.,._ Q-? (2.2) 

Benefit obligation at end of period 19.6 19.7 

Change in plan assets _ 

iMM^»i^i^^SKfPnMIBM^i»iif^liMt^^^ii^^^^^^»m^fei^^ 
P?nA['J?.H![9_Q?J9P^?_^-.^.^.f-®^^ .. -- ^'^ 1.0 

Fair value of plan assets at end of period 3.3 3.7 
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$ In millions Pension Postretirement 

Amounts recognized in the Balance sheets 

December 3 1 , December 3 1 , 
2014 2013 2014 2013 

Non-current liabilities ^ (71.7) J ? ' ^ - ^ \ (15.8) (15.5) 

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income, Regulatory Assets 
and Regulatory Liabil i t ies, pre-tax 

Components: 

Bi^Sl^l^W^^t . , -- . ..- -^_$ .^ r 2Q.3'g>$jg^^ 163 $ 0.6 $ 0 7 
Net actuarial loss / (gam) 152.5 1151 

ft^eWiltllipJher Comprehensive Incbme^, 
l legmaWiwAssj l 

Recorded as: 

iML (6 9) 

Regulatory liability _,. ~ _ " {^:5) 

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, 
Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities, 
pre-tax 

sm 
JIO) 

$ 172.8 $ 131.4 $ 

The accumulated benefit obligation for our defined benefit pension plans was $431.0 million and $359.8 million at 
December 3 1 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. 

The net periodic benefit cost (Income) of the pension and postemployment benefit plans were: 

Net Periodic Benefit Cost - Pension 
Years ended December 3 1 , 

$ In millions 2014 2013 2012 

Interest cost 17 5 156 
:->^6;2: 

17 3 

Arnortization of unrecognized: _ _ , .. 
(236) - ^mj) 

"^ T9.3 ̂  8 8 
Prior sen^Ice cost 2.8 2 ^ 2.8 

Settlement Expense - i _ _ _ 0.6 

l^ii^lffllfafig|i^MtMi»fi^ei^3^^i^ 
(a) For purposes of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets under GAAP, the market-related value of assets (MRVA) 

is used. GAAP requires that the difference between actual plan asset retums and estimated plan asset returns be amortized into 
the MRVA equally over a period not to exceed five years. We use a methodology under which we include the difference between 
actual and estimated asset returns in the MRVA equally over a three year period. The MRVA used in the calculation of expected 
return on pension plan assets was approximately $361.0 million in 2014, $351.2 million in 2013, and $346.0 million in 2012. 
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Net Periodic Benefit Cost / (Income) -
Postretirement 

$ in millions 
Years ended December 31, 

2014 2013 2012 

ffiffl^^BMi^B iS^^MMij^iMi^^^iM. 
0.8 0.8 0.9 Interest cost _̂  ^^ _ 

Amortization of unrecognized: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ , ^ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ „ „ _ _ _ ^ ^ _ _ _ _ _ 

Prior service credit ^ 0.1 0.1 0.1 

^Jeiff i l l^Milt it;^Mifi»ie)i:^i^ 

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit Obligation Recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive 
Income, Regulatory Assets and Regulatory Liabilities 
Pension 

Years ended December 31, 
$ in millions 2014 2013 2012 
h i e t J a i l i r l I i l i l ^ ^ g § i ) S I ¥ : ^ M ^ : ^ c ^ > ^ ^ - $' 
Prior service cost 6.8 
Reversal of amortization Item ^ ^̂  

i117)__$_. 

T^.. - . - . (6 4) 193)^ 

5.2 

JM) 
Prior service cost 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ t e t i n ^ ^ c u i f i j j I a m ^ F e f : 

(2 8) (2 8) 128) 
.iC. .̂ â̂ -' ^ ^ 

^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i ' ^ B ^ ^ M (23 8) 

-J-7- i . 

Postretirement 
Years ended December 31, 

$ In millions 2014 2013 2012 

B 
Reversal of amortization item ^ _________„„ 

'-iic-~:^i^-:'- -'S'^^'-.Q ' 

Estimated amounts that will be amortized from AOCI, Regulatory assets and Regulatory liabilities Into net 
periodic benefit costs during 2015 are: 
$ in millions _ _ ^ Pension Postretirement 

Prior sen/ice cost $ 3.3 $ 0.1 
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Our expected return on plan asset assumptions, used to determine benefit obligations, are based on historical 
long-term rates of return on investments, which use the widely accepted capital market principle that assets with 
higher volatility generate a greater return over the long run. Current market factors, such as Inflation and interest 
rates, as well as asset diversification and portfolio rebalancing, are evaluated when long-term capital market 
assumptions are determined. Peer data and historical returns are reviewed to verify reasonableness and 
appropriateness. 

For 2015, we are decreasing our expected long-term rate of return assumption to 6.50% from 6.75% for pension 
plan assets. In addition, we are decreasing our long-term rate of return assumption to 4.50% from 6.00% for 
other postemployment benefit plan assets. These rates of return represent our long-term assumptions based on 
our current portfolio mixes. Also, for 2015, we are decreasing our assumed discount rate to 4.02% from 4.86% 
for pension and to 3.71% from 4.58% for postemployment benefits expense to reflect current duration-based 
yield curve discount rates. A one percent change In the rate of return assumption for pension would result in an 
increase or decrease to the 2015 pension expense of approximately $3.5 million. A 25 basis point change in the 
discount rate for pension would result in a decrease of approximately $0.5 million to 2015 pension expense. A 25 
basis point decrease in the discount rate for pension would result in an increase of approximately $0.8 million to 
2015 pension expense. 

In determining the discount rate to use for valuing liabilities, we used a market yield curve on high-quality fixed 
Income Investments as of December 31, 2014. We project the expected benefit payments under the plan based 
on participant data and based on certain assumptions concerning mortality, retirement rates, termination rates, 
etc. The expected benefit payments for each year are then discounted back to the measurement date using the 
appropriate spot rate for each half-year from the yield curve, thereby obtaining a present value of all expected 
future benefit payments using the yield curve. Finally, an equivalent single discount rate Is determined which 
produces a present value equal to the present value determined using the full yield curve. 

The weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations during the years ended December 31, 
2014, 2013 and 2012 were: 
Benefit Obligation Assumptions Pension Postretirement 

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

Rate of compensation increases 3.94% 3.94% 3.94% N/A N/A N/A 

The weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost (income) for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were: 

Net Periodic Benefit 
Cost / (Income) Assumptions Pension Postretirement 

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 

Expected rate of return 
on plan assets ..̂ •̂ °̂̂ ? . .J°-'̂ °̂'̂ ?. ^-^0^° ^•9°'7° .̂  •̂̂ P°̂ '> -̂QQ̂ "̂ 

The assumed health care cost trend rates at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are as follows: 
Health Care Cost Assumptions Expense Benefit Obligation 

2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012 
Pre-age65 _ ^ _ 

Post__; age 65 _ _ 
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The assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A 
one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects on the net 
periodic postemployment benefit cost and the accumulated postemployment benefit obligation: 

Effect of change in health care cost trend rate 
One-percent One-percent 

$ in millions increase decrease 

Benefit obligation $ 1.0 $ (0.9) 

Benefit payments, which reflect future service, are expected to be paid as follows: 
Estimated future benefit payments and Medicare Part D reimbursements 
$ in millions due within the following years Pension Postretirement 
^015- - } ^ _ • _ _ „ . . - ^ \ \ $ . . -24.8^ $ 1^_: 
2016 ^ ^ _ $ 25.2 $ ±.S 

2018 $ 26.3 $ _ J A 

2020-2024 ^ ' — — ~ - - ^ . . -w-^^ ^^^^ ^ ^^ 

We expect to make contributions of $0.4 million to our SERP in 2015 to cover benefit payments. We also expect 
to contribute $1.9 million to our other postemployment benefit plans in 2015 to cover benefit payments. We do 
not expect to make any contributions to our pension plan during 2015. 

The Pension Protection Act of 2006 (the Act) contained new requirements for our single employer defined benefit 
pension plan. In addition to establishing a 100% funding target for plan years beginning after December 31, 
2008, the Act also limits some benefits if the funded status of pension plans drops below certain thresholds. 
Among other restrictions under the Act, if the funded status of a plan falls below a predetermined ratio of 80%, 
lump-sum payments to new retirees are limited to 50% of amounts that othenwise would have been paid and new 
benefit improvements may not go into effect. For the 2014 plan year, the funded status of our defined benefit 
pension plan as calculated under the requirementsof the Act was 113.86% and Is estimated to be 113.86% until 
the 2015 status Is certified in September 2015 for the 2015 plan year. The Worker, Retiree, and Employer 
Recovery Act of 2008 (WRERA), which was signed into law on December 23, 2008, grants plan sponsors certain 
relief from funding requirements and benefit restrictions of the Act. 

Plan Assets 
Plan assets are Invested using a total return Investment approach whereby a mix of equity securities, debt 
securities and other investments are used to preserve asset values, diversify risk and achieve our target 
investment return benchmark. Investment strategies and asset allocations are based on careful consideration of 
plan liabilities, the plan's funded status and our financial condition. Investment performance and asset allocation 
are measured and monitored on an ongoing basis. 

Plan assets are managed in a balanced porttollo comprised of two major components: an equity portion and a 
fixed income portion. The expected role of plan equity investments is to maximize the long-term real growth of 
plan assets, while the role of fixed income investments is to generate current income, provide for more stable 
periodic returns and provide some protection against a prolonged decline In the market value of plan equity 
investments. 

Long-term strategic asset allocation guidelines are determined by management and take into account the Plan's 
long-term objectives as well as its short-term constraints. The target allocations for plan assets are 2 - 41% for 
equity securities, 60 - 82% for fixed income securities and 8 - 16% for other investments. Equity securities 
Include U.S. and international equity, while fixed income securities Include long-duration and high-yield bond 
funds and emerging market debt funds. Other investments Include hedge funds that follow several different 
strategies. 

Most of our Plan assets are measured using quoted, observable prices which are considered Level One inputs In 
the Fair Value Hierarchy. The Core property collective fund and the Common collective fund are measured using 
Level Two inputs that are quoted prices for Identical assets in markets that are less active. 
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he following table summarizes the Company's target pension plan allocation for 2014: 

iM!Jy^.^cur!iLes_ 
Debt Securities 
^e^l 'Estate j f i i -
Other 

Target 
Allocation 

19%': 
69% 
6% 
6% 

The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 3 1 , 2014 by asset category are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31,2014 

Asset Category 
$ in millions 

l\/larket Value 
at December 

31.2014 

Equity securi t ies '̂ ^ 

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
marltets for 

identical 
assets 
(Level 1) 

Signif icant Signif icant 
observable unobservable 

inputs inputs 
(Level 3) (Level 2) 

^Ml^^^ lM^t^^ry#- i "^^^J^^i^^ i i^^ 
Large cap equity ^ 

Emerging markets equity 

_ _ _ _ 22.2 22.2 

2.8 2.8 ^ ^ _ ^ 

Total equity securities 65.4 65.4 

Debt Securit ies <b) 

^^^SM^^^BSMS^S^^SB^^^^^^^^^BB^SS&L 
Hjgh yield bqnd^ _ _ 6.5 ^ 6 . 5 -

Total debt securities 255.2 255.2 

Cash and cash equivalents (c) 

1.6. X ^ - ^ 1.6 

jgrHnWsti^nts-^^^ •SrfC 

26 3 26.3 
ir '5^'^' < . ^ -^23^5 -%-23.2' 

Total other investments 49.5 49 5 

^^^H^BM^^^^fc^^^^^B^^^^B ^m&mM 
(a) 

(b) 

(c) 
(d) 

This category includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of 
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an 
average of the market prices forthe underlying investments is used to value the funds. 
This category includes investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt securities of 
emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade. The funds are valued 
using the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underlying investments is used to value the 
fund. 
This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value. 
This category represents a property fund that invests in commercial real estate and a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ 
different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different hedge strategies. The fair value of the hedge fund is valued using 
the net asset value method in which an average of the market prices for the underiying investments is used to value the fund. 
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The fair values of our pension plan assets at December 31 , 2013 by asset category are as follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Pension Plan Assets at December 31 , 2013 

Asset Category 
$ in millions 

Market Value 
at December 

31,2013 

Quoted prices 
in active 

markets for 

identical 
assets 

Significant 
observable 

inputs 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

(Level 3) (Level 1) (Level 2) 

Equity securi t ies ^̂ ^ _ _ _ _ _ ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Large cap equity^^^ _ 20.8 20.8 

S^M^MM^^^^MMM^^MMMM-MMi 
Emerging rnarkets equity 3.2 3.2 „ -_„ ________ 

Total equity securities 65.3 65.3 

Debt Securit ies (b) 

friT-;.-..\fsSsie.Vf:? 
1 D 1 6 inriergiffj Ms, debt 6 6 

H igh yield bond 6 9 6 9 
-*=223.3.^/ 2 2 3 ^ i g ; i i 

Total debt securities 

Cash and cash equivalents 

236 8 236 8 

(c) 

o t h e r i n v e s t m e n t s ' ^ ^ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ^ _ , _ 

C o n i m o n col lect ive fund 22 .6 - 22 .6 : 

(a) This category Includes investments in equity securities of large, small and medium sized companies and equity securities of 
foreign companies including those in developing countries. The funds are valued using the net asset value method in which an 
average of the market prices for the underiying investments is used to value the fund except for the DPL common stock which is 
valued using the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange. 
This category irwludes Investments in investment-grade fixed-income instruments, U.S. dollar-denominated debt securities of 
emerging market issuers and high yield fixed-income securities that are rated below investment grade. The funds are valued using 
the net asset value method in which an average of the mart<et prices for the underiying investments is used to value the fund. 
This category comprises cash held to pay beneficiaries. The fair value of cash equals its book value. 
This category represents a property fund that invests in commercial real estate and a hedge fund of funds made up of 30+ 
different hedge fund managers diversified over eight different hedge strategies. The far value of the hedge fund is valued using 
the net asset value method in which an average of the mari<et prices for the underiying investments is used to value the fund. 

(b) 

(c) 
(d) 
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The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2014 by asset category are as 
follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Postemployment Benefit Plan Assets at December 31,2014 

Quoted 
prices 

in active 
Market Value markets for Significant Significant 

Asset Category at December identical observable unobservable 
$ In millions 31,2014 assets inputs inputs 

^ ^ _ (Level 1) (l-eve'2) _ _ (Leyej_3)_ 

Wfe^^^^KHftund.'^- ^ , -̂  -$..""—-^^^^^-^:^^^3.2 $ - '̂  .$ 2_^ __• 
(a) This category includes investments in U.S. govemment obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. 

The fair values of our other postemployment benefit plan assets at December 31, 2013 by asset category are as 
follows: 

Fair Value Measurements for Postemployment Benefit Plan Assets at December 31, 2013 

Quoted prices 
in active 

Market Value markets for Significant Significant 
Asset Category at December Identical observable unobservable 
$ in million^ 31, 2013 assets Inputs inputs 

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) 

(a) This category includes investments in U.S. government obligations and mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. 

NOTE 8 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The fair values of our financial instruments are based on published sources for pricing when possible. We rely on 
valuation models only when no other method is available to us. The fair value of our financial instruments 
represents estimates of possible value that may or may not be realized in the future. The table below presents 
the fair value and cost of our non-derivative Instruments at December 31, 2014 and 2013. See also Note 9 for 
the fair values of our derivative instruments. 

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013 
$ In million^ Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 
Assets __________ 
P l g i ^ f c i i l ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i W ^ ^ ^ i i ^ ^ ^ ^ i ^ ^ ^ ^ ^ i D t l l ^ ^ ^ % f e M ( 3 ^ ^ 

H e ^ e Funds .. ^ '•'•L ^'^ . .^:^ ^"^ 

Total assets $ 8.7 $ 9.7 $ 10.3 $ 11.5 

Liabilities 

Debt 
The fair value of debt is based on current public market prices for disclosure purposes only. Unrealized gains or 
losses are not recognized in the financial statements as debt Is presented at amortized cost In the financial 
statements. The debt amounts include the current portion payable in the next twelve months and have maturities 
that range from 2016 to 2061. 
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Master Trust Assets 
DP&L established a Master Trust to hold assets that could be used for the benefit of employees participating in 
employee benefit plans and these assets are not used for genera! operating purposes. These assets are 
primarily comprised of open-ended mutual funds which are valued using the net asset value per unit. These 
investments are recorded at fair value within Other assets on the balance sheets and classified as available for 
sale. Any unrealized gains or losses are recorded in AOCI until the securities are sold. 

DP&L had $1.1 million ($0.7 million after tax) In unrealized gains and immaterial unrealized losses on the Master 
Trust assets in AOCI at December 31, 2014 and $1.2 million ($0.8 million after tax) in unrealized gains and 
immaterial unrealized losses in AOCI at December 31, 2013. 

Various investments were sold during the past twelve months to facilitate the distribution of benefits. During the 
past twelve months, $0.4 million ($0.2 million after tax) of unrealized gains were reversed into earnings. Over the 
next twelve months, $0.4 million ($0.2 million after tax) of unrealized gains are expected to be reversed to 
earnings. 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an 
exit price) In the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderiy transaction between 
market participants on the measurement date. The fair value hierarchy requires an entity to maximize the use of 
observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. These inputs are 
then categorized as: 

• Level 1 (quoted prices in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities); 

• Level 2 (observable inputs such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or quoted prices in 
markets that are not active); 

• Level 3 (unobservable inputs). 

Valuations of assets and liabilities reflect the value of the instrument including the values associated with 
counterparty risk. We Include our own credit risk and our counterparty's credit risk In our calculation of fair value 
using global average default rates based on an annual study conducted by a large rating agency. 

We did not have any transfers of the fair values of our financial instruments between Level 1 and Level 2 of the 
fair value hierarchy during the twelve months ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. 
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The fair value of assets and liabilities at December 31, 2014 and 2013 measured on a recurring basis and the 
respective category within the fair value hierarchy for DP&L was determined as follows: 

Assets and Liabilities at Fair Value 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

$ in millions 
Assets 

Master trust assets 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2014(a) 

Based on 
Quoted 
Prices 

in 
Active 

Markets 

Other 
observable 

inputs 
Unobservable 

inputs 

m- 0.1 $ 0.1 $ 
Equity securities 3.7 3.7 

P#Dgbi5fecailtieftl?M^iJt^^^^^:: 
Hedge Funds __________ 

'y?-O0^02^^i^7^M^^0i0i^^ ̂ i7&P^^^S$UMî :̂ -f̂ --
0.8 0.8 

m^^mM^^im^&^MmMMiyMMmm^: 
Total Master trust assets 

Derivative assets 

9.7 8.9 0.8 

'^Mmm^m^^^^^^^gmMmmMi^^i^^^^m^M^M^m^MB^. ^ ^ 
Total derivative assets 15.1 13.9 1.2 

PMMIg^i^^^i^^^^^tti^ll^^^g^^l^^^^g^^^^BSfffi^ x \ ^ 

Liabilities 

Heating oil futures 0.4 0.4 
0.6; 

SilMiBiMgt^^^Mi^'ttrfe gg|^gi j i j^:^^^fd^ff ig^#j| i?t i>H 
Forward power contracts 11.2 11.2 

^g^MiatJ^Qgi i i i t i^^^f t i^ i^ l i^^ iMi i^^Ml^^l lS^sM^g^^^^ 

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 

1S:8i 
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

$ In millions 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 

2013(a) 
Assets 

Master trust assets 

Based on 
Quoted Prices 

In 
Active Markets 

Other 
observable 

Inputs 
Unobservable 

Inputs 

Equity sectjrities _______________ 44 44 
;?Bebt secunties 
Hedge Funds 

l^l^LEstjte.^ 

5.5 5̂ 5 
09 0 9 
0.4 0.4 

Total Master trust assets 11.5 10.6 0.9 

Derivative assets 
N^^OrlelttiMJdllgf^Uj^;^^^^^ 

FTRs 
,._^. ^^^ 

0.2 

Total derivative assets 13.8 0.2 13.4 0.2 

Liabilities 
[v-^Fo*nwardpo)^rcontractss- .̂__i. 10 6f 1 - JL 106 $ 

Total derivative liabilities 106 106 
^ - r : ^ 

Long-term debt 859 6 841 1 185 
^ 

Total liabilities 870 2 $ 851 7 $ 185 

(a) Includes credit valuation adjustment. 

Our financial Instruments are valued using the market approach in the following categories: 
• Level 1 inputs are used for derivative contracts such as heating oil futures and for money market 

accounts that are considered cash equivalents. The fair value is determined by reference to quoted 
market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions. 

• Level 2 inputs are used to value derivatives such as fonvard power contracts and forward NYMEX-quality 
coal contracts (which are traded on the OTC market but which are valued using prices on the NYMEX for 
similar contracts on the OTC market). Other Level 2 assets include: open-ended mutual funds that are 
in the Master Trust, which are valued using the end of day NAV per unit; and interest rate hedges, which 
use observable inputs to populate a pricing model. 

• Level 3 inputs such as financial transmission rights are considered a Level 3 input because the monthly 
auctions are considered inactive. Our Level 3 inputs are Immaterial to our derivative balances as a whole 
and as such no further disclosures are presented. 

Our debt Is fair valued for disclosure purposes only and most of the fair values are determined using quoted 
market prices in inactive markets. These fair value inputs are considered Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy. The 
WPAFB note is not publicly traded. Fair value is assumed to equal carrying value. These fair value Inputs are 
considered Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as there are no observable inputs. Additional Level 3 disclosures 
were not presented since debt Is not recorded at fair value. 

Approximately 97% of the inputs to the fair value of our derivative instruments are from quoted market prices for 
DP&L. 
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Non-recurring Fair Value Measurements 
We use the cost approach to determine the fair value of our AROs which are estimated by discounting expected 
cash outflows to their present value at the initial recording of the liability. Cash outflows are based on the 
approximate future disposal cost as determined by market Information, historical information or other 
management estimates. These Inputs to the fair value of the AROs would be considered Level 3 inputs under 
the fair value hierarchy. In 2014, AROs for asbestos, landfills, and river structures decreased by $1.5 million 
($1.0 million after tax) primarily due to the sale of a generation plant. The ARO for ash ponds was increased by 
$2.4 million ($1.6 million after tax) due to new rules issued by the USEPA in December 2014 that will be effective 
in June 2015. The December 2014 increase of the AROs for ash ponds was limited to the ponds located at 
plants which are no longer in operation. Additional ash pond AROs will be recorded In the first quarter of 2015 for 
the ponds located at plants which remain in operation. There were no additions to our AROs during the year 
ended December 31, 2013. 

When evaluating Impairment of goodwill and long-lived assets, we measure fair value using the applicable fair 
value measurement guidance. Impairment expense is measured by comparing the fair value at the evaluation 
date to the carrying amount. The following table summarizes major categories of assets and liabilities measured 
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the period and their level within the fair value hierarchy; 

$ in millions Year ended December 31, 2013 
Carrying Fair Value Gross 
Amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss 

Assets 
Long-lived assets held and used '̂ -̂̂  _ 

W^6^^^\i^^^&M^Sk^lM^^Mii^^^^S!^^U^M^^.'r. . t̂ $1....-"20o^ $ 100 
East Bend $ 76.0 $ - $ - $ - $ 76.0 

(a) See Note 13 for further infonnation. 
The following table summarizes the significant unobservable inputs used in the Level 3 measurement of long-
lived assets during the year ended December 31, 2013: 

Fair Range (Weighted 
$ in millions Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Average) 

Q̂QQ f'^®j ^fiffij^^j.*^.^^^ ^^^^ 
PR&b(©'$n^fllle)>^""^ ^ ,_ $ -. v^ Discounted cash- l "^ >Ani3ual*reyen^e :^ 

L : • " ' T ~:̂  - ^: --̂ ^^^ .-> :i:i^^^il3:$__:^^m^B%m 
NOTE 9 - DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES 

In the normal course of business, DP&L enters into various financial instruments, including derivative financial 
instruments. We use derivatives principally to manage the risk of changes In market prices for commodities and 
interest rate risk associated with our long-term debt. The derivatives that we use to economically hedge these 
risks are governed by our risk management policies for forward and futures contracts. Our net positions are 
continually assessed within our structured hedging programs to determine whether new or offsetting transactions 
are required. The objective of the hedging program is to mitigate financial risks while ensuring that we have 
adequate resources to meet our requirements. We monitor and value derivative positions monthly as part of our 
risk management processes. We use published sources for pricing, when possible, to mark positions to market. 
All of our derivative instruments are used for risk management purposes and are designated as cash flow hedges 
or not designated as hedges for accounting purposes, which we refer to as mark to market. 
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At December 31, 2014, DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments: 

Commodity 
Accounting 
Treatment Unit 

Net 
Purchases/ 

Purchases Sales (Sales) 
(in thousands) (in thousands) (In thousands) 

|pTFIs?j|v^^^v|^^^;^y$i^^ :^-:-;^g^i;f|Mgk^jgMaa^^ 10:5} 
Heating Oil Futures Markto Market Gallons 378.0 

tp ;^ l | ( [ar jc |Q|p^^;^ 
378.0 

-200.0, 

Forward Power Contracts Cash Flow MWh 175.0 (2,991.0) 
Hedge 

At December 31, 2013, DP&L had the following outstanding derivative instruments: 

(2,816.0) 

Commodity 
Accounting 
Treatment Unit 

Net 
Purchases/ 

Purchases Sales (Sales) 
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) 

RS^& lS ; ^ ^^ ; ^ 'j^»: 0-MarK to Market MWh 7.1 71 

Heating Oil Futures 
Fonftard'Pbwei^iffitigcte^ 

.-•^ 

Mark to Market 

" Cash Hbjw ^ 
ffedge" 

Gallons 1,428.0 
MWh 140 4 (4 705 7) 

1,428.0 
(4.565 3) 

Forward Power Contracts Mark to Market MWh 3,172.4 (2,888.5) 283.9 

Cash Flow Hedges 
As part of our risk management processes, we identify the relationships between hedging instruments and 
hedged items, as well as the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. 
The fair values of cash flow hedges determined by current public market prices will continue to fluctuate with 
changes in market prices up to contract expiration. The effective portion of the hedging transaction is recognized 
In AOCI and transferred to earnings using specific identification of each contract when the forecasted hedged 
transaction takes place or when the forecasted hedged transaction is probable of not occurring. The ineffective 
portion of the cash flow hedge is recognized in earnings in the current period. All risk components were taken 
into account to determine the hedge effectiveness of the cash flow hedges. 

We enter into fon/vard power contracts to manage commodity price risk exposure related to our generation of 
electricity. We do not hedge all commodity price risk. We reclassify gains and losses on forward power contracts 
from AOCI into earnings in those periods In which the contracts settle. 
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The following table provides Information for DP&L concerning gains or losses recognized in AOCI for the cash 
flow hedges: 

$ in millions (net of tax) 

Year ended December Year ended December Year ended December 
31,2014 31,2013 31,2012 

Power 

Interest 
Rate 

Hedge Power 

Interest 
Rate 

Hedge Power 

Interest 
Rate 

Hedge 

V-

3egigning^accmiulateti'derivatiyg'- '̂  s - -?^^ ' ^ V^:^^?^- .^-^-i.. v 
3ain./(loss)?iifgoCl . ^ . . $ , ^ 1.0^$_:i3^LM.JMi)AiL^z.Zl3..A (Q8) $ .9 8 

ifej): s<>^ ^ 0 (30). 

Net gains reclassified to earnings 
fe-lntlilstlE^r^Wse 

Revenues 
-PdrGhiilillR'^er ^, 

. 
18.2 
(0.2)' 

_ (2.6) ^ 

~ I 

V- ^ - -= 

1 4 
i- ^3 3^r 

(21)^ , 

- . -

. 

(il) 
- 0 2 

(2 5) 

-

Ending accumulated derivative gain 
/ (loss) in AOCI 

Net gains or losses associated with the ineffective portion of the hedging transactions were immaterial In the 
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

(a) The actual amounts that we reclassify from AOCI to earnings related to power can differ from the estimate above due to market 
price changes. 

Mark to Market Accounting 
Certain derivative contracts are entered into on a regular basis as part of our risk management program but do 
not qualify for hedge accounting orthe normal purchases and sales exceptions under FASC 815. Accordingly, 
such contracts are recorded at fair value with changes in the fair value charged or credited to the statements of 
results of operations in the period in which the change occurred. This is commonly referred to as "MTM 
accounting." Contracts we enter into as part of our risk management program may be settled financially, by 
physical delivery or net settled with the counterparty. We mark to market FTRs, heating oil futures, fonward 
NYMEX-quality coal contracts and certain fonward power contracts. 

Certain qualifying derivative instruments have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales contracts, 
as provided under GAAP. Derivative contracts that have been designated as normal purchases or normal sales 
under GAAP are not subject to MTM accounting treatment and are recognized in the statements of results of 
operations on an accrual basis. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities 
In accordance with regulatory accounting under GAAP, a cost that is probable of recovery In future rates should 
be deferred as a regulatory asset and a gain that is probable of being returned to customers should be deferred 
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as a regulatory liability. Portions of the derivative contracts that are marked to market each reporting period and 
are related to the retail portion of DP&L's load requirements are included as part of the fuel and purchased 
power recovery rider approved by the PUCO which began January 1, 2010. Therefore, the Ohio retail customers' 
portion of the heating oil futures are deferred as a regulatory asset or liability until the contracts settle. If these 
unrealized gains and losses are no longer deemed to be probable of recovery through our rates, they will be 
reclassified into earnings in the period such determination Is made. 

The following tables show the amount and classification within the statements of results of operations or balance 
sheets of the gains and losses on DP&L's derivatives not designated as hedging instruments for the years ended 
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. 

Year ended December 31, 2014 

$ in millionj Heating Oil FTRs Power Natural Gas Total 
Derivatiyes not designated as hedging instruments __^__„____ 
[ ^ j i n S ^ a f l i i l i ^ l l o s M - g f ^ ^ y v ; # . ^ ^ ^ 

Realized gain/(loss) (0-'').._ . . "-"^ , ^^•^). , fi"*^ J ^ ' ^ ^ 

Recorded on Balance Sheet-
P^Bfegulsitciiivl^et. _ .$ (0.1) j$ „ _ ^ _ ^ . - $ • $M-^yi^ im) 

Recorded in Income Statement: gain/(loss) 

Purchased Power • (Qy"*).,, <^-^L. 1°:?). t^;^) 

TotaT^ " - - ^ - ^ ^ ^Qj^ $ (0.1) $ (4.5) $ (0.2) $ (5.5) 

^___ Year ended December 31,2013 

$ in millioris Heating Oil FTRs Power Total 
Derivatiyes not designated as hedging ^ 

Realized gain 0.1 1.2 1.6 2.9 

Recorded in Income Statement: gain / „ „ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Purchased Power 1.5 ^̂ ^̂  ^^ ^ 0.2 1.7 

Total $ 0.1 $ 1.5 $ 0.4 $ 2.0 
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Year ended December 31,2012 

$ in millions 
NYMEX 

Coal Heating Oil FTRs Power Total 

'Il 
Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

iSid^Mi^^^HlMnliiii)SSM^ 
Realized gain / (loss) _̂  (29.5)^ 1 .9_ 0.5 4.9 _ 

Recorded on Balance Sheet: ^_ 

Regulatory (asset) / liability 1.0 (0.6) 

Recorded in Income Statement: gain /(loss) 

Purchased Power 

^^15.7-
(22.2) 

• ^ . 2 

0.4 

:.K::^2]7; '̂-r .^2;7 
0.3 5.2 

^FSfWUf^J^ 
O&M - 0.2 

5.5 

±JM) 
0.2 
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The following tables show the fair value and balance sheet classification of DP&L's derivative instruments at 
December 31 , 2014 and 2013. 

Fair Values of Derivative Instruments 
December 3 1 , 2014 

Gross Amounts Not 
Offset in the Balance 

Sheets 

$ in millions 
Hedging 

Designation 

Assets 

Gross Fair 
Value as 

presented 
i n t h e 

Balance 
Sheets 

Financial 
Instruments 
w i th Same 

Counterparty 
in Offsett ing 

Posit ion 
Cash 

Collateral Net Amount 

Short-term deriyative positions (presented in Other current assets) „______ „ 

Forward power contracts MTM 5.6 (3.4) 2.2 

Long-term derivative positions (presented In Other deferred assets) 

Forward power contracts MTM 3.6 (0.9) 2.7 

m^^^s^mmmmMm:^MSimm^:m^^^^^^^^im^^^^^^^^MBim ^8i5 

Liabilities 
Short-term derivative positions (presented iri Other current liabilities) ^̂  _ 

0.1 
Forward power contracts 

s f B J ^ i M ^ . • 
Heating oij futures 

^ ^ ^ S ^ ^ y ^ u res 

MTM 
_MTM 
MTM 
MTM 

7.5 (3.4) (M) 
^0.6^ 

0.4 (ML 
.(mi0iMM^m^mmmm0 im< 

l.ong-term deriyative positions (presented in Other deferred liabilities) 

Forward power contracts MTM 1.0 

f^lJMIlK^':^ 
(0-9) 0.1 

. r i $ . ^^ j^ i^^Mi6Mi^^ i fg i ig OS 
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Fair Values of Derivative Instruments 
December 31, 2013 

Gross Amounts Not Offset 
In the Balance Sheets 

Financial 
Gross Fair Instruments 
Value as with Same 

presented in Counterparty 
Hedging the Balance In Offsetting Cash 

$ in millions Designation Sheets Position Collateral Net Amount 
Assets 

Short-t ^_^ _ _ ^̂ ___ ihort-term deriyatiye positions (presented in Other current assets) , „ „^_^_____^_ ______.__ _ ^ _ __ 

Fonward power contracts MTM 4 9 (4 2) 07 
FTRs ^ j . .-h . MTM -̂  /: i-^Q'2r-h " £^ : 0 2̂  
Heating oil futures MTM 0.2 - (0.2) 

Long-term derivative positions (presented in Other deferred assets) 
F̂ FQCT(arci!p.o%erg 

Forward powercontracts MTM 5.0 (0.3) ^ - 4.7 

Liabilities 
Short-terrndenyatiye positions (prese^^ 
iFQ^^pi^ll^§c^;5MMIgi^^^?^i^^h^i^ "̂ -̂ ::ô : 
Fonward power contracts MTM 6.6 (4.2) (2.3) 0.1 

Forward power contracts .^.™ . ^-^ ,̂ _ (0-3) (1.0) -_ 

Certain of our OTC commodity derivative contracts are under master netting agreements that contain provisions 
that require our debt to maintain an investment grade credit rating from credit rating agencies. Since our debt 
has fallen below investment grade, we are in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to the derivative 
Instruments could request Immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization 
of the MTM loss. Since our debt has fallen below investment grade, some of our counterparties to the derivative 
instruments have requested collateralization of the MTM loss. 

The aggregate fair value of DP&L's derivative instruments that are In a MTM loss position at December 31, 2014 
is $12.3 million. This amount is offset by $4.9 million in a broker margin account and with other counterparties 
which offsets our loss positions on the forward contracts. This liability position is further offset by the asset 
position of counterparties with master netting agreements of $6.6 million. If DP&L debt were to fall below 
investment grade, DP&L could be required to post collateral for the remaining $0.8 million. 
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NOTE 10 - REDEEMABLE PREFERRED STOCK 

Dp&L has $100 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, of which 228,508 were outstanding as of 
December 31, 2014. DP&L also has $25 par value preferred stock, 4,000,000 shares authorized, none of which 
Was outstanding as of December 31, 2014. The table below details the preferred shares outstanding at 
December 31, 2014 and 2013: 

December 31, 2014 and Par Value 
2013 ($ in millions) 

Preferred Redemption 
Stock price Shares December December 

$in rriillions except per share amounts Rate ($ per share) Outstanding 31, 2014 31, 2013 

DP&L Series B 3.75% $ 103.00 69,398 7.0 __„___7:P^ 

Total 228,508 $ 22.9 $ 22.9 

The DP&L preferred stock may be redeemed at DP&L's option as determined by its Board of Directors at the 
per-share redemption prices Indicated above, plus cumulative accrued dividends, of which there were none at 
December 31,2014. In addition, DP&L's Amended Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit 
preferred stockholders to elect members of the Board of Directors in the event that cumulative dividends on the 
preferred stock are in arrears in an aggregate amount equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Since 
this potential redemption-triggering event is not solely within the control of DP&L, the preferred stock is presented 
on the Balance Sheets as "Redeemable Preferred Stock" in a manner consistent with temporary equity. 

As long as any DP&L preferred stock Is outstanding, DP&L's Amended Articles of Incorporation also contain 
provisions restricting the payment of cash dividends on any of its common stock if, after giving effect to such 
dividend, the aggregate of all such dividends distributed subsequent to December 31,1946 exceeds the net 
income of DP&L available for dividends on its common stock subsequent to December 31,1946, plus $ 1,2 
million. This dividend restriction has historically not Impacted DP&L's ability to pay cash dividends and, as of 
December 31, 2014, DP&L's retained earnings of $381.8 million were all available for common stock dividends 
payable to DPL. We do not expect this restriction to have an effect on the payment of cash dividends in the 
future. 

NOTE 11 - COMMON SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

D P & L has 250,000,000 authorized common shares, of which 41,172,173 are outstanding at December 31, 2014. 
All common shares are held by DP&L's parent, DPL. 

As part of the PUCO's approval of the Merger, DP&L agreed to maintain a capital structure that includes an 
equity ratio of at least 50 percent and not to have a negative retained earnings balance. 

NOTE 1 2 - CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS. COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

D P & L - Equity Ownership Interest 
DP&L has a 4.9% equity ownership interest in an electric generation company which is recorded using the cost 
method of accounting under GAAP. As of December 31, 2014, DP&L could be responsible for the repayment of 
4.9%, or $74.4 million, of a $1,517.9 million debt obligation comprised of both fixed and variable rate securities 
With maturities between 2015 and 2040. This would only happen if this electric generation company defaulted on 
its debt payments. As of December 31, 2014, we have no knowledge of such a default. 
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Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
We enter into various contractual obligations and other commercial commitments that may affect the liquidity of 
our operations. At December 31, 2014, these include: 

Payments due in: 

$ in millions 
DP&L: 

^^ l i in tSHy^ =• ^ ^ ^ 
Limestone contracts ^̂^ 
feur^Jl^ilSf^S^aj^dj^ 
bbligatiom?f:t^ '^ 

Less than 
Total 1 year 

486 2.r^^ ^.255 6-^ >-
183 61 

0 "72 4 " ^ , .'39 2^ ^ 

2 - 3 
years 

' . 161<2 
122 

3^ _ ^ 

, 173 

4 - 5 
years 

69 4 

J- ' 

159 

More than 
5 years 

-

(a) Total at DP&L operated units. 

Coal contracts: 
DP&L has entered into various long-term coal contracts to supply the coal requirements for the generating 
stations it operates. Asof December 31, 2014, 57% of our future committed coal obligations are with a single 
supplier. Some contract prices are subject to periodic adjustment and have features that limit price escalation in 
any given year. 

Limestone contracts: 
DP&L has entered into various limestone contracts to supply limestone used in the operation of FGD equipment 
a t itc nonf i i - i i t in i - i fa/->ilitiAc^ 

Purchase orders and other contractual obiiaations: 
As of December 31,2014, DP&L had various other contractual obligations including non-cancelable contracts to 
purchase goods and services with various terms and expiration dates. 

Contingencies 
In the normal course of business, we are subject to various lawsuits, actions, proceedings, claims and other 
matters asserted under laws and regulations. We believe the amounts provided in our Financial Statements, as 
prescribed by GAAP, are adequate in light of the probable and estimable contingencies. However, there can be 
no assurances that the actual amounts required to satisfy alleged liabilities from various legal proceedings, 
claims, tax examinations, and other matters, including the matters discussed below, and to comply with 
applicable laws and regulations, will not exceed the amounts reflected in our Financial Statements. As such, 
costs, if any, that may be incurred In excess of those amounts provided as of December 31, 2014, cannot be 
reasonably determined. 

Environmental Matters 
DPL's and DP&L's facilities and operations are subject to a wide range of federal, state and local environmental 
regulations and laws. The environmental issues that may affect us include: 

• 

• 

The federal C/VA and state laws and regulations (including SIPs) which require compliance, obtaining 
permits and reporting as to air emissions. 

Litigation with federal and certain state governments and certain special interest groups regarding 
whether modifications to or maintenance of certain coal-fired generating stations require additional 
permitting or pollution control technology, or whether emissions from coal-fired generating stations cause 
or contribute to global climate changes. 

Rules and future rules Issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require substantial reductions in 
SO2, particulates, mercury, acid gases, NOx, and other air emissions. DP&L has installed emission 
control technology and Is taking other measures to comply with required and anticipated reductions, 

Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA and the Ohio EPA that require reporting and reductions of 
GHGs, 

Rules and future rules issued by the USEPA associated with the federal Clean Water Act, which prohibits 
the discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except pursuant to appropriate permits, and 
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• Solid and hazardous waste laws and regulations, which govern the management and disposal of certain 

waste. The majority of solid waste created from the combustion of coal and fossil fuels is fly ash and 
other coal combustion by-products. 

in addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize the imposition of 
substantial penalties for noncompliance, including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions. In the normal 
course of business, we have investigatory and remedial activities underway at our facilities to comply, or to 
determine compliance, with such regulations. We record liabilities for loss contingencies related to environmental 
matters when a loss is probable of occurring and can be reasonably estimated in accordance with the provisions 
of GAAP. Accordingly, we have accruals for loss contingencies of approximately $0.8 million for environmental 
matters. We also have a number of environmental matters for which we have not accrued loss contingencies 
because the risk of loss is not probable or a loss cannot be reasonably estimated, which are disclosed in the 
paragraphs below. We evaluate the potential liability related to environmental matters quarteriy and may revise 
our estimates. Such revisions in the estimates of the potential liabilities could have a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

We have several pending environmental matters associated with our coal-fired generation units. Some of these 
matters could have material adverse impacts on the operation of the power stations. 

Environmental Matters Related to Air Quality 

Clean Air Act Compliance 
In 1990, the federal government amended the CAA to further regulate air pollution. Under the CAA, the USEPA 
sets limits on how much of a pollutant can be in the ambient air anywhere in the United States. The CAA allows 
individual states to have stronger pollution controls than those set under the CAA, but states are not allowed to 
have weaker pollution controls than those set for the whole country. The CAA has a material effect on our 
operations and such effects are detailed below with respect to certain programs under the CAA. 

Clean Air Interstate Rule/Cross-State Air Pollution Rule 
The USEPA promulgated CAIR on March 10, 2005, which required allowance surrender for SO2 and NOx 
emissions from existing power stations located in 27 eastern states and the District of Columbia. To implement 
the required emission reductions for this rule, the states were to establish emission-allowance-based "cap-and-
trade" programs. CAIR was subsequently challenged in federal court, and on July 11, 2008, the United States 
Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit issued an opinion striking down much of CAIR and remanding it to the 
USEPA. 

On July 7, 2011, the USEPA proposed CSAPR to replace CAIR. CSAPR required significant reductions in SO2 
and NOx emissions from covered sources, such as power stations In 28 eastern states including Ohio. On 
August 21, 2012, a three-judge panel of the D.C. Circuit Court vacated CSAPR, ruling that the USEPA 
overstepped its regulatory authority by requiring states to make reductions beyond the levels required in the CAA 
and failed to provide states an initial opportunity to adopt their own measures for achieving federal compliance. 
As a result of this ruling, the surviving provisions of CAIR continued to serve as the governing program. On June 
24, 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court agreed to review the D.C. Circuit Court's decision to vacate CSAPR, and on 
April 29, 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court reversed the 2012 decision bythe D.C. Circuit Court, reinstating CSAPR, 
and remanded the case back to the D.C. Circuit Court for further proceedings consistent with the U. S. Supreme 
Court decision. On June 26, 2014, the U.S. Department of Justice, on behalf of the USEPA, filed a motion with 
the D.C. Circuit Court to lift the stay, and CSAPR was reinstated on October 23, 2014. The USEPA established 
new effective dates for compliance with the reduced emissions levels, beginning in 2015 with additional 
reductions in 2017. Oral arguments to address the remaining litigation regarding CSAPR are schedule for March 
2015. At this time, it is not possible to predict with precision what impacts CSAPR may have on our consolidated 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows, but we do not expect to have material capital costs to 
comply with CSAPR. 

Mercurv and Other Hazardous Air Pollutants 
On May 3, 2011, the USEPA published proposed Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) standards 
for coal- and oil-fired electric generating units. The standards include new requirements for emissions of mercury 
and a number of other heavy metals. The USEPA Administrator signed the final rule, now called MATS, on 
December 16, 2011, and the rule was published In the Federal Register on February 16, 2012. Our affected 
EGUs must come into compliance with the new requirements by April 16, 2015. All of our operating EGUs are 
expected to be able to achieve compliance through control technologies that are currently In place. 
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On January 31, 2013, the USEPA finalized a rule regulating emissions of toxic air pollutants from new and 
existing Industrial, commercial and institutional boilers and process heaters at major and area source facilities. 
This regulation affects seven auxiliary boilers used for start-up purposes at DP&L's generation facilities. The 
regulation contains emissions limitations, operating limitations and other requirements. DP&L expects to be in 
compliance with this rule and the costs are not currently expected to be material to DP&L's operations. 

National Ambient Air Quality Standards 
On January 5, 2005, the USEPA published its final non-attainment designations for the National Ambient Air 
Quality Standard (NAAQS) for Fine Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM 2.5). These designations Included counties and 
partial counties in which DP&L operates and/or owns generating facilities. On December 31, 2012, the USEPA 
re-designated Adams County, where the Stuart and Killen generating stations are located, to attainment status. 
On December 14, 2012, the USEPA tightened the PM 2.5 standard to 12.0 micrograms per cubic meter, and on 
December 18, 2014, Issued a pre-publication version of the final attainment designations. No counties containing 
DP&L operated generating facilities were designated as non-attainment, however, several co-owned units are 
located in non-attainment counties. Attainment in those counties will be required by the end of 2021. We cannot 
predict the effect the revisions to the PM 2.5 standard will have on DP&L's financial condition or results of 
operations. 

The USEPA published the national ground level ozone standard on March 12, 2008, lowering the 8-hour level 
from 0.08 ppm to 0.075 ppm, which was upheld by the U.S. Circuit Court of Appeals in July 2013. No DP&L 
operations are currently located in non-attainment areas. On December 17,2014, the USEPA published a 
proposed rule lowering the 8-hour ozone standard from 0.075 to a value between 0.065 and 0.070 ppm. The 
USEPA intends to finalize the rule regarding the ozone NAAQS by October 2015, with Initial designations to be 
issued in October 2017. In addition, in December 2013, eight northeastern states petitioned the USEPA to add 
nine upwind states, including Ohio, to the Ozone Transport Region, a group of states required to impose 
enhanced restrictions on ozone emissions. If the petition is granted, our facilities could be subject to such 
enhanced requirements. We cannot predict the effect the revisions of the ozone standard will have on DP&L's 
financial condition or results of operations. 

Effective April 12, 2010, the USEPA Implemented revisions to its primary NAAQS for nitrogen dioxide. This 
change may affect certain emission sources In heavy traffic areas like the 1-75 corridor between Cincinnati and 
Dayton after 2016. Several of our facilities or co-owned facilities are within this area. DP&L cannot determine 
the effect of this potential change, if any, on its operations. 

Effective August 23, 2010, the USEPA implemented its revisions to its primary NAAQS for SO2 replacing the 
previous 24-hour standard and annual standard with a one-hour standard. Initial non-attainment designations 
were made July 25, 2013, and Pierce Township in Clermont County, location of DP&L's co-owned unit Beckjord 
Unit 6, was the only area with DP&L operations designated as non-attainment. Beckjord Unit 6 was retired 
effective October 1, 2014. Non-attainment areas will be required to meet the 2010 standard by October 2018. 
On April 17, 2014, the USEPA proposed a data requirements rule for air agencies to ascertain attainment 
characterization more extensively across the country by additional modeling and/or monitoring requirements of 
areas with sources that exceed specified thresholds of SO2 emissions. The rule, if finalized, could require the 
installation of monitors at one or more of DP&L's coal-fired power plants and result in additional non-attainment 
designations that could impact our operations. DP&L is unable to determine the effect of the proposed rule on its 
operations. 

On May 5, 2004, the USEPA issued its proposed regional haze rule, which addresses how states should 
determine the Best Available Retrofit Technology (BART) for sources covered under the regional haze rule. Final 
rules were published July 6, 2005, providing states with several options for determining whether sources in the 
state should be subject to BART. Numerous units owned and operated by us will be affected by BART. We 
cannot determine the extent of the impact until Ohio determines how BART will be Implemented. 

Carbon Dioxide and Other Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
The USEPA began regulating GHG emissions from certain stationary sources in January 2011 under regulations 
referred to as the "Tailoring Rule." The regulations are implemented pursuant to two CAA programs: the Title V 
Operating Permit program and the program requiring a permit if undergoing certain new construction or major 
modifications, the Prevention of Significant Deterioration, or PSD, program. Obligations relating to Title V permits 
include recordkeeping and monitoring requirements. Sources subject to PSD can be required to implement Best 
Available Control Technology, or BACT. In June 2014, the U.S. Supreme Court ruled thatthe USEPA had 
exceeded its statutory authority in issuing the Tailoring Rule under Section 165 of the CAA by regulating sources 
under the PSD program based solely on their GHG emissions. However, the U.S. Supreme Court also held that 

175 



Table of Contents 
the USEPA could impose GHG BACT requirements for sources already required to implement PSD for certain 
other pollutants. Therefore, if future modifications to DP&L's sources require PSD review for other pollutants, it 
may also trigger GHG BACT requirements. The USEPA has issued guidance on what BACT entails for the 
control of GHG and individual states are now required to determine what controls are required for facilities within 
their jurisdiction on a case-by-case basis. The ultimate impact of the BACT requirements applicable to us on our 
operations cannot be determined at this time as DP&L will not be required to implement BACT until DP&L 
constructs a new major source or makes a major modification of an existing major source. However, the cost of 
compliance could be material. 

In January 2014, the USEPA proposed revised GHG New Source Performance Standards for new EGUs under 
CAA subsection 111(b), which would require new EGUs to limit the amount of CO2 emitted per megawatt-hour. 
The proposal anticipates that affected coal-fired units would need to rely upon partial implementation of carbon 
capture and storage or other expensive CO2 emission control technology to meet the standard. In addition, new 
natural gas-fired EGUs must meet a standard of no greater than 1,000 pounds of CO2 per megawatt hour (if the 
rule is finalized in its current form). The rule is expected to be finalized this summer. 

The USEPA issued proposed rules establishing GHG performance standards for existing power plants under 
CAA Section 111 (d) on June 2, 2014. Under the proposed rule, called the Clean Power Plan, states would be 
judged against state-specific carbon dioxide emissions targets beginning in 2020, with expected total U.S. power 
section emissions reduction of 30% from 2005 levels by 2030. For Ohio specifically, the Clean Power Plan 
proposes an interim goal for 2020-2029 and a proposed 2030 final goal of 1,452 pounds of CO2 per megawatt 
hour and 1,338 pounds of C02 per megawatt hour, respectively, a reduction of approximately 28% from 2012 
levels. The proposed rule requires states to submit Sli^s to meet the standards set forth In the rule by June 30, 
2016, with the possibility of one or two-year extensions under certain circumstances. The proposed rule requires 
states to submit SIPs to meet the standards set forth in the rule by June 30, 2016, with the possibility of one- or 
two-year extensions under certain circumstances. The proposed rule was subject to a public comment process 
and the USEPA Is expected to finalize it by the summer of 2015. Among other things, we could be required to 
make efficiency improvements to existing facilities. The USEPA also issued proposed carbon pollution standards 
for modified and reconstructed power plants on June 2, 2014, which are also expected to be finalized by the 
summer of 2015. Various states and certain regulated entities have filed lawsuits challenging the Clean Power 
Plan. However, it is too soon to determine what the rule, and the corresponding SIPs affecting our operations, 
will require once they are finalized, whether they will survive judicial and other challenges, and if so, whether and 
when the rule and the corresponding SIP would materially impact our business, operations or financial condition. 

Approximately 99% of the energy we produce is generated by coal. DP&L's share of CO2 emissions at 
generating stations we own and co-own is approximately 14 million tons annually. Further GHG legislation or 
regulation implemented at a future date could have a significant effect on DP&L's operations and costs, which 
could adversely affect our net income, cash flows and financial condition. However, due to the uncertainty 
associated with such legislation or regulation, we cannot predict the final outcome or the financial effect that such 
legislation or regulation may have on DP&L. 

Litigation. Notices of Violation and Other Matters Related to Air Quality 

Litigation Involving Co-Owned Stations 
As a result of a 2008 consent decree entered into with the Sierra Club and approved by the U.S. District Court for 
the Southern District of Ohio, DP&L and the other owners of the Stuart generating station are subject to certain 
specified emission targets related to NOx, SO2 and particulate matter. The consent decree also includes 
commitments for energy efficiency and renewable energy activities. An amendment to the consent decree was 
entered into and approved in 2010 to clarify how emissions would be computed during malfunctions. Continued 
compliance with the consent decree, as amended, is not expected to have a material effect on DP&L's results of 
operations, financial condition or cash flows in the future. 

Notices of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units 
In June 2000, the USEPA Issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Stuart generating station (co-owned by DP&L, 
Duke Energy and AEP Generation) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV contained allegations consistent 
with NOVs and complaints that the USEPA had brought against numerous other coal-fired utilities in the Midwest. 
The NOV indicated the USEPA may: (1) issue an order requiring compliance with the requirements of the Ohio 
SIP; or (2) bring a civil action seeking Injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for each 
violation. To date, neither action has been taken. DP&L cannot predict the outcome of this matter. 
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In December 2007, the Ohio EPA Issued an NOV to the DP&L-operated Killen generating station (co-owned by 
DP&L and Duke Energy) for alleged violations of the CAA. The NOV alleged deficiencies in the continuous 
monitoring of opacity. We submitted a compliance plan to the Ohio EPA on December 19, 2007. To date, no 
further actions have been taken by the Ohio EPA. 

On March 13, 2008, Duke Energy, the operator of the Zimmer generating station, received an NOV and a Finding 
of Violation (FOV) from the USEPA alleging violations of the CAA, the Ohio SIP and permits for the station In 
areas including SO2, opacity and increased heat input. A second NOV and FOV with similar allegations was 
Issued on November 4, 2010. Also in 2010, the USEPA issued an NOV to Zimmer for excess emissions. In 
addition, Zimmer received an NOV from the USEPA dated December 16, 2014 alleging violations in opacity on 
two dates in 2014. DP&L is a co-owner of the Zimmer generating station and could be affected by the eventual 
resolution of these matters. Duke Energy is expected to act on behalf of itself and the co-owners with respect to 
these matters. DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters. 

In January 2015, DP&L received NOVs from the USEPA alleging violations in opacity at the Stuart and Killen 
generating stations in 2014. DP&L is beginning the process of discussions with the USEPA on these NOVs. 
DP&L is unable to predict the outcome of these matters. 

Notices of Violation Involving Whollv-Owned Stations 
On November 18, 2009, the USEPA Issued an NOV to DP&L for alleged NSR violations of the CAA at the 
Hutchings Station relating to capital projects performed in 2001 Involving Unit 3 and Unit 6. DP&L does not 
believe that the two projects described in the NOV were modifications subject to NSR. As a result of the 
cessation of operations of the six coal-fired units at the Hutchings Station, DP&L believes that the USEPA is 
unlikely to pursue the NSR complaint. 

Environmental Matters Related to Water Quality, Waste Disposal and Ash Ponds 

Clean Water Ac t - Regulation of Water Intake 
On May 19, 2014, the USEPA finalized new regulations pursuant to the CWA governing existing facilities that 
have cooling water intake structures. The rules require an assessment of Impingement and/or entrainment of 
organisms as a result of cooling water withdrawal. Although we do not yet know the full Impact the final rules will 
have on our operations, the final rules may require material changes to the intake structure at Stuart Station to 
reduce impingement with the possibility of additional site specific requirements for reducing entrainment. We do 
not believe the final rules will have a material impact on operations at any of the other DP&L-operated facilities. 

Clean Water Ac t - Regulation of Water Discharge 
In December 2006, DP&L submitted a renewal application forthe Stuart generating station NPDES permit that 
was due to expire on June 30, 2007. The Ohio EPA issued a revised draft permit that was received on 
November 12, 2008. In September 2010, the USEPA formally objected to the November 12, 2008 revised permit 
due to questions regarding the basis forthe alternate thermal limitation. At DP&L's request, a public hearing was 
held on March 23, 2011, where DP&L presented its position on the issue and provided written comments. In a 
letter to the Ohio EPA dated September 28, 2011, the USEPA reaffirmed its objection to the revised permit as 
previously drafted by the Ohio EPA. This reaffirmation stipulated that if the Ohio EPA did not re-draft the permit 
to address the USEPA's objection, then the authority for issuing the permit would pass to the USEPA. The Ohio 
EPA issued another draft permit in December 2011 and a public hearing was held on February 2, 2012. 

The draft permit required DP&L, over the 54 months following issuance of a final permit, to take undefined 
actions to lower the temperature of its discharged water to a level unachievable by the station under its current 
design or alternatively make other significant modifications to the cooling water system. DP&L submitted 
comments to the draft permit. In November 2012, the Ohio EPA issued another draft which included a 
compliance schedule for performing a study to justify an alternate thermal limitation and to which DP&L 
submitted comments. In December 2012, the USEPA formally withdrew their objection to the permit. On 
January 7, 2013, the Ohio EPA issued a final permit. On February 1, 2013, DP&L appealed various aspects of 
the final permit to the Environmental Review Appeals Commission. A hearing before the Commission is 
scheduled for March 2015. Depending on the outcome of the appeal process, the effects on DP&L's operations 
could be material. 

In September 2009, the USEPA announced that it would be revising technology-based regulations governing 
water discharges from steam electric generating facilities. The rulemaking included the collection of information 
via an industry-wide questionnaire as well as targeted water sampling efforts at selected facilities. The proposed 
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rule was released on June 7, 2013. Under a consent decree, the USEPA is required to issue a final rule by 
September 2015. At present, DP&L Is unable to predict the impact this rulemaking will have on Its operations. 

A final NPDES permit for Killen Station was issued on September 4, 2014. We do not expect the new permit to 
have a material impact on Killen's operations. 

In January 2014, DP&L submitted an application forthe renewal of the Hutchings Station NPDES permit which 
expired in July 2014. A final permit was issued on September 19, 2014 with an effective date of November 1, 
2014. We do not expect the new permit to have a material impact on Hutchings' operations. 

Regulation of Waste Disposal 
In September 2002, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP 
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the South Dayton Dump landfill site. In August 2005, DP&L and 
other parties received a general notice regarding the performance of a Remedial Investigation and Feasibility 
Study (RI/FS) under a Superfund Alternative Approach. In October 2005, DP&L received a special notice letter 
Inviting it to enter Into negotiations with the USEPA to conduct the RI/FS. No recent activity has occurred with 
respect to that notice or PRP status. On August 16, 2006, an Administrative Settlement Agreement and Order on 
Consent ("ASAOC") was executed and became effective among a group of PRPs, not including DP&L, and the 
USEPA. On August 25, 2009, the USEPA issued an Administrative Order requiring that access to DP&L's 
service center building site, which Is across the street from the landfill site, be given to the USEPA and the 
existing PRP group to help determine the extent of the landfill site's contamination as well as to assess whether 
certain chemicals used at the service center building site might have migrated through groundwater to the landfill 
site. DP&L granted such access and drilling of soil borings and installation of monitoring wells occurred in late 
2009 and eariy 2010. On May 24, 2010, three members of the existing PRP group, Hobart Corporation, Kelsey-
Hayes Company and NCR Corporation, filed a civil complaint in the United States District Court for the Southern 
District of Ohio against DP&L and numerous other defendants alleging that DP&L and the other defendants 
contributed to the contamination at the South Dayton Dump landfill site and seeking reimbursement of the PRP 
group's costs associated with the investigation and remediation of the site. On February 10, 2011, the Court 
dismissed claims against DP&L that related to allegations that chemicals used by DP&L at Its service center 
contributed to the landfill site's contamination. The Court, however, did not dismiss claims alleging financial 
responsibility for remediation costs based on hazardous substances from DP&L that were allegedly directly 
delivered by truck to the landfill. Discovery, including depositions of past and present DP&L employees, was 
conducted in 2012. On February 8, 2013, the Court granted DP&L's motion for summary judgment on statute of 
limitations grounds with respect to claims seeking a contribution toward the costs that are expected to be Incurred 
bythe PRP group In performing an RI/FS under the August 15, 2006 ASAOC. That summary judgment ruling 
was appealed on March 4, 2013, and on July 14, 2014, a three-judge panel ofthe U.S. Court of Appeals for the 
6"̂  Circuit affirmed the lower Court's ruling and subsequently denied a request by the plaintiffs for rehearing. On 
November 14, 2014, the PRP group appealed the decision to the U.S. Supreme Court, but the writ of certiorari 
was denied bythe Court on January 20, 2015. On January 14, 2015, the PRP group served DP&L and other 
defendants a request for production of documents related to any survey regarding waste management or waste 
disposal. Information responsive to this request was provided on February 17, 2015. In addition, on January 16, 

2015, the USEPA issued a Special Notice Letter and Section 104(e) Information Request to DP&L and other 
defendants, requesting historical information related to waste management practices. DP&L is in the process of 
developing its response to the request which is due by March 20, 2015. DP&L Is unable to predict the outcome 
of this action by the plaintiffs and USEPA. Additionally, the Court's 2013 ruling and the Court of Appeals' 
affirmation of that ruling in 2014 does not address future litigation that may arise with respect to actual 
remediation costs. While DP&L Is unable to predict the outcome of these matters, if DP&L were required to 
contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material adverse effect on its operations. 

In December 2003, DP&L and other parties received a special notice that the USEPA considers us to be a PRP 
for the clean-up of hazardous substances at the Tremont City landfill site. Information available to DP&L does 
not demonstrate that it contributed hazardous substances to the site. While DP&L is unable to predict the 
outcome of this matter. If DP&L were required to contribute to the clean-up of the site, it could have a material 
adverse effect on its operations. 

On April 7, 2010, the USEPA published an Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking announcing that it is 
reassessing existing regulations governing the use and distribution in commerce of polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCBs). While this reassessment is in the early stages and the USEPA is seeking information from potentially 
affected parties on how it should proceed, the outcome may have a material effect on DP&L. A proposed rule Is 
expected in mid-2015, with a final rule expected in 2016. At present, DP&L is unable to predict the Impact this 
initiative will have on its operations. 

178 



Table of Contents 

Regulation of Ash Ponds 
In March 2009, the USEPA, through a formal Information Collection Request, collected information on ash pond 
facilities across the country. Including those at Killen and Stuart Stations. Subsequently, the USEPA collected 
similar information for the Hutchings Station. 

In August 2010, the USEPA conducted an Inspection of the Hutchings Station ash ponds. In June 2011, the 
USEPA issued a final report from the inspection including recommendations relative to the Hutchings Station ash 
ponds. DP&L is unable to predict whether there will be additional USEPA action relative to DP&L's proposed 
plan or the effect on operations that might arise under a different plan. 

In June 2011, the USEPA conducted an inspection of the Killen Station ash ponds. In May 2012, we received a 
draft report on the inspection. DP&L submitted comments on the draft report in June 2012. On March 14, 2013, 
DP&L received the final report on the inspection of the Killen Station ash pond inspection from the USEPA which 
included recommended actions. DP&L has submitted a response with its actions to the USEPA. DP&L is 
unable to predict the outcome this inspection will have on its operations. 

There has been increasing advocacy to regulate coal combustion residuals (OCR) under the Resource 
Conservation Recovery Act (RCRA). On June 21, 2010, the USEPA published a proposed rule seeking 
comments on two options under consideration for the regulation of coal combustion byproducts including 
regulating the material as a hazardous waste under RCRA Subtitle C or as a solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. 
The USEPA released its final rule on December 19, 2014 designating coal combustion residuals that are not 
beneficially reused as non-hazardous solid waste under RCRA Subtitle D. The rule becomes effective six 
months after publication of the rule in the Federal Register, expected in February 2015, and applies new detailed 
management practices to new and existing landfills and surface impoundments, including lateral expansions of 
such units. DP&L is currently reviewing the rule and assessing the impact on our operations. Our business, 
financial condition or operations could be materially and adversely affected by this regulation. 

Notice of Violation Involving Co-Owned Units 
On September 9, 2011, DP&L received an NOV from the USEPA with respect to its co-owned Stuart generating 
station based on a compliance evaluation inspection conducted by the USEPA and Ohio EPA in 2009. The 
notice alleged non-compliance by DP&L with certain provisions of the RCRA, the CWA NPDES permit program, 
and the station's storm water pollution prevention plan. The notice requested that DP&L respond with the actions 
it has subsequently taken or plans to take to remedy the USEPA's findings and ensure that further violations will 
not occur. Based on its review of the findings, although there can be no assurance, we believe that the notice will 
not result in any material effect on DP&L's results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

Legal and Other Matters 

In February 2007, DP&L filed a lawsuit against a coal supplier seeking damages incurred due to the supplier's 
failure to Supply approximately 1.5 million tons of coal to two commonly-owned stations under a coal supply 
agreement, of which approximately 570 thousand tons was DP&L's share. DP&L obtained replacement coal to 
meet Its needs. The supplier has denied liability, and is currently in federal bankruptcy proceedings in which 
DP&L is participating as an unsecured creditor. DP&L is unable to determine the ultimate resolution of this 
matter. DP&L has not recorded any assets relating to possible recovery of costs in this lawsuit. 

In connection with DP&L and other utilities joining PJM, in 2006 the FERC ordered utilities to eliminate certain 
charges to implement transitional payments, known as SECA, effective December 1, 2004 through March 31, 
2006, subject to refund. Through this proceeding, DP&L was obligated to pay SECA charges to other utilities, but 
received a net benefit from these transitional payments. A hearing was held and an Initial decision was issued in 
August 2006. A final FERC order on this issue was issued on May 21, 2010 that substantially supports DP&L's 
and other utilities' posifion that SECA obligafions should be paid by parties that used the transmission system 
during the timeframe stated above. Prior to this final order being issued, DP&L entered into a significant number 
of bilateral settlement agreements with certain parties to resolve the matter, which by design will be unaffected by 
the final decision. On July 5, 2012, a Stipulation was executed and filed with the FERC that resolves SECA 
claims against BP Energy Company ("BP") and DP&L, AEP (and its subsidiaries) and Exelon Corporation (and 
its subsidiaries). On October 1, 2012, DP&L received $14.6 million (including interest income of $1.8 million) 
from BP and recorded the settlement in the third quarter; at December 31, 2012, there is no remaining balance in 
other deferred credits related to SECA. 
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NOTE 13 - FIXED-ASSET IMPAIRMENT 

During the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company tested the recoverabillty of long-lived assets at Conesville, a 129 
MW coal-fired station in Ohio, and East Bend, a 186 MW coal-fired station in Kentucky jointly-owned by DP&L. 
Gradual decreases in power prices, as well as lower estimates of future capacity prices in conjunction with the 
DP&L reporting unit of DPL failing step 1 of the annual goodwill Impairment test were collectively determined to 
be an impairment indicator for the DP&L long-lived assets. The Company performed a long-lived asset 
impairment test and determined that the carrying amounts of the asset groups were not recoverable. The long-
lived asset group subject fo the impairment evaluation was determined to be each Individual station of DP&L. 
This determination was based on the assessment of the stations' ability to generate Independent cash fiows. The 
Conesville and East Bend asset groups were each determined to have a zero fair value using discounted cash 
flows under the income approach. As a result, the Company recognized an asset impairment expense of $10.0 
million and $76.0 million for Conesville and East Bend, respectively. 

On October 5, 2012, DP&L filed for approval an ESP with the PUCO which reflected a shift in our outlook for the 
regulatory environment. Within the ESP filing, DP&L agreed to request a separation of its generation assets from 
its transmission and distribution assets in recognition that a restructuring of DP&L operations will be necessary, 
in compliance with Ohio law. Also, during 2012, North American natural gas prices fell significantly from the 
previous year, exerting downward pressure on wholesale electricity prices in the Ohio power market. Falling 
power prices compressed wholesale margins at DP&L's generating stations. Furthermore, these lower power 
prices led to increased customer switching from DP&L to CRES providers, who were offering retail prices lower 
than DP&L's standard service offer. Also, several municipalities in DP&L's service territory have passed 
ordinances allowing them to become government aggregators with some having already contracted with CRES 
providers, further contributing to the switching trend. In September 2012, management revised its cash flow 
forecasts based on these developments as part of its annual budgeting process and forecasted lower operating 
cash flows than in prior reporting periods. Collectively, in the third quarter of 2012, these events were considered 
to be an impairment Indicator for the long-lived asset group as management believed that these developments 
represent a significant adverse change in the business climate that could affect the value of the long-lived asset 
group. 

The long-lived asset group subject to the impairment evaluation was determined to be each Individual station of 
DP&L. This determination was based on the assessment of the stations' ability to generate independent cash 
flows. When the recoverabilify test of the long-lived asset group was performed, management concluded that, on 
an undiscounted cash flow basis, the carrying amount of two stations, Conesville and Hutchings, were not 
recoverable. 

The fair value using the income approach was considered the most appropriate and resulted in a $25.0 million 
fair value for the Conesville Station. The carrying value of the Conesville station prior to the impairment was 
$97.5 million. Accordingly, the Conesville station was considered impaired and $72.5 million of impairment 
expense was recognized in the third quarter of 2012. 

The fair value using the income approach was considered the most appropriate and resulted in a zero fair value 
for the Hutchings Station. The carrying value of the Hutchings Station prior to the impairment was $8.3 million. 
Accordingly, the Hutchings Station was considered impaired and $8.3 million of impairment expense was 
recognized in the third quarter of 2012. 
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Item 9 - Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

Item 9A - Controls and Procedures 

Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
Our Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining our disclosure controls and procedures. These controls and procedures were designed to ensure 
that material information relating to us and our subsidiaries are communicated to the CEO and CFO. We 
evaluated these disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report with the 
participation of our CEO and CFO. Based on this evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded that, as of December 
31, 2014 our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required to be 
disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized 
and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, as evidenced by the material 
weakness described below. 

As a result of the materia! weakness described below, the Company performed additional analysis and other 
post-closing procedures in order to ensure the proper preparation of the financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. This material weakness did not result in 
any misstatements in the Company's audited financial statements. Accordingly, management believes that the 
financial statements included in this 2014 Form 10-K fairiy present, in all material respects, our financial 
condition, results of operations and cash flows forthe periods presented. 

On May 14, 2013, The Committee of Sponsoring Organizafions of the Treadway Commission ("COSO") issued 
an updated version of its Internal Control - Integrated Framework (the "2013 Framework"). Originally issued in 
1992 (the "1992 Framework"), the 2013 Framework helps organizafions design, implement and evaluate the 
effectiveness of internal control concepts and simplify their use and application. We have reviewed the 2013 
Framework and integrated the changes into the Company's interna! controls over financial reporting. 
Management's assessment of the overall effectiveness of our internal controls over financial reporting for the 
year ending December 31, 2014 is based on the 2013 Framework and the change was not significant to our 
overall control structure over financial reporting. There was no change in our internal control over financial 
reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2014, other than the identified material weakness described 
below, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, internal control over financial 
reporting. 

Following is our report on internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. In making this assessment, management used the criteria 
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations 
("COSO") in 2013. Management determined that a material weakness in Internal control over financial reporting 
existed asof December 31, 2014 as a result of an incorrect formula within the spreadsheet used to support an 
account balance, creating an understatement of earnings. The Company determined that sufficient controls did 
not exist to Identify this error in a timely manner; therefore this deficiency could have led to a material error in the 
financial statements. As evidenced by this material weakness, management has concluded that, as of 
December 31, 2014, the Company did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting. 
Management is currently developing a corrective action plan related to the operating effectiveness of the control 
described above. Management and our Board of Directors are committed to the remediation of this material 
weakness as well as the continued improvement of the Company's overall system of internal control over 
financial reporting. 

Item 9B - Other information 

None. 
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PART III 

Item 10 - Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction I of the Form 10-K. 

Item 11 - Executive Compensation 

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction I of the Form 10-K. 

Item 12 - Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Shareholder 
Matters 

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction I of the Form 10-K. 

Item 13 - Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

Not applicable pursuant to General Instruction I ofthe Form 10-K. 

Item 14 - Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

Accountant Fees and Services 
The following table presents the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered to DPL and DP&L by 
Ernst & Young LLP for 2014 and 2013. Other than as set forth below, no professional services were rendered or 
fees billed by Ernst & Young LLP during 2014 and 2013. 

_ ^ _ _ _ _ ^ _ _ _ ^ _ ^ _ ^ _ 2014 fees billed 2013 fees billed 

W^^^S^:C^ . . ^^^^ „_ . -- -. • - . ,$t-^ "".^ig52^IM^^igS68ii)a^ 
Audit-related Fees''̂ ^ ^ _ ___^ ^ _̂  _^ 146 025 461.000 
JMH^^^T^'^ . - ..-" ' ' 'W^^SmM$ :̂̂ W^^^- '̂ 
AH other Fees _ -___ 14,600 
O ^ i ^ g ^ ^ . ; . j ^ ^ \ . .-̂  / . - r^_ . ,$ l>^u4^_J .669^^^Mi^^ga4Sl 

(a) Audit fees relate to professional services rendered for the audit of our annual financial statements and the reviews of our quarterly 
financial statements and other services that are nonnally provided in connection with regulatory filing or engagements and 
sen/ices rendered under an agreed upon procedure engagement related to environmental studies. 

(b) Audit-related fees relate to services rendered to us for assurance and related sen/ices. 
(c) Tax fees consisted principally of tax compliance services. 

The Boards of Directors of DPL Inc. and The Dayton Power and Light Company (collectively, the "Board") pre-
approve all audit and permitted non-audit services. Including engagement fees and terms for such services in 
accordance with Section 10A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The Board will generally pre-
approve a listing of specific services and categories of services, including audit, audit-related and other services, 
for the upcoming or current fiscal year, subject to a specified cost level. Any material service not included in the 
pre-approved list of services must be separately pre-approved by the Board. In addition, all audit and permissible 
non-audit services in excess of the pre-approved cost level, whether or not such services are included on the pre-
approved list of services, must be separately pre-approved by the Board. 
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PART IV 

item 15 - Exhibits, Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules 

The following documents are filed as part of this report: 

1. Financial Statements 

DPL - Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firms 68 

DPL - Consolidated Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2014 69 

DPL - Consolidated Statements of Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for each of the three 
years in the period ended December 31, 2014 70 

DPL - Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2014 71 

DPL - Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 73 

DPL - Consolidated Statement of Shareholder's Equity for each of the three years in the period 

ended December 31, 2014 75 

DPL - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 76 

DP&L- Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfing Firm 129 

DP&L - Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 
2014 130 
DP&L - Statements of Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for each of the three years In the 
period ended December 31, 2014 131 
DP&L - Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 

2014 132 

DP&L - Balance Sheets at December 31, 2014 and 2013 134 

DP&L - Statement of Shareholder's Equity for each of the three years in the period ended 

December 31, 2014 136 

DP&L- Notes to Financial Statements 137 

2. Financial Statement Schedules 

For each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014: 
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 191 
The information required to be submitted in Schedules I, III, IV and V is omitted as not applicable or not required 
under rules of Regulation S-X. 
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Exhibits 

DPL and DP&L exhibits are incorporated by reference as described unless othenwlse filed as set forth herein. 

The exhibits filed as 
DPL 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

DP&L 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

part of DPL's 
Exhibit 

Number 
2(a) 

3(a) 

3(b) 

3(c) 

3(d) 

4(a) 

4(b) 

4(c) 

4(d) 

4(e) 

and DP&L's Annual Report on Form 10-K, respectively, are: 

Exhibit 
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of 
April 19,2011, by and among DPL Inc., The 
AES Corporation and Dolphin Sub, Inc. 

Amended Articles of Incorporation of DPL Inc., 
as amended through January 6, 2012 

Amended Regulations of DPL Inc., as 
amended through November 28, 2011 

Amended Articles of Incorporation of The 
Dayton Power and Light Company, as of 
January 4,1991 

Regulations of The Dayton Power and Light 
Company, as of April 9,1981 

Composite Indenture dated as of October 1, 
1935, between The Dayton Power and Light 
Company and Irving Trust Company, Trustee 
with all amendments through the Twenty-Ninth 
Supplemental Indenture 

Forty-First Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
February 1,1999, between The Dayton Power 
and Light Company and The Bank of New 
York, Trustee 

Forty-Second Supplemental Indenture dated 
as of September 1, 2003, between The Dayton 
Power and Light Company and The Bank of 
New York, Trustee 

Forty-Third Supplemental Indenture dated as 
of August 1, 2005, between The Dayton Power 
and Light Company and The Bank of New 
York, Trustee 

Indenture dated as of August 31, 2001 
3etween DPL Inc. and The Bank of New York, 
Trustee 

Location 
Exhibit 2.1 to Report on Form 8-
K filed April 20, 2011 (File 
No. 1-9052) 

Exhibit 3(a) to Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
2385) 
Exhibit 3.2 to Report on Form 8-
K filed November 28, 2011 (File 
No. 1-9052) 

Exhibit 3(b) to Report on 
Form 10-K/A for the year ended 
December 31,1991 (File No. 1-
2385) 

Exhibit 3(a) to Report on 
Form 8-K filed on May 3, 2004 
(File No. 1-2385) 

Exhibit 4(a) to Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,1985 (File No. 1 -
2385) 

Exhibit 4(m) to Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31,1998 (File No. 1-
2385) 

Exhibit 4(r) to Report on 
Form 10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2003 (File No. 1 -
9052) 

Exhibit 4.4 to Report on Form 8-
K filed August 24, 2005 (File 
No. 1 -2385) 

Exhibit 4(a) to Registration 
Statement No. 333-74630 
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DPL 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

DP&L 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Exhibit 
Number 

4(f) 

4(g) 

4(h) 

4(1) 

4(j) 

4(k) 

4(1) 

4(m) 

4(n) 

4(0) 

4(P) 

Exhibit 
First Supplemental Indenture dated as of 
August 31, 2001 between DPL inc. and The 
Bank of New York, as Trustee 

Amended and Restated Trust Agreement 
dated as of August 31, 2001 among DPL Inc., 
The Bank of New York, The Bank of New York 
(Delaware), the administrative trustees named 
therein, and several Holders as defined therein 

Forty-Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as 
of September 1, 2006 between the Bank of 
New York, Trustee and The Dayton Power and 
Light Company 

Forty-Sixth Supplemental Indenture dated as 
of December 1, 2008 between The Bank of 
New York Mellon, Trustee and The Dayton 
Power and Light Company 

Indenture, dated October 3, 2011, between 
Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. and Wells Fargo 
Bank, National Association 

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of 
November 28, 2011, between DPL Inc. and 
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 
3, 2011, between Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. 
and Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner & Smith 
Incorporated and each of the initial purchasers 
named therein 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
September 19, 2013, by and between Merrill 
Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated 
and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, as 
representatives of the initial purchasers 
47 "̂ Supplemental Indenture to the First and 
Refunding Mortgage, dated as of September 1, 
2013, by and between the Bank of New York 
Mellon, as Trustee, and The Dayton Power 
and Light Company 
Indenture, dated October 6, 2014, between 
DPL Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association. 

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of 
October 6, 2014, by and between DPL Inc. and 
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 
Incorporated and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, 
as representatives of the initial purchasers. 

Location 
Exhibit 4(b) to Registration 
Statement No. 333-74630 

Exhibit 4(c) to Registration 
Statement No. 333-74630 

Exhibit 4(s) to Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2009 (File No. 1-
2385) 

Exhibit 4(x) to Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2008 (File No. 1 -
2385) 

Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
K filed October 5,2011 by The 
AES Corporation (File No. 1-
12291) 
Exhibit 4(k) to Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 (File No. 1-
2385) 
Exhibit 4(1) to Report on Form 
10-K for the year ended 
December 31, 2011 (File No. 1 -
2385) 

Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
K filed September 25, 2013 (File 
No. 1 -2385) 

Exhibit 4.2 to Report on Form 8-
K filed September 25, 2013 (File 
No. 1-2385) 

Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
Kfiled October 10, 2014 (File 
No. 1-9052) 
Exhibit 4.1 to Report on Form 8-
K filed October 10, 2014 (File 
No. 1 -9052) 
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DPL 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

DP&L 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Exhibit 
Number 

10(h) 

10(1) 

31(a) 

31(b) 

31(c) 

31(d) 

32(a) 

32(b) 

32(c) 

32(d) 

Exhibit 

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2013, 
among DPL Inc., U.S. Bank, National 
Association, as Administrative Agent, Swing 
Line Lender and an UC Issuer, Fifth Third 
Bank and PNC Bank, National Association, as 
Co-Syndication Agents, Bank of America, N.A., 
as Documentation Agent, and the other 
lenders party to the Credit Agreement 
Credit Agreement, dated as of May 10, 2013, 
among The Dayton Power and Light Company, 
Fifth Third Bank, as Administrative Agent, 
Swing Line Lender and an L/C Issuer, U.S. 
Bank, National Association and PNC Bank, 
National Association, as Co-Syndication 
Agents, Bank of America, N.A., as 
Documentation Agent, and the other lenders 
oarty to the Credit Agreement 
Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 
to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley 
Act of 2002 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant 
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 
2002 

Location 

Exhibit 10.2 to Report on Form 
8-K filed May 16, 2013 (File No. 
1-2385) 

Exhibit 10.3 to Report on Form 
8-K filed May 16, 2013 (File No. 
1-2385) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31 (a) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31 (b) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31 (c) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 31 (d) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(a) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(b) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(c) 

Filed herewith as Exhibit 32(d) 
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DPL 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

DP&L 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

X 

Exhibit 
Number 
101.INS 

101.SCH 

101.CAL 

101.DEF 

101.LAB 

101.PRE 

Exhibit 
XBRL Instance 

KBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation 
Linkbase 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition 
Linkbase 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentafion 
Linkbase 

Location 
Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101.INS 

Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101 .SCH 

Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101 .CAL 

Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101.DEF 

Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101.LAB 

Furnished herewith as 
Exhibit 101.PRE 

Exhibits referencing File No. 1-9052 have been filed by DPL Inc. and those referencing File No. 1-2385 have 
been filed by The Dayton Power and Light Company. 

Pursuant to paragraph (b)(4)(iII)(A) of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, we have not filed as an exhibit to this Form 10-
K certain instruments with respect to long-term debt if the total amount of securities authorized thereunder does 
not exceed 10% of the total assets of us and our subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, but we hereby agree to 
furnish to the SEC on request any such instruments. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, DPL Inc. and The 
Dayton Power and Light Company have duly caused this report to be signed on their behalf by the undersigned, 
thereunto duly authorized 

DPL Inc. 

February 25, 2015 By: /s/ Kenneth J. Zagzebski 
(Kenneth J. Zagzebski) 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
(principal executive officer) 

The Dayton Power and Light Company 

February 25, 2015 By: Is! Thomas A. Raga 
(Thomas A. Raga) 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
(principal executive officer) 
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of DPL Inc. and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

/s/ Brian Miller 
(Brian Miller) 

/s/ Elizabeth Hackenson 
(Elizabeth Hackenson) 

/s/ Michael S. Mizell 
(Michael S. Mizell) 

Isl Kazi K. Hasan 
(Kazi K. Hasan) 

/s/Sharon A. Virag 
(Sharon A. Virag) 

Director and Chairman 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 
(Mary Stawikey) 

Isl Kenneth J. Zagzebski 
(Kenneth J. Zagzebski) 

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer February 25, 2015 
(principal executive officer) 

Isl Craig L. Jackson 
(Craig L. Jackson) 

Chief Financial Officer 
(principal financial officer) 

February 25, 2015 

/s/Kurt A. Tomquist 
(Kurt A. Tomquist) 

Controller 
(principal accounting officer) 

February 25, 2015 
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the 
following persons on behalf of The Dayton Power and Light Company and in the capacities and on the dates 
Indicated. 

Isl Brian Miller 
(Brian Miller) 

Director and Chairman February 25, 2015 

Isl Ken Zagzebski 
(Ken Zagzebski) 

Director February 25, 2015 

Isl Elizabeth Hackenson 
(Elizabeth Hackenson) 

Director February 25, 2015 

/s/ Michael S. Mizell 
(Michael S. Mizell) 

Director February 25, 2015 

Isl Kazi K. Hasan 
(Kazi K. Hasan) 

Director February 25, 2015 

Isl Sharon A. Virag 
(Sharon A. Virag) 

fsl Paul L. Freedman 
(Paul L. Freedman) 

Isl Margaret A. Tig re 

Director 

Director 

Director 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 

February 25, 2015 
(Margaret A. Tigre) 

Isl Thomas A. Raga 
(Thomas A. Raga) 

Director, President and Chief 
Executive Officer (principal executive 
officer) 

February 25, 2015 

Isl Craig L. Jackson 
(Craig L. Jackson) 

Chief Financial Officer 
(principal financial officer) 

February 25, 2015 

Isl Kurt A. Tomquist 
(Kurt A. Tomquist) 

Controller 
(principal accounting officer) 

February 25, 2015 
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Schedule II 

DPL Inc. 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2012 - 2014 
$ in thousands 

Description 

Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period Additions 

Balance at 
Deductions ^̂ ' End of Period 

Year ended December 31, 2014 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 

Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 

Year ended December 31, 2013 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 

Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 

Year ended December 31, 2012 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts $ 

Deducted from deferred tax assets -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets $ 

1,160 $ 

13,721 $ 

7,644 $ 

5,179 $ 

7,537 $ 

- $ 

1,267 

18,900 

1,084 $ 

12,349 $ 

6,156 $ 

2,159 $ 

6,080 $ 

787 $ 

1,160 

13,721 

1,136 $ 5,902 $ 

6,702 $ 6,747 $ 

^̂^ Amounts written off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off. 

5,954 $ 

1,100 $ 

1,084 

12,349 
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THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY 
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

For each of the three years ended December 31, 2012 - 2014 
$ in thousands 

Description 

Balance at 
Beginning 
of Period 

Balance at 
Additions Deductions ^̂^ End of Period 

Year ended December 31, 2014 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts 

Year ended December 31, 2013 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts 

Year ended December 31, 2012 
Deducted from accounts receivable -

Provision for uncollectible accounts 

909 $ 

923 $ 

4,011 $ 

4,924 $ 

$ 941 $ 5,393 $ 

'̂ ^ Amounts written off, net of recoveries of accounts previously written off. 

4,023 $ 

4,938 $ 

5,411 $ 

897 

909 

923 
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